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Dear shareholders,

On behalf of the board (the “Board”) of directors (the “Directors”) of Best
Food Holding Company Limited (the “Company” or “Best Food”), | am
pleased to present the annual report of the Company and its subsidiaries
(collectively, the “Group”) for the year ended 31 December 2021.

Business Review

In 2021, the food and beverage industry has not fully recovered to the
market condition before the pandemic as everyone expected. Under the
double impact of pandemic resurgence and oversupply, the survival
environment of traditional restaurant enterprises becomes more difficult.
The only way for enterprises to seek survival and development is
innovation and making breakthrough. With the efforts of core
management and all staff, as well as the strong support from our
shareholders, the Group is firmly committed to moving towards a digital
multi-brand operating platform in 2021, and using digital technology to
enhance its operational and investment management capabilities.

Digital operation not only improves operational efficiency, but also
precisely shows the customer needs in front of the enterprise, allowing
the enterprise to obtain an in-depth understanding on the similarity
among different customers and their individual needs, thus developing
products that customers favour and providing satisfactory services for
them. It has broken down the concept of production-oriented sales, and
grasps the chance to realize the operation philosophy and strategy of a
customer-demand-oriented enterprise.

After exploration of the franchise business throughout 2021, the Group
focused to develop the model that can be profitable to franchisees.
Meanwhile, we also used the new media platform to promote and identify
regional franchisees and real estate developers as partners who truly
have passions on the food and beverage industry and are interested in
restaurant operation.

In 2021, the food and beverage industry remained popular, and some of
the brands under the Group’s investment and management were favored
by the capital investment in the market, and realized a significant
improvement in valuation, making contribution of considerable profits to
the Group.
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Prospects and Future Planning

In the first quarter of 2022, the pandemic is resurgent and recurring. It is
foreseeable that the food and beverage industry will even face a reshuffle
in 2022. How to survive such reshuffle and pave ways for the
development of a platform-oriented enterprise is a challenge and
opportunity for the Group. Remaining true to its original aspiration, the
Group will improve its empowerment capabilities in areas such as
investment management, operation and digitalization, staying committed
to building a restaurant eco-system platform with unique market values.

Appreciation

On behalf of the Board, | would like to extend our sincere gratitude to the
Shareholders, customers and business partners for their strong support
throughout the year. In addition, | would also like to take this opportunity
to thank all colleagues and staff for their persistent contribution to the
Group.

On behalf of the Board
Zhao John Huan
Chairman

Hong Kong, 29 March 2022

Best Food Holding Company Limited
Annual Report 2021

R B R KK E

2022F —Z=E - HIBWBRFER  JUTAREH
2022 F M ERITEEB MR LR - a0
xR FEEINRIBELFELELEND
BEBER REAEEEHEOKREMELE -
REEBVLTN BEIRAEBFGREE
B -EEREFTLEEFEBEAEERED XE
TaTEEEMSBEREENERELTF

=8
| =

IS &t

AAERREZE MAKERR TPK
EBRHRAFELTONRNAXET KT
ROBUE o AN RATRFE B S Rl &
BTN HMAAKEELER -

REES®

HLE

TE

EFE 2022943 A29H



WU\M@W{MT DISC%SSI@M ARD ARALYIS

R B




LA
A

MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS (CONTINUED)
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Business Performance Review

In 2021, despite that the COVID-19 pandemic was mitigated throughout
China, regional slight resurgences remained in various areas continuously.
The Group was adversely affected by the pandemic in different regions.
Nonetheless, by adhering to the designated strategic direction, Best
Food strived to develop itself into a “new” digital-based and multi-brand
food and beverage platform company. It placed emphasis on the
upgrade in three major strengths such as digital, operational and
investment empowerment and achieved solid progress.

Operational Empowerment

As at 31 December 2021, the number of direct-owned and franchised
stores under the brands of Best Food exceeded 700 in total, representing
a significant growth as compared with the previous year (as at 31
December 2020: approximately 500). Among them, 500 were direct-
owned stores and 216 were franchised stores.

Regarding the development of direct-owned stores, Best Food has
undergone structural adjustment and closure of certain poorly located or
underperforming stores on one hand, and optimized the store layout to
newly-opened stores with shorter period of return and less investment
costs on the other hand.

The business strategy of franchising focused on increasing the efficiency
of channel development and developing the franchise supporting system:
embarking on the regional franchise partnership with franchisees
possessing management experience and operational strengths in order
to promote the brands of all members of Best Food to various provinces
throughout China by leveraging the location advantages of the
franchisees. For instance, the franchise partner in Lanzhou region which
possessed well-established management experience has optimized the
franchise store layout under the Xinladao brand, launched the new store
layout providing new products such as the signature boiled fish pot and
fish with pickled cabbage, achieving satisfactory growth of single-store
sales. Besides, the focused tasks of franchise business included the
integrated management of direct-owned and franchised stores, pushing
forward the development of the franchisee service system and thus
fostering good reputation in a bid to expand the scale of franchise
business. For example, the operation supporting team for HHG has
formulated a consistent standard of product, service and user experience
for direct-owned and franchised stores, established the rapid feedback
mechanism, promoted the modularized training and inspection systems,
achieving new market expansion in regions such as Harbin and Jinhua,
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS (CONTINUED)

Zhejiang. In addition, given the highly standardized products and broad
customer base of Yujian Xiaomian, the franchise regions have expanded
to areas including Fujian and employees were attracted to participate in
the franchise business as entrepreneurs. Clay Pot King was renamed as
King of Clay Pot (£1F &) with improved and adapted flavour to cater for
Southern China market, upon which it has achieved rapid expansion of
franchised stores in regions including, among others, Jiangsu and Anhui
with 13 newly-opened stores. West Master enriched its product lines,
increased brand popularity by means of new media promotion and made
breakthrough in expanding the franchise business into various regions.

Digital Empowerment

In 2021, various brands of Best Food have achieved phased results in
terms of general development and operation of their digital systems.

Its major brands launched WeChat and Alipay Mini Programs to further
enhance service efficiency and customer experience. Coupled with other
various measures, the number of members with stored value and loyalty
points increased from approximately 11.6 million at the beginning of the
year to approximately 16.0 million at end of the year. Internally, Best Food
also promoted its own integrated member data platform to provide better
services to satisfy the diverse demands of customers.

Since the middle of 2021, Best Food has established a professional
digitalization team to develop a digitalized application platform linking all
brands within the Group. During 2021, the Group developed the one-
stop smart cashier system and order-via-mobile-app system successfully,
accomplished the upgrade of the membership customer management
system and developed the data operational capabilities, initially
possessing the ability in exploring and analyzing the integrated online and
offline customer demands.

In 2022, Best Food will continue to put in efforts and resources in the
refined management such as customer-segmentation marketing and
restaurant operation by categories. Meanwhile, Best Food also
commenced development of the intelligent takeaway system, franchise
management system and business data analysis system so as to
enhance management and operational efficiency comprehensively.

Investment Empowerment

Investing in various segments of the catering industry over the years, Best
Food has established the multi-category and systematic investment
layout in the industry. Among them, most of the joint-stock brands saw
significant growth in business volumes as compared to that at initial
investment. King of Clay Pot (&{f £) (formerly known as Clay Pot King)
made its business presence successfully and expanded its number of
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS (CONTINUED)
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restaurants rapidly in Eastern China region, the result of which facilitated
its receipt of two consecutive rounds of investment from investors during
2021. Yujian Xiaomian received two consecutive rounds of investment
from a fund under Shenzhen Country Garden Venture Capital Co., Ltd. in
2021, as a result of which its valuation as at the date of the second round
of investment has nearly tripled as compared with that of the first round.
Amidst the hardship in obtaining finance for the catering sector during the
second half of 2021, Seesaw Coffee received a total of investment
exceeding RMB100 million from multiple investors respectively, as a
result of which its valuation has doubled within the half year.

The increase in the valuation of the joint-stock companies made
significant contribution to the value enhancement of Best Food. However,
according to Hong Kong Accounting Standard 28 “Investment in
associates and joint ventures”, the investments in associates were
accounted for using the equity method (instead of the fair value
approach), the contribution of the abovementioned increase in valuation
has not been reflected in the statement of comprehensive income of Best
Food. During 2021, Best Food has realised part of the gains through the
disposal of a small portion of investments in certain associates, which
demonstrated the considerable result of investment empowerment.

Management Discussion and Analysis

Revenue

Revenue of the Group increased by 15.7% from RMB650.7 million for the
year ended 31 December 2020 to RMB753.0 million for the
corresponding period of 2021, among which revenue from restaurant
operations increased by 11.6% from RMB448.8 milion for the year
ended 31 December 2020 to RMB500.9 million for the corresponding
period of 2021, which was mainly attributable to the mitigating of
CQOVID-19 pandemic in 2021 and the recovery of restaurant operations in
2021. Revenue from delivery business increased by 20.7% from
RMB170.8 million for the year ended 31 December 2020 to RMB206.1
million for the corresponding period of 2021, which was mainly
attributable to the increase in the number of delivery orders during the
year ended 31 December 2021.

Raw material used and changes in inventories of
finished goods

Raw material used and changes in inventories of finished goods
increased by 15.9% from RMB248.4 million for the year ended 31
December 2020 to RMB288.0 million for the corresponding period of
2021, which was mainly attributable to the recovery of restaurant
operations in 2021. Raw material used and changes in inventories of
finished goods as a percentage of revenue were 38.2% for the year
ended 31 December 2020 and 38.2% for the corresponding period of
2021, respectively.

Best Food Holding Company Limited
Annual Report 2021

FERIJEEERYTEEREBETES
MAKRE MAREBGHEEE I =

Seesaw I BE R 2021 F T FE M ERME R
HOIRBET REBRESZMKREAEGT L
BLEE TERTEFRGHERGE-

ARHEEEHEREBRAERA
E BREBZBGTEIFE8HR[HE QA
NEEARKEIHBERANRE NiEx
FETEGEAREBEE) Ll HEERD
ERTERE2EKE R P RER 20214
ﬁ?ﬁngT’J‘EE/\\%%@jm&,\'Eiﬁ

HUGERE - BR T RAR B
%o

EEE R WED AN

A

NEBU AEE 22020512 A1 B IEFE
M)A R#650.78 8T L E2021F R H &)
ARBE753.08&E L EAH15.7% - Hh &g
LI AME Z2020F 12 A31HIEEE W
ARMA448.8FH BT LA Z=2021F A H M A

R¥5009B &L FA116% ETEBHR
2021 FEHEM AR IEEREE N ERE S

MR8 - SNE E U A E 22020412 A 31
HIEFEEMNARK170.8F & T+ F & 2021
FRIEAHARB2061EET  EF20.7% -
TERREE2021F12A31IBEFEINE
RTEE S =N -

RAmZTARMBREEZE

BRMZBREMBRGTEESHRER
2020F 12 A31H EFE M AR K24847H
BT EFAR2021 F R A RE288.08 &
T EAT159% T EHNREBANEE

EENRE BRRKXBZAARME ERF
BEEEMEWMAET D - 8 E20205F12 A

S1HIEFEMEE2021F12A31B ILFE
DR 538.2%K138.2% °



MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS (CONTINUED)
EEE WD (&)

Cegzj

Online platform service charges and delivery fees

Online platform service charges and delivery fees increased by 28.4%
from RMB28.9 million for the year ended 31 December 2020 to RMB37.1
million for the corresponding period of 2021, which was mainly
attributable to the operation recovered during the reporting period. Online
platform service charges and delivery fees as a percentage of revenue
from delivery business increased from 16.9% for the year ended 31
December 2020 to 18.0% for the year ended 31 December 2021, which
was mainly contributed by the increase of service charge rate by online
platform during the reporting period.

Employee benefit expense

Employee benefit expense increased by 8.8% from RMB200.2 million for
the year ended 31 December 2020 to RMB217.9 million for the
corresponding period of 2021, which was mainly attributable to the
increase in staff's working hours due to the resumption of operation in
2021. Employee benefit expense as a percentage of revenue decreased
from 30.8% for the year ended 31 December 2020 to 28.9% for the
corresponding period of 2021, which was mainly contributed by the
recovery of revenue during the reporting period.

Depreciation of right-of-use assets

Depreciation of right-of-use assets decreased by 16.0% from RMB123.1
million for the year ended 31 December 2020 to RMB1083.4 million for the
corresponding period of 2021. Depreciation of right-of-use assets as a
percentage of revenue decreased from 18.9% for the year ended 31
December 2020 to 13.7% for the corresponding period of 2021, which
was mainly due to the closure of certain under performing restaurants
with lower revenue contribution at the beginning of 2021.

Depreciation and amortization of other assets

Depreciation and amortisation of other assets decreased by 6.6% from
RMB44.1 million for the year ended 31 December 2020 to RMB41.2
million for the corresponding period of 2021. Depreciation and
amortisation of other assets as a percentage of revenue decreased from
6.8% for the year ended 31 December 2020 to 5.5% for the
corresponding period of 2021, which was mainly due to the closure of
certain under performing restaurants and disposal of underlying assets
with lower revenue contribution at the beginning of 2021.
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Property rentals and other related expenses

Property rentals and other related expenses increased by 236.5% from
RMB9O.6 million for the year ended 31 December 2020 to RMB32.3
million for the corresponding period of 2021, property rentals and other
related expenses as a percentage of revenue increased from 1.5% for
the year ended 31 December 2020 to 4.3% for the corresponding period
of 2021, which was mainly due to the COVID-19-Related rent
concessions received in 2020.

Other expenses

Other expenses increase by 24.1% from RMB77.2 million for the year
ended 31 December 2020 to RMB95.8 million for the corresponding
period of 2021, which was attributable to resumption of operation and
mainly reflected (i) the increase in advertising costs of RMB2.1 million; (ii)
the increase in daily maintenance expenses of RMB5.6 million; and (i)
the increase in impairment of property, plant and equipment of RMB5.2
million. Other expenses as a percentage of revenue increase from 11.9%
for the year ended 31 December 2020 to 12.7% for the corresponding
period of 2021.

Gain on partial disposal and dilution of
investments in associates

Gain on partial disposal and dilution of investments in associates amounted
to RMB82.0 million for the year ended 31 December 2021, which was
mainly attributable to the increase in the Group’s share of net assets of
associates resulting from the new round of financing obtained during the
reporting period, as well as the investment gain from the disposal of a small
portion of equity interests in certain associates by the Group.

Finance expenses — net

Finance expenses — net (which includes finance income, finance
expenses and interest on convertible bonds) decreased by 8.2% from
RMB52.3 million for the year ended 31 December 2020 to RMB48.0
million for the corresponding period of 2021, which was mainly
attributable to the decrease in interest on convertible bonds and interest
on lease liabilities.

Income tax credit

Income tax credit amounted to RMB9.7 million for the year ended 31
December 2020, while the income tax credit amounted to RMB13.8
million for the corresponding period of 2021, which was mainly
attributable to the increase in losses.
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Loss for the year attributable to equity holders of
the Company

The Group recorded a loss for the year attributable to equity holders of
the Company of approximately RMB639.6 million, as compared to loss
attributable to equity holders of the Company of RMB140.9 million for the
year ended 31 December 2020, which was mainly attributable to the
recognized impairment loss of goodwill and loss on fair value change on
derivative financial instrument.

Non-GAAP Financial Measure

Adjusted loss for the year

The adjusted loss for the year is calculated as the loss for the year
excluding interest on convertible bonds, gain or loss on fair value change
on derivative financial instrument and impairment of goodwill and other
intangible assets. The table below sets forth the reconciliation of loss for
the year to adjusted loss for the year:
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Year ended 31 December
BE12A31ALEE

FAER
AR E S S

Loss for the year
Interest on convertible bonds
Loss/(gain) on fair value change
on derivative financial instrument
Impairment of goodwill and other intangible assets

TEEMIARAREE
FEEE (W)
BEREMETEERE

Adjusted loss for the year FANKAERIE

2021 2020
RMB’000 RMB’000
FARM FARM
(651,837) (150,996)
32,765 35,214
47,375 (29,262)
566,455 —
(5,242) (145,044)

The Group uses such unaudited adjusted loss as an additional financial
measure to supplement the consolidated financial statements which are
presented in accordance with HKFRS and to evaluate the financial
performance of the Group by excluding the impact of certain non-
operating, unusual and/or non-recurring items which the Group does not
consider to be non- indicative of the performance of the business of the
Group.

Such unaudited non-GAAP financial measure has limitation as an
analytical tool, and should be considered in addition to, not as a
substitute for, analysis of the Company’s financial performance prepared
in accordance with HKFRS. This non-GAAP financial measure may be
defined differently from similar terms used by other companies. The
Group’s presentation of this non-GAAP financial measure should not be
construed as an inference that the Group’s future results will be
unaffected by these items.
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Right-of-use assets

Under HKFRS 16 Lease (“HKFRS 16”), the Group recognized right-of-
use assets with respect to its property leases. The right-of-use assets are
depreciated over the leasing term or the useful life of the underlying
asset, whichever the shorter. As of 31 December 2021, the Group
recognized right-of-use assets with an amount of RMB274.0 million.

Investment in associates

As of 31 December 2021, the total investment in associates amounted to
RMB240.5 million, representing an increase of 9.3% as compared to
RMB220.0 million for the corresponding period of 2020, which was
mainly attributable to the additional investments in existing associates
and the addition of a new associate with an aggregate amount of
approximately RMB18.6 million made during the year ended 31
December 2021. These associates are principally engaged in operation
of restaurants or food ingredients processing business.

Derivative financial instrument

Derivative financial instrument decreased by 68.8% from RMB72.2 million
as of 31 December 2020 to RMB22.5 million as of 31 December 2021,
which was attributable to loss on fair value change of RMB47.4 million.
For further details, please refer to Note 22 to the consolidated financial
results of the Company in this report for further details.

Goodwiill

Goodwill decreased by 92.2% from RMB580.9 million as of 31 December
2020 to RMB45.5 milion as of 31 December 2021, which was
attributable to the recognized impairment loss of goodwill for the year
ended 31 December 2021 of RMB535.4 million (2020: none). For further
details, please refer to Note 21 to the consolidated financial results of the
Company in this report for further details.

Upon completion of the acquisition of Beijing Xinladao Catering
Management Ltd. (“Xinladao”) and its subsidiaries (the “Xinladao Group”)
in November 2018 (the “Acquisition”), (i) the excess amount of the total
consideration for the Acquisition over the fair value of the net identifiable
assets of the Xinladao Group was recognized as goodwill which
amounted to approximately RMB535 million; and (i) acquired identifiable
intangible assets of approximately RMB400 million represented trademark
of Xinladao Group. Details of the Acquisition are set out in the
announcement of the Company dated 19 June 2018, 18 October 2018
and 30 November 2018 and the circular of the Company dated 2
October 2018.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS (CONTINUED)

As at 31 December 2021, the cost of the goodwill and trademarks with
indefinite useful life concerning the Xinladao Group (collectively, the
“Xinladao Goodwill”) were approximately RMB535 million and
approximately RMB400 million respectively.

Since completion of the Acquisition, management of the Company has
been conducting impairment review on the Xinladao Goodwill in
accordance with HKAS 36 “Impairment of assets” on an annual basis, or
more frequently if events or changes in circumstances indicate that it
might be impaired. For the purpose of conducting impairment
assessment, the recoverable amount of the Xinladao Group is determined
as the higher of value in use (“VIU”) and fair value less costs of disposal
(“FVLCOD”). The VIU is calculated using the discounted cash flow
method based on the business plan of the Xinladao Group as approved
by the management. While the FVLCOD is primarily affected by the
market condition of the chain-restaurant industry in which the Xinladao
Group operates.

In the third quarter of 2021, an unpredicted cluster of COVID-19 cases
broke out in certain inland provinces and cities, including Beijing, Hebei
province, Shaanxi province and Inner Mongolia Autonomous Region, in
which the direct-owned restaurants of the Xinladao Group were relatively
concentrated; and in the fourth quarter of 2021, the first case of the
highly infectious Omicron mutant (“Omicron”) infection was reported
overseas and more stringent control measures were initiated since the
persisting transmission of Omicron throughout China.

As a result of the volatile COVID-19 pandemic in the second half of 2021,
the performance of the Xinladao Group had deteriorated. Accordingly,
the operating results of the Xinladao Group for the year ended 31
December 2021 was below management’s forecast as approved and
adopted in the impairment assessment as at 31 December 2020.

For the purpose of conducting impairment review as at 31 December
2021, management of the Company had considered the above change
in market conditions since the second half of 2021, including (1) for the
calculation of VIU, management had updated the business plan of the
Xinladao Group which was developed based on its business target in
terms of operating scale, i.e. to achieve the targeted number of
restaurants. In consideration of the volatile pandemic, the critical
pandemic control situation and the overall deteriorating market condition
of the domestic chain restaurant industry since the second half of 2021,
the management determined to reduce the targeted number of
restaurants of the Xinladao Group during the forecast period, which in
turn led to a decrease in the forecasted revenue growth rate during the
forecast period; and (2) for the calculation of FVLCOD, the management
had noted that the market statistics of the enterprise value-to-sales
multiple (“EV/S LTM”) of certain comparable companies which are listed
on the Stock Exchange as at 31 December 2021 had decreased as
compared with those as at 31 December 2020.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS (CONTINUED)
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According to management’s impairment assessment based on the higher
of (1) the VIU calculated using the updated business plan of the Xinladao
Group as at 31 December 2021 and (2) the FVLCOD calculated using the
market approach with key inputs as at 31 December 2021, impairment
loss of goodwill and trademark of RMB535 million and RMB31 million
respectively was recorded for the year ended 31 December 2021.

Trade and other receivables

Trade and other receivables increased by 46.3% from RMB68.5 million
as of 31 December 2020 to RMB100.2 million as of 31 December 2021,
among which, other receivables increased by 55.7% from RMB54.4
million as of 31 December 2020 to RMB84.7 million as of 31 December
2021, which was mainly attributable to the consideration receivable in
relation to partial disposal of investment in an associate of RMB36.5
million (which was completed in December 2021).

Trade and other payables

Trade and other payables increased from RMB150.2 million as of 31
December 2020 to RMB178.8 million as of 31 December 2021, which
was mainly attributable to the increase in deposit received in relation to
partial disposal of investment in an associate of RMB20 million. Among
which, trade payables decreased from RMB70.9 million as of 31
December 2020 to RMB59.2 million as of 31 December 2021, and the
turnover days decreased from 89 days for the year ended 31 December
2020 to 82 days for the corresponding period of 2021.

Borrowings

As of 31 December 2021, the Group had borrowings of RMB15.0 million (as
of 31 December 2020: RMB16.2 million).

Convertible bonds

As of 31 December 2021, convertible bonds and related interests totalled
RMB502.1 million, representing an increase of RMB16.7 million as
compared to RMB485.4 million as of 31 December 2020, which was
mainly attributable to the interest incurred of RMB32.8 million and as
partially offset by the fluctuation of exchange rate of RMB16.1 million
during the year ended 31 December 2021.

Lease liabilities

As of 31 December 2021, the total lease liabilities amounted to
RMB284.1 million, representing a decrease of 10.2% as compared to
RMB316.2 million as of 31 December 2020, which was mainly
attributable to the closure of certain underperforming restaurants during
the year ended 31 December 2021.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS (CO

Future Prospects

With the powerful transmission of the Omicron variant of COVID-19
emerging at the end of 2021, the pandemic control situation became
critical in early 2022, posing more immense pressure on the catering
sector than 2021. In response to the stress, the top priority task of the
Group is to safeguard cash flow, followed by committing resources
mainly to the direction of strategic development, including:

(i) expediting the collaboration with capable regional franchisees for
repetition and promotion of the optimized store layouts;

(i) continuing to allocate resources to expand and train up the digital
development and operation teams; and

(i) making investment in the new and creative brands in the industry

prudently.

Best Food is optimistic about the development trend of the catering
industry in the long run. Following the mature operation of the digital
platform, it is believed that Best Food will be able to give full play to its
capability in operational and investment empowerment, implement the goal
of developing itself into a “new” multi-brand food and beverage platform,
boost the corporate business results and create value for shareholders.

Final Dividend

The Board has resolved not to declare final dividend for the year ended
31 December 2021 (2020: nil).

Liquidity, Financial Resources and Capital
Structure

The total equity of the Group as at 31 December 2021 was RMB355.4
million (831 December 2020: RMB1,000.7 million). As at 31 December
2021, the Group had current assets of RMB290.9 million (31 December
2020: RMB280.6 million) and current liabilities of RMB418.9 million (31
December 2020: RMB379.1 million). The current ratio was 0.69 as at 31
December 2021 as compared to 0.74 as at 31 December 2020.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS (CONTINUED)
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The Group generally finances its operations and possible redemption with
internally generated cash flow, bank borrowings and convertible bonds
issued to shareholder. As at 31 December 2021, the Group had
outstanding borrowings of RMB15.0 million (31 December 2020:
RMB16.2 million). As at 31 December 2021, the Group maintained cash
and cash equivalents of RMB62.6 million (31 December 2020: RMB123.7
million). The Group’s net cash-to-equity ratio (cash and cash equivalents
net of total borrowings over shareholders’ equity) was 0.13 as at 31
December 2021 (31 December 2020: 0.11).

As at 31 December 2021, the Group had outstanding convertible bonds
of RMB502.1 million (31 December 2020: RMB485.4 million). Please
refer to Note 25 to the consolidated financial results of the Company in
this report for further details.

On 13 January 2020, the Company and United Strength Victory Limited (the
“Investor”) entered into an investment agreement (the “2020 Investment
Agreement”) pursuant to which the Company agreed to issue and the
Investor agreed to subscribe for the convertible bond(s) with an aggregate
principal amount of up to HK$780,000,000 (the “Subscription”). The 2020
Investment Agreement was approved by the shareholders of the Company
at the extraordinary general meeting held on 28 May 2020. Please refer to
the announcement of the Company dated 13 January 2020, the circular of
the Company dated 27 April 2020 and the poll results of the extraordinary
general meeting of the Company dated 28 May 2020 for further details. As
at the date of this report, completion of the Subscription pursuant to the
2020 Investment Agreement had not taken place.

The Group possesses sufficient cash and available financing facilities to meet
its commitments and working capital requirements. Considering the Group’s
ability to generate net cash inflows from its future operating activities and the
Investment Agreement, the Directors believe that adequate funding is
available to fulfil the Group’s debt obligations and capital expenditure
requirements for the next 12 months period commencing from 31 December
2021. Based on the above, to the best knowledge of the Directors, the
Company expects that it will be able to meet its redemption obligations
under the outstanding convertible bonds issued by the Company.

The capital structure of the Group consists of debts, which include
convertible bonds, lease liabilities and borrowings, and equity attributable
to equity holders of the Company, comprising share capital and reserves.
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Capital Commitments

As at 31 December 2021, the Group had no capital expenditure
contracted for but not provided in the consolidated financial statements
in respect of property, plant and equipment (31 December 2020: nil).
Significant Investments

During the year, the Company did not hold any significant investment
with a value of 5% or more of the Company’s total assets.

Material Acquisitions and Disposals of

Subsidiaries, Associates and Joint Ventures

The Group had no material acquisition or disposal of subsidiaries,
associates or joint ventures during the year ended 31 December 2021.

Future Plans for Material Investments and
Capital Assets

The Group currently has no definite plans for material investments and
capital assets as at the date of this report.

Charge on Assets

As at 31 December 2021, save for the Group’s buildings with net book
value of RMB22.7 million (31 December 2020: RMB23.6 million) were
pledged as securities for the Group’s borrowings, there was no other
charge over the assets of the Group.

Contingent Liabilities

As at 31 December 2021, the Group did not have any material contingent
liabilities (31 December 2020: nil).
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Gearing Ratio

As at 31 December 2021, the Group’s gearing ratio was 56% (31
December 2020: 27%). This ratio is calculated as net debt divided by
total capital. Net debt is calculated as total borrowings (including “current
and non-current borrowings” and convertible bonds as shown in the
consolidated balance sheet) less cash and cash equivalents. Total capital
is calculated as “equity” as shown in the consolidated balance sheet plus
net debt.

Foreign Exchange Exposure

The Group’s businesses are principally conducted in HK dollars, RMB
and US dollars which are exposed to foreign currency risk with respect to
transactions denominated in currencies other than HK dollars, RMB and
US dollars. Foreign exchange risk arises from recognised assets and
liabilities and net investments in foreign operations. The Group did not
enter into any forward contract to hedge its exposure to foreign currency
risk for the year ended 31 December 2021 (2020: nil).

Human Resources

As at 31 December 2021, the Group had a workforce of about 2,793
people (2020: about 3,352 people). The total staff costs of the Group for
the year ended 31 December 2021 amounted to approximately
RMB217,944,000. The Group maintains a good relationship with its
employees, and provides them with proper training and competitive
compensation and incentives. The staff are remunerated based on their
work performance, professional experience and prevailing market
situation.

Remuneration packages comprise salary and bonuses based on
individual merits. In addition, the Company had adopted a share award
scheme on 11 November 2019 to provide incentives to the employees of
the Group and to recognise their contributions to the Group.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT
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Corporate Governance Practices

The Company is committed to maintaining high standards of corporate
governance. The Board believes that sound and reasonable corporate
governance practices are essential for the growth of the Group and for
safeguarding and maximizing Shareholders’ interests. The Company has
applied the principles and adopted the code provisions set out in the
Corporate Governance Code (the “CG Code”) contained in Appendix 14
to the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on The Stock Exchange
of Hong Kong Limited (the “Listing Rules”) as amended from time to time.
The Board is committed to complying with the code provisions as stated
in the CG Code to the extent that the Directors consider applicable and
practical to the Company.

In the opinion of the Directors, the Company has complied with the code
provisions set out in the CG Code that was in force throughout the year
ended 31 December 2021.

Directors’ Securities Transactions

The Company has adopted the Model Code for Securities Transactions
by Directors of Listed Issuers (“Model Code”) as set out in Appendix 10
of the Listing Rules as a code of conduct regarding directors’ securities
transactions. All the Directors have confirmed, following specific enquiry
by the Company that they have complied with the required standard as
set out in the Model Code throughout the year ended 31 December
2021. The Model Code also applies to other specified senior
management of the Group.

Board of Directors

Composition and role

The Board comprises:

Executive Director

Mr. Zhao John Huan
Mr. Wang Xiaolong (Chief Executive Officer)
Mr. Jing Shen
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Independent non-executive Director

Mr. Leung Kwai Kei

Mr. Heng Victor Ja Wei

Mr. Tsang Hin Man Terence (resigned on 27 April 2021)
Mr. Lo Wei-Ren (appointed on 27 April 2021)

As at 31 December 2021, the Board comprises three executive Directors
(one of whom is the chairman of the Board) and three independent non-
executive Directors. The three independent non-executive Directors
represent more than one-third of the Board. In addition, all the
independent non-executive Directors possess appropriate business,
professional accounting qualifications or legal expertise.

As at 31 December 2021 and up to the date of this annual report, there
were no relationship (including financial, business, family or other material/
relevant relationship) between members of the Board.

The principal focus of the Board is on the overall strategic development
of the Group. The Board also monitors the financial performance, as well
as the risk management and the internal controls of the Group’s business
operations.

The Company has distinguished the roles of the chairman of the Board
and chief executive officer of the Company in accordance with code
provision A.2.1 of the CG Code (which has been renumbered as code
provision C.2.1 since 1 January 2022). The chairman of the Board and
chief executive officer of the Company are Mr. Zhao John Huan and Mr.
Wang Xiaolong respectively.

Responsibilities, Accountabilities and
Contributions of the Board and Management

The Board is responsible for leadership and control of the Company and
oversees the businesses, strategic decisions and performance of the
Group and is collectively responsible for promoting the success of the
Company by directing and supervising its affairs. Directors of the Board
take decisions objectively in the interests of the Company.

All Directors, including the independent non-executive Directors, have
brought a wide spectrum of valuable business experience, knowledge
and professionalism to the Board for its efficient and effective functioning.

Best Food Holding Company Limited
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All Directors have full and timely access to all the information of the
Company. The Directors may, upon request, seek independent
professional advice in appropriate circumstances, at the Company’s
expenses for discharging their duties to the Company.

The Directors shall disclose to the Company details of other offices held
by them and the Board regularly reviews the contribution required from
each Director to perform his/her responsibilities to the Company.

The Board reserves for its decision all major matters relating to policy
matters, strategies and budgets, internal control and risk management,
material transactions (in particular those that may involve conflict of
interests), financial information, appointment of Directors and other
significant operational matters of the Company. Responsibilities relating
to implementing decisions of the Board, directing and coordinating the
daily operation and management of the Company are delegated to the
management.

The independent non-executive Directors also serve the important
function of ensuring and monitoring the basis for an effective corporate
governance framework. The Board considers that each independent
non-executive Director is independent in character and judgment and
that they all meet the specific independence criteria as required by the
Listing Rules. The Company has received from each independent non-
executive Director an annual confirmation or confirmation of his
independence pursuant to Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules. The
independent non-executive Directors are explicitly identified in all of the
Company’s corporate communications.

Each of the independent non-executive Directors has entered into an
appointment letter with the Company for a term of three years.

In accordance with the Company’s articles of association, all Directors
are subject to retirement by rotation and re-election at annual general
meeting at least once every three years and any Director appointed by
the Board to fill a casual vacancy or as an addition to the Board shall hold
office until the next following general meeting, as the case may be, of the
Company after his/her appointment and be subject to re-election at such
meeting.
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The chairman of the Board is responsible for drawing up and approving
the agenda for each board meeting in consultation with all the Directors.
Notice of at least 14 days will be given to the Directors for all regular
board meetings and the Directors can include matters for discussion in
the agenda if necessary. Agenda and accompanying board papers in
respect of regular board meetings are sent out in full to all the Directors
within reasonable time and at least 3 days before the meeting. Draft
minutes of all board meetings are circulated to Directors for comment
within a reasonable time prior to confirmation.

Minutes of board meetings and meetings of board committees are kept
by duly appointed secretaries of the respective meetings and all the
Directors have access to board papers and related materials, and are
provided with adequate information in a timely manner, which enable the
Board to make an informed decision on matters placed before it.

During the year ended 31 December 2021, four full board meetings and
one general meeting were held and the attendance of each Director is
set out below:
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Number of Annual

board meetings general meeting

attendance held on 8 June 2021

HEEES M2021F6HA8H

Name of Director EEfS BRI ZHTZBRREFAE

Mr. Zhao John Huan (Chairman) HESBAE (FE) 4/4 11

Mr. Wang Xiaolong T/hEERE 4/4 1/1

Mr. Jing Shen =ELE 4/4 1/1

Mr. Leung Kwai Kei REERSLE 4/4 1/1

Mr. Heng Victor Ja Wei B 2% 4 55 A 4/4 1/1

Mr. Tsang Hin Man Terence BEXEE 2/2 0/0

(resigned on 27 April 2021) (R20214F4 H27 A& L)

Mr. Lo Wei-Ren B EE 3/3 1/1

(appointed on 27 April 2021) (R2021F4 /27 H¥EZT)

Each newly appointed Director receives comprehensive, formal and
tailored induction on his appointment, so as to ensure that he/she has
appropriate understanding of the business and operations of the Group
and that he/she is fully aware of his/her responsibilities and obligations
under the Listing Rules and relevant regulatory requirements. There are
also arrangements in place for providing continuing briefing and
professional development to Directors at the Company’s expenses.

The Company provides regular updates and presentations on changes
and developments relating to the Group’s business and the legislative
and regulatory environments to the Directors at board meetings or
through emails.
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The Directors are committed to complying with code provision A.6.5 of
the CG Code (which has been renumbered as code provision C.1.4 with
effect from 1 January 2022) on Directors’ training. All Directors have
participated in continuous professional development to develop and
refresh their knowledge and skills and provided a record of training they
received for the year ended 31 December 2021 to the Company. The
types of training received are summarized below:
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Reading Attending external
regulatory seminars/
updates programmes
MEEERTE SHEMPREBENR
Name of Director EEHR BEHER mae SEH
Executive Directors BTES
Mr. Zhao John Huan (Chairman) ELEEE(FE) v v
Mr. Wang Xiaolong FEEEAE v v
Mr. Jing Shen SIELA v v
Independent non-executive Directors BIKHITES
Mr. Heng Victor Ja Wei TR SR 4 55 A& v v
Mr. Leung Kwai Kei RERELE v v
Mr. Lo Wei-Ren B E v v
Audit Committee EREES

The Company’s audit committee (the “Audit Committee”) was established
in 2011 and its current members include three independent non-
executive Directors:

Mr. Leung Kwai Kei (Chairman of the Audit Committee)
Mr. Heng Victor Ja Wei

Mr. Lo Wei-Ren (appointed on 27 April 2021)

Mr. Tsang Hin Man Terence (resigned on 27 April 2021)

The Board considers that each Audit Committee member has broad
commercial experience and there is a suitable mix of expertise in the
fields of accounting, business and legal. The composition and members
of the Audit Committee satisfy the requirements under Rule 3.21 of the
Listing Rules.

The terms of reference of the Audit Committee were adopted in March
2012 and amended with effect from January 2019, a copy of which is
posted on the Company’s website.
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The Audit Committee meets regularly to review the Group’s financial
reporting and other information to Shareholders, the system of internal
controls, risk management and the effectiveness and objectiveness of the
audit process. The Audit Committee also provides an important link
between the Board and the Company’s auditors in matters coming within
the scope of its terms of reference and keeps under review the
independence and objectivity of the auditors.

The Audit Committee has reviewed with the management the accounting
principles and practices adopted by the Group and discussed risk
management, internal controls and financial reporting matters.

There was no disagreement between the Board and the Audit Committee
on the selection, appointment, resignation or dismissal of the external
auditor.

During the year under review, three Audit Committee meetings were held.
The following matters were discussed and considered during the three
Audit Committee meetings:

(@  reviewed the annual report of the Company for the year ended 31
December 2020 and the interim report of the Company for the six
months ended 30 June 2021, discussed audit planning for the
annual report of the Company for the year ended 31 December
2021;

(b) discussed with the external auditor of the Company on the
independent auditor’s report;

(c) reviewed the Company’s internal control system and risk
management system and discussed with the management on the

effectiveness of these systems; and

(d)  reviewed the effectiveness of the Company’s internal audit function.

The individual attendance of each member is set out below:
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Number of attendance
Name of Director EEnE R E
Mr. Leung Kwai Kei RERLEE 3/3
Mr. Heng Victor Ja Wei i e 3/3
Mr. Tsang Hin Man Terence (resigned on 27 April 2021) & B X % 4 (R 20214 27 A #F) 1/1
Mr. Lo Wei-Ren (appointed on 27 April 2021) BELCRE(R2021F4 27 HEZ(F) 2/2
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Remuneration Committee

The Company’s remuneration committee (the “Remuneration
Committee”) was established in 2011 and its current members include
one executive Director and two independent non-executive Directors:

Mr. Leung Kwai Kei (Chairman of the Remuneration Committee)
Mr. Wang Xiaolong
Mr. Heng Victor Ja Wei

The Remuneration Committee advises the Board on the Group’s overall
policy and structure for the remuneration of Directors and senior
management. The Remuneration Committee ensures that no Director or
any of his associate is involved in deciding his own remuneration. The
terms of reference of the Remuneration Committee were adopted in
March 2012 to conform with the code provisions of the CG Code, a copy
of which is posted on the Company’s website.

The Remuneration Committee makes recommendations to the board on
the remuneration packages of individual executive directors and senior
management.

In determining the emolument payable to directors, the Remuneration
Committee takes into consideration factors such as salaries paid by
comparable companies, time commitment and responsibilities of the
Directors, employment conditions elsewhere in the Group and the
desirability of performance-based remuneration.

The Remuneration Committee has met during the year ended 31
December 2021 to make recommendations to the Board on the
Company’s policy for the remuneration of executive Directors, assess
performance of executive Directors and certain senior management,
approve the terms of executive Directors’ service contracts and approve
the remuneration of the newly appointed independent non-executive
director. During the year under review, two Remuneration Committee
meetings were held and the individual attendance of each member is set
out below:
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Remuneration of Senior Management EREEENS M
The remuneration payable to the senior management of the Company, EN FAA R SR EEEBREREGETE
including those members of senior management who are also Directors EH SR ETEEXENTMIZEL AT X

is shown in the following table by band: 5

As at 31 December

M12H31H

2021 2020
(members of senior (members of senior
(HKD) management of the Company) management of the Company)
(#7T) (XAREREBERE) (ARFASHNEEEKE)
1-1,000,000 5
>1,000,000 4

Auditors’ Remuneration 8 E

For the year ended 31 December 2021, the fees payable to the RE ZE2021F12A31HIFEE  giAE B
Company’s external auditor in respect of audit and non-audit services JEIR AT =+ R IET TR 15 M A A 7 9hFE

provided to the Group are set out below: ZEENEMNBEREY T
RMB’000
FAR®
Audit services Fit R 2,300
Non-audit services (Tax compliance and FEFRB(MBERMER 324
ESG Report Supporting) ESG# & X AR T%)
2,624

Best Food Holding Company Limited
Annual Report 2021



Nomination Committee

The Company’s nomination committee (the “Nomination Committee”)
was established according to the Listing Rules, and its terms of reference
were established in writing. The Nomination Committee’s current
members include one executive Director and two independent non-
executive Directors:

Mr. Zhao John Huan (Chairman of the Nomination Committeg)
Mr. Leung Kwai Kei

Mr. Heng Victor Ja Wei

Mr. Tsang Hin Man Terence (resigned on 27 April 2021)

The principal duties of the Nomination Committee include reviewing the
Board structure, size and composition, identifying individuals suitably
qualified to become Board members, making recommendations to the
Board on the appointment or re-appointment of Directors and succession
planning for Directors, and assessing the independence of independent
non-executive Directors.

The terms of reference of the Nomination Committee were adopted in
March 2012 and revised in August 2013, a copy of which is posted on
the Company’s website.

Nomination Policy

When making recommendations regarding the appointment of any
proposed candidate to the Board or re-appointment of any existing
member(s) of the Board, the Nomination Committee shall consider a
variety of factors including without limitation the following in assessing the
suitability of the proposed candidate:

(@  reputation for integrity;

(b) accomplishment, experience and reputation in the food and
beverage industry and other related industries;

() commitment in respect of sufficient time and attention to the
Company’s business;

(d) diversity in all aspects, including but not limited to gender, age,
cultural and educational background, experience (professional or
otherwise), skills and knowledge;
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(e) the ability to assist and support management and make significant
contributions to the Company’s success;

()  compliance with the criteria of independence as prescribed under
Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules for the appointment of an
independent non-executive Director; and

(@ any other relevant factors as may be determined by the Nomination
Committee or the Board from time to time.

The appointment of any proposed candidate to the Board or re-
appointment of any existing member(s) of the Board shall be made in
accordance with the Company’s articles of association and other
applicable rules and regulations.

Nomination Procedure

The secretary of the Nomination Committee shall convene a meeting, and
invite nominations of candidates from Board members (if any), for
consideration by the Nomination Committee. The Nomination Committee
may also nominate candidates for its consideration.

In the context of appointment of any proposed candidate to the Board,
the Nomination Committee shall undertake adequate due diligence in
respect of such individual and make recommendations for the Board’s
consideration and approval.

In the context of re-appointment of any existing member(s) of the Board,
the Nomination Committee shall make recommendations to the Board for
its consideration and recommendation, for the proposed candidates to
stand for re-election at a general meeting.

The Board shall have the final decision on all matters relating to its
recommendation of candidates to stand for election at a general meeting.
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In recommending candidates for appointment to the Board, the
Nomination Committee will consider candidates objectively with due
regards to the diversity. Diversity of the Board will be considered from a
number of perspectives, including but not limited to age, gender, cultural
and educational background, professional experience, as well as other
attributes and strengths that relate to the Company’s business model
and specific needs from time to time. The recommendations of the
Nomination Committee will be reported formally to the Board for decision.

The Nomination Committee held two meeting during the year ended 31
December 2021 and reviewed the structure, size and composition of the
Board, assessed the independence of independent non-executive
Directors, made recommendation to the Board on the appointment or re-
appointment of Directors and to review and approve the appointment of
a new independent non-executive director, Mr. Lo Wei-Ren.

The individual attendance of each member is set out below:
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Number of attendance
Name of Director EEHR R E
Mr. Zhao John Huan HLEL A 2/2
Mr. Leung Kwai Kei REESLE 2/2
Mr. Heng Victor Ja Wei TR # % A& 11
Mr. Tsang Hin Man Terence (resigned on 27 April 2021) TR A (R2021 44 /27 HEEHT) 1/1

Board Diversity

During the year ended 31 December 2021, the Company continued to
monitor the board composition with regard to its diversity policy which
requires appointments of Directors to be made based on merit and
candidates to be considered against objective criteria, including diversity
aspects such as gender, age, cultural and educational background and
professional experience. In order to maintain an appropriate mix and
balance of talent, skills, experience and background on the Board, the
Nomination Committee developed measurable objectives to implement
this policy and monitored progress towards achieving these objectives
during the year ended 31 December 2021.

The current board composition was also evaluated by reference to,
among other things, the age, gender, cultural and educational
background and professional experience of each Director, against the
Company’s business model and specific needs.
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The Directors believe diversity is important to enhance the Board’'s
effectiveness by encouraging a diversity of perspectives and to maintain
high standards of corporate governance. The Directors will continue to
monitor and develop new objectives for implementing and achieving
improved diversity on the Board as and when it considers appropriate
with regard to the specific needs of the Company and the market from
time to time.

Corporate Governance Functions

The Board is responsible for performing the functions set out in the code
provision D.3.1 of the CG Code (renumbered as code provision A.2.1
with effect from 1 January 2022).

The Board has reviewed the Company’s corporate governance policies
and practices, training and continuous professional development of
directors and senior management, the Company’s policies and practices
on compliance with legal and regulatory requirements, the compliance of
the Model Code, and the Company’s compliance with the CG Code and
disclosure in this Corporate Governance Report.

Risk Management and Internal Controls

The Board has overall responsibility for the system of risk management
and internal controls of the Group and for reviewing its effectiveness. The
Board is committed to implementing an effective and sound risk
management and internal controls system to safeguard the interest of
Shareholders and the Group’s assets. The Board has delegated to
executive management the implementation of the system of risk
management and internal controls and reviewing of all relevant financial,
operational, compliance controls and risk management function within an
established framework.

The system of risk management and internal controls of the Group
include a defined management structure and its limited licensing rights.
The purpose of the system is to assist the Group in identifying and
managing significant risks faced in achieving its business objectives,
safeguarding assets from unauthorized diversion or disposal, and
ensuring maintenance of proper accounting records to provide reliable
financial information for internal use or publication, and to ensure the
compliance with relevant laws and regulations. The above monitoring
system is designed to manage rather than to eliminate the risks of the
operating systems failure of the Group or the failure to achieve business
objectives, and can only provide reasonable assurance against major
misrepresentation or loss, rather than absolute assurance.
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The Group has established an internal audit function to assist the Board
of Directors and the Audit Committee in continuously reviewing the
effectiveness of the system of risk management and internal controls of
the Group. The Group has integrated risk management into its core
business practices. The relevant operating units of the Group
continuously review and assess the potential risk conditions that may
affect their achievement of the business objectives of the unit and/or the
Group. The review process includes assessing whether the current
internal control system is still appropriate, whether the potential risks
have been adequately addressed, and/or whether it needs to be
updated.

The Board, through the Audit Committee, had conducted an annual
review of the effectiveness of the system of risk management and internal
controls of the Group for the year ended 31 December 2021. Members
of the management team confirmed the effectiveness of the system of
risk management and internal controls of their responsible areas during
the year. The Board periodically receives (at least once a year) reports
from the Group’s management regarding financial, operational and
compliance controls, as well as the establishment, review and
assessment of the internal control and risk management functions of the
Group. The Board believes that, in the absence of any evidence to the
contrary, the system of risk management and internal controls maintained
by the Group throughout the year ended 31 December 2021, provided
reasonable assurance against material financial misstatements or loss,
including the safeguarding of assets, the maintenance of proper
accounting records, the reliability of financial information, compliance with
appropriate legislation and regulation, and the identification and
containment of business risks. The Board confirmed the effectiveness of
the system of risk management and internal controls, including sufficient
resources, appropriate qualifications and experience of employees, and
staff training courses, and adequate budget for accounting, internal
auditing and financial reporting functions. No significant areas of concern
have been identified, and the Board considered the system effective and
adequate.

The Group has formulated inside information policies and regularly
reminds directors and employees to properly comply with all policies
concerning inside information. In order to ensure sufficient attention for all
reports received, the Group has established a notification mechanism to
handle and discuss internal reports on financial, operational, internal
controls and fraud, etc. Major internal control deficiencies or reports will
be reported to the Audit Committee.
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Company Secretary

Mr. So Wai Yin has been engaged by the Company as its company
secretary. Mr. So confirmed that he had undertook no less than 15 hours
of relevant professional training and relevant updates during the year
ended 31 December 2021.

Directors’ Responsibility Statement

The Directors are responsible for the preparation of accounts for each
financial period which give a true and fair view of the state of affairs of the
Group and of the results and cash flow for that period. In preparing the
accounts for the year ended 31 December 2021, the Directors have
selected suitable accounting policies and applied them consistently;
adopted appropriate Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards and
Hong Kong Accounting Standards; made adjustments and estimates that
are prudent and reasonable; and have prepared the accounts on the
going concern basis. The Directors are also responsible for keeping
proper accounting records which disclose with reasonable accuracy at
any time the financial position of the Group.

Shareholders’ Rights

The Company has only one class of ordinary shares of HK$0.10 each (the
“Shares”). All Shares have the same voting rights and are entitled to the
dividend declared. The rights of the Shareholders are set out in
Company’s articles of association.

Dividend Policy

Pursuant to code provision E.1.5 of the CG Code (renumbered as code
provision F.1.1 with effect from 1 January 2022), the Company has
adopted a dividend policy (“Dividend Policy”). Subject to the Companies
Act of the Cayman Islands and the memorandum and articles of
association of the Company, the Company may from time to time declare
dividends in any currency to be paid to the members of the Company but
no dividend shall be declared in excess of the amount recommended by
the Board. The Board may also from time to time pay to the members of
the Company such interim dividends as appear to the Board to be
justified by the profits of the Company. Declaration of dividends is subject
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to the discretion of the Board, taking into consideration of, among others,
(iy the Group’s financial performance; (i) the Group’s capital requirements
and debt level; (i) the Group’s liquidity position; (iv) retained earnings and
distributable reserves of the Group; (v) the Group’s business operations,
business strategies and future development needs; (vi) any contractual,
statutory and regulatory restrictions; and (vii) the general economic
conditions and other factors that may have an impact on the performance
and position of the Group. The Board will review the dividend policy from
time to time and may exercise at its sole and absolute discretion to
update, amend and/or modify the dividend policy at any time as it deems
fit and necessary.

Convening an Extraordinary General Meeting
by Shareholders

Pursuant to Article 64 of the articles of association of the Company,
extraordinary general meetings can be convened on the requisition of
one or more Shareholders holding, at the date of deposit of the
requisition, not less than one tenth of the paid up capital of the Company
having the right of voting at general meetings. Such requisition shall be
made in writing to the Directors or the secretary of the Company for the
purpose of requiring an extraordinary general meeting to be called by the
Directors for the transaction of any business specified in such requisition.
Such meeting shall be held within two months after the deposit of such
requisition. If within twenty-one (21) days of such deposit the Directors
fail to proceed to convene such meeting, the requisitionist(s) himself
(themselves) may do so in the same manner, and all reasonable expenses
incurred by the requisitionist(s) as a result of the failure of the Directors
shall be reimbursed to the requisitionist(s) by the Company.

Putting Forward Proposals at General Meetings

There are no provisions in the articles of association of the Company or
the Companies Law of the Cayman Islands for Shareholders to move
new resolutions at general meetings. Shareholders who wish to move a
resolution may request the Company to convene a general meeting in
accordance with the procedures set out in the preceding paragraph.

Putting Forward Enquiries to the Board

For putting forward any enquiries to the Board of the Company,
Shareholders may send written enquiries to the Company. The Company
will not normally deal with verbal or anonymous enquiries.
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Contact Details

Shareholders may send their enquiries or requests as mentioned above
to the following:

Address: Suite 11, 70/F, Two International Finance Centre, No. 8 Finance
Street Central , Hong Kong (For the attention of the Company Secretary)

For the avoidance of doubt, Shareholders must deposit and send the
original duly signed written requisition, notice or statement, or enquiry (as
the case may be) to the above address and provide their full name,
contact details and identification in order to give effect thereto.
Shareholders’ information may be disclosed as required by law.

Investor Relations and Communication

The Board is committed to providing clear and full information about the
Group’s performance to the Shareholders through the publication of
interim results and annual results in a timely manner. In addition to
dispatching circulars, notices and financial reports to the Shareholders,
additional information is also available to the Shareholders on the website
of the Company.

The Company’s annual general meeting provides a useful platform for the
Shareholders to raise comments and exchange views with the Board.
Shareholders are encouraged to attend the Company’s annual general
meetings for which the Company gives notice of not less than 21 clear
days and not less than 20 clear business days. The chairman of the
Board and Directors and external auditors are available to answer
questions on the Company’s businesses at such meetings.

Separate resolutions are proposed at the Company’s annual general
meeting on each substantially separate issue, including the election of
individual Directors. In addition, the procedures of voting by poll are
included in the annual general meeting circular to be despatched to the
Shareholders.

Constitutional Documents

There was no significant change in the Company’s constitutional
documents during the year ended 31 December 2021.
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PROFILE OF DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT
EERSREERB/EN

Executive Director

Mr. ZHAO John Huan, aged 59, an executive Director and the chairman
of the Company, has joined the Group since 9 August 2016. Mr. Zhao is
currently the chairman of Hony Capital. Mr. Zhao also serves as a non-
executive director of Legend Holdings Corporation (HKSE:3396) , a non-
executive director of Lenovo Group Limited (HKSE: 992),a non-executive
director of China Glass Holdings Limited (HKSE: 3300), the chairman and
executive director of Goldstream Investment Limited (HKSE: 1328), a
non-executive director of ENN Natural Gas Co., Ltd. (SSE: 600803), a
non-executive director of Shanghai Jin Jiang International Hotels
Development Co., Ltd (SSE:600754), a non-executive director of
Zoomlion Heavy Industry Science and Technology Co., Ltd (HKSE: 1157;
SZSE: 000157), a non-executive director of Simcere Pharmaceutical
Group Limited (HKSE: 2096), and a non-executive director of Eros STX
Global Corporation (NYSE: ESGC).

Mr. Zhao holds an MBA degree from the Kellogg School of Management
at Northwestern University, Master’s degrees in Electronic Engineering
and Physics from Northern lllinois University, and a Bachelor’s degree in
Physics from Nanjing University.

Mr. WANG Xiaolong, aged 46, an executive Director, has joined the
Group since 9 August 2016, and has served as the chief executive officer
of the Company since 26 August 2019. Mr. Wang also served as the
chairman of Xinladao since 8 May 2019, and the chairman of Beijing
HHG Restaurant Management Co.,Ltd* Jt A& ABREERERE A )
(“HHG”) since 25 April 2021. Mr. Wang is currently the managing director
of Hony Capital, and joined Hony Capital in 2003 and has been
consistently focusing on investment in the consumer and retail sector
during the past 18 years, with a particular emphasis on subsectors of
retail, fast-moving consumer goods (FMCG), catering and fast food
franchise. Prior to joining Hony Capital, Mr. Wang served in Lenovo
Group Limited. Mr. Wang holds a master of business administration
degree from Tsinghua University School of Economics and Management
in collaboration with Massachusetts Institute of Technology, and a
Bachelor of Engineering degree from Shanghai Jiao Tong University,
Youth Talented Program.
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Mr. JING Shen, aged 42, an executive Director and chief financial officer
of the Company, has joined the Group since November 2016. Mr. Jing
has over 10 years of experience in the consumer and retail business. He
is responsible for managing the company’s finances, including financial
planning, management of financial risks, record-keeping, and reporting.
Mr. Jing has also served as an executive director of HHG since 7
November 2017, executive director of Xinladao since 30 October 2018,
executive director of Tianjin Hanfangweiye Food Limited* (K)Z% 51 %
B ZAMR A F) since 30 June 2017, and the general manager of Hongfu
Restaurant Management (Shenzhen) Co.,Ltd* (RiE B E B (FEINER A
al) since 10 April 2017, each being a subsidiary of the Group. From April
2014 to October 2016, Mr. Jing held the position of chief executive
officer at Beijing Niologie Commercial and Trading Co.,Ltd. In 2008, Mr.
Jing joined Hony Capital and was eventually promoted to vice president.
Mr. Jing obtained a Master’'s degree in business administration from
China Europe International Business School in February 2008 and a
bachelor’s degree from Beijing Foreign Studies University in July 2002.

Independent Non-Executive Director

Mr. LEUNG Kwai Kei, aged 60, has been appointed as an independent
non-executive Director since 4 January 2017. Mr. Leung has over 30
years of work experience in the food and beverage industry and retail
industry in Hong Kong and China. Mr. Leung worked in McDonald’s
Restaurants (HK) Limited and McDonald’s China Company Limited from
1988 and used to play managerial roles in various departments for more
than 20 years. Mr. Leung also held executive positions in other
multinationals including Walmart China Company Limited as the Senior
Vice President of business development and as country manager for
Regus Property (Shanghai) Company Limited. Mr. Leung currently works
in Mei-Xin Food (Guangzhou) Company Limited as general manager for
their China headquarters and Japanese restaurant business. Mr. Leung
holds a master of management degree from Macquarie University and a
bachelor of economics degree from the University of Sydney.
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PROFILE OF DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT (CONTINUED)

Mr. HENG Victor Ja Wei, aged 44, has been appointed as an
independent non-executive Director since 18 May 2011. Mr. Heng is a
partner of Morison Heng, Certified Public Accountants. Mr. Heng holds a
master of science degree of the Imperial College of Science, Technology
and Medicine, the University of London. Mr. Heng is a fellow of The
Association of Chartered Certified Accountants and member of The Hong
Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants. Mr. Heng serves as an
independent non-executive director in Matrix Holdings Limited (Stock
Code: 1005), Veson Holdings Limited (Stock Code: 1399) and Lee & Man
Chemical Company Limited (Stock Code: 0746). Mr. Heng also serves as
the company secretary and authorized representative of China Life
Insurance Company Limited (Stock Code: 2628).

Mr. LO Wei-Ren, (also known as Mr. Lo Lobo) aged 62, has been
appointed as an independent non-executive Director since 27 April 2021.
Mr. Lo has over 30 years of experience in the international restaurant
chain business. Mr. Lo served as Senior Advisor in Unitas Capital from
May 2014 to January 2016, and was appointed as Chairman of Babela
Group from June 2014 to February 2016. From October 2012 to
September 2014, Mr. Lo served as Chief Strategic Advisor for the Beijing
Xinladao restaurant group who is mainly responsible for brand re-
positioning, organization functionality restructuring and brand strategic
development. From May 2008 to January 2009, Mr. Lo served as the
Executive Board Director for China Grand Automotive Services Group
Co., Ltd., a portfolio company of Texas Pacific Group. Mr. Lo served as
Brand General Manger for Pizza Hut & Pizza Delivery Home Service
brands from May 1997 to May 2008 and was promoted to the Vice
President and Brand General Manager for Yum China Inc. from
November 2003 to May 2008, with a total of 11 years’ tenure in Yum
China from 1997 to 2008. Mr. Lo obtained an Associate degree in Hotel
& Restaurant management from Katherine Gibbs Business School in
New York in July 1993 and attended the Executive Management program
from Wharton Business School in November 2007.
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EERSREEZEHN (H)

Senior Management

Mr. So Wai Yin, aged 47, company secretary of the Company, has over
19 year experience in financial reporting, management accounting,
auditing, tax planning and regulatory compliance, treasury, corporate
finance and company secretarial practice of listed companies. Mr. So has
been appointed as the company secretary of the Company since 9
August 2016. Prior to joining Hony Capital in September 2008, Mr. So
worked as the qualified accountant and company secretary at Golden
Resorts Group Limited (now known as Kingston Securities Limited,
HKSE: 1031) where he was overseeing overall financial control and
reporting functions, treasury, corporate finance, and regulatory
compliance matters. Before joining Kingston, Mr. So worked in Deloitte
where he engaged in audit assignments for various public/private
companies and leading several initial public offer (IPO) projects. Mr. So is
a certified public accountant of Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountant and a fellow member of Association of Chartered Certified
Accountant.

Mr. Zhao Jingjing, aged 40, the vice chairman of the board and chief
Manager of HHG, joined the Group in 25 October 2016. Mr. Zhao joined
HHG in 2007, and started at the bottom. He has been working in
marketing, operation, R&D department successively, and accumulated
Plentiful experience of marketing, operation management, product design
and development, informationization construction, establishing new
model etc. Mr. Zhao has been appointed as the chief manager since
October 2015 and the vice chairman of the board since 25 April 2021 of
HHG. He has been rated as “Excellent Friends of Workers”, “The Best
Emerging Enterpriser of Chinese Food Industry”, “Top Ten Catering
Entrepreneur of Beijing” and “Outstanding Party Member in Community
Field of Beijing”. He is also a member of the 14th session of Central
Peoples’ Political Consultative Conference of Xicheng District, Beijing.
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PROFILE OF DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT (CONTINUED)

Mr. Li Jian, aged 47, is the co-founder and the vice chairman of the
board of Xinladao, and joined the Group since 30 November 2018. Mr. Li
is primarily responsible for the strategic developments and monitoring
budgets of Xinladao, and is involved in major decisions of Xinladao,
including the appointment of executives of Xinladao. Mr. Li has been
appointed as the chairman of Xinladao, being responsible for overall
development of Xinladao since its establishment, and was involved in the
business operation of the Xinladao until 2015. Mr. Li has over 17 years in
the food and beverage industry as well as catering industry and
restaurant operation business. Prior to establishing Xinladao, Mr. Li
established his own restaurant business under the name Beijing Yuanpin
Catering Co.,Ltd in 2000 to provide catering services. Mr. Li has
successively won the titles of, among others, “Outstanding Figure of
Chinese Catering Industry for 30 years” in May 2017 awarded by China
Cuisine Association, “Outstanding Entrepreneur of Chinese Catering
Industry” in November 2016 awarded by China Hospitality Association
and “The Most Influential Entrepreneur of Chinese Hotpot Industry” in
2015 awarded by China Cuisine Association. Mr. Li has been the
president of China Crayfish Association since April 2018. Mr. Li
completed a secretarial program at Linyi Teacher Training College (currently
known as Linyi University) in July 1995.

Mr. Zhou Penghui, aged 46, is the chief Executive officer of Xinladao,
and joined the Group since 30 November 2018. Mr. Zhou is responsible
for overseeing the overall management and the day-to-day operation of
Xinladao. Prior to being appointed as chief executive officer of Xinladao in
January 2017, Mr. Zhou joined Xinladao in December 2011 as an
optimization specialist, mainly responsible for formulating internal system
and providing training to the employees of Xinladao. Mr. Zhou was then
promoted as an operation manager in October 2012 managing the
operations of restaurants of Xinladao, and in March 2014, he was
promoted as the northern China market manager, and in June 2014, Mr.
Zhou managed the overall operation of the restaurants of Xinladao in
China. Mr. Zhou has over 7 years of experience in restaurant operations,
supply chain management and food quality control. Mr. Zhou graduated
with a diploma in physical and chemical testing and separation
technology from North China University of Technology in July 1996.

As at the date of this annual report, there is no relationship between
members of the Board and the senior management.

ESREAEEERGN (B)

EBEE 47H MHBERBINHARE
B EF R2018F11 A30B MAAXE
E-ZEEXTTEEMRE2EKAR &
BEEVLEMRRB L EIERE BRFEZ
THBHBEZTBRAB - FTEEAFHREZ
RYBHEEZTAERF FTEEEFHE
BrEERE BR2ENHRBENERSE
BHENIGF - TAERERRBERE
EALEBEBRERITENKER - LT
R FRER2000F £ it mERA
RARG TEVEBEMNEEEENIRME
BYRRY - hEXBEGSUTER(EF
BIE) 2017F5AEBSTRZAHER T
B[R B & BRSO £ A ¥ 82] - 20164F 11
RESHEFEHRESR FTHIFHEREE
FEER| 2015FESHEIEHER T
MIFBEARESEFENLER] - T%
£ BE2018F4ARBIEFRE/ N EEHEER -
R E 1995 7 A AR T AN 88 22 b7 (IR 78
BEETRE)STRMERE -

BAMEELE 4657 HHRBEZERNTE
R2018F 11 0B MAREE - BhES
SEEEMRECEEEENHEES - B
017TF1AEZEANREERFANITE R
B ER2011F12 8 I AFTRBIETEL
EE FEAERUTBRBZ2ALEZRR
MFBREZEEBREREEI) - AXEEER
012F 10 BEAAEELE EEBHRKRE
BEMNKL  WR2014E3AEE A AL
MHIE - RR201456 8 AALEEEH
RENPREEMNERES ALERNE
EaE HEETEMEMEEZS A
BEBTFWER - FEXEMI6FTHE
¥R A IERS ESBLRRB LD
AT SR o

RAFHAMY EFTeRBEEINEELE
Z R EEFER -

il

BREZERERAQR
—EC-FFRH

e

o



e

DIRECTORS’ REPORT

EEEHRE

The Directors hereby present the annual report and the audited
consolidated financial statements of the Group for the year ended 31
December 2021.

Principal Activities

The Company is an investment holding company. The principal activities
of its principal subsidiaries are set out in note 38 to the consolidated
financial statements in this annual report.

Results and Appropriations

The results of the Group for the year ended 31 December 2021 are set
out in the consolidated statement of comprehensive income on pages

7172 of this annual report.

The Board resolved not to declare final dividend for the year ended 31
December 2021.

As at the date of this annual report, there was no arrangement under
which a Shareholder had waived or agreed to waive any dividends.

Tax Relief and Exemption

The Company is not aware of any tax relief and exemption available to
Shareholders by reason of their holding of the Company’s securities.
Management Contract

No contracts concemning the management and administration of the
whole or substantial part of the business of the Company were entered
into or existed during the year ended 31 December 2021.
Equity-Linked Agreements

Save for the share option scheme as set out below, the Company has

not entered into any equity-linked agreement during the year ended 31
December 2021.
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Share Capital

As at 31 December 2021, the Company had 1,578,664,000 Shares in
issue.

Details of the movements in the share capital of the Company during the
year ended 31 December 2021 are set out on page 76 to the
consolidated financial statements.

Debentures

The Company did not issue any debentures during the year ended 31
December 2021.

Distributable Reserves

As at 31 December 2021, the Company had no reserve available for
distribution to shareholders (2020: the distributable reserves amounted to
RMB576,847,000).

Five Year Financial Summary

A summary of the results and the assets and liabilities of the Group for
the last five financial years is set out on page 208 of this annual report.

Directors

The Directors during the year ended 31 December 2021 and up to the
date of this annual report are:

Executive Directors

Mr. Zhao John Huan (Chairman)
Mr. Wang Xiaolong
Mr. Jing Shen

Independent non-executive Directors

Mr. Heng Victor Ja Wei

Mr. Leung Kwai Kei

Mr. Tsang Hin Man Terence (resigned with effect from 27 April 2021)
Mr. Lo Wei-Ren (appointed with effect from 27 April 2021)

The term of office of each of the independent non-executive Directors is
the period up to his retirement as required by the Company’s articles of
Association.

DIRECTORS’ REPORT (CONTINUED)
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DIRECTORS’ REPORT (CONTINUED)
ESEHE ()

e

Directors’ Service Contracts

None of the Directors offering for re-election at the forthcoming annual
general meeting of the Company has a service contract with the
Company which is not terminable within one year without payment of
compensation other than statutory compensation.

Interests and Short Positions of Directors and
Chief Executives

At 31 December 2021, the interests of the Directors and the chief
executive of the Company in the shares, underlying shares or debentures
of the Company or its associated corporations (within the meaning of part
XV of the Securities and Future Ordinance (Chapter 571 of the laws of
Hong Kong) (the “SFO”)) as recorded in the register required to be kept
by the Company pursuant to section 352 of the SFO, or as otherwise to
the Company and The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock
Exchange”) pursuant to the Model Code were as follows:

EE2RBESH

RARABEERRBEFRNG LEREETH
%$MEE$“ﬂﬂITTF*$WW¢
BAXNEEHEANIIMEENRBEH -

-+

s BOA B 2 %

< ft

kRE&T
F

R2021F12A31H  ARRIZEEZRER
TBRAEBRARRSEMAE ZE(EERE
BIEBIESTIERESH REERG ([FH KB
EAEB) ) EXVED) Z &5 - HERERR (D Sk (EHE
FH BELBREARRREELSARGE
EHIEB2EAFEZ SRRz ER iR
BIEZEESFAEASTNEARAREBE A
R BRAT([BRAT)) 2T :

7

Number of Shares Approximate
(including issued percentage of
Name of Director/ Number of Number of Shares and interest in the
chief executive Capacity issued Shares underlying Shares underlying Shares) Company
(Note 1) (Note 2)
R & A NN
EE BHRTHAER ERTRAG HERD (BESRTRG BB
HE 54 A #A KHEBRG) BOL
(FiFsET) (FiFE2)
Mr. Zhao John Huan Interest in controlled 1,183,998,000 (L) 517,622,440 (L)  1,701,520,440 (L) 107.78%
corporation (Note 3)
HLBRE REEERER (FHFE3)
Mr. Wang Xiaolong Beneficial owner — 43,418,260 (L) 43,418,260 (L) 2.75%
(Note 4)
TSRS ERHEEA GEY
Mr. Jing Shen Beneficial owner — 15,786,640 (L) 15,786,640 (L) 1.00%
(Note 5)
REXE ERBEEA (P #E5)

Best Food Holding Company Limited
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Notes:

The letter “L” denotes the person’s long position in such Shares.

Based on 1,578,664,000 Shares in issue as at 31 December 2021.

Sonic Tycoon Limited is a non-wholly owned subsidiary of Fortune Eight Alps Limited,
which is a wholly owned subsidiary of Hony Capital Fund VIII (Cayman), L.P., an
exempted limited partnership managed by Hony Capital Fund VIIl GP (Cayman), L.P. (as
sole general partner), which is managed by its sole general partner, Hony Capital Fund
VIl GP (Cayman) Limited. Hony Capital Fund VIIl GP (Cayman) Limited is wholly owned
by Hony Group Management Limited, which is in tumn owned as to 80% by Hony
Managing Partners Limited, which is wholly owned by Exponential Fortune Group
Limited. Mr. Zhao John Huan owns 49% of Exponential Fortune Group Limited. As at
31 December 2021, Sonic Tycoon Limited held 1,183,998,000 shares in the Company
and was beneficially interested in convertible bonds in the principal amount of
HK$610,676,480 which is convertible into 517,522,440 Shares at the initial conversion
price of HK$1.18 per Share.

These underlying shares represent the 27,626,620 awarded shares and the shares
underlying the 15,786,640 share options that the Board resolved to grant to Mr. Wang
Xiaolong pursuant to the share award scheme adopted by the Board on 11 November
2019 and the Company’s share option scheme adopted on 18 May 2011.

These underlying shares represent the 7,893,320 awarded shares and the shares
underlying the 7,893,320 share options that the Board resolved to grant to Mr. Jing
Shen pursuant to the share award scheme by the Board adopted on 11 November
2019 and the Company’s share option scheme adopted on 18 May 2011.

Arrangements to Purchase Shares or
Debentures

Save

as disclosed below and note 34 to the consolidated financial

statements in this annual report, during the year ended 31 December

2021

, neither the Company, its holding company nor any of its

subsidiaries and fellow subsidiaries, a party to any arrangements to
enable the directors of the Company to acquire benefits by means of the
acquisition of shares in, or debentures of, the Company or any other
body corporate.
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DIRECTORS’ REPORT (CONTINUED)
ESEHE ()

Employee Share Option Scheme

On 18 May 2011, the Company has adopted a share option
scheme (the “Employee Share Option Scheme”) in which the
Company’s directors and employees are entitled to participate.
Details of the Employee Share Option Scheme are set out in note
34 to the consolidated financial statements in this annual report. No
Options were granted under the Employee Share Option Scheme
during the year ended 31 December 2021. As at the date of this
report, the Employee Share Option Scheme has expired.

On 11 November 2019, share options carrying the rights to
subscribe for up to a total of 31,573,280 new Shares (the “Options”)
were offered to be granted to three grantees (collectively, the
“Grantees”, and each a “Grantee”) under the Employee Share
Option Scheme with an exercise price of HK$1.08 per Share which
shall be vested in the following vesting schedule: () 20% shall be
vested on 31 December 2019; (i) 20% shall be vested on 31
December 2020; (i) 20% shall be vested on 31 December 2021; (iv)
20% shall be vested on 31 December 2022; and (v) the remaining
20% shall be vested on 31 December 2023. The Options shall be
valid from the date of offer (i.e. 11 November 2019) up to 30
December 2028, both dates inclusive.

Details of the Options granted under the Employee Share Option
Scheme are set out below:

() EEBRES

R2011F5818H AR A B R4 —
HERESS((REBRETS])
ARAREEREEBELEZE -
EHEEBERETINFBENETF
WMER A B IS TR M 7E34 o R A = 2021
F12A31BLEFE BERERES
BRETEROBERE - RAREB
H - EEBRETSIEER -

R2019F11 A11H - BRIERE B B &
FH& - B A REE A % 231,573,280 %
MR RER 2 IR (TR RE] ER
ERFZHEZBABFEBEAIZEA]l
EBRA—RIXEBEANDD THEEARSE
B 1.088 7T WAL T BB K
A& & B () 20% 7B R 2019F 12 A 31
H 5 & : (i) 20% 78 R 2020 12 H31 H
5 B (i) 20% 78 72021 F12 A31H
55 B 5 (V)20% 78 A2022F 12 A31 H &
B KV T20% 78 R 2023 12 A 31
HEE - B a1IRE 8 H (B12019
F£11 511 H) £ E2028F12 A30H (&
EEREMB)BAX -

RIFEEBERET IR L 2 BRERF
BEIT

Changes during the year ended

31 December 2021

BZE2021F12AMBLEEZEE
Outstanding Outstanding
Options as at Options as at
Name of Grantee Date of grant 1 January 2021 Granted Exercised Cancelled Lapsed 31 December 2021
BHE2021F HZE20215
118 12A31H
RTEZ ) i RAT R 2
FEAER ®¥H BRE 2&E BT g2EE  2AX B
Directors EZE
Mr. Wang Xiaolong T hERE 11 November 2019 15,786,640 - - - - 15,786,640
201911 A118
Mr. Jing Shen RELE 11 November 2019 7,893,320 - - - - 7,893,320
201911 A118
Employees of the Group Z£EES
Mr. Xian Shunxiang (Note) G IE# % 4 11 November 2019 7,893,320 - —  (7,893,320) - -
(B aE) 2019511 A118
31,573,280 - - (7,893,320) - 23,679,960

Note: During the year ended 31 December 2021, Mr. Xian Shunxiang resigned from
his positions in the Group and the Options granted to him were thereby
cancelled.
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DIRECTORS’ REPORT (CONTINUED) |
EEERE (A

(b) Share Award Scheme (b) BB E

On 11 November 2019, the Company adopted a share award
scheme (the “Share Award Scheme” or the “Scheme”), to attract
new and motivate existing talents and retaining both. The Board
shall not make any further award under the Share Award Scheme
which will result in the total number of Shares awarded by the
Board under the Share Award Scheme exceeding 4% of the issued
share capital of the Company from time to time.

Subject to the Share Award Scheme Rules, the Board may select
the employee to participate in the Scheme (the “Selected
Employee(s)”) and determine the number of shares to be awarded (the
“Awarded Shares”) to the respective Selected Employee(s), the
applicable vesting date and make an award out of the pool of
issued Shares held by a professional trustee (the “Trustee”) to be
appointed to administer the Scheme to any Selected Employee.
The Awarded Shares will only comprise existing Shares which are
purchased from the open market by the Trustee out of cash
contributed by the Company. The Awarded Shares do not
comprise any issuance and allotment of new Shares.

In respect of a Selected Employee’s employment or service with
the Company or any member of the Group is terminated for cause
or due to resignation at any time prior to or on the vesting date, all
the Awarded Shares that have not yet been vested of the relevant
Selected Employee shall become returned shares for the purposes
of the Share Award Scheme.

The Scheme shall terminate on the earlier of (i) the 5th anniversary
date of the adoption date of the Scheme (i.e. 11 November 2019);
and (i) such date of early termination as determined by the Board
provided that such termination shall not affect any subsisting rights
of any selected grantee under the Scheme.

Details of the Share Award Scheme are set out in the
announcement of the Company dated 11 November 2019 and
note 34 to the consolidated financial statements in this annual
report.
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DIRECTORS’ REPORT (CONTINUED)
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On 11 November 2019, the Board resolved to grant an aggregate
of 43,413,260 Awarded Shares (representing approximately 2.75%
of the total issued share capital of the Company as at 31 December
2021) to three Selected Employees (the “Awardees”), pursuant to
the Share Award Scheme Rules set out below:

R2019F 11 A11H EE2F RIE
BEROEBFEFAUIMN=-BEETES
([E®R A & £ 1% 148,413,260 % 42
B (HBE R ARQARR2021F12A
SIHEBEITRARBEZ42.75%) & 7
NN

Changes during the year ended

31 December 2021

BZE2021F12A31BLFEEZ2F

Number of Number of
Awarded Awarded Shares
Shares as at as at
1 January 31 December
Date of grant 2021 Granted Vested Forfeited 2021
HZ2021F HZ2021F
1A1H 12A31H
B¥H REBRHHEE CREE BEE 2Rl RBEBROHAE
Directors =
Mr. Wang Xiaolong ~ F/]Ng25c 4 11 November 2019 27,626,620 — — — 27,626,620
201911 A11H
Mr. Jing Shen SELE 11 November 2019 7,893,320 — — — 7,893,320
201911 A11H
Employees rEEREE
of the Group
Mr. Xian Shunxiang & JE# 5o 4 11 November 2019 7,893,320 - —  (7,893,320) -
(Note) (P 5%) 2019511 118
43,413,260 — —  (7,893,320) 35,519,940

Note: During the year ended 31 December 2021, Mr. Xian Shunxiang resigned from
his positions in the Group and the unvested awarded shares granted to him
were thereby forfeited.

The amount of contribution by Awardee for the Awarded Shares
shall be HK$0.54 per Awarded Share, being 50% of the average
closing price per Share of approximately HK$1.08 for 20 business
days immediately preceding the grant of the Awarded Shares.

Assuming all the vesting criteria and conditions have been fulfilled,
the Awarded Shares granted shall be vested in the respective
Awardees in five equal tranches on 31 December 2019, 2020,
2021, 2022 and 2023 respectively. As at the date of this report, no
Awarded Shares have been vested. As at the date of this report,
the remaining life of the Share Award Scheme is approximately 2
years and 7 months.
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Interests and Short Positions of Substantial FEREZEZERE

Shareholders

S
<

R2021F12A31H BESHMA LT A
T(RARREELASRITEHABEBRIN AR
ARAZROKIEERODP  BEELHR
RIEFSFREEGNFI6HEBERARRT
EvERMeEmRABIT

L)

RRREFROI0E T Z BB

At 31 December 2021, as far as the Directors were aware, persons (other
than directors or chief executive of the Company) who had interests and
short positions in the shares or underlying shares of the Company as
recorded in the register required to be kept by the Company under
section 336 of the SFO were as follows:

Long positions

Ordinary shares of HK$0.10 each of the Company

Number of
Shares
(including Approximate
Number of issued Shares percentage of
Number of underlying and underlying interest in the
Name of Shareholder Capacity Issued Shares Shares Shares) Company
RH#E
(BEE T LN
B#1T HER G K1 % A ERABLN
REE® 514 RHBE B R’ 4) BOk
(Note 1) (Note 2)
GERD) (Bf&E2)
Exponential Fortune Group Limited Interest in controlled 1,183,998,000 (L) 517,522,440 (L) 1,701,520,440 (L) 107.78%
corporation (Note 3)
Exponential Fortune Group Limited 52 22 B 4 25 (M 31 3)
Hony Managing Partners Limited  Interest in controlled 1,183,998,000 (L) 517,522,440 (L) 1,701,520,440 (L) 107.78%
corporation (Note 3)
Hony Managing Partners Limited 52 28 B 4 25 (FiI 3£ 3)
Hony Group Management Limited  Interest in controlled 1,183,998,000 (L) 517,522,440 (L) 1,701,520,440 (L) 107.78%
corporation (Note 3)
Hony Group Management Limited 52 22 % B 4 25 (B 3£ 3)
Hong Capital Fund VIIl GP Interest in controlled 1,183,998,000 (L) 517,522,440 (L) 1,701,520,440 (L) 107.78%
(Cayman) Limited corporation (Note 3)
Hong Capital Fund VIIl GP TR ERER (TEE3)
(Cayman) Limited
Hony Capital Fund VIIl GP Interest in controlled 1,183,998,000 (L) 517,522,440 (L) 1,701,520,440 (L) 107.78%
(Cayman), L.P. corporation (Note 3)
Hony Capital Fund VIl GP TR ERER (EE3)
(Cayman), L.P.
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Number of
Shares
(including Approximate
Number of issued Shares percentage of
Number of underlying and underlying interest in the
Name of Shareholder Capacity Issued Shares Shares Shares) Company
Ko HAE
(BEERT LN
B8 HER 5 B & A8 E8 R A
RERER 514 RGO EE A R14) BA
(Note 1) (Note 2)
(BF&ET) (BfsE2)
Hony Capital Fund VIII (Cayman),  Interest in controlled 1,183,998,000 (L) 517,522,440 (L) 1,701,520,440 (L) 107.78%
L.P. corporation (Note 3)
Hony Capital Fund VIIl (Cayman), &2 5% B #E % (M 53)
L.P.
Fortune Eight Alps Limited Interest in controlled 1,183,998,000 (L) 517,522,440 (L) 1,701,520,440 (L) 107.78%
corporation (Note 3)
Fortune Eight Alps Limited ZAE s (M)
Sonic Tycoon Limited Interest in controlled 1,183,998,000 (L) 517,522,440 (L) 1,701,520,440 (L) 107.78%
corporation (Note 3)
REERALDA A ERER (TFE3)
Easyknit International Holdings Interest in controlled 84,252,000 (L) — 84,252,000 (L) 5.33%
Limited (“Easyknit International”) corporation (Note 4)
KEEBREBRFRADAF
(FkEEB]) ZEAE R (M)
Notes: B 5 -
1. The letter “L” denotes the person’s long position in such Shares. 1. FHILEZALIRZERMDPHETE -
2. Based on 1,578,664,000 Shares in issue as at 31 December 2021. 2. & & 2021412 531 A B 17 #91,578,664,000
IR 5t & -
3. Sonic Tycoon Limited is a non-wholly owned subsidiary of Fortune Eight Alps Limited, 3. £ = B R 2 8 AFortune Eight Alps Limited 2 3E

which is a wholly owned subsidiary of Hony Capital Fund VIII (Cayman), L.P., an
exempted limited partnership managed by Hony Capital Fund VIIl GP (Cayman), L.P. (as
sole general partner), which is managed by its sole general partner, Hony Capital Fund
VIII GP (Cayman) Limited, Hony Capital Fund VIIl GP (Cayman) Limited is wholly owned
by Hony Group Management Limited, which is in turn owned as to 80% by Hony
Managing Partners Limited, which is wholly owned by Exponential Fortune Group
Limited. Mr. Zhao John Huan owns 49% of Exponential Fortune Group Limited. As at
31 December 2021, Sonic Tycoon Limited held 1,183,998,000 shares in the Company
and was beneficially interested in convertible bonds in the principal amount of
HK$610,676,840 which is convertible into 517,522,440 Shares at the initial conversion
price of HK$1.18 per Share.
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4. 51,296,000 Shares were held by Mark Profit Development Limited, which was owned
as to 100% by Easyknit Properties Holdings Limited, which was in turn owned as to
100% by Easyknit International. 9,824,000 Shares were held by Glory Link Investment
Limited, which was owned as to 100% by Eminence Enterprise Limited (“Eminence
Enterprise”), which was in turn owned as to 74.76% by Easyknit International.
23,132,000 Shares were held by Gainever Corporation Limited, which was owned as
to 100% by Best Ability Limited, which was in turn owned as to 100% by Eminence
Enterprise. By virtue of the SFO, Easyknit International is deemed to be interested in
the Shares held by Mark Profit Development Limited, Glory Link Investment Limited
and Gainever Corporation Limited.

Connected Transactions

The following transactions were conducted between the Company with
its connected person(s) (as defined in the Listing Rules) during the year
ended 31 December 2021 which constitute continuing connected
transactions that are not exempt from annual reporting requirement
under Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules:

(1) Food Ingredients Purchase Agreement

Beijing New Spicy Way Trading Co., Ltd.* Gt R EErmZE BR AT,
being a wholly-owned subsidiary of Xinladao, which in turn is a non-
wholly owned subsidiary of the Company and XLJ Food Technology
(Beijing) Co., Ltd (“XLJ”), a company controlled by non-controlling
interests of Xinladao (a non-wholly owned subsidiary of the
Company) entered into a food ingredients purchase agreement
dated 29 April 2021 (the “Food Ingredients Purchase Agreement”),
in relation to the supply of food ingredients by XLJ to the Xinladao
Group. Pursuant to the Food Ingredients Purchase Agreement, the
Xinladao Group can purchase food ingredients, including fish,
sauce ingredients, garlic flavored and pickled vegetable hotpot
condiments from XLJ. For further details, please refer to the
announcement of the Company dated 29 April 2021.

The annual cap for the maximum aggregate amount payable for the
goods to be supplied under the Food Ingredients Purchase
Agreement was RMB25,000,000 for the year ended 31 December
2021. The actual transaction amount under the Food Ingredients
Purchase Agreement for the year ended 31 December 2021
amounted to RMB15,003,000, which did not exceed the relevant
annual cap.
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(2) Condiments and Seasonings Purchase
Agreement

On 29 April 2021, the Xinladao Group and Zigong Yanweiyuan
Food Co., Ltd. (“Zigong Yanweiyuan”), a company controlled by
non-controlling interests of Xinladao (a non-wholly owned subsidiary
of the Company), entered into a condiments and seasonings
purchase agreement (the “Condiments and Seasonings Purchase
Agreement”), pursuant to which the Xinladao Group will purchase
condiments and seasonings, including pepper, pickled ginger and
spicy condiments from Zigong Yanweiyuan. The annual cap for the
maximum aggregate amount payable for the goods to be supplied
under the Condiments and Seasonings Purchase Agreement was
RMB4,000,000 for the year ended 31 December 2021. For further
details, please refer to the announcement of the Company dated
29 April 2021. The actual transaction amount under the
Condiments and Seasonings Purchase Agreement for the year
ended 31 December 2021 amounted to RMB944,000, which did
not exceed the relevant annual cap.

As at 31 December 2021 and up to the date of this annual report, XLJ
and Zigong Yanweiyuan are majority-controlled by, together with their
affiliates, Mr. Li Jian and Mr. Xu Bochun (the “Remaining Shareholders”),
each of whom is a substantial shareholder of Xinladao. The Remaining
Shareholders are therefore connected persons of the Company at the
subsidiary level and XLJ and Zigong Yanweiyuan are associates of the
Remaining Shareholders. Accordingly, the Food Ingredients Purchase
Agreement and the Condiments and Seasonings Purchase Agreement,
and the respective transactions contemplated thereunder constitute
continuing connected transactions of the Company under Chapter 14A
of the Listing Rules.

Pursuant to Rule 14A.55 of the Listing Rules, the independent non-
executive Directors have reviewed the above continuing connected
transactions of the Company and confirmed that such continuing
connected transactions have been entered into:

(i) in the ordinary and usual course of business of the Group;
(i) on normal commercial terms or better; and
(i) in accordance with the relevant agreements governing the

respective transactions on terms that are fair and reasonable and in
the interests of the Shareholders as a whole.
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PricewaterhouseCoopers, the Company’s auditor, was engaged to report
on the Group’s continuing connected transactions in accordance with
Hong Kong Standard on Assurance Engagements 3000 (Revised)
“Assurance Engagements Other Than Audits or Reviews of Historical
Financial Information” and with reference to Practice Note 740 (Revised)
“Auditor’s Letter on Continuing Connected Transactions under the Hong
Kong Listing Rules” issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants. The auditor has issued its unqualified letter containing its
findings and conclusions in respect of the non-exempt continuing
connected transactions in accordance with Rule 14A.56 of the Listing
Rules. A copy of the auditor’s letter has been provided by the Company
to the Stock Exchange.

Related Party Transactions and Connected
Transactions

Related party transactions entered into by the Group for the year ended
31 December 2021 are disclosed in note 37 to the consolidated financial
statements of the Company in accordance with the applicable accounting
standards adopted for preparing the Company’s consolidated financial
statements for the year ended 31 December 2021.

Save as disclosed in the section headed “Connected Transactions”
above, as at 31 December 2021, there were no other related party
transactions which fall under the definition of “connected transaction” or
“continuing connected transaction” in Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules.
The Company has complied with the disclosure requirements in
accordance with Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules.

Directors’ Interest in Contracts of
Significance

No transaction, arrangement or contract of significance to which the
Company, its holding company or any of its fellow subsidiaries and
subsidiaries was a party and in which a director of the Company had a
material interest, whether directly and indirectly, subsisted at the end of
the year or at any time during the year ended 31 December 2021.

DIRECTORS’ REPORT (CONTINUED) |
EEE®RE ()

R A AR BRAD 2B B K B 2 T B E 15 P&
ZEAAKEEZHERER % BmREE

M AGEMZBREKRR
3000%5% (& J$NFEW%§M%V&%%

AN I EERE A

A A&

I £ B8R E 75 5% BH 25740

RUEFTAR) [ BREELMBUNBTHER
ER 52 ZEBE K EHER - ZEAE
BHERBERRM EPHEERE L
m%ﬁ Al 14A5616c BT ER 2R E R

RHZHER

e ARAE M

khﬁ%%u#Zﬂﬁ

FBLIRXEZRBRERS

# 52 P

REE2021F12A31BILFE » ZEEET
VBB AR ARG E T HIREHK
FESTHE - L IIRIE R B AR R B E £ 2021
F12ABEFERAETEREM

e R R -

B EXHIBERS | ST EIN -
F12A31E BEAMEGCEB IR S5E
TER/LTHRAUNFVIATETIBAER S

(FBEEEXH] -

RNARBEETE

FUATEE TN Z2HEERTE -

EEREX

ARNTE - HERA

Al S EE M E X

2 P

2021

R Al

BN zER

(NN

A S B A B F AR s 22021 6 12 A 31
Hmigﬁﬁﬁ%mﬁﬂﬁJiﬁ$ﬂi
EEFERSHEEAEZNERRS

ZHHBH -

ﬁ%ﬂa?ﬁﬂx

BRAH
—£



DIRECTORS’ REPORT (CONTINUED)
ESEHE ()

e

Controlling Shareholders’ Interest in
Contracts of Significance

No contract of significance was entered into between the Company or
any of its subsidiaries and the Company’s controlling shareholders or any
of its subsidiaries during the year ended 31 December 2021.

Business Review and Performance

A review and outlook of the business of the Company, a discussion and
analysis of the Group’s performance using financial key performance
indicators during the year ended 31 December 2021 and the material
factors underlying its results and financial position, an indication of likely
future development in the Company’s business and events occurred after
the reporting period are provided in the Chairman’s Statement and
Management Discussion and Analysis respectively from pages 4 to 6 and
pages 7 to 20 of this annual report.

Details of principal risks and uncertainties facing the Company are set out
in Management Discussion and Analysis from pages 7 to 20 of this
annual report and note 3 to the consolidated financial statements.

A review of the Company’s environmental policies and performance, the
Company’s compliance with relevant laws and regulations, and an
account of the Company’s key relationship with its employees,
customers, and suppliers and others that have a significant impact on the
Company and on which the Company’s success depends on are
provided in the Environmental, Social and Governance Report and the
Corporate Governance Report from pages 209 to 272 and pages 21 to
36 respectively of this annual report.

Major Customers and Suppliers

During the year, the aggregate sales attributable to the Group’s five
largest customers were less than 30% of the Group’s total sales.

During the year, the aggregate purchases during the year attributable to the
Group’s five largest suppliers were less than 30% of the Group’s total
purchases.

None of the Directors, their close associates (as defined in the Listing
Rules) or any Shareholders which, to the knowledge of the Directors,
owned more than 5% of the Company’s issued share capital had any
interest in the share capital of any of the five largest customers or
suppliers of the Group.
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Purchase, Sale or Redemption of the
Company’s Listed Securities

During the year ended 31 December 2021, neither the Company nor any
of its subsidiaries purchased, sold or redeemed any of the Company’s
listed securities.

Convertible Bonds

The HK$1,500,000,000 Convertible Bonds

Reference is made to the announcements of the Company dated 18
September 2016, 10 October 2016, 13 November 2016, 22 September
2017 and 22 March 2019, and the circular of the Company dated 29
October 2016 in relation to the convertible bonds with an aggregate
principal amount of HK$1,500,000,000 (the “Convertible Bonds”) issued
by the Company under a specific mandate (the “Specific Mandate”)
pursuant to the investment agreement dated 18 September 2016 entered
into between the Company and Sonic Tycoon Limited (the “Invester”). As
at 31 December 2021, the proceeds from issuing the Convertible Bonds
had been fully utilised in accordance with the intended use.

During the year ended 31 December 2021, none of the Convertible
Bonds was converted. The issued share capital of the Company were
1,578,664,000 Shares. The Investor holds an aggregate of 1,183,998,000
Shares, representing approximately 75.00% of the number of issued
Share as enlarged by the allotment and issue of Conversion Shares. The
Company is able to, and will ensure to, comply with the public float
requirement under Rule 8.08(1)(a) of the Listing Rules.

The 2020 Investment Agreement

On 13 January 2020, the Company and the Investor entered into the
Investment Agreement. Subject to the fulfiment or, if applicable, waiver of
the conditions precedent under the Investment Agreement, the Company
agreed to issue and the Investor agreed to subscribe for the convertible
bonds in the aggregate principal amount of up to HK$780,000,000 (the
“Subscription”) at an issue price which equals to 100% of the principal
amount. The convertible bonds do not carry any interest.
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Unless previously redeemed, converted or purchased and cancelled, the
Company shall repay to the holders of the convertible bonds an amount
equal to the principal amount on the fifth anniversary of the issue date of
the convertible bonds, or, subject to the agreement of the holders of the
convertible bonds, the seventh anniversary of such issue date.

Assuming there is no change in the issued share capital of the Company
and the convertible bonds are subscribed in full, and assuming full
conversion of the convertible bonds at the initial conversion price of
HK$1.18 per ordinary share with a par value of HK$0.10 each in the
capital of the Company, the convertible bonds will be convertible into
661,016,949 conversion shares.

Subject to completion of the Subscription of the convertible bonds in full,
the aggregate gross proceeds from the Subscription will be HK$780
million, and the aggregate net proceeds from the Subscription, after
deduction of all the relevant costs and expenses, are estimated to be
approximately HK$779.3 million. Based on such estimated net proceeds
and the total number of conversion shares (assuming conversion of the
convertible bonds in full at the initial conversion price of HK$1.18 per
conversion share), the net price received by the Company for each
conversion share is approximately HK$1.1789.

The Company intends to apply the net proceeds arising from the issue of
the convertible bonds in the following manner:

() approximately HK$500 million for funding potential acquisitions of
branded chain restaurants;

(o) approximately HK$50 million for expanding store network by
establishment of direct stores and franchise;

(c) approximately HK$15 million for upgrading digital operation system
and the development of the central kitchen in Tianjin, including
upgrading hardware system of the Group, purchase of new
machinery and software, recruitment of professionals, and also
purchase of new equipment, renovation of the building and
enlargement of the warehouses;

(d) approximately HK$74.3 million for general working capital of the
Group and financing operating costs including administrative
expenses and distribution expenses; and
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(e) approximately HK$140 million for the payment in relation to the put
right of non-controlling interests of Beijing Xinladao Catering
Management Ltd. (if applicable) (Note).

Note: As at 31 December 2021, the put option has lapsed as certain conditions has
not been fulfilled. Accordingly, item (e) is no longer applicable.

The Company has been considering and exploring appropriate business
development by acquisitions and/or expansion of existing business. The
Directors consider that it is in the interests of the Company to raise funds
for long-term development and strengthen the financial position of the
Group, such that the Company will have available funds to capture
business opportunities and develop its existing businesses.

As at the date of this report, completion of the Subscription pursuant to
the 2020 Investment Agreement had not taken place and the Group had
not issue any convertible bond under the 2020 Investment Agreement.

For further details, please refer to the announcement of the Company
dated 13 January 2020, the circular of the Company dated 27 April 2020
and the poll results of the extraordinary general meeting of the Company
dated 28 May 2020.

Pre-Emptive Rights

There are no provision for pre-emptive rights under the Company’s
articles of association, or the laws of the Cayman Islands, which would
oblige the Company to offer new shares on a pro-rata basis to existing
Shareholders.

Appointment of Independent Non-Executive
Directors

The Company has received, from each of the independent non-executive
Directors, an annual confirmation of his independence pursuant to Rule 3.13
of the Listing Rules. The Company considers that all of the independent
non-executive Directors are independent.

Emolument Policy

The emolument policy of the employees of the Group is set up by the
Remuneration Committee on the basis of their merit, qualifications and
competence.
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The emoluments of the Directors are decided by the Remuneration
Committee, having regard to the Company’s operating results, individual
performance and comparable market statistics.

The Company has adopted a share option scheme and a share award
scheme as an incentive to Directors and eligible employees. Details of the
schemes are set out in note 34 to the consolidated financial statements
in this annual report.

Pension Scheme

Details of the Group’s pension scheme are set out in note 2.20(b) to the
consolidated financial statements in this annual report. No forfeited
contributions are available to reduce the contribution payable by the
Group in the future years.

Sufficiency of Public Float

According to the information that is publicly available to the Company
and within the knowledge of the Directors, the Company has maintained
a sufficient public float throughout the year ended 31 December 2021
and up to the date of this annual report.

Permitted Indemnity Provision

The Company has arranged for appropriate insurance cover for Directors’
and officers’ liabilities in respect of legal actions against its Directors and
senior management arising out of corporate activities. The permitted
indemnity provision is in force for the benefit of the Directors as required
by the provisions of the Companies Ordinance (Chapter 622 of the Laws
of Hong Kong).

Competing Business

Save as disclosed below, during the year ended 31 December 2021 and
up to the date of this report, none of the Directors had any interest in any
business (apart from the Group’s business) which competes or may
compete, either directly or indirectly, with the businesses of the Group,
as defined in the Listing Rules.
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Mr. Leung Kwai Kei, an independent non-executive Director, is currently
the General Manager of Mei-Xin Food (Guangzhou) Company Limited
(“Mei-Xin”), responsible for their China headquarters and Japanese
restaurant business.

Although the business carried out by Mei-Xin is of a similar nature as that
carried out by the Group, Mr. Leung does not hold other positions in the
Company apart from being an independent non-executive Director, and
Mr. Leung also does not control the Board. The Board therefore is of the
view that the Group is capable of carrying on its businesses independently
of, and at arm’s length from the business carried out by Mei-Xin.

Charitable Donations

The donations made by the Group during the year ended 31 December
2021 amounted to RMB50,000 (2020: RMBO.1 million).

Changes in Director’s and Chief Executive’s
BIO?_ aphical Details under Rule 13.51B(1) of
the Listing Rules

Save as disclosed in the section headed “Profile of Directors and Senior
Management”, there is no other change in Directors’ biographical details
which is required to be disclosed pursuant to rule 13.51B(1) of the Listing
Rules since the date of the 2020 annual report of the Company.

Events after the Reporting Period

No significant event affecting the Group took place after 31 December
2021 and up to the date of this annual report.

Auditor

The financial statements have been audited by PricewaterhouseCoopers,
who retire and, being eligible, offer themselves for re-appointment.

There was no change in the external auditor of the Company for the three
years preceding the date of this annual report.

On behalf of the Board
Mr. Zhao John Huan
CHAIRMAN

Hong Kong, 29 March 2022
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT
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To the Shareholders of Best Food Holding Company Limited NEREERERATRE
(incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited liability) (REEHEFMHA A FIR I A])
Opinion =

What we have audited EMEBITTHNAR

The consolidated financial statements of Best Food Holding Company B EEKRER A (A TEBEIE AR &
Limited (the “Company”) and its subsidiaries (the “Group”), which are set HH B AT (U THBISEE DI HNE

out on pages 71 to 207, comprise: TME07TERERE M B@mE  BIE:
e the consolidated balance sheet as at 31 December 2021; o R2021F12A3TBE MK & & E &
EE-

e the consolidated statement of comprehensive income for the year o HEZALFEMNGE2EWHE
then ended;

e the consolidated statement of changes in equity for the year then o HEZRAIIFEMNGAEZEEHE
ended;

e the consolidated statement of cash flows for the year then ended; o HEHEZHIEENGEABESRES
and &

o the notes to the consolidated financial statements, which include e SAMSHEMT eETEe R

significant accounting policies and other explanatory information. EREMERER -
PricewaterhouseCoopers AL K 28 B il
22/F Prince’s Building, Central, Hong Kong BB PRARFARE T
T: +852 2289 8888, F: +852 2289 9888 HAHE : +852 2289 8888 » HHE : +852 2289 9888
www.pwchk.com www.pwchk.com
@ Best Food Holding Company Limited
Annual Report 2021
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Our opinion

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true and fair
view of the consolidated financial position of the Group as at 31
December 2021, and of its consolidated financial performance and its
consolidated cash flows for the year then ended in accordance with
Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards (“HKFRSs”) issued by the
Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants (“HKICPA”) and have
been properly prepared in compliance with the disclosure requirements
of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong Standards on
Auditing (“HKSAs”) issued by the HKICPA. Our responsibilities under
those standards are further described in the Auditor’s Responsibilities for
the Audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements section of our report.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

Independence

We are independent of the Group in accordance with the HKICPA’s
Code of Ethics for Professional Accountants (“the Code”), and we have
fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with the Code.

Key Audit Matters

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgment,
were of most significance in our audit of the consolidated financial
statements of the current period. These matters were addressed in the
context of our audit of the consolidated financial statements as a whole,
and in forming our opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate
opinion on these matters.

Key audit matters identified in our audit are summarised as follows:

° Impairment assessment of goodwill and trademarks with indefinite
useful life
° Impairment assessment of investments in associates

EMWER

BFRE ZEHEVBRERERERTE
gitMAg((HEEEMAE)BEHC(E
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Key Audit Matter
BAEETEE

How our audit addressed the Key Audit Matter
EMNEFOMEERBRENSHE

Impairment assessment of goodwill and trademarks with indefinite useful life

BHERAREREAFHNERRETGE

Refer to note 21 to the consolidated financial statements.
FLHRETHREWE21 -

The Group has a significant balance of goodwill and
trademarks with indefinite useful life arising primarily from the
acquisition of Beijing HHG Restaurant Management Co., Ltd.
(the “HHG Group”) in 2016 and the acquisition of Beijing New
Spicy Way Catering Management Ltd. (the “Xinladao Group”)
in 2018. As at 31 December 2021, the cost of goodwill
amounted to RMB581 million and the cost of trademarks
with indefinite useful life amounted to RMB499 million.
EEENMELAAERCAFHNBAEEERNEAL
HFZRER06FWEILRANEAEREREEARA
A(TMEARER]) RR20I8FWEIL R RELERER
BRAF([FHREEE]) - R2021F12831H - BHEK
ARSSIEETARYE MEAERERFHOEEK
RABIOBETARE -

Goodwill and trademarks with indefinite useful life are subject
to impairment assessment annually and when there is an
indication of impairment. For the purpose of assessing
impairment, goodwill and trademarks with indefinite useful
lives are allocated to the cash generating units (“CGUs”) of
the relevant group of restaurants. The recoverable amounts
of the CGUs are determined by the higher of the fair value
less cost of disposal (“FVLCOD”) and value in use (“VIU”).
BHELAAEREAFHONBRATFE REFERED
FEETREN G RAGRENS  HELEEER
AERFH AR I EEEHERARN R eEFEM
((BReEFEM]) ReELBEL KBS ENRIE
ARBEBEERANTAABERLSEMXA]) EEME
B(ERABEIMEZRGEERE -

Best Food Holding Company Limited
Annual Report 2021

In response to this key audit matter, we have performed
the following procedures:

RESZERENFE RMACHTUTIERF:

° Obtaining an understanding of the management’s
assessment process of the estimated recoverable
amounts of CGUs to which goodwill and trademarks
with indefinite useful lives are allocated, and
assessing inherent risk of material misstatement by
considering the degree of estimation uncertainty and
level of other inherent risk factors such as
complexity, subjectivity, changes and susceptibility
to management bias or fraud;

e THEREEHESEBELAGERIUEARF
HryragnReEEEU 2 hatAkE BN
AR TEAEEMGFITHEUENREER
HiBEBRRREERHOKF  flanEHE - 8
"B AREERRRE SOGFR BRI - S
BRERHEARR

° Evaluating the management’s process in performing
impairment assessment of goodwill and trademarks
with indefinite useful life, including the assessment
as to whether any indication of impairment exists
during the year ended 31 December 2021;

s HAEEHREEHRELRAFERCAFHNERSR
BRE R 4 BIR - B SR B2021F12 H31H
TFERAFEEMAETR

° Evaluating the competence, capabilities and
objectivity of the independent valuer engaged by the
Group to determine the recoverable amounts, based
on the higher of FVLCOD and VIU, of the CGUSs;

e I ESEEANBUGEANER- 8
REBWH UEBEAABEREEKAEERE

EMEvBaEtETReELEUNAIKRE S

28
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Key Audit Matter
BAEETEE

How our audit addressed the Key Audit Matter
EMNEFOMEERBRENSHE

Due to the continuous impact on macroeconomic conditions
brought by the outbreak of COVID-19, the operating results
of the HHG Group and the Xinladao Group for the year
ended 31 December 2021 were below the management’s
previous forecasts.
HRNBEEREHEZBLSBERABEERN ZZE M
EAREBRMEREEEBE2021F12A31HBEFEZ
KEEBREREEREERFTTEAR -

As at 31 December 2021, management engaged an
independent external valuer to assist in performing the
impairment assessments, based on the updated forecasts
and assumptions approved by management.
R2021F12A31H  EREBCBHF B LI BEERD
EREREMM A ZFEARKRER - HBEEITRERT
fil

For calculation of FVLCOD, market approach is used, where
significant judgements are required to determine the
assumptions, including valuation multiples (such as enterprise
value to sales multiple) of comparable companies, discount
for lack of marketability (“DLOM”), control premium and
estimated cost of disposal adopted in the valuation model.
HRARBEALEEXKANFAECRATISE EhF
EEHERABREECRSR BREAVELRARZMHE
EHPINCXBEYHEESHERER) RZTH MBI
E(RZMmSRBERED  ZEH#EEEREERER S
RAMMETHERAE -

Assessing the appropriateness of the valuation
methodology used;

AHEFTRAET AN EE T

For calculation of FVLCOD of the CGUs, evaluating
the appropriateness of the selection of comparable
companies by comparing the business profiles of the
CGUs with those of the respective comparable
companies, and assessing the reasonableness of
DLOM, control premium and estimated cost of
disposal adopted;
%Tﬁfﬁéfgii{jZ@ﬁ{ﬁﬁﬁﬂj &R AT
B RBIRAELEEN 2 XBERMEMEE
AELNRARZEBER FHEERAELR
NAWMEE M AR EPTER A E R = 35 70
AMNE FHREEERGFEHEREANGE
/|‘§E ;
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Key Audit Matter
BAEETEE

How our audit addressed the Key Audit Matter
EMNEFOMEERBRENSHE

For calculation of VIU, significant judgements are required to
estimate the future cash flows of the CGUs of the relevant
group of restaurants and to determine the assumptions,
including the revenue growth rates, gross margin and long
term growth rate used in the cash flow projections and the
discount rate applied to bring the future cash flows back to
their present values.

HRERABEZHE FSEELERHAGUGAEBRE
BAHNRELAEUNRKRERE  TEFRRKR
BREREREFAPEANKRAERE ENEXLRKH
BEX UERAFEARReRENREZEBEMERN
I K o

Management’s conclusion on the impairment assessments is
based on the comparison between the recoverable amounts
of the CGUs of the relevant group of restaurants and the
respective carrying amounts of the CGUs including goodwill,
trademarks with indefinite useful life and operating assets
and liabilities as at 31 December 2021.
EREHRENENER DEREE2021F12831H
HHEERENREEAENNAIRD cERESELE
UEENEHE(REERE EEERAICAFHCE
R EEEERAEBIZHE-

Based on the results of the impairment assessment
conducted by the Group, it is determined that (1) for the
CGUs of the HHG Group, there is no impairment of goodwill
and trademarks with indefinite useful life as at 31 December
2021; and (2) for the CGUs of the Xinladao Group,
impairment losses of RMB535 million and RMB31 million are
recognised for goodwill and trademarks with indefinite useful
life for the year ended 31 December 2021 respectively.

BE EEEETHRENGER  BEO)N20214F
12A31H  Mé& @%@Mﬁﬁ?iiuﬁﬁﬁ%&ﬂﬁ
ERAEAFHC-ERRE: QERITREEENR S
EEEM BE021F12A3BLEFE HELAERE
RAEAFHzEAESRERBERBESBBETAR
BEITEETLARE -
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For calculation of VIU of the CGUs, evaluating the
reasonableness of the key assumptions used by
management and the independent valuer, mainly in
relation to:
HRBReEFBEUZEREBENGTE  FHE
BERBUGEMEANTIERINOGENL
FEFK:

- the forecasted sales and gross margin, by
comparing them with actual historical financial

data;
- TEAEEMEMNE KEEAERES VB
HIBEITHER

- the long term growth rate, by comparing it with
the relevant economic forecasts; and

- REERX SHEMEBEEREIETLL
Rk

- the discount rate, by comparing the rate used
by the Group to those of comparable

companies;
- FHRE - EEEXKANLERETER
RARIM EREITHER

Testing the numerical accuracy of the calculations in
the recoverable amounts of the CGUs and the
relevant carrying amounts, including goodwill,
trademarks with indefinite useful life and operating
assets and liabilities as at 31 December 2021; and
BT ER2021F12ABRGELEMHA
WReRELEPEHE EEERERFHND
BEREEEENNBBEHEANEREREENH
FREBEWE R

Evaluating management’s sensitivity calculation over
the recoverable amount of the CGUs, focusing on
those key assumptions to which the calculation was
most sensitive.

?ﬁﬁﬁﬁﬁﬁiFiﬁﬁmTW@%ﬁm@
RE UREHREFEZSERHBRNBERR

HXO

Based on the procedures performed, we found the key
assumptions adopted in relation to the impairment
assessment to be consistent with the available evidence.
RIBAHTOER  BHABRBRETEAEANEE
BRBBBEAK-
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Key Audit Matter
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How our audit addressed the Key Audit Matter
EMNEFOMEERBRENSHE

Impairment assessment of investments in associates

BEQARARERMENG

Refer to note 20 to the consolidated financial statements.
BABEREMBHRRMFE20 -

The Group has significant investments in associates, which

are accounted for under the equity method. As at 31

December 2021, investments in associates amounted to

RMB241 million.

ﬁmlﬂ%%ﬂﬁm&éﬁﬁéﬁ IR B #E s A &
c R2021F12 A3 H - BERRIKRER2UBETA

E%o

Investments in associates are subject to impairment
assessment when there is an indication of impairment.

e NAIIREAEFERETREETRERNG -

In carrying out the impairment assessment, significant
judgements are required to estimate the Group’s share of the
future cash flows of the associates and to determine the
assumptions, such as the revenue growth rates, gross
margin and long term growth rate used to prepare the cash
flow projections of the associates, and the discount rates
applied to bring the future cash flows back to their present
values.

EETRETGER FTEELERAG AL BE5E
EEBE AR ARARReRE  WEERSK  flHARHE
BME AR ReREBAFEHNBRAREESR FFIEK
REERX ULAERKRERENREEREME
AR E -

In response to this key audit matter, we have performed
the following procedures:

REHZERENFE RACHTUTIERF:

° Obtaining an understanding of the management’s
assessment process of the estimated recoverable
amounts of investments in associates, and assessing
inherent risk of material misstatement by considering
the degree of estimation uncertainty and level of
other inherent risk factors such as complexity,
subjectivity, changes and susceptibility to
management bias or fraud;

s THREEEBYBEQNIAREZMGAIKBSE
MR H@E YEBBZERMEATHELNIEE
&HMI%H R EEREKT - flanie st - 8
B LA RE BB R R SOREF R SURME - BT
BEREHRNEA R

o Evaluating the Group’s assessment as to whether
any indication of impairment exist during the year
ended 31 December 2021, including:

o ffh BEEBEREZ2021F12A3HILEFER
BEEEMBREDRROFGE 81

- significant adverse changes in the market or
economic environment in which the associates

operates;
- BMAATIRARENTIE NS EEERA
BERAME

- significant or prolonged decline in the fair value
of the associates below their costs;

- ERB AR BEABIRBEEERE
B

° Evaluating the competence, capabilities and
objectivity of the independent valuer engaged by the
Group to determine the recoverable amounts, based
on value-in-use method, of the investments in
associates;

e fH EBESEEAMNBUGEAMNERS-
REBM M&ﬁ%1@£ﬁ£ﬂgﬂjﬁﬂ
# AT U el & 8
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Key Audit Matter
BAEETEE

How our audit addressed the Key Audit Matter
EMNEFOMEERBRENSHE

Based on the results of the impairment assessment
conducted by the Group, it is determined that there was
impairment indicator for investment in an associate, against
which an impairment of RMB2.9 million was made for the
year ended 31 December 2021. For the investments in other
associates, it's determined that there was no impairment
indicator as at 31 December 2021.

B SEEEETHRENGER BTH —HBESAQ
AINKREFERENR  BE2021F12A31 B IEFE -
FHIRAE2IORE T ARK - KHEEN20215F12A31H
MR EAEEE QRN RE W BIREDR o
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Assessing the appropriateness of the valuation
methodology used;

AHEFTAMAETENEE T

Evaluating the reasonableness of the key
assumptions used by management in the
determination of value in use of investment in
associates, mainly in relation to:
AHERECECHE ARIRAGABERS
AMEERENEEYE 2SR

- the forecasted sales and gross margin, by
comparing them with actual historical financial
data;

- TERHEMEMNE  KEHEBRE LG
HIREITH R

- the long term growth rate, by comparing it with
the relevant economic forecasts; and

- REEEX GHEMABLEBERAETL
8 Rk

- the discount rates, by comparing the rates
used by the Group to those of comparable
companies; and

- WEX B BESEXAMLEREFERL
BRFMLFETLE &

Testing the numerical accuracy of the calculations in
the recoverable amount of the investments in
associates.
AHFEBE QAR REN T RE 2 EN B FE
MM o

Based on the procedures performed, we found the key
assumptions adopted in relation to the impairment
assessment to be consistent with the available evidence.
BERTHER  RMEREBETHAEANEE
REEBEAMK -
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Other Information

The directors of the Company are responsible for the other information.
The other information comprises all of the information included in the
annual report other than the consolidated financial statements and our
auditor’s report thereon.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not cover the
other information and we do not express any form of assurance
conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial statements, our
responsibility is to read the other information and, in doing so, consider
whether the other information is materially inconsistent with the
consolidated financial statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit
or otherwise appears to be materially misstated.

If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a
material misstatement of this other information, we are required to report
that fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.

Responsibilities of Directors and the Audit
Committee for the Consolidated Financial
Statements

The directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation of the
consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair view in
accordance with HKFRSs issued by the HKICPA and the disclosure
requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance, and for such
internal control as the directors determine is necessary to enable the
preparation of consolidated financial statements that are free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the directors are
responsible for assessing the Group’s ability to continue as a going
concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and
using the going concern basis of accounting unless the directors either
intend to liquidate the Group or to cease operations, or have no realistic
alternative but to do so.

The Audit Committee is responsible for overseeing the Group’s financial
reporting process.
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Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the
Consolidated Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the
consolidated financial statements as a whole are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’'s
report that includes our opinion. We report our opinion solely to you, as a
body, and for no other purpose. We do not assume responsibility
towards or accept liability to any other person for the contents of this
report. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a
guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with HKSAs will always
detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise
from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in the
aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic
decisions of users taken on the basis of these consolidated financial
statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with HKSAs, we exercise professional
judgment and maintain professional scepticism throughout the audit. We
also:

° |dentify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the
consolidated financial statements, whether due to fraud or error,
design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks,
and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to
provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material
misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting
from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional
omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

° Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in
order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the
circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on
the effectiveness of the Group’s internal control.

° Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the
reasonableness of accounting estimates and related disclosures
made by the directors.

Best Food Holding Company Limited
Annual Report 2021

LR B RS BTRR
AENEME

BMNERRYGAVBEHRERERES T
FHEBRRRFRERMEMNHEXBRR
AMEEERE THABERRMEEN
B ERE - JFHER HTHEREBE)R
ERMOER - R Z IR E B EHE A
B HMPA el ABRENRETRAETMAE
MALTE FRXAEEAMEE - SBRER
BKFHRE  BETERBLRRB(EER
EADETHETRERREAERRAL -
BEARBRL AT AR RRF IR ARSI IR B
B TMEBXERERAETERE
MBHREAERBESEE M B RRMAED
H) A OEOR TE - Bl A BE AV A RR PR A] 1 AR (F
EX-

REB(EABBFER)  ERBFH &0 R
MEERFTERETPERTERHE RET
HEEEEE R

o GBIANEYfh A A BRRE BK 8 AR 1 B B
EHMBREAFEERERRAN R
B R RPITEAEFUABHEL
R - A RERGEEMEENENR
EOEARMBERENER - X0 GF
AL ER BE ERER E
R HEBRARES 2L B
IR BE 3 IR AL ARFE M By B N8 R
R ERR SN AREZERRNERME
R E N 5 AR R 1 LB

o  THREZIHMONMIESH - ARE

MEFRERF BEMAEIEY &

o

HE
SEAMEHINEREERER -

o SPEEFARM R EE RN KR
G DREE R EELON



e

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT (CONTINUED)
B A ®RE (E

° Conclude on the appropriateness of the directors’ use of the going
concern basis of accounting and, based on the audit evidence
obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or
conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Group’s ability to
continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a material
uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditor’s
report to the related disclosures in the consolidated financial
statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our
opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained
up to the date of our auditor’s report. However, future events or
conditions may cause the Group to cease to continue as a going
concern.

° Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the
consolidated financial statements, including the disclosures, and
whether the consolidated financial statements represent the
underlying transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair
presentation.

° Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the financial
information of the entities or business activities within the Group to
express an opinion on the consolidated financial statements. We
are responsible for the direction, supervision and performance of
the group audit. We remain solely responsible for our audit opinion.

We communicate with the Audit Committee regarding, among other
matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit and significant audit
findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control that we
identify during our audit.

We also provide the Audit Committee with a statement that we have
complied with relevant ethical requirements regarding independence, and
to communicate with them all relationships and other matters that may
reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and where
applicable, actions taken to eliminate threats or safeguards applied.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT (CONTINUED)
BYZHE®RE (E

From the matters communicated with the Audit Committee, we determine
those matters that were of most significance in the audit of the
consolidated financial statements of the current period and are therefore
the key audit matters. We describe these matters in our auditor’s report
unless law or regulation precludes public disclosure about the matter or
when, in extremely rare circumstances, we determine that a matter
should not be communicated in our report because the adverse
consequences of doing so would reasonably be expected to outweigh
the public interest benefits of such communication.

The engagement partner on the audit resulting in this independent
auditor’s report is Hon Chong Heng.

PricewaterhouseCoopers
Certified Public Accountants

Hong Kong, 29 March 2022

Best Food Holding Company Limited
Annual Report 2021
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

REZEKRER

Note
B &

Revenue WA 5
Other income E A A 6
Raw material used and changes in inventories &% & 2 FT B8 R #1 kL &
of finished goods FE#
Online platform service charges and BEFERBERIEXE
delivery fees
Employee benefit expense EERMHALZ 16
Depreciation of right-of-use assets FREEERE
Depreciation and amortisation of other assets  H b & = 37 & & # 54
Utility expenses NEEEEBR
Property rentals and other related expenses MERE REMARRX
Other expenses Hh 7
(Provision for)/reversal of expected credit loss & F & ERTEAESHEE L
allowance for financial assets, net (B &), B EF5E 3.1(b)
Impairment of goodwill and other intangible mELREMEREERE
assets 21
Other losses, net H b B8 F 58 8
Finance income B ON 9
Finance expenses B 75 & 9
Interest on convertible bonds AR ESF B 9
(Loss)/gain on fair value change on MESHTIEAAREEED
derivative financial instrument (B518),/ W= 22
Gain on partial disposal and dilution of HomE REHEEE QFR
investments in associates &z W 10
Share of profit/(loss) of associates FE(REE & AR R (B 18) 20
Impairment losses on investments in associates Fi 4 A 711% & Y518 &5 18 20
Loss before taxation KRB AT E5 18
Income tax credit FriEBiEe 11
Loss for the year FREE 12
Loss for the year attributable to: FAEERBR:
Equity holders of the Company RARIERITEEA
Non-controlling interest FE 7 A% 4 25

Year ended 31 December
HZE12A31BLEE

2021 2020
RMB’000 RMB’000
FAR% FARM

Restated

752,959 650,691
18,085 12,730
(288,031) (248,395)
(37,098) (28,911)
(217,944) (200,243)
(103,406) (123,101)
(41,235) (44,088)
(29,664) (25,671)
(32,281) (9,644)
(95,842) (77,230)
(6,518) 450
(566,455) —
(3,656) (5,030)

144 221
(15,338) (17,332)
(32,765) (85,214)
(47,375) 29,262
82,041 —
1,565 (14,559)
(2,871) (24,625)
(665,685) (160,689)
13,848 9,693
(651,837) (150,996)
(639,639) (140,938)
(12,198) (10,058)
(651,837) (150,996)
BRERBRAF
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME (CONTINUED)
AeZEWBERE(E)

Year ended 31 December
BZE12A31BLEE

2021 2020
Note RMB’000 RMB’000
M & TARY FARE
Restated
Other comprehensive (loss)/income Hi2mE(EE) Wi
ltem that may be reclassified subsequently to  E & At @ EFH N BRI
profit or loss: 2R :
Exchange differences arising on REBINEBMEEZ
translation of foreign operations E 5 =% 8,948
ltem that may not be reclassified HiEn g TrTeEFmoEEa
subsequently to profit or loss: wmLIEE
Change in fair value of an equity investment EAnEEF=E=AHEEZ
at fair value through other comprehensive s AE AL 2 U A K
income RAEERAREBEEY (3,000) -
Other comprehensive (loss)/income FREM2E(EE) W
for the year, net of tax (B FE) (857) 8,948
Total comprehensive loss for the year FRAEZHEHEEEAE (652,694) (142,048)
Total comprehensive loss FRAZEEGELAERER:
for the year attributable to:
— Equity holders of the Company —RRAFREREFEA (640,496) (131,990)
— Non-controlling interests —FEIERES (12,198) (10,058)
(652,694) (142,048)
Loss per share for loss attributable to FEREQRAERZEEAZ
equity holders of the Company: ERzERER:
Loss per share (RMB cents) — basic BEB(DARE)
— AKX 13 (40.52) (8.93)
Loss per share (RMB cents) — diluted fEEsiE (o AR E)
— e 13 (40.52) (8.93)

Best Food Holding Company Limited
Annual Report 2021



CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEET

REEEREXR

Note
B 7

Non-current assets kRBEE
Property, plant and equipment ME - BB NEE 17
Right-of-use assets TRAEEE 18
Investments in associates RN R & 20
Goodwill 2 21
Intangible assets mILEE 21
Derivative financial instrument MESHITAE 22
Deferred tax assets FERIEA E 30
Trade and other receivables JEURE 5 R H M FRIE 23
Financial assets at fair value through BEArBBEAEEHEED

other comprehensive income ETAHMEERE 2 S R

BE 24

Other non-current assets HEIERBEE 28
Current assets RENEE
Inventories VENSS 19
Trade and other receivables FEWE 5 & H b 58 23
Other current assets HiRBEE 28
Financial assets at fair value through EBERARBEFEBEEZH

profit or loss FAERCERERE 27
Cash and cash equivalents RekReSED 26
Restricted cash ZMRHIE 2 26
Total Assets EERE
Current liabilities REBEE
Trade and other payables ERE S REMNKIE 29
Contract liabilities AHBEE 32
Lease liabilities HEAE 18
Borrowings RN 31
Tax payable FERTFLIE
Convertible bonds — interest payable ABMEES — EBANFE 25

As at 31 December

R12A31H
2021 2020
RMB’000 RMB’000
TAR® TARK
99,195 124,832
274,017 304,244
240,538 220,026
45,495 580,931
474,505 505,763
22,543 72,226
45,850 33,560
24,255 29,213
2,000 5,000
951 1,284
1,229,349 1,877,079
35,235 32,338
75,974 39,320
58,389 57,302
57,817 27,931
62,571 123,741
961 -
290,947 280,632
1,520,296 2,167,711
178,842 150,223
63,874 59,144
95,848 102,771
15,000 16,200
5,582 4,926
59,801 45,837
418,947 379,101
BEERERLR
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CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEET (CONTINUED)
HEEERERE)

As at 31 December

M12A31H
2021

Note RMB’000

HY 5t FTAR®

Non-current liabilities kRBEE

Convertible bonds R E S 25 442,267

Lease liabilities HERE 18 188,270

Deferred tax liabilities RIEFIEAE 30 114,021

Deferred government grants IR AT IR 7 B 33 1,380
745,938

Total liabilities BEHAE 1,164,885

Capital and reserves EXRHE

Share capital % 2 36 133,023

Reserves == 153,971

Equity attributable to equity holders of

BERARAEEREA

286,994
68,417

355,411

the Company 2=
Non-controlling interests FEIE R =
Total equity DR
Total liabilities and equity EERESREE

1,520,296

The consolidated financial statements on pages 71 to 207 were approved
and authorised for issue by the Board of Directors on 29 March 2022

and are signed on its behalf by:

Zhao John Huan

HSE
CHAIRMAN
B
m Best Food Holding Company Limited
Annual Report 2021

2020
RMB’000
TAR®

439,588
213,394
121,790

3,167

777,939

1,157,040

133,023
791,093

924,116
76,555

1,000,671

2,157,711

BRETIEZ207TEMNGEMBRELCESTSE
R202243 A29 B #it e R AR T3 - Il A

TATRERSE:

Wang Xiaolong
e
DIRECTOR
4



CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY
REAESRBEX

Attributable to equity holders of the Company
SERARAERBEA

Non- Asset Non-
Share Share  distributable revaluation  Translation Special  Retained controliing
capital  premium reserve reserve reserve reserve  eamnings Sub-Total  interests Total
Ta5k BEER iR
A BiEE #E EE ERREHB BHEE REERA NE Ex Eh
Notes  RMB'000  RMB'000 RMB'000  RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000  RMB'000
Bzt FARE FTARYE FARE TARE TARE TARE TARE TARE TARE TARK
At 1 January 2020 R202051 818 133,023 693,388 929 9,248 11,347 (28,424) 79,939 899,450 85,616 984,966
Loss for the year FRER - - - - - — (140,938 (140,938  (10,058)  (150,996)
Other comprehensive ERHEM2ERE:
income for the year:
Currency translation EHAEEE -
differences-associates NG| 20 - - - - (18,325) - - (18,325) - (18,325)
Currency translation ERBEEE -
differences-others Hity - - - — 27,273 - - 27,273 - 27,273
Total comprehensive ERE2EEELE
loss for the year - - - - 8,948 — (140,938 (131,990)  (10,058) (142,048
Non-controlling interests ~ #TA M B A R EE
arising on newly ZIEREE
established subsidiaries - - - - - - — - 1,007 1,007
Change in fair value of EEEZAG
payable in relation to HREEEEAR
put right of non- EEE
controlling interests - - - — — 97,778 — 97,778 — 97,778
Deemed contribution from 18 {Ef% B 1 &
shareholder 22 - - - - - 46,631 - 46,631 - 46,631
Value of services provided & AR 7 2t &) T2 JL 17 48
under share option Bt BT AR
scheme and share HRHZEE
award scheme 34 - - - - - 12,247 - 12,247 - 12,247
At 31 December 2020 R2020%12 8318 133,023 693,388 929 9,248 20,295 128232 (60,999 924,116 76,655 1,000,671
BRERBRAA
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY (CONTINUED)
REEaS R (E)

Attributable to equity holders of the Company
RERERAERBEA

Non- Asset

Share distributable revaluation

reserve reserve

ISR BEEM

Translation Special Retained

reserve  reserve earnings Sub-Total

w1 e ERfHE BiRE REERA Nt
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
TAR® TAR® TAR%® TAR%® TAR%® TAR®
At1 January 2021 202151818 9,248 20205 128232  (60,999) 924,116
Loss for the year ERER (639,639)  (639,639)
Other comprehensive ~ F R H M2 3 :
income for the year:
Changeinfairvalueofan R A% BEFEE
equity investment at fair ~ HEEEH AE M
value through other 2EKEH
comprehensive income AR E
NREBEED (3,000) (3,000)
Currency translation EHAEEE -
differences-associates L YN (8,838) (8,838)
Currency translation ERBEEE -
differences-others Hif 10,981 10,981
Total comprehensive FRE2AFELE
loss for the year (3,000) (639,639) (640,496)
Non-controlling interests A LM B A FEL
arising on newly IR
established subsidiaries
Value of services provided & IR i 51 & ]2 i 17 82
under share option B BB T AR
scheme and share HR%EZEE
award scheme 3,374 3,374

At 31 December 2021

R2021512A31R

22,438 131,606 (700,638) 286,994

@ Best Food Holding Company Limited
Annual Report 2021



- CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
RERERER

Year ended 31 December
HZE12A31BLEE

2021 2020
Note RMB’000 RMB’000
B & FTAR% FARM
Cash flows from operating activities RETEHMEESRE
Cash generated from operations IREEIEMMEIIRE 35 66,109 116,356
Interest paid =ERE/ESS (968) (662)
Interest received 2 F S 144 221
Income taxes refund Fr 13 B3R 3K = 1562
Income taxes paid ERAEH (2,050) (3,169)
Net cash generated from RETBFRBSRES TR
operating activities 112,898
Cash flows from investing activities REZBHFRBSEESRE
Investments in associates HEERRIKRE (18,615) (4,481)
Purchase of property, plant and equipment BB E% % - = L& E (32,967) (32,744)
Purchase of financial asset at fair value BERAAEEF=EEEY
through profit or loss FABEZEMEE (191,180) (111,780)
Proceeds from redemption of financial asset EEIIZ A 4 BEE 2 B H & &)
at fair value through profit or loss FABGRZeRMEEMS
HIH 161,362 146,922
Purchase of intangible assets BEEFEE (1,318) (35)
Government grants received B UK BT 18 B 1,159 530
Proceeds from disposal of property, HEME BELKBME
plant and equipment RIA 514 347
Consideration received in relation to partial gt & 2 5 B & QA 7118 &
disposal of investment in an associate U B B B 10(a)(i) 30,000 —
Deposit received in relation to partial disposal g H & 38 5 B & A 5 3% &
of investment in an associate WE K 32 & 10(a)(ii) 20,000 —
Receipts in advance in relation to HLE N R E B R TR
capital reduction of an associate 29(b)(i) —
Loans granted to related parties M BA B 7 B 3K (2,140)
Repayment of loans by third parties E=ZFEEBEX 1,130
Repayment of loans by related parties A EEER 2,200
Increase in restricted cash X PR HI38 2 180 -
Interest received on financial assets at BEARBEFEEEZSHTA
fair value through profit or loss Bz o B ERIH & 1,694
Interest received on loans to related parties  [A] &8 B 77 & ZFT UL B 403
Net cash generated (used in)/from REZH (A s
investing activities REFHE (7,681) 2,046

BRERZERERAR
“ECZ-FFR @
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS (CONTINUED)

REBRERER(E)

Year ended 31 December
BZE12A31BLEE

2021
Note RMB’000
HY 5 FTAR®

Cash flows from financing activities METEMESEERE
Capital injection from non-controlling interests JE#% I 25 £ &
Repayment of borrowings EREREEN

Proceeds from borrowings BT I8

Proceeds from loans provided by a related BBt T IR E RS KA
party
Payment of lease liabilities TNEEERE

4,060
(16,200)
15,000

2,000
(118,994)

Net cash used in from financing activities Bl & ZE T HE & F 58

(114,134)

Net decrease in cash and cash BeRBRESESEYRLFER
equivalents

(58,580)

Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of REVZRERIREEHFED
year

Exchange (losses)/gain on cash and ReRReEEMER
cash equivalents (B18), M=

123,741

(2,590)

Cash and cash equivalents atend of year A F R Z2EH SR BESEEY

62,571

Best Food Holding Company Limited
Annual Report 2021

2020

RMB’000
TAR®

1,097
(5,000)
15,000

(134,458)

(123,361)

(8,417)

131,285

873

123,741



For the year ended 31 December 2021
HZE2021F12A31HLFE

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
n'l_\ézﬁ\zti%ﬁ‘%% IZT;.I-EI

o ‘\-

General information

Best Food Holding Company Limited (the “Company”) and its
subsidiaries (together, the “Group”) are principally engaged in the
operation of chain restaurants.

The Company is a public limited company incorporated in the
Cayman Islands under the Companies Law (Revised) Chapter 22 of
the Cayman Islands and its shares are listed on The Stock
Exchange of Hong Kong (the “Stock Exchange”). Its parent
company is Sonic Tycoon Limited, a company incorporated in
British Virgin Islands (“BVI”) and its ultimate holding company is
Exponential Fortune Group Limited (“Exponential Fortune”), a
company incorporated in the Cayman Islands. The ultimate
controlling shareholder of Exponential Fortune is Zhao John Huan,
who is also the Chairman of the Company. The addresses of the
registered office of the Company is Hutchins Drive P.O. Box 2681
Grand Cayman, KY1-111 Cayman Islands.

The functional currency of the Company is Hong Kong dollars (“HK
dollars” or “HK$”), while the consolidated financial statements are
presented in Renminbi (“RMB”), unless otherwise stated.

During the year ended 31 December 2021, the COVID-19
pandemic has resulted in a continuous impact on the Group’s
operations in 2021, and constituted to the impairment of goodwill
and intangible assets of certain cash generating units (“CGUs”) of
the Group (further details are given in Note 21). It brought additional
challenge to the overall operating environment of the industry and
the Group.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

mEUBHRRHE (&

For the year ended 31 December 2021

B Z<
Bz

2

2021 F12A31 B IEFE

Summary of significant accounting
policies

The principal accounting policies applied in the preparation of these
consolidated financial statements are set out below. These policies
have been consistently applied to all the years presented, unless
otherwise stated.

2.1 Basis of preparation

The consolidated financial statements of the Group have been
prepared in accordance with all applicable Hong Kong Financial
Reporting Standards (“HKFRS”) issued by the Hong Kong Institute
of Certified Public Accountants. The consolidated financial
statements have been prepared under the historical cost
convention, except for the following:

° Financial assets at fair value through other comprehensive
income, financial assets at fair value through profit or loss and
derivative financial instrument, which are measured at fair
value.

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with HKFRS
requires the use of certain critical accounting estimates. It also
requires management to exercise its judgement in the process of
applying the Group’s accounting policies. The areas involving a
higher degree of judgment or complexity, or areas where
assumptions and estimates are significant to the consolidated
financial statements are disclosed in Note 4.

Best Food Holding Company Limited

Annual Report 2021
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

mEUBHRRHE (&

For the year ended 31 December 2021
HZE2021F12A31BILEFE

2

Summary of significant accounting
policies (Continued)

2.1 Basis of preparation (continued)

Changes in presentation of the consolidated
statement of comprehensive income

In previous years, the Group presented an analysis of the Group’s
expenses on the face of its consolidated statement of comprehensive
income using a classification based on their function within the
Group.

Following the disposals of the handbag business, the directors
reviewed the presentation of the Group’s consolidated statement of
comprehensive income taking into account of the changes that the
Group’s core business become mainly engaged in the operation of
chain restaurants and the presentation adopted by certain
companies within the same industry, and concluded that to present
an analysis of expenses using a classification based on their nature
would be more appropriate to the Group’s circumstances and
more relevant to users of the Group’s financial statements.
Consequently, the presentation of the consolidated statement of
comprehensive income for the year ended 31 December 2021 has
been revised and the comparative figures have been reclassified in
order to conform to the current year’s presentation.

The changes in presentation of the consolidated statement of
comprehensive income did not have any impact on the Group’s
loss for the year or the calculation of the Group’s losses per share.

BEAXAETHRBME @
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

mEUBHRRHE (&

For the year ended 31 December 2021
HZE2021F12A31BIEFE

2 Summary of significant accounting
policies (Continued)

2.1 Basis of preparation (continued)

2.1.1 Going concern

As of 31 December 2021, the Group’s current liabilities exceeded
its current assets by RMB128,000,000. The liquidity of the Group is
primarily dependent on its ability to maintain adequate cash inflows
from operations and sufficient financing to meet its financial
obligations as and when they fall due. Considering the Group’s
ability to generate net cash inflows from its future operating
activities and the investment agreement entered into with a related
party controlled by Exponential Fortune (the ultimate holding
company of the Company) in relation to the put option for issuance
of convertible bonds by the Company (Note 22), the directors of
the Company believe that adequate funding is available to fulfill the
Group’s debt obligations and capital expenditure requirements for
the next 12 months period commencing from 31 December 2021.
Therefore, the financial statements have been prepared on the
going concern basis.

2.1.2 New and amended standards adopted by the
Group

The Group has applied the following amendments for the first time

for their annual reporting period commencing 1 January 2021:

Amendments to HKFRS 9, Interest Rate Benchmark
HKAS 39, HKFRS 7, HKFRS 4 Reform — Phase 2
and HKFRS 16

The Group also elected to adopt the following amendments early:

Amendment to HKFRS 16 COVID-19-Related Rent
Concessions beyond
30 June 2021

The amendments stated above did not have any impact on the
amounts recognised in prior periods and are not expected to
significantly affect the current or future periods.

@ Best Food Holding Company Limited
Annual Report 2021
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Summary of significant accounting
policies (Continued)

2.1 Basis of preparation (continued)

2.1.3 New standards and interpretations not yet
adopted

Certain new accounting standards, amendments to accounting
standards and interpretations have been published but are not
mandatory for 31 December 2021 reporting period and have not
been early adopted by the Group. These standards, amendments
or interpretations are not expected to have a material impact on the
Group in the current or future reporting periods and on foreseeable
future transactions.

2.2 Subsidiaries

2.2.1 Consolidation

A subsidiary is an entity (including a structured entity) over which
the Group has control. The Group controls an entity when the
Group is exposed to, or has rights to, variable returns from its
involvement with the entity and has the ability to affect those returns
through its power over the entity. Subsidiaries are consolidated
from the date on which control is transferred to the Group. They
are deconsolidated from the date that control ceases.

(a) Business combinations

The Group applies the acquisition method to account for business
combinations. The consideration transferred for the acquisition of a
subsidiary is the fair values of the assets transferred, the liabilities
incurred to the former owners of the acquiree and the equity
interests issued by the Group. The consideration transferred
includes the fair value of any asset or liability resulting from a
contingent consideration arrangement. Identifiable assets acquired
and liabilities and contingent liabilities assumed in a business
combination are measured initially at their fair values at the
acquisition date.

Intercompany transactions, balances and unrealised gains on
transactions between Group companies are eliminated. Unrealised
losses are also eliminated unless the transaction provides evidence
of an impairment of the transferred asset. Accounting policies of
subsidiaries have been changed where necessary to ensure
consistency with the policies adopted by the Group.
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Summary of significant accounting
policies (Continued)

2.2 Subsidiaries (Continued)

2.2.1 Consolidation (Continued)

(a) Business combinations (Continued)

Non-controlling interests in the results and equity of subsidiaries are
shown separately in the consolidated statement of comprehensive
income, statement of changes in equity and balance sheet
respectively.

The Group recognises any non-controlling interest in the acquiree
on an acquisition-by-acquisition basis. Non-controlling interests in
the acquiree that are present ownership interests and entitle their
holders to a proportionate share of the entity’s net assets in the
event of liquidation are measured at either fair value or the present
ownership interests’ proportionate share in the recognised amounts
of the acquiree’s identifiable net assets. All other components of
non-controlling interests are measured at their acquisition date fair
value, unless another measurement basis is required by HKFRS.

Acquisition-related costs are expensed as incurred.

If the business combination is achieved in stages, the acquisition
date carrying value of the acquiree’s previously held equity interest
in the acquiree is re-measured to fair value at the acquisition date;
any gains or losses arising from such re-measurement are
recognised in profit or loss.

Any contingent consideration to be transferred by the Group is
recognised at fair value at the acquisition date. Subsequent
changes to the fair value of the contingent consideration that is
deemed to be an asset or liability is recognised in accordance with
HKIFRS 39 in profit or loss. Contingent consideration that is
classified as equity is not remeasured, and its subsequent
settlement is accounted for within equity.
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Summary of significant accounting
policies (Continued)

2.2 Subsidiaries (Continued)

2.2.1 Consolidation (Continued)

(a) Business combinations (Continued)

The excess of the consideration transferred, the amount of any
non-controlling interest in the acquiree and the acquisition-date fair
value of any previous equity interest in the acquiree over the fair
value of the identifiable net assets acquired is recorded as goodwill.
If the total of consideration transferred, non-controlling interest
recognised and previously held interest measured is less than the
fair value of the net assets of the subsidiary acquired in the case of
a bargain purchase, the difference is recognised directly in the
statement of comprehensive income.

(b) Changes in ownership interests in subsidiaries without
change of control

Transactions with non-controlling interests that do not result in a
loss of control are accounted for as equity transactions — that is,
as transactions with the owners of the subsidiary in their capacity
as owners. The difference between fair value of any consideration
paid and the relevant share acquired of the carrying amount of net
assets of the subsidiary is recorded in equity. Gains or losses on
disposals to non-controlling interests are also recorded in equity.

2.2.2 Separate financial statements

Investments in subsidiaries are accounted for at cost less
impairment. Cost includes direct attributable costs of investment.
The results of subsidiaries are accounted for by the company on
the basis of dividend received and receivable.

Impairment testing of the investments in subsidiaries is required
upon receiving a dividend from these investments if the dividend
exceeds the total comprehensive income of the subsidiary in the
period the dividend is declared or if the carrying amount of the
investment in the separate financial statements exceeds the
carrying amount in the consolidated financial statements of the
investee’s net assets including goodwill.
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Summary of significant accounting
policies (Continued)

2.3 Associates

An associate is an entity over which the Group has significant
influence but not control, generally accompanying a shareholding of
between 20% and 50% of the voting rights. Investments in
associates are accounted for using the equity method of
accounting. Under the equity method, the investment is initially
recognised at cost, and the carrying amount is increased or
decreased to recognise the investor’s share of the profit or loss of
the investee after the date of acquisition. The Group’s investments
in associates include goodwill identified on acquisition. Upon the
acquisition of the ownership interest in an associate, any difference
between the cost of the associate and the Group’s share of the net
fair value of the associate’s identifiable assets and liabilities is
accounted for as goodwiill.

If the ownership interest in an associate is reduced but significant
influence is retained, only a proportionate share of the amounts
previously recognised in other comprehensive income is reclassified
to profit or loss where appropriate.

The Group’s share of post-acquisition profit or loss is recognised in
the statement of comprehensive income, and its share of post-
acquisition movements in other comprehensive income is
recognised in other comprehensive income with a corresponding
adjustment to the carrying amount of the investment. When the
Group’s share of losses in an associate equals or exceeds its
interest in the associate, including any other unsecured receivables,
the Group does not recognise further losses, unless it has incurred
legal or constructive obligations or made payments on behalf of the
associate.

The Group determines at each reporting date whether there is any
objective evidence that the investment in the associate is impaired.
If this is the case, the Group calculates the amount of impairment
as the difference between the recoverable amount of the associate
and its carrying value and recognises the amount adjacent to 'share
of profit of investments accounted for using equity method’ in the
statement of comprehensive income.
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Summary of significant accounting
policies (Continued)

2.3 Associates (Continued)

Profits and losses resulting from upstream and downstream
transactions between the Group and its associate are recognised
in the Group’s financial statements only to the extent of unrelated
investor’s interests in the associates. Unrealised losses are
eliminated unless the transaction provides evidence of an
impairment of the asset transferred. Accounting policies of
associates have been changed where necessary to ensure
consistency with the policies adopted by the Group.

Gain or losses on dilution of equity interest in associates are
recognised in the statement of comprehensive income.

2.4 Segment reporting

Operating segments are reported in a manner consistent with the
internal reporting provided to the chief operating decision-maker.
The chief operating decision-maker, who is responsible for
allocating resources and assessing performance of the operating
segments, has been identified as the executive director of the
company that makes strategic decisions.

2.5 Foreign currency translation

(@ Functional and presentation currency

ltems included in the financial statements of each of the Group’s
entities are measured using the currency of the primary economic
environment in which the entity operates (“the functional currency”).
The consolidated financial statements are presented in RMB, which
is the Group’s presentation currency. The Company’s functional
currency is HKD.
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Summary of significant accounting
policies (Continued)

2.5 Foreign currency translation (continued)

(b) Transactions and balances

Foreign currency transactions are translated into the functional
currency using the exchange rates prevailing at the dates of the
transactions or valuation where items are re-measured. Foreign
exchange gains and losses resulting from the settlement of such
transactions and from the translation at year-end exchange rates of
monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies
are recognised in the statement of comprehensive income, except
when deferred in other comprehensive income as qualifying cash
flow hedges and qualifying net investment hedges.

All the foreign exchange gains and losses are presented in
statement of comprehensive income within “other gains — net”.

() Group companies

The results and financial position of all the Group entities (none of
which has the currency of a hyper-inflationary economy) that have a
functional currency different from the presentation currency are
translated into the presentation currency as follows:

(i) assets and liabilities for each balance sheet presented are
translated at the closing rate at the date of that balance
sheet;

(i) income and expenses for each statement of comprehensive
income comprehensive income are translated at average
exchange rates (unless this average is not a reasonable
approximation of the cumulative effect of the rates prevailing
on the transaction dates, in which case income and expenses
are translated at the rate on the dates of the transactions);
and

(i) all resulting currency translation differences are recognised in
other comprehensive income.

Best Food Holding Company Limited
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Summary of significant accounting
policies (Continued)

2.6 Property, plant and equipment

Buildings comprise mainly factories and offices. Leasehold land
classified as finance lease and all other property, plant and
equipment is stated at historical cost less depreciation. Historical
cost includes expenditure that is directly attributable to the
acquisition of the items.

Subsequent costs are included in the asset’s carrying amount or
recognised as a separate asset, as appropriate, only when it is
probable that future economic benefits associated with the item will
flow to the Group and the cost of the item can be measured
reliably. The carrying amount of the replaced part is derecognised.
All other repairs and maintenance are charged to the statement of
comprehensive income during the financial period in which they are
incurred.

Depreciation on assets is calculated using the straight-line method
to allocate their cost to their residual values over their estimated
useful lives, as follows:

—  Buildings 40-50 years

—  Leasehold improvement Shorter of remaining

lease term or useful life

—  Fumniture, fixtures and equipment  3-10 years
—  Motor vehicles 4-10 years
—  Plant and machinery 5-10 years

The assets’ residual values and useful lives are reviewed, and
adjusted if appropriate, at the end of each reporting period.
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Summary of significant accounting
policies (Continued)

2.6 Property, plant and equipment (continued)

An asset’s carrying amount is written down immediately to its
recoverable amount if the asset’s carrying amount is greater than
its estimated recoverable amount (Note 2.8).

Gains and losses on disposals are determined by comparing the
proceeds with the carrying amount and are recognised within “Other
gains/(losses) — net” in the statement of comprehensive income.

Properties, plant and equipment in the course of construction for
production or administrative purposes, are carried at cost less
accumulated impairment losses, if any. Cost includes all
construction expenditure, professional fees, borrowing costs
capitalized and other relevant expenses directly attributable to such
projects. No provision for depreciation is made on construction in
progress until such time when construction work is complete and
the costs of construction are transferred to the appropriate
category of fixed assets when available for use.

2.7 Intangible assets
(@ Goodwil

Goodwill arises on the acquisition of subsidiaries represents the
excess of the consideration transferred, the amount of any non-
controlling interest in the acquiree and the acquisition-date fair
value of any previous equity interest in the acquiree over the fair
value of the identified net assets acquired.

For the purpose of impairment testing, goodwill acquired in a
business combination is allocated to each of the cash-generating
units (“CGUs"), or Groups of CGUs, that is expected to benefit from
the synergies of the combination. Each unit or Group of units to
which the goodwill is allocated represents the lowest level within
the entity at which the goodwill is monitored for internal
management purposes. Goodwill is monitored at the operating
segment level.

Best Food Holding Company Limited
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Summary of significant accounting
policies (Continued)

2.7 Intangible assets (continued)

(@ Goodwill (Continued)

Goodwill impairment reviews are undertaken annually or more
frequently if events or changes in circumstances indicate a potential
impairment. The carrying value of the CGU containing the goodwill
is compared to the recoverable amount, which is the higher of
value in use and the fair value less costs of disposal. Any
impairment is recognised immediately as an expense and is not
subsequently reversed.

(b) Trademarks

Separately acquired trademarks are shown at historical cost.
Trademarks acquired in a business combination are recognised at
fair value at the acquisition date. Trademarks have an indefinite
useful life. Subsequent to initial recognition, intangible assets
acquired in a business combination with finite useful lives are
reported at cost less accumulated amortisation and any
accumulated impairment losses, on the same basis as intangible
assets that are acquired separately. Intangible assets with indefinite
useful lives are carried at cost less any subsequent accumulated
impairment loss (see the accounting policy in respect of impairment
losses on non-financial assets (Note 2.8)).

(c) Software
Acquired computer software licences are capitalised on the basis
of the costs incurred to acquire and bring to use the specific
software. These costs are amortised over their estimated useful
lives of five years.
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Summary of significant accounting
policies (Continued)

2.8 Impairment of non-financial assets

Intangible assets that have an indefinite useful life or intangible
assets not ready to use are not subject to amortisation and are
tested annually for impairment. Assets that are subject to
amortisation are reviewed for impairment whenever events or
changes in circumstances indicate that the carrying amount may
not be recoverable. An impairment loss is recognised for the
amount by which the asset’s carrying amount exceeds its
recoverable amount. The recoverable amount is the higher of an
asset’s fair value less costs of disposal and value in use. For the
purposes of assessing impairment, assets are Grouped at the
lowest levels for which there are separately identifiable cash flows
(cash-generating units). Non-financial assets other than goodwil
that suffered an impairment are reviewed for possible reversal of
the impairment at each reporting date.

2.9 Financial Assets

() Classification
The Group classifies its financial assets in the following
measurement categories:

o those to be measured subsequently at fair value (either
through OCI or through profit or loss), and

° those to be measured at amortised cost.

The classification depends on the entity’s business model for
managing the financial assets and the contractual terms of the cash
flows.

For assets measured at fair value, gains and losses will either be
recorded in profit or loss or OCI. For investments in equity
instruments that are not held for trading, this will depend on
whether the Group has made an irrevocable election at the time of
initial recognition to account for the equity investment at fair value
through other comprehensive income (FVOCI).

The Group reclassifies debt investments when and only when its
business model for managing those assets changes.
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Summary of significant accounting
policies (Continued)

2.9 Financial assets (Continued)

(i) Recognition and derecognition

Regular way purchases and sales of financial assets are recognised
on trade-date, the date on which the Group commits to purchase
or sell the asset. Financial assets are derecognised when the rights
to receive cash flows from the financial assets have expired or have
been transferred and the Group has transferred substantially all the
risks and rewards of ownership.

(i) Measurement

At initial recognition, the Group measures a financial asset at its fair
value plus, in the case of a financial asset not at fair value through
profit or loss (FVPL), transaction costs that are directly attributable
to the acquisition of the financial asset. Transaction costs of
financial assets carried at FVPL are expensed in profit or loss.

Financial assets with embedded derivatives are considered in their
entirety when determining whether their cash flows are solely
payment of principal and interest.

Debt instruments

Subsequent measurement of debt instruments depends on the
Group’s business model for managing the asset and the cash flow
characteristics of the asset. There are three measurement
categories into which the Group classifies its debt instruments:

° Amortised cost: Assets that are held for collection of
contractual cash flows where those cash flows represent
solely payments of principal and interest are measured at
amortised cost. Interest income from these financial assets is
included in finance income using the effective interest rate
method. Any gain or loss arising on derecognition is
recognised directly in profit or loss and presented in other
gains/(losses) together with foreign exchange gains and
losses. Impairment losses are presented as separate line item
in the statement of comprehensive income.
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2 Summary of significant accounting
policies (Continued)

2.9 Financial assets (Continued)

(i)

Measurement (Continued)

Debt instruments (Continued)

FVOCI: Assets that are held for collection of contractual cash
flows and for selling the financial assets, where the assets’
cash flows represent solely payments of principal and
interest, are measured at FVOCI. Movements in the carrying
amount are taken through OCI, except for the recognition of
impairment gains or losses, interest income and foreign
exchange gains and losses which are recognised in profit or
loss. When the financial asset is derecognised, the cumulative
gain or loss previously recognised in OCI is reclassified from
equity to profit or loss and recognised in other gains/(losses).
Interest income from these financial assets is included in
finance income using the effective interest rate method.
Foreign exchange gains and losses are presented in other
gains/(losses) and impairment expenses are presented as
separate line item in the statement of comprehensive income.

FVPL: Assets that do not meet the criteria for amortised cost
or FVOCI are measured at FVPL. A gain or loss on a debt
investment that is subsequently measured at FVPL is
recognised in profit or loss and presented net within other
gains/(losses) in the period in which it arises.
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Summary of significant accounting
policies (Continued)

2.9 Financial assets (Continued)

(i) Measurement (Continued)

Equity instruments

The Group subsequently measures all equity investments at fair
value. Where the Group’s management has elected to present fair
value gains and losses on equity investments in OCI, there is no
subsequent reclassification of fair value gains and losses to profit or
loss following the derecognition of the investment. Dividends from
such investments continue to be recognised in profit or loss as
other income when the Group’s right to receive payments is
established.

Changes in the fair value of financial assets at FVPL are recognised
in other gains/(losses) in the statement of comprehensive income
as applicable. Impairment losses (and reversal of impairment
losses) on equity investments measured at FVOCI are not reported
separately from other changes in fair value.

(iv) Impairment

The Group assesses on a forward looking basis the expected credit
losses associated with its debt instruments carried at amortised
cost and FVOCI. The impairment methodology applied depends on
whether there has been a significant increase in credit risk.

For trade receivables, the Group applies the simplified approach
permitted by HKFRS 9, which requires expected lifetime losses to
be recognised from initial recognition of the receivables.
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Summary of significant accounting
policies (Continued)

2.10 Offsetting financial instruments

Financial assets and liabilities are offset and the net amount
reported in the balance sheet when there is a legally enforceable
right to offset the recognised amounts and there is an intention to
settle on a net basis or realise the asset and settle the liability
simultaneously. The legally enforceable right must not be contingent
on future events and must be enforceable in the normal course of
business and in the event of default, insolvency or bankruptcy of
the company or the counterparty.

2.11 Inventories

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and net realisable value.
Cost is determined using the weighted average method. The cost
of finished goods and work in progress comprises design costs,
raw materials, direct labour, other direct costs and related
production overheads (based on normal operating capacity). It
excludes borrowing costs. Net realisable value is the estimated
selling price in the ordinary course of business, less applicable
variable selling expenses. Costs of inventories include the transfer
from equity of any gains/losses on qualifying cash flow hedges for
purchases of raw materials.

2.12 Trade and other receivables

Trade receivables are amounts due from customers for
merchandise sold or services performed in the ordinary course of
business. They are generally due for settlement within 180 days
and therefore are all classified as current.

Trade receivables are recognised initially at the amount of
consideration that is unconditional unless they contain significant
financing components, when they are recognised at fair value. The
Group holds the trade receivables with the objective to collect the
contractual cash flows and therefore measures them subsequently
at amortised cost using the effective interest method. See Note 23
for further information about the Group’s accounting for trade
receivables and Note 3.1 for a description of the Group’s policies
for expected credit loss allowance.
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Summary of significant accounting
policies (Continued)

2.13 Cash and cash equivalents

In the consolidated statement of cash flows, cash and cash
equivalents include cash in hand, deposits held at call with banks
and other short-term highly liquid investments with original
maturities of three months or less. In the consolidated balance
sheet, bank overdrafts are shown within borrowings in current
liabilities.

2.14 Share capital

Ordinary shares are classified as equity.

Incremental costs directly attributable to the issue of new shares or
options are shown in equity as a deduction, net of tax, from the
proceeds.

2.15 Trade payables

Trade payables are obligations to pay for goods or services that
have been acquired in the ordinary course of business from
suppliers. Trade payables are classified as current liabilities if
payment is due within one year or less (or in the normal operating
cycle of the business if longer). If not, they are presented as non-
current liabilities.

Trade payables are recognised initially at fair value and
subsequently measured at amortised cost using the effective
interest method.
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Summary of significant accounting
policies (Continued)

2.16 Borrowings

Borrowings are recognised initially at fair value, net of transaction
costs incurred. Borrowings are subsequently carried at amortised
cost; any difference between the proceeds (net of transaction
costs) and the redemption value is recognised in the statement of
comprehensive income over the period of the borrowings using the
effective interest method.

Borrowings are removed from the balance sheet when the
obligation specified in the contract is discharged, cancelled or
expired. The difference between the carrying amount of a financial
liability that has been extinguished or transferred to another party
and the consideration paid, including any non-cash assets
transferred or liabilities assumed, is recognised in profit or loss as
other income or finance costs.

Borrowings are classified as current liabilities unless the Group has
an unconditional right to defer settlement of the liability for at least
12 months after the end of the reporting period.

2.17 Borrowing costs

General and specific borrowing costs directly attributable to the
acquisition, construction or production of qualifying assets, which
are assets that necessarily take a substantial period of time to get
ready for their intended use or sale, are added to the cost of those
assets, until such time as the assets are substantially ready for their
intended use or sale.

All other borrowing costs are recognised in profit or loss in the
period in which they are incurred.

2.18 Compound financial instruments

Compound financial instruments issued by the Group comprise
convertible bonds that can be converted to share capital at the
option of the holder, and the number of shares to be issued does
not vary with changes in their fair value.
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Summary of significant accounting
policies (Continued)

2.18 Compound financial instruments (Continued)

The liability component of a compound financial instrument is
recognised initially at the fair value of a similar liability that does not
have an equity conversion option. The equity component is
recognised initially at the difference between the fair value of the
compound financial instrument as a whole and the fair value of the
liability component, which is included in shareholders’ equity in
other reserves. Any directly attributable transaction costs are
allocated to the liability and equity components in proportion to
their initial carrying amounts.

Subsequent to initial recognition, the liability component of a
compound financial instrument is measured at amortised cost
using the effective interest method. The equity component of a
compound financial instrument is not re-measured subsequent to
initial recognition except on conversion or expiry.

If the convertible financial instrument is converted, the respective
equity component of the compound financial instrument, together
with the carrying value of the liability component at the time of
conversion, are transferred to share capital and share premium as
consideration for the shares issued.

The liability component of a convertible instrument is classified as
current unless the Group has an unconditional right to defer
settlement of the liability for at least 12 months after the end of the
reporting period.

2.19 Current and deferred income tax

The tax expense for the period comprises current and deferred tax.
Tax is recognised in the statement of comprehensive income,
except to the extent that it relates to items recognised in other
comprehensive income or directly in equity. In this case, the tax is
also recognised in other comprehensive income or directly in
equity, respectively.
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Summary of significant accounting
policies (Continued)

2.19 Current and deferred income tax (Continued)

(@ Current income tax

The current income tax charge is calculated on the basis of the tax
laws enacted or substantively enacted at the balance sheet date in
the countries where the company’s subsidiaries and associates
operate and generate taxable income. Management periodically
evaluates positions taken in tax returns with respect to situations in
which applicable tax regulation is subject to interpretation. It
establishes provisions where appropriate on the basis of amounts
expected to be paid to the tax authorities.

(b) Deferred income tax

Inside basis differences

Deferred income tax is recognised, using the liability method, on
temporary differences arising between the tax bases of assets and
liabilities and their carrying amounts in the consolidated financial
statements. However, deferred tax liabilities are not recognised if
they arise from the initial recognition of goodwill, the deferred
income tax is not accounted for if it arises from initial recognition of
an asset or liability in a transaction other than a business
combination that at the time of the transaction affects neither
accounting nor taxable profit or loss and does not give rise to equal
taxable and deductible temporary differences. Deferred income tax
is determined using tax rates (and laws) that have been enacted or
substantively enacted by the balance sheet date and are expected
to apply when the related deferred income tax asset is realised or
the deferred income tax liability is settled.

Deferred income tax assets are recognised only to the extent that it
is probable that future taxable profit will be available against which
the temporary differences can be utilised.

Outside basis differences

Deferred income tax liabilities are provided on taxable temporary
differences arising from investments in subsidiaries and associates,
except for deferred income tax liability where the timing of the
reversal of the temporary difference is controlled by the Group and
it is probable that the temporary difference will not reverse in the
foreseeable future. Generally the Group is unable to control the
reversal of the temporary difference for associates. Only when there
is an agreement in place that gives the Group the ability to control
the reversal of the temporary difference in the foreseeable future,
deferred tax liability in relation to taxable temporary differences
arising from the associate’s undistributed profits is not recognised.
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Summary of significant accounting
policies (Continued)

2.19 Current and deferred income tax (Continued)

(b) Deferred income tax (Continued)

Outside basis differences (Continued)

Deferred income tax assets are recognised on deductible
temporary differences arising from investments in subsidiaries,
associates and joint arrangements only to the extent that it is
probable the temporary difference will reverse in the future and
there is sufficient taxable profit available against which the
temporary difference can be utilised.

(c) Offsetting

Deferred income tax assets and liabilities are offset when there is a
legally enforceable right to offset current tax assets against current
tax liabilities and when the deferred income tax assets and liabilities
relate to income taxes levied by the same taxation authority on
either the taxable entity or different taxable entities where there is
an intention to settle the balances on a net basis.

2.20 Employee benefits

The Group operates short-term employee benefits and post-
employment schemes.

(@ Short-term employee benefits

Short-term employee benefits include wages or salaries, bonus,
allowances and subsidies, staff welfare, premiums or contributions
on medical insurance, work injury insurance and maternity
insurance, housing funds, union running costs and employee
education costs, short-term paid absences and etc. The short-term
employee benefits actually occurred are recognised as a liability in
the accounting period in which the service is rendered by the
employees, with a corresponding charge to the profit or loss for the
current period or the cost of relevant assets. Non-monetary benefits
are measured at fair value.
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Summary of significant accounting
policies (Continued)

2.20 Employee benefits (continued)

(b) Post-employment benefits

The Group classifies post-employment benefit plans as either
defined contribution plans or defined benefit plans. Defined
contribution plans are post-employment benefit plans under which
the Group pays fixed contributions into a separate fund and will
have no obligation to pay further contributions. During the year, the
Group’s post-employment benefits that are defined contribution
plans mainly include the premiums or contributions on basic
pensions and unemployment insurance. A defined benefit plan is a
pension plan that is not a defined contribution plan. Typically
defined benefit plans define an amount of pension benefit that an
employee will receive on retirement, usually dependent on one or
more factors such as age, years of service and compensation.
During the year, the Group does not have post-employment
benefits that are defined benefit plans.

Basic pensions

The Group’s employees participate in the basic pension plan set up
and administered by local authorities of Ministry of Human
Resource and Social Security. Monthly payments of premiums on
the basic pensions are calculated according to the bases and
percentage prescribed by the relevant local authorities. When
employees retire, the relevant local authorities are obliged to pay
the basic pensions to them. The amounts based on the above
calculations are recognised as liabilities in the accounting period in
which the service has been rendered by the employees, with a
corresponding charge to the profit or loss for the current period or
the cost of relevant assets.

The Group’s contributions to these defined contribution plans are
expensed as incurred and not reduced by contributions forfeited by
those employees who leave the plans prior to vesting fully in the
contributions.
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Summary of significant accounting
policies (Continued)

2.20 Employee benefits (Continued)

(¢) Share-based compensation

The Group operates a number of equity-settled, share-based
compensation plans. These plans comprise a share option scheme
and a share award scheme. The fair value of the employee services
received in exchange for the grant of the options or shares is
recognised as an expense. The total amount to be expensed is
determined by reference to the fair value of the options or shares
granted as at date of grant, including any market performance
conditions and excluding the impacts of any non-market service
and performance vesting conditions (for example, profitability, sales
growth targets and remaining an employee of the entity over a
specified time period) as well as any non-vesting conditions (for
example, the requirement for employees to save). Non-market
vesting conditions are included in assumptions about the number
of options or shares that are expected to vest. The total amount
expensed is recognised over the vesting period, which is the period
over which all of the specified vesting conditions are to be satisfied.

At the end of each reporting period, the Group revises its estimates
of the number of options and shares that are expected to vest
based on the non-marketing vesting conditions. It recognises the
impact of the revision of original estimates, if any, in the
consolidated statement of comprehensive income with a
corresponding adjustment to equity.

The proceeds received net of any directly attributable transaction
costs are credited to share capital (nominal value) and share
premium when the options are exercised.
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Summary of significant accounting
policies (Continued)

2.21 Revenue recognition

Revenue is measured at the fair value of the consideration received
or receivable, and represents amounts receivable for goods
supplied, stated net of discounts, and the relevant business taxes
on value added taxes.

(@ Revenue from food and beverage business

The Group operates chain restaurants for selling fast food and hot
pot food. Sales of goods are recognised when a restaurant of the
Group passes the food to the customer. Retail sales are usually in
cash, by credit card or by online payment platforms.

Prepaid cards issued for which the services have not been
rendered are recognised as contract liabilities until the relevant
services are performed.

The Group operates customer loyalty programme for its restaurant
operations where customers accumulate points for purchases
made which entitle them to discounts on future purchases. The
Group accounts for award credits as a separately identifiable
component of the sales transactions in which they are granted (the
“initial sale”). The fair value of the consideration received or
receivable in respect of the initial sale is allocated between the
award credits (based on fair value), which is credited to contract
liabilities and the other components of the sales. Revenue from the
award points is recognised when the points are redeemed. The
amount of revenue is based on the number of reward points
redeemed relative to the total number expected to be redeemed.

Sales of finished goods are recognised when control of the
products has transferred, being when the products are delivered to
the franchisee and there is no unfulfilled obligation that could affect
the franchisee’s acceptance of the products. The franchisee does
not have a right of return upon receipt of the products. The Group
does not operate any loyalty programmes for its franchisees.
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Summary of significant accounting
policies (Continued)

2.21 Revenue recognition (Continued)

(b) Franchise income
Franchise income is recognised on an accrual basis over the period
in accordance with the terms of the relevant agreements.

() Management and service fee income
Management service fee income is recognised over the time when
services are rendered.

2.22 Interest income

Interest income on financial assets at amortised cost calculated
using the effective interest method is recognised in the statement
of comprehensive income as part of other income.

Interest income is presented as finance income where it is earned
from financial assets that are held for cash management purposes.
Any other interest income is included in other income.

Interest income is calculated by applying the effective interest rate
to the gross carrying amount of a financial asset except for financial
assets that subsequently become credit-impaired. For credit-
impaired financial assets the effective interest rate is applied to the
net carrying amount of the financial asset (after deduction of the
loss allowance).

2.23 Dividend income

Dividend income is recognised when the right to receive payment is
established.
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2021 F12A31 B IEFE

Summary of significant accounting
policies (Continued)

2.24 Leases

Leases are recognised as a right-of-use asset and a corresponding
liability at the date at which the leased asset is available for use by
the Group.

Contracts may contain both lease and non-lease components. The
Group allocates the consideration in the contract to the lease and
non-lease components based on their relative stand-alone prices.
However, for leases of real estate for which the Group is a lessee, it
has elected not to separate lease and non-lease components and
instead accounts for these as a single lease component.

Lease terms are negotiated on an individual basis and contain a
wide range of different terms and conditions. The lease agreements
do not impose any covenants other than the security interests in
the leased assets that are held by the lessor. Leased assets may
not be used as security for borrowing purposes.

Assets and liabilities arising from a lease are initially measured on a
present value basis. Lease liabilities include the net present value of
the following lease payments:

° fixed payments (including in-substance fixed payments), less
any lease incentives receivable,

o variable lease payments that are based on an index or a rate,
initially measured using the index or rate as at the
commencement date,

o amounts expected to be payable by the Group under residual
value guarantees,
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Summary of significant accounting
policies (Continued)

2.24 Leases (Continued)

o the exercise price of a purchase option if the Group is
reasonably certain to exercise that option, and

° payments of penalties for terminating the lease, if the lease
term reflects the Group exercising that option.

Lease payments to be made under reasonably certain extension
options are also included in the measurement of the liability.

The lease payments are discounted using the interest rate implicit
in the lease. If that rate cannot be readily determined, which is
generally the case for leases in the Group, the lessee’s incremental
borrowing rate is used, being the rate that the individual lessee
would have to pay to borrow the funds necessary to obtain an
asset of similar value to the right-of-use asset in a similar economic
environment with similar terms, security and conditions.

To determine the incremental borrowing rate, the Group:

o where possible, uses recent third-party financing received by
the individual lessee as a starting point, adjusted to reflect
changes in financing conditions since third party financing
was received,

o uses a build-up approach that starts with a risk-free interest
rate adjusted for credit risk for leases held by the Company,
which does not have recent third party financing, and

o makes adjustments specific to the lease, e.g. term, country,
currency and security.
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Summary of significant accounting
policies (Continued)

2.24 Leases (Continued)

If a readily observable amortising loan rate is available to the
individual lessee (through recent financing or market data) which
has a similar payment profile to the lease, then the group entities
use that rate as a starting point to determine the incremental
borrowing rate.

The Group is exposed to potential future increases in variable lease
payments based on an index or rate, which are not included in the
lease liability until they take effect. When adjustments to lease
payments based on an index or rate take effect, the lease liability is
reassessed and adjusted against the right-of-use asset.

Lease payments are allocated between principal and finance cost.
The finance cost is charged to profit or loss over the lease period
so as to produce a constant periodic rate of interest on the
remaining balance of the liability for each period.

Right-of-use assets are measured at cost comprising the following:

o the amount of the initial measurement of lease liability,

o any lease payments made at or before the commencement
date less any lease incentives received,

o any initial direct costs, and
° restoration costs.

Right-of-use assets are generally depreciated over the shorter of
the asset’s useful life and the lease term on a straight-line basis. If
the Group is reasonably certain to exercise a purchase option, the
right-of-use asset is depreciated over the underlying asset’s useful
life.
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2021 F12A31 B ILFE

Summary of significant accounting
policies (Continued)

2.24 Leases (Continued)

Payments associated with short-term leases and leases of low-
value assets are recognised on a straight- line basis as an expense
in profit or loss. Short-term leases are leases with a lease term of
12 months or less without a purchase option.

The Group has adopted Amendment to HKFRS 16 — Covid-19-
Related Rent Concessions retrospectively from 1 January 2020.
The amendment provides an optional practical expedient allowing
lessees to elect not to assess whether a rent concession related to
COVID-19 is a lease modification. Lessees adopting this election
may account for qualifying rent concessions in the same way as
they would if they were not lease modifications. The practical
expedient only applies to rent concessions occurring as a direct
consequence of the COVID-19 pandemic and only if all of the
following conditions are met: a. the change in lease payments
results in revised consideration for the lease that is substantially the
same as, or less than, the consideration for the lease immediately
preceding the change; b. any reduction in lease payments affects
only payments due on or before 30 June 2021; and c. there is no
substantive change to other terms and conditions of the lease.

The Group has early adopted Amendment to HKFRS 16 — Covid-
19-Related Rent Concessions beyond 30 June 2021, which
extended the practical expedient to lease payments that were due
on or before 30 June 2022.

The Group has applied the practical expedient to all qualifying
COVID-19-related rent concessions.
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2021 F12A31 B IEFE

Summary of significant accounting
policies (Continued)

2.25 Dividend distribution

Dividend distribution to the Company’s shareholders is recognised
as a liability in the Group’s financial statements in the period in
which the dividends are approved by the Company’s shareholders
or directors, where appropriate.

2.26 Government grants

Grants from the government are recognised at their fair value where
there is a reasonable assurance that the grant will be received and
the Group will comply with all attached conditions.

Government grants relating to costs are deferred and recognised in
the statement of comprehensive income over the period necessary
to match them with the costs that they are intended to
compensate.

Government grants relating to property, plant and equipment are
included in non-current liabilities as deferred government grants
and are credited to the statement of comprehensive income on a
straight-line basis over the expected lives of the related assets.

2.27 Earning per share

(@) Basic earnings per share
Basic earnings per share is calculated by dividing:

° the profit attributable to equity holders of the Company,
excluding any costs of servicing equity other than ordinary
shares, and

o by the weighted average number of ordinary shares
outstanding during the financial year, adjusted for bonus
elements in ordinary shares issued during the year and
excluding treasury shares.
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2021 F12A31 B ILFE

Summary of significant accounting
policies (Continued)

2.27 Earning per share

(b) Diluted earnings per share
Diluted earnings per share adjusts the figures used in the
determination of basic earnings per share to take into account:

° the after-income tax effect of interest and other financing
costs associated with dilutive potential ordinary shares, and

° the weighted average number of additional ordinary shares
that would have been outstanding assuming the conversion
of all dilutive potential ordinary shares.

Financial risk management

3.1 Financial risk factors

The Group’s activities expose it to a variety of financial risks: market
risk (including currency risk and cash flow interest rate risk), credit
risk and liquidity risk. The Group’s overall risk management
programme focuses on the unpredictability of financial markets and
seeks to minimize potential adverse effects on the Group’s financial
performance.

Risk management is carried out by the Group’s finance department
under policies approved by the Board of Directors of the Company.
The Company’s finance department identifies, evaluates financial
risks in close co-operation with the Group’s operating units. The
Board of Directors of the Company provides written principles for
overall risk management, as well as written policies covering
specific areas, such as foreign exchange risk, credit risk, use of
derivative financial instruments and non-derivative financial
instruments, and investment of excess liquidity.
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3 Financial risk management (Continued) 3

3.1 Financial risk factors (Continued)

(@ Market risk

(i)  Foreign exchange risk

The Group’s businesses are principally conducted in HK dollars,
US dollars and RMB, which is exposed to foreign currency risk with
respect to transactions denominated in currencies other than HK
dollars, RMB and US dollars. Foreign exchange risk arises from
recognised assets and liabilities and net investments in foreign
operations. The Group did not enter into any forward contract to
hedge its exposure to foreign currency risk for the year ended 31
December 2021 and 2020.

As at 31 December 2021, the carrying amounts of the Group’s
monetary assets and liabilities that are denominated in currency
other than functional currencies of the respective group entities are
as follows:

31 December 2021
2021512A31H

HK dollar  US dollar

BT EY

RMB’000 RMB’000

TAR® TAR¥

Cash and bank balances ReRiRTES n 4,685
Trade and other receivables  FEURE 5l H A 50 IE = =

As at 31 December 2021, if RMB had weakened/strengthened by 5%
(2020: 5%) with all other variables held constant, pre-tax loss for
the year would have been RMB1,939,000 higher/lower (2020:
RMB2,513,000 lower/higher), mainly as a result of foreign exchange
gains/losses on translation of HK dollar and US dollar-denominated
cash and bank balances, trade and other receivables and trade
and other payables.
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Financial risk management (Continued)

3.1 Financial risk factors (Continued)

(@ Market risk (Continued)

(i)  Cash flow and fair value interest rate risk

The Target Group’s interest rate risk arises from loans from owners.
Borrowings obtained at variable rates expose the Target Group to
cash flow interest rate risk which is partially offset by cash held at
variable rates. As at each balance sheet date, substantially all of the
Group’s borrowings were carried at variable market lending rates.

Based on the simulations performed by the Target Group, the
impact on post-tax profit of a 1% shift would be a maximum
increase or decrease of RMB112,500 for the year ended 31
December 2021 (2020: RMB12,000). The simulation is done on an
annually basis to verify that the maximum loss potential is within the
limit given by the management.

(b) Credit risk
The Group has two types of financial assets that are subject to the
expected credit loss model:

o trade receivables, and
o other receivables.

As at 31 December 2021, the Group’s maximum exposure to
credit risk which will cause a financial loss to the Group due to
failure to discharge an obligation by the counterparties provided by
the Group is arising from the carrying amount of the respective
recognised financial assets as stated in the consolidated balance
sheet. Sales to retail customers are required to be settled in cash
or using major credit cards, mitigating credit risk. There are no
significant concentrations of credit risk, whether through exposure
to individual customers, specific industry sectors and/or regions.

While cash and cash equivalents and restricted cash are also
subject to the impairment requirements of HKFRS 9, no impairment
loss was identified.
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Financial risk management (Continued)

3.1 Financial risk factors (Continued)

(b) Credit risk (Continued)

Trade receivables

The Group applies HKFRS 9 simplified approach to measure
expected credit losses which uses a lifetime expected loss
allowance for all trade receivables from initial recognition. To
measure the expected credit losses, trade receivables have been
grouped based on shared credit risk characteristics and the days
past due.

The expected loss rates are based on the payment profiles of sales
over corresponding historical credit losses experienced within this
period. The historical loss rates are adjusted to reflect current and
forward-looking information on factors affecting the ability of the
customers to settle the receivables.

On that basis, the loss allowance as at 31 December 2021 and
2020 was determined as follows for trade receivables:
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As at 31 December 2021 M2021F12A31H

Gross carrying amounts BERTHEE
Expected loss rates TEERE K X
Loss allowance BREE

As at 31 December 2020 2020412 A31H

Gross carrying amounts LEREE
Expected loss rates SRR
Loss allowance BREE

12,658 1,802
0.76% 11.84%
96 213
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3

Financial risk management (Continued)

3.1 Financial risk factors (Continued)

(b) Credit risk (Continued)

Other receivables

Other receivables mainly include consideration receivable in relation
to partial disposal of investment in an associate, deposits for lease,
amounts due from related parties, loans receivables and others.
The management of the Group makes periodic collective
assessments as well as individual assessment on the recoverability
of other receivables based on historical settlement records and
past experiences. The Group measures credit risk using Probability
of Default (“PD”), Exposure at Default (“‘EAD”) and Loss Given
Default (“LGD”). This is similar to the approach used for the
purposes of measuring Expected Credit Loss (“ECL”) under
HKFRS 9.

o Other receivables that are not credit-impaired on initial
recognition are classified in ‘Stage 1’ and have their credit
risk continuously monitored by the Group. The expected
credit loss is measured on a 12-month basis.

° If a significant increase in credit risk (specifically, when the
debtor is more than 1 day past due on its contractual
payments) since initial recognition is identified, the financial
instrument is moved to ‘Stage 2’ but is not yet deemed to be
credit-impaired. The expected credit loss is measured on
lifetime basis.

o If the financial instrument is credit-impaired (specifically, when
the debtor is more than 90 days past due on its contractual
payments), the financial instrument is then moved to ‘Stage 3’.
The expected credit loss is measured on lifetime basis.

B 7 B B B )

31 BEEKREZR @

(b) AR @
B 3 E
HiERXBEIERREABDH H
EMENTRENERAE B8R
& BB IRE BRERRE
e AEBEEERBATELERH
R4S B - T H 4 B U R TE 2 AT IR
B TREERERTG AEH
HREEOME(EOBE]) - B2HA
BRIEHERKRD RENEBR(TEYE
SDEHECARR  EUE ST ER
SRR FOR AN EFEMERIE KX
([FEHEREED 2 %

o RUHEARLEESAREZEH
EKFERRSIE KR
HERERBASEREES -
EHERBRRRT _@EAREE

S

e (HEVMMRERRERAEAARE
ZRMOCERMES AR —
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3

Financial risk management (Continued)

3.1 Financial risk factors (Continued)

(b) Credit risk (Continued)

Other receivables (Continued)

In view of the history of cooperation with the debtors and collection
from them, the management of the Group believes that a majority
of the Group’s other receivables are classified in Stage 1 as at 31
December 2021 and 2020 as there was no significant increase of
credit risk since initial recognition, and the credit risk inherent in
such receivables is not significant. As at 31 December 2021, the
amounts classified in Stage 2 amounted to approximately RMB5.8
million (2020: nil), as the receivable from these debtors are past due
on their contractual payments while the duration of past due is less
than 90 days. As at 31 December 2021, there were no receivables
classified in Stage 3 (2020: nil). The overall average loss rate
applied as at the 31 December 2021 and 2020 were 6.81% and
1.37% respectively.

During the year, the following amounts were recognised in profit or
loss:

B B B B )

31 BEEKREZR @

(b) 1= ARk @)

H fth E Y 5 H ()
EREEBAZBAAERREK
R2ESL AEBEEERA AR
B #16 MeR A - = A3 R B 4 A AR i 3
o R A S B KIS H AU R IE
720214 ) 2020F 12 A31 HREAS
—E BERERURBEZEEEA
[2 Bz 3 S E K o 742021125318 -
REAE MBI HRIBEHNASSEET
AR (20209 @ ) REA A EWRZ
EEBARBEBPRZEHNNR R
i 380 B R B 3B 90 K ° 720214 12 B 31
B MEREAE =R EKZE
(20204 : 4 ) - 220214 K 20204 12
A31H BAZEEEHBERES ]
£6.81% &% 1.37% °

FAR-NIERCRBRER:

Year ended 31 December
BZ12A31BLEE

Provision for expected credit loss allowance
for trade receivables Bt
(Provision for)/reversal of expected
credit loss allowance for other receivables

(B@) B

EUWE HRIAZ BREREX

H YRR 2 TREE R R

(Provision for)/reversal of expected
credit loss allowance for financial assets

(B f5), B

ERMEEZHEBEREX

2021 2020
RMB’000 RMB’000
FAR% TFARE
(101) 83)
(6,417) 533
(6,518) 450
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3

Financial risk management (continued)

3.1 Financial risk factors (Continued)

(c) Liquidity risk

In the management of the liquidity risk, the Group monitors and
maintains a level of cash and cash equivalents deemed adequate
by the management to finance the Group’s operations and mitigate
the effects of fluctuation in cash flows. The Group also has available

B 7% & b2 B I )

31 BEEKREZR @

) RBELRAM

EEERBDESRARE FEEER
REFBESRBASFEVREREER
%E%@E’J7J<$ DY AEE2E -
ﬂi“‘ﬁ%umifﬂiiﬁﬁ’]%% NEE

banking facilities to meet its short-term working capital 7’]’\ Al E 15 SR 1T @ BLAmBHEHEE
requirements. The management monitors the utilisation of bank Ea S % Iﬁ RIPTERER
borrowings and ensure compliance with loan covenants. 150 jﬁﬁ%{%ﬁ BRAY -

The following table details the Group’s remaining contractual
maturity for its non-derivative financial liabilities. The table has been
drawn up based on the undiscounted cash flows of financial
liabilities based on the earliest date on which the Group can be
required to pay. The maturity dates for non-derivative financial
liabilities are based on the agreed repayment dates. The table
includes both interest and principal cash flows. To the extent the
interest flows are floating rate, the undiscounted amount is derived
from interest rate at the end of the reporting period.

TRANAKEERTESRBE 2 H
HARFMA -ZRIREAKEEA
NRz&xEAMZEMABRFTRR
TRERR AHEEMIETESARE
BZHBADERBEERAHM
E-ZXkHBENERATHRERE -
WHEBERERERFESNE AR
ReB RSP RONEPES -

Between 1
and 2 years
1FE25F
RMB’000
FARY

Between 2
and 5 years Over 5 years
26 B5F HiB5E
RMB’000 RMB’000
FARY FTARY

Within 1 year
15 R
RMB’000
FARY

As at 31 December 2021 742021$12831H

Trade payables e E 5 5KIR 59,166
Other payables and H b e 0B R

accruals TEIRE A 89,156 — =
Borrowings TEE 15,183 5,304 -
Convertible bonds AR &S 59,801 509,424 —
Lease liabilities HEaE 100,356 78,385 110,056
Total ast 323,662 593,113 110,056

BERERERERAA
—EBE-—FER @
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For the year ended 31 December 2021
HZE2021F12A31BIEFE

B 7% & b2 B I )
31 BEEKREZR @

3 Financial risk management (Continued) 3

3.1 Financial risk factors (Continued)

(c) Liquidity risk (Continued) ) REEZ R @
Between 1 Between 2
Within 1 year and 2 years and 5years  Over 5 years
1F RN 1FE2F 2EFEESEF fiisg ooke
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
FARE FAR® FAR® TARH
As at 31 December 2020 42020512831 H
Trade payables ERE 5 HIE 70,865 — — —
Other payables and H b fE A FRIE K TR
accruals ZEA 42,220 — — —
Borrowings &= 16,514 — — —
Convertible bonds AwKRES 45,837 15,418 527,716 —
Lease liabilities HEBE 115,394 86,713 131,396 14,756
Total B &t 290,830 102,131 659,112 14,756
3.2 Capital management 32 EXEHE

The Group’s objectives when managing capital are to safeguard
the Group’s ability to continue as a going concern in order to
provide returns for shareholders and benefits for other stakeholders
and to maintain an optimal capital structure to reduce the cost of
capital.

In order to maintain or adjust the capital structure, the Group may
adjust the amount of dividends paid to shareholders, return capital
to shareholders, issue new shares or sell assets to reduce debt.

Consistent with others in the industry, the Group monitors capital
on the basis of the gearing ratio. This ratio is calculated as net debt
divided by total capital. Net debt is calculated as total borrowings
(including ’'current and non-current borrowings’ and convertible
bonds as shown in the consolidated balance sheet) less cash and
cash equivalents. Total capital is calculated as 'equity’ as shown in
the consolidated balance sheet plus net debt. As at 31 December
2021, the Group’s gearing ratio was 56% (2020: 27%).
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3

Financial risk management (continued)

3.3 Fair value estimation

The table below analyses the Group’s financial instruments carried
at fair value as at 31 December 2021 by level of the inputs to
valuation techniques used to measure fair value. Such inputs are
categorised into three levels within a fair value hierarchy as follows:

° Quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical

assets or liabilities (level 1).

o Inputs other than quoted prices included wit
are observable for the asset or liability, either

hin level 1 that
directly (that is,

as prices) or indirectly (that is, derived from prices) (level 2).

° Inputs for the asset or liability that are
observable market data (that is, unobservable

not based on
inputs) (level 3).

The following table presents the Group’s assets that are measured

at fair value at 31 December 2021.

Level 1
F14R
RMB’000
FARY

Assets EBE

Financial assets at BRAAEETERH
fair value through other # B AEMt2H
comprehensive income WHZEBMEE

Unlisted investment FEMRE

Financial assets at RAAREETEAHR
fair value through B ABEZS
profit or loss RmEE

Investment in unlisted RIELTMEMER
wealth management ®E
products

Derivative financial TESmIA
instrument

Total &5t

B 7% & b2 B I )

3.3 XA EEMET

TREAABEIEHERINTE AR
BERSMALKER2021F12A31H
MARBEFENSBRIA - 5%
ABBEFBAUNTAABEERA Z =@
Sl

e HRAEAEXBBBEEMBSHRE
CRFE) (B4R -

s BEXBEHABBERUERS
TARAIN IRE - T im B & (AE
)R EE(BIRERIKRE)(F2
) e

s BEXBENHABETEERN
AEEMmSHEBE(AAABREE
ABIE) (B3R °

TRYRAEBEKR2021F12 831 B U
NABEFEZEE-

Level 2
E28
RMB’000
FTARY

Level 3 Total
EIR &%

RMB’000 RMB’000

FTARY FTARY

BRERZERERAR
“ECZ-FFR
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3 Financial risk management (Continued) 3 HHEREKEEE @
3.3 Fair value estimation (Continued) 3.3 D AEEME @)
The following table presents the Group’s assets that are measured TRIRAAEBER2020F12 431 B LA
at fair value at 31 December 2020. AREBEEAEZEE -
Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
F14% X XTI &t
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000

TAR® TAR® TAR® TAR®

Assets BE
Financial assets at BRAAREBEFER
fair value through Heegms A M
other comprehensive 2HKEZEH
income 5E
Unlisted investment FELEHERE — — 5,000 5,000
Financial assets at RAAREBEFER
fair value through HEHt ABR
profit or loss ZEeRMEE
Investment in unlisted RIELMEYESR
wealth management =
products — — 27,931 27,931
Derivative financial TESMIA
instrument — — 72,226 72,226
Total &t — — 105,157 105,157
@ Best Food Holding Company Limited
Annual Report 2021
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
e S R R ()

Financial risk management (Continued) 3 HMERBEREw@

3.3 Fair value estimation (continued)

3.3 A AEBEMF W

Financial instruments in level 3 E3REFM T E
The following table presents the changes in level 3 instruments for T RIRE ZE 20215 %2020 12 A 31

the years ended 31 December 2021 and 2020.

BIEFEHEIRTAZ -

2021

RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
TARY TARY FTARY
Financial assets
at fair value  Financial assets
through other at fair value Derivative
comprehensive through profit or financial
income loss instrument
BAAREE RAREE
STEEHZH STEEHZH

AT AE 2 W FFABE TEEM
ZEMEE ZEMEE I8

5,000 27,931
= 191,180
- (161,362)

(3,000) 68 (47,375)
= = (2,308)

Opening balance By
Addition NE
Redemption & o

Change in fair value RAREEEE
Exchange difference N ZER
Closing balance HR&EH

22,543

BRERZERERAR
“ECZ-FFR
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For the year ended 31 December 2021
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3 Financial risk management (Continued) 3

3.3 Fair value estimation (continued)

B B B B )
3.3 A REEMF @

Financial instruments in level 3 F3XER T E
2020
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
TARH TARH TARH TAR®
Financial assets Payable in
at fair value  Financial assets relation to the
through other at fair value Derivative put right of
comprehensive through profit or financial  non-controlling
income loss instrument interests
BARBE EOREE

GTERHEEH HEAHEH FE A0 JE 12 AR
FEAE fh 2 W SFAER THEER HADLEER
JEREE ZeMEE IA BEfE
Opening balance H Y& % 5,000 62,792 — (99,024)
Addition NE — 111,780 46,631 —
Redemption Bl — (146,922) — —
Change in fair value ARBEEZD - 281 29,262 97,778
Exchange difference [ 5 =% — - (3,667) 1,246
Closing balance H R 8 5,000 27,931 72,226 -

Valuation inputs and relationships to fair value

The Group has a team that manages the valuation of level 3
instruments for financial reporting purposes. The team manages
the valuation exercise of the investments on a case by case basis.
At least once every year, the team would use valuation techniques
to determine the fair value of the Group’s level 3 instruments.
External valuation experts will be involved when necessary.

(@  For unlisted investment, as the investment is not traded in an
active market, its fair value is determined by using valuation
techniques and is within level 3 of the fair value hierarchy. The
unlisted investment is primarily valued based on the available
transaction price of the latest round of financing of the
investees. Where such information is not available, other
valuation techniques are used, such as the discounted cash
flows method.
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For the year ended 31 December 2021
HZE2021F12A31BILEFE

3 Financial risk management (Continued)

3.3 Fair value estimation (continued)

Financial instruments in level 3 (Continued)
Valuation inputs and relationships to fair value (Continued)

()

All of these unlisted wealth management products are
sponsored and managed by state-owned or reputable
national commercial banks in the PRC. These unlisted wealth
management products are short-term investments which are
denominated in RMB and redeemable on demand. The
expected rate of retun of the unlisted wealth management
products range from 2.2% to 3.1% per annum as at 31
December 2021 (2020: from 2.8% to 3.7%), which are
updated by the banks periodically on a quarterly or more
frequent basis. Management uses the expected rate of return
for approximation for both cash flow assessment and the
discount rate in evaluating the fair values of the unlisted
wealth management products. Increased or decreased
expected rate of return by 1% would increase or decrease
fair value by RMB578,000 (2020: RMB279,000).

The fair value of the derivative financial instrument is
determined using the binomial valuation model and the
significant unobservable inputs applied in the valuation
technique mainly include the expected volatility rate and risk-
free interest rate (Note 22).

The market price of the Company’s share was HK$ 1.05 as
at 31 December 2021, if the market price of the Company’s
share had been HK$0.05 higher/lower than that at 31
December 2021, the fair value of the derivative financial
instrument would have decreased/increased by approximately
RMB6,321,000 and RMB7,156,000, respectively. If the
expected volatility rate had been 10% higher/lower than
management’s estimates at 31 December 2021, it would
have increased/decreased the fair value of the derivative
financial instrument by RMB6,088,000 and RMB6,088,000,
respectively. The risk-free interest rate adopted by
management is 0.18% as at 31 December 2021,
management is of the view that a reasonable change in the
risk-free interest rate will not have a significant impact on the
fair value of the derivative financial instrument.

B 7 B B B )

3.3 A REEMF @

E3MERM T B )
RABEMGEZBABEREBRF @)

(b)

FrEZELMEMERIRT
B ANEER EREER
TREREE - ZSIFLTEY
EmATHEE UAREFE
Al fR B KB | o R2021412
A31H  ELMEMERZIEH
F B HED RN F22%E3.1%
(20204 : 2.8% E3.7%) * %2 %[O
WMERBITERREEXETER
B EBENEIELTEY
ERZALEBERE  BeRiET
EERTHEEYRBEHDRE
YE A LUE - 78 HA o] 3] =K 18 hn sk
1% 145 8 B (B E 0 sk
B, L 578,000 7T A K # (20204 :
279,000t A R#) o

TTESRMTAZAABEIN=
AARERVEE  mMERRE
BERMZEATAEREGARE
TECRBERRESENERRN
& (ffrE22) -

R2021F 128318 KA 7 &
BHEA105B T MAR R K
7B E R2021FE12A31H 2
BE® EAHTB0.05%8 T AIFT
EEBMTAZRAABERD
SN #96,321,000 7T A R
}.7,156,0007C A R ¥ o i 78 H )&
B) R & 12 E R2021F12 A 31
H 2 fl &t 38 00, 2 10% + B 6T
Y emMTEZAAREEBS
# 50, 46,088,000 7T A B F
6,088,0007T A R#& o 7220214 12
A31H EEERMZERRF
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For the year ended 31 December 2021
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4

2021 F12A31 B IEFE

Critical accounting estimates and
judgements

Estimates and judgements are continually evaluated and are based
on historical experience and other factors, including expectations of
future events that are believed to be reasonable under the
circumstances.

4.1 Critical accounting estimates and
assumptions

The Group makes estimates and assumptions concemning the
future. The resulting accounting estimates will, by definition, seldom
equal the related actual results. The estimates and assumptions
that have a significant risk of causing a material adjustment to the
carrying amounts of assets and liabilities within the next financial
year are addressed below.

(@ Impairment of goodwill and intangible assets
with indefinite useful life

The Group tests annually whether goodwill and intangible assets
with indefinite useful life have suffered any impairment, in
accordance with the accounting policy stated in Note 2.8. The
recoverable amounts of groups of cash-generating units (the “CGUS”)
have been determined based on the higher of the fair value less
cost of disposal and value-in-use calculations. These calculations
require the use of judgement and estimates. Further details are
given in Note 21.

(b) Impairment of interests in associates

The Group assesses whether there are any indicators of impairment
for interests in associates at the end of each reporting period in
accordance with the accounting policies stated in Note 2.8.
Interests in associates are tested for impairment when there are
indicators that the carrying amounts may not be recoverable. An
impairment exists when the carrying value of interests in an
associate exceeds its recoverable amount, which is determined
based on the higher of the fair value less cost of disposal and
value-in-use calculations. These calculations require the use of
judgment and estimates. Further details are given in Note 20.
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Critical accounting estimates and
judgements (Continued)

4.1 Critical accounting estimates and
assumptions (Continued)

(¢) Intangible assets with an indefinite useful lives

Management of the Group determines the estimated useful lives for
intangible assets based on their historical experience in the industry
and various studies and market research performed by them, which
support that the trademark may have no foreseeable limit to the
period over which the trademarked products are expected to
generate net cash flows for the Group. It is possible that future
results of operation could be affected by changes in this estimate.
A change of useful lives of the trademarks from indefinite to finite
would increase amortisation charges and decrease non-current
assets.

(d) Income taxes

The Group is subject to income taxes in various jurisdictions.
Judgement is required in determining the provision for income
taxes. There are many transactions and calculations for which the
ultimate tax determination is uncertain. The Group recognises
liabilities for anticipated tax audit issues based on estimates of
whether additional taxes will be due. Where the final tax outcome of
these matters is different from the amounts that were initially
recorded, such differences will impact the current and deferred
income tax assets and liabilities in the period in which such
determination is made.

(e) Impairment of property, plant and equipment
and right-of-use assets

Property, plant and equipment and right-of-use assets are reviewed
for impairment whenever events or changes in circumstances
indicate that the carrying amounts may not be recoverable. The
recoverable amounts of property, plant and equipment and right-
of-use assets have been determined based on the higher of fair
value less cost of disposal and value in-use calculations. These
calculations require the use of judgment and estimates.

B & & 5t 8 51 & H B )
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Critical accounting estimates and
judgements (Continued)

4.1 Critical accounting estimates and
assumptions (Continued)

() Expected credit loss allowance for receivables

The Group’s management determines the provision for impairment
of trade and other receivables based on the expected credit losses
which uses a lifetime expected loss allowance for all trade
receivables. The loss allowances for financial assets are based on
assumptions about risk of default and expected loss rates. The
Group uses judgement in making these assumptions and selecting
the inputs to the impairment calculation, based on the Group’s past
history, existing market conditions as well as forward looking
estimates at the end of each reporting period. Management
reassesses the provision at each balance sheet date.

(9) Fair value of customer royalty program

The fair value of programme awards under the Group’s customer
loyalty programme is deferred and included in contract liabilities
which arise as members of the programme accumulate award
points by purchasing food of the Group. The contract liability is
recognised as revenue when the related goods or services are
provided upon redemption of award points. The proportion of
points that are expected to expire, is recognised to reduce fair
value, and is determined by a number of assumptions including
historical experience, future redemption pattern and programme
design.

The amount of revenue recognised is determined based on the
number of points redeemed relative to the total number expected
to be redeemed.

Best Food Holding Company Limited
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

e B R M R ()

For the year ended 31 December 2021
HZE2021F12A31HLFE

5

Revenue and Segment information

The Company’s executive directors are the chief operating decision
maker (the “CODM”). The CODM periodically reviews the Group’s
internal report in order to assess performance and allocate
resources. The CODM has determined the operating segments
based on these reports.

During the years ended 31 December 2021 and 2020, the CODM
focuses on the operating results of the Group as a whole as the
Group’s resources are integrated and no discrete operating
segment financial information is reviewed. Accordingly, no operating
segment information is presented.

Disaggregation of revenue from contracts with customers:

WA K 7 &8 & #

ARBATEERTIERERRSE
([EBEEREE] TBELEREE
EHENASE 2T H®RE - Wt
BRARDEER - TBRERRE
ERBEZEREEELENH -

RE E20214F K20205F 12 A31 B L4
B ARAEEERET B EER
BUKEDHBYHER WETELE
AREBEEFRAEEERBLEEES -
A WEEF|EEDIHER -

REEFEHNZHB AR :

Year ended 31 December
BE12A31BLEE

ShE E TS
HERM

Restaurant operation
Delivery business
Sale of food ingredients

2021 2020
RMB’000 RMB’000
TAR® TAR®E

500,903 448,766
206,103 170,758

45,953 31,167
752,959 650,691

The Group’s principal market is the PRC and its sales to overseas
customers contributed to less than 10% of revenue. Also, none of
the Group’s non-current assets is located outside the PRC.
Accordingly, no geographical information is presented.

The Group has a large number of customers. For the years ended
31 December 2021 and 2020, no revenue derived from
transactions with a single external customer represented 10% or
more of the Group’s total revenue.

AEBNTEMSEFE  ABEIINE
FREERSBWANTRTE10% -
BAREEMEMR T BEINNIERE
BE-RAYt IEEIMMREM -

AEEREFHERSZ - HE2021F &
2020F 12 AG1HIEFE  MERAE
—IBEPZRBBAMREEER WA
EEE10% A | o
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

For the year ended 31 December 2021
HZE2021F12A31HLFE

6. Other income

e MR R MR (&)

6 HMWA

Year ended 31 December
BZ12A31BLEE

2021 2020

RMB’000 RMB’000

FTARY FAR®E

Franchise income R & WA 6,182 2,022

Government grants IS 4l B 4,331 5,381

Management service income (a) EIEREWA (@ 2,976 958
Investment income on wealth BETEMIRE WA (b

management products (b) 1,684 1,975

Interest income on loans BSRAE A 969 926

Others Hib 1,943 1,468

18,085 12,730

(8) Management service income mainly includes service fees @ EBEERBSUATEBEAEER

received by the Group in relation to the provision of
commercial, management and administrative support

services.

(b)  For the year ended 31 December 2021, investment income (b)
on wealth management products includes realized gains of
RMB1,616,000 (2020: RMB1,694,000) and unrealized gains
of RMB68,000 (2020: RMB281,000), both of which are
recorded as “other income” in the consolidated statements of

comprehensive income.

Best Food Holding Company Limited
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
e B RRME ()

For the year ended 31 December 2021
HZE2021F12 A1 B ILFE

H X<

Year ended 31 December
BE12A31ALEE

7 Other expenses 7

2021 2020
RMB’000 RMB’000
TARY FARM
Daily maintenance expenses AEHER 22,054 16,430
Advertising and marketing expenses EEREEEX 15,622 13,538
Business development expense XBHEERX 15,328 14,359
Impairment of property, plant and equipment ~ #1 % - & B & R &5 E 13,908 8,688
Professional fees EXRGER 9,611 14,391
Auditors’ remuneration ZER BN &
— Audit services —E RS 2,300 2,300
— Non-audit services —JEEET RS 324 200
Other expenses HE X 16,695 7,324
Total other expense HuF B 95,842 77,230
Other losses, net 8 HMEEFER
Year ended 31 December
BZE12A31BLEEE
2021 2020
RMB’000 RMB’000
FTAR% FAR®
Gain on disposal of right-of-use assets HEFRAEEERS 4,892 5,128
Loss on disposal of property, plant LEME BEIXEESIE
and equipment (6,269) (8,408)
Loss on closure of restaurants — net BEEXEBBTE (2,589) (108)
Net exchange gain/(loss) PE X e, (5 18) F 58 1,506 (1,958)
Others H (1,196) 316
(3,656) (5,030)
BRERBRAF

Bf EA S
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

e

For the year ended 31 December 2021
HZE2021F12A31BILFE

9 Finance income and expenses

Bt 75 ¥R 3Rk B & (48)

9 HBUARER

Year ended 31 December
BE12A31ALEE

2021 2020
RMB’000 RMB’000
TAR® FARM
Finance income R TN
Interest income on bank deposits |ITHF A B U A 221
Finance expenses B8R
Interest on convertible bonds (Note 25) AT AR E 5 F B (K aE25) (32,765) (35,214)
Interest on lease liabilities HEAGHE (14,370) (16,670)
Interest on bank borrowings RITEFKFE (378) (241)
Interest on loan from third parties FE=ZHEZ 7F'J (38) (119)
Others HAtb (552) (306)
(48,103) (52,546)
Finance expense, net BB RER (47,959) (62,325)
10 Gain on partial disposal and dilution of 10. o HEREFHZE A A
investments in associates REz W=
Year ended 31 December
BZ12A31BLEE
2021 2020
RMB’000 RMB’000
FTARY FARY
Net gains on partial disposal of investments ~ #85H HEBE A FIRE 2
in associates () W # 5 (a) -
Net gains on dilution of investments HEmEnNfREZ
in associates (b) I %5 5 58 (b) -

Best Food Holding Company Limited
Annual Report 2021
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
mEMBRRME (E

For the year ended 31 December 2021
HZE2021F12A31BILEFE

10 Gain on partial disposal and dilution of 10. 7 HERBERE QT
investments in associates (Continued) REzZ W& @

(@  The amount represented the gains on partial disposal of the @ #ZeHEABIEEAREBRBEAN
Group’s investments in associates. AR E 7 Wa e

During the year ended 31 December 2021, the Group
disposed certain interests in Guangzhou Yujian
Xiaomian Catering Management Company Limited (&
N8R/ MEERER AR A R) (“Yujian Xiaomian”, an
associate of the Group) to a third party at the
consideration of RMB30 million. Upon completion of
the disposal, the Group recognized a gain of
approximately RMB26.7 million in the consolidated
statement of comprehensive income, and Yujian
Xiaomian continues to be accounted for as an associate
of the Group.

During the year ended 31 December 2021, the Group
disposed certain interests in Shanghai Seesaw Coffee
Company Limited (E/EFAEMBEERAF]) (“Seesaw”,
an associate of the Group) to a third party (the
“Purchaser”) at the consideration of RMB40 million.
Upon completion of the disposal, the Group recognized
a gain of approximately RMB35.2 million in the
consolidated statement of comprehensive income, and
Seesaw continues to be accounted for as an associate
of the Group. As at 31 December 2021, the
consideration receivable of RMB36,496,000 (after
netting off the related withholding tax which will be
withheld by the Purchaser and remitted to the tax
bureau pursuant to the share purchase agreement) was
recorded as other receivables in the consolidated
balance sheet. At the same time, pursuant to the share
purchase agreement, the Group had received a deposit
of RMB20,000,000 from the Purchaser which will be
refunded to the Purchase immediately before the
settlement of the above consideration, and such
deposit was recorded as other payables in the
consolidated balance sheet as at 31 December 2021.

B =2021F12A31 8 1E
FE AEBRAE=ZAH
EEMNBR/NEERE R
ERAR(BE /NG K
E@zBERR) 2B TE
# REBANVEETAR
ko MERIETKE  AE
ERRE 2K RER
WHoe7TEE T ARE
mBR/NMEEERLSE
ErHeENaAR-

R E 22021128318 1+
FE AEBRAFEF=ZFTE
AhHE L smEsmEs
RARI(AE] AEE
BE e zHETHEZ R
BARIAOEBETARE - B
BEFBETKE  TEERE
ErEBERERRED
B2EBTLTARE mAEE
BEBEERTEBE ZHER
A A BR o 72021412 A 31
B - F& Y 1K 1E 36,496,000 7T
AR (SR E R
HETHEFAENTEET
BB AEERR) DR
EEEBBRANARYIE
E e WK IE - FIEF - R IE
BRirE AEEERERS
g BR ¥z € 20,000,000 7T A R
o WHBREE PR ELS
BRRETES  MZEs
R2021F12A31H R A
EEBEBERAARIER
L FE T 5RIE ©
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

mEUBHRRHE (&

For the year ended 31 December 2021
HZE2021F12A31BIEFE

10 Gain on partial disposal and dilution of
investments in associates (Continued)

(b)  The amount represented the dilution gain on the Group’s
investments in associates.

During the year ended 31 December 2021, Yujian
Xiaomian issued new shares to certain investors.
Consequently, the Group’s interests in Yujian Xiaomian
were diluted. The increase in share of net assets of
RMB7,093,000 after the issuance of new shares net of
dilution impact was recognized as a dilution gain in the
consolidated statement of comprehensive income.

During the year ended 31 December 2021, Tianshuilai
(Beijing) Catering Trade Management Co. Ltd (3t R A7K
REGEIEAR AT (“Tianshuilai”, an associate of the
Group) issued new shares to certain investors.
Consequently, the Group’s interests in Tianshuilai was
diluted. The increase in share of net assets of
RMB2,691,000 after the issuance of new shares net of
dilution impact was recognized as a dilution gain in the
consolidated statement of comprehensive income

During the year ended 31 December 2021, Seesaw
issued new shares to certain investors. Consequently,
the Group’s interests in Seesaw was diluted. The
increase in share of net assets of RMB10,406,000 after
the issuance of new shares net of dilution impact was
recognized as a dilution gain in the consolidated
statement of comprehensive income.

Best Food Holding Company Limited
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
e B RRME ()

For the year ended 31 December 2021

HE2021F12A31BILEE

11 Income tax credit 11 FIEHIER

Year ended 31 December
BE12A31ALEE

2021 2020
RMB’000 RMB’000
TARY FARM
Current income tax BN EFFT 15 74
Hong Kong profits tax BANGH -

Withholding income tax in relation to gains on &9 H & 4 A F4% & 7 =%
partial disposal of investments in associates ZTEIRFTE

PRC enterprise income tax (“EIT”) FREMER
([EmMBHD 451
6,211 451
Deferred tax IEIEFL IR (20,059) (10,144)
(13,848) (9,693)
Year ended 31 December
BZ12A31BHLEE
2021 2020
RMB’000 RMB’000
FARYE FAR®
Profit before income tax R BT 15 B¢ A i 7 (665,685) (160,689)
Tax calculated at applicable tax rates 12 25% i A T 5
of 25% (2020: 25%) (20204 : 25%) (166,421) (40,172)
Tax effects of: NTHEHBEZHETE
— Associates’ results reported net of tax —HERRZE2MES
(TEB) (252) 3,640
— Effect of different tax rates of subsidiaries ~ — Fft B 2 5] TR & 7 22 8,159 7,754
— Impairment of goodwill not deductible for ~ — 7~ AT 184 79 & 5 (&
tax purpose 133,859 —
— Expenses not deductible for tax purposes  — 5T F 0] R 2 2 1,075 305
— Utilisation of previously unrecognised tax —ERLRI AR
losses 518 (632) —
— Temporary differences and tax losses for ~ — RIERIEILEFTS T A &
which no deferred income tax asset was ZERNEBRBEEER
recognized 10,364 18,780
Taxation charge B ER (13,848) (9,693)

BRERERAD
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

e B R AR MR ()

For the year ended 31 December 2021

B Z<
Bz

11

2021 F12A31 B IEFE

Income tax credit (Continued)

Cayman Islands

The Company is incorporated in Cayman Islands as an exempted
company with limited liability under the Companies Law of Cayman
Islands and accordingly, is exempted from Cayman Islands income
tax.

Hong Kong

Under the two-tiered profits tax rates regime, the first HK$2 million
of profits of the qualifying group entity will be taxed at 8.25%, and
profit above HK$2 million will be taxed at 16.5%. The profits of
group entities not qualifying for the two-tiered profits tax rates
regime will continue to be taxed at a flat rate of 16.5% (2020:
16.5%).

The PRC

Under the Law of the PRC on Enterprise Income Tax and
Implementation Regulation of the EIT Law, the tax rate of the PRC
subsidiaries is 25% from 1 January 2008 onwards.

Withholding income tax

During the year ended 31 December 2021, Wonderful Dawn
Holdings Limited, a wholly owned subsidiary of the Company
incorporated in Hong Kong, disposed certain interests in associates
(Note 10(a)). The taxable income on such disposals (being the
difference of the consideration and the proportion of investment
costs disposed of) is subject to withholding tax at the rate of 10%.

Best Food Holding Company Limited
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

e S R R ()

For the year ended 31 December 2021
HZE2021F12 A31HILFE

12 Loss for the year

12

The Group’s loss for the year has been arrived at after charging

(crediting):

FREE

AEBzFABRENRGIA):

For the Year ended
31 December
BE12A31ALLEE

2021
RMB’000
TAR®

103,406
39,831
1,404

144,641

Depreciation of right-of-use assets FREEENE
Depreciation of property, plant and equipment % - E LR EITE
Amortization of intangible assets B EE#H
Total depreciation and amortization reE MR
Property rentals WMEM®
— office premises (fixed payments) —WAEWE (B FEMNR)
— restaurants —ZE
— fixed payments —BEEARK
— variable lease payments — A EHEERNK

— COVID-19-related rent concessions
Property management fee

— COVID-19/Eff € B =

MEERE

Total property rentals and other rental related
expenses

MEESREMEERBRX

8

Impairment of goodwill and other intangible
assets (Note 21)

Auditor’s remuneration
— Audit service
— Non-audit services

mEREMEREERE
(FifzE21)

ZBUED B &
— E& IR
— JERAT RS

566,455

2,300
324

2020
RMB’000
TAR®

123,101
42,723
1,365

167,189

334

1,841
2,471

(15,990)

20,988

9,644

2,300
200

HEERERA T
Bf EA S
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
e M B RRME ()

For the year ended 31 December 2021
HZE2021F12A31HLFE

13 Loss per share

13 EREE

Year ended 31 December
BZ12A31BLEE

2021 2020

RMB cents RMB cents

AR D ARED

Basic loss per share (a) f& A E1E (a) (40.52) (8.93)
Diluted loss per share (o) % % 518 (b) (40.52) (8.99)

(a) Basic loss per share

Basic loss per share is calculated by dividing the loss
attributable to equity holders of the Company by the weighted
average number of ordinary shares in issue during the year.

BREXEE

TREABATDEEBRALA
BB EAZBERUENDE
GEL LY EEE TR

(a)

Year ended 31 December
BZ12A31BLEE

2020
Loss attributable to equity holders of FTESREARAEERMAZ
the Company used in calculating basic BERARAERFEEA
loss per share: (RMB'000) 2R (FTARE) (639,639) (140,938)
Weighted average number of ordinary EETETAERME T
shares in issue (thousands) (F 50 1,578,664 1,578,664

Best Food Holding Company Limited
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

For the year ended 31 December 2021
HZE2021F12A31BILEFE

13 Loss per share (Continued)

e B R M R ()

(b) Diluted loss per share

Diluted loss per share is calculated by adjusting the weighted
average number of shares in issue to assume conversion of
all dilutive potential shares. The Company’s dilutive potential
shares comprise shares to be issued under convertible
bonds, share option scheme and share award scheme. In
relation to shares issued under share option schemes, a
calculation is done to determine the number of shares that
could have been acquired at fair value (determined as the
average market share price of the Company’s shares during
the year) based on the monetary value of the subscription
rights attached to outstanding share options. The number of
shares calculated as above is compared with the number of
shares that would have been issued assuming the exercise of

the share options.

The computation of diluted loss per share for the years ended
31 December 2021 and 2020 did not assume the issuance of
any dilutive potential ordinary share since they are antidilutive,
which would decrease loss per share.

14 Dividends

13 SREB @
b) ERFHEERE

BRWEEBERDEBHBE #HIT
Bin niEFIRAE - UBRED
BABMBERBERD - AR AE
ERERNDERRETRKME
7 BB AR B K B {0 B2 B 5t &)
% T #7.2 D - BLARIRIE X
BFEEBRTZEROME AR
AMEREE  UEBEERBARITRE
BREMMNRBE:EBEER
NABEGRARF RN FAF
B mEEE) W REWRE 2K
& AE - LM AFEZBROBE
EERITEBREMAIEETZ
Pefn 8B ETTHLE

i E E E202149F K20204F12 A
AL FEzSRWEEERE
AR mEETEBRRAEERW
BREMRLERER M E
BRETIMNAIHEBEL R
% o

14 R 2

The Board resolved not to declare any dividend for the year ended

31 December 2021 (2020: nil).

EEGRRTHEZ2021F 12831 8
IFFETIREMARRE (20204 : ) -
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
e S R R ()

For the year ended 31 December 2021
BE2021F12A31 B IEFE

15 Directors’ and chief executive’s 15 EERTHERZMHNE
emoluments
Directors’ and chief executive’s remuneration for the year, disclosed WiEERAZ ETHRAEDTIER - F
pursuant to the applicable Listing Rule and Companies Ordinance, NEERTHRAE 2 MeEENT :
is as follows:
2021 20214

Contributions
relating to
social insurance,
housing fund and Other
Salaries Bonus retirement scheme Benefit

HigRk .
FEAEER
EheiE
e 2 A ERzHR HttEA &t
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000  RMB’000 RMB’000
TAR® TAR%Y® TAR% TAR® TAR%¥® TAR%
Executive directors HITEE
Zhao John Huan (Chairman) # % & (£ &)
Wang Xiaolong T
(Chief Executive) TH#E#)
Jing Shen R
Independent BUIHTEE
non-executive directors
Heng Victor Ja Wei T %
Tsang Hin Man Terrence () & % ()
Leung Kwai Kel REXE
Lo Wei-Ren (il BUEEC()
Total B
@ Best Food Holding Company Limited
Annual Report 2021
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
a3 AR B ()

For the year ended 31 December 2021
HZE2021F12A31HILFE

15 Directors’ and chief executive’s 156 EERTHEAZM S @
emoluments (Continued)
2020 2020 F
Contributions

relating to
social insurance,
housing fund and Other

Fees Salaries Bonus  retirement scheme Benefit Total
B eRE -
FERESR
RIKEEE
ik o TE4L BREzHR HtEH CE
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000  RMB’'000  RMB’000
FTARE TARE TARE TARE TAR®E TARE
Executive directors HITEE
Zhao John Huan (Chairman) # < & (£ &) — — — _ _ _
Wang Xiaolong ThEE
(Chief Executive) (T8 48%) - 1,541 - 87 7,189 8,817
Jing Shen 218 - 1,200 - 87 2,529 3,816
Independent BUINTEE
non-executive directors
Heng Victor Ja Wei e 143 — — — - 143
Tsang Hin Man Terrence BX 143 - - - - 143
Leung Kwai Kei 2& 143 - - - - 143
Total BE 429 2,741 - 174 9,718 13,062
Notes: MiaE
(0] Mr. Tsang Hin Man Terrence resigned as independent non-executive directors [0) o=y e A 2021 4 B 27 B BHE B S 3E
on 27 April 2021. WITESE -
(ii) Mr. Lo Wei-Ren was appointed as independent non-executive directors on 27 (ii) B EERNIF4R2IBEZTEABE
April 2021. UEBITES -

BREERERLT
“ECZ-FFR @
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

e MR R MR (&)

For the year ended 31 December 2021
HZE2021F12A31HLFE

15

16

Directors’ and chief executive’s
emoluments (Continued)

The executive directors’ and independent non-executive directors’
emoluments shown above were paid for their services in connection
with the management of the affairs of the Company and the Group
and for their services as directors of the Company respectively.

The bonus paid to the directors are fixed in amount.

For the years ended 31 December 2021 and 2020, no emoluments
were paid by the Group to the directors or the five highest paid
individuals as an inducement to join or upon joining the Group or as
a compensation for a loss of office. No directors waived any
emoluments during these years.

Employees benefit expenses

156 EERTHRAZME @

EXFRZATESTRBIIFATE
EME ORI BEABEEEARF
RAREEEHARBEEETARAE
FZRB ML

MEEXNZEARBEESHE -

H = 2021F N2020F12 8318 It F
E AEBYERESI AL &S H
MATEZREMMESERMAEREE
N AR B 2 SBE) S BB
B BEEERNZEFENRERM

16 EEE A X

Year ended 31 December
BZ12A31BLEE

TERFE
BARAE IR

Wages and salaries
Contributions to retirement benefits schemes
Share-based compensation expenses
(Note 34)
Staff benefit and welfare

(Pt 5£34)
BERA M@

PARSC £ 70 25 T8 0 385 B A 2

2021 2020
RMB’000 RMB’000
TAR® TAR®

175,687 157,203
22,605 17,312
3,374 12,247
16,278 13,481
217,944 200,243

For the Group’s defined contribution plan, no forfeited contributions
are available to reduce the contribution payable by the Group in the
future years.

Best Food Holding Company Limited
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

For the year ended 31 December 2021
HZE2021F12A31HLFE

e MR MR (&)

16 Employees benefit expenses (Continued) 16

Two (2020: Two) of the five individuals with the highest emoluments in
the Group were directors of the Company whose emoluments are
included in Note 15 above. The aggregate emoluments of the
remaining three (2020: three) highest paid individuals, were as follows:

EEEFBEXZ @

REB R R &= A LH @A (2020
F MB)BARAES HFEMEH
R EXH 15 88T = 4 (20206 « =
Z)EEFNALTZEMESMT

Year ended 31 December
BE12A31ALEE

Salaries and other benefits FekEMER
Share-based compensation expenses
Contributions to retirement benefits schemes

Other benefits

BARAE IR
H At 48 F

PARS 4 7 25 T8 00 385 B A 2

2021 2020
RMB’000 RMB’000
TAR® TARE

3,294 3,912
- 2,529
175 160
300 —
3,769 6,601

Discretionary bonus was determined with reference to the Group’s
operating results, individual performance and comparable market
statistics. During the year ended 31 December 2021, no discretionary
bonus was paid by the Group to the highest paid employees (2020: nil).

During the year ended 31 December 2021, no remuneration was
paid by the Group to the highest paid employees as an inducement
to join or upon joining the Group or as compensation for loss of
office.

The emoluments were within the following band:

BB R EREBERKEELS -
AARIBRAIELR WSS EIEMm
EETE o B E2021F12A31B IEFE -

7N B A B e 3 0 E B AT
B IE 4L (2020 € - &) -

HZE2021F12A31B ILFE > K& H
WERAES T WEEB I EMMEE
BIMARNEE S NALRE B 2 EE
NERBBLEE -

e FTIEE :

Year ended 31 December
BE12A31ALFEE

Not exceeding HK$1,000,000

HK$1,500,001 to HK$2,000,000
HK$2,000,001 to HK$4,000,000
HK$4,000,001 to HK$4,500,000

T~ 48 1,000,0007% 7T

1,500,001 7% 7t 2 2,000,000 7T
2,000,001 7% 7T & 4,000,000 7T
4,000,001 7% 7T & 4,500,000 7T

2021 2020
Number of Number of
employees employees

EEHE EE#HA
.

y

.

3
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
i E M R ()

For the year ended 31 December 2021
BHZE2021F12A31HILFE

17 Property, plant and equipment 17 V¥ BERRE
Furniture
Plantand  fixtures and Motor Leasehold  Construction
Machinery equipment Vehicles Buildings  improvements in progress Total
BER G- %8
e e HE BF HESR EgIi CH
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
FTARE FTARE FTARE FTARE TARE TARE TARE
Year ended B Z2020%F12R31H
31 December 2020 LEE
Opening net book FNEREFE
amount 3,829 31,344 597 24,145 91,489 426 151,830
Additions NE 1,035 5,540 106 . 18,215 8,273 33,168
Disposals deE (128) (1,429) (59) - (7,139) - (8,755)
Transfer upon completion 52 % B & & - - - 327 5,213 (5,540) -
Depreciation charge mESH (904) (8,532) (102) (860) (32,325) - (42,723)
Impairment charge AEXE(MEE7)
(Note 7) (146) (1,681) 7 — (6,854) - (8,688)
Closing net book FRREFE
amount 3,686 25,242 534 23,612 68,599 3,159 124,832
At 31 December 2020 420205 12H31H
Cost AR 33,631 112,698 10,123 109,809 268,557 3,159 537,977
Accumulated depreciation 2 17 & & Jii &
and impairment (29,945) (87,456) (9,589) (86,197) (199,958) - (413,145)
Net Book Amount BREFE 3,686 25,242 534 23,612 68,599 3,159 124,832

Best Food Holding Company Limited
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
e S R R ()

For the year ended 31 December 2021
BE2021F12A31 A IEFE

17 Property, plant and equipment (Continued) 17 ¥ -BERZRHE@®

Furniture

Plantand fixtures and Motor Leasehold Construction
Machinery  equipment Vehicles Buildings improvements in progress Total
BER Hi %8
B K& RE - ES HEYR ERIR CH
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
TARM TARM TARM TARM TARY TARY TARY

Year ended HZ2021F12831H
31 December 2021 LEE
Opening net book FNEEFE

amount 25,242 68,599 3,159 124,832
Additions NE 7,342 - 14,378 10,290 34,885
Disposals & (1,612) - (4,567) - (6,783)
Transfer upon completion 52 bk 5 & & - 1,746 10,086 (11,832) -
Depreciation charge WESH(HE12)

(Note 12) (894) (7,786) (1,027) (30,046) (39,831)
Impairment charge HEZ S (M)

(Note 7) (1,163) (2,143) (10,602) (13,908)

Closing net book ERREFE

amount

At 31 December 2021 74202112531 H

Cost AR 35,650 118,428 10,375 111,555 288,454 566,079
Accumulated depreciation 2 17 & R i &
and impairment (32,002) (97,385) (9,667) (87,224) (240,606) (466,884)

Net Book Amount REFE 3,648 21,043 (] 24,331 47,848 99,195

(8) The carrying value of the Group’s property interests () AEEVEEZREEIEET
comprises buildings on land under medium-term land use WAz AT A
rights in the PRC. BT -

(b) As at 31 December 2021, buildings with net book value of (o) M2021F12H318 BRME F A
RMB22,733,000 (2020: RMB23,612,000) were pledged as #322,733,0007C A K #5 (2020 4 :
securities for the Group’s borrowings. 23,612,0007t A R#) 2 EFEE

RASEERZERm -

BRERZERERAR
“ECZ-FFR
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

For the year ended 31 December 2021
HZE2021F12A31BILFE

18 Leases

(i) Amounts recognised in the balance sheet

The balance sheet shows the following amounts relating to

leases:

e S R R ()

18 #HE&E
) REEEBRABERAZ
ok

BERBRZINTHBEELR
ZER

31 December 31 December
2021 2020

20214 2020
12831H 12 431 H
RMB’000 RMB’000
FAR%E FARE

Right-of-use assets FRHEEE
Properties M 274,017 304,244
31 December 31 December
2021 2020
2021 2020 FF
12H31H 12H31H
RMB’000 RMB’000
SN FARE

Lease liabilities HEasE

Current i 102,771
Non-current JEmE 213,394
316,165

Additions to the right-of-use assets during the 2021 financial
year were RMB101,208,000 (2020: RMB111,806,000).

Best Food Holding Company Limited
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
a3 AR B ()

For the year ended 31 December 2021
HZE2021F12A31HLFE

18 Leases (Continued)

18 HE @)

(i) Amounts recognised in the statement of (i) R2ERERABRZ
comprehensive income o
For the year ended
31 December
BZE12A31BLEE
2021 2020
RMB’000 RMB’000
TARY FARY
Depreciation charge of FRAEEEZEXH
right-of-use assets
Properties L3 103,406 123,101
Interest expense (included in finance FMERIZGIAMKER)
expenses) 16,670
Expense relating to short-term leases RHEEREER 2,175
Expense relating to variable lease Tt AEHEBBEZAAEHEERN
payments not included in lease HEEE R
liabilities 2,471
Negative variable lease payments REWEF TR BEHEERSE
recognised in respect of COVID-19- ERANAFHHRENK
Related rent concession received (15,990)
The total cash outflow for leases in 2021 was RMB131,628,000 R21IFHERS R BAEA
(2020: RMB134,458,000). 131,628,000 A R # (20204 :
134,458,0007C A R #) °
(iii) The Group’s leasing activities and how (i) FEBE2HEZTBRHA

these are accounted for

The Group leases various offices, warehouses and
restaurants. Rental contracts are typically made for fixed
periods of 2 years to 10 years.

Lease terms are negotiated on an individual basis and contain
a wide range of different terms and conditions. The lease
agreements do not impose any covenants other than the
security interests in the leased assets that are held by the
lessor. Leased assets may not be used as security for
borrowing purposes.

ABRAFR
rEBHEZEARAE BER
%Eﬁefﬂ%é%’]@%lmﬁ,ﬁﬁz
FEE104F -

HEGRDRENEEBHELE
B2 2 TR R G B
HMAFMBHEEEES 2 KM%
m b - TS AR i AN AE (] R
wmoMEBETSRIEERZE
e

EREERARAT
—E-—FEH
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

For the year ended 31 December 2021
HZE2021F12A31HLFE

18 Leases (Continued)

e B R AR MR ()

18 & @)

(iv) Variable lease payments

Some property leases contain variable payment terms that
are linked to sales generated from a restaurant. For individual
restaurants, up to 100% of lease payments are on the basis
of variable payment terms with percentages ranging from 6%
to 23% of sales. Variable payment terms are used for a
variety of reasons, including minimising the fixed costs base
for newly established restaurants. Variable lease payments
that depend on sales are recognised in profit or loss in the
period in which the condition that triggers those payments
occurs.

A 10% increase in sales across all restaurants in the Group
with such variable lease contracts would increase total lease
payments for the year ended 31 December 2021 by
approximately RMB928,000.

19 Inventories

(iv) T2EE N

HomEHeEssEEEHER
85 7 AT A FAE SR o whE BB R
mE ERAENRER2EE
&S ] E100% © B 4 & 5
BA N F6%ZE23% ° A & 5%
BRERSEREMER 815
BHREERBZEEXN AR ER
K-S THEEEMEcEHE
NREBEMNZTERELRERE
BB ER -

HZE2021F12A31 B IEFE - i
AEETEZENEHESHZ
FTEEBEEREM0%  HE
5 3R 48 B8 15 1 h £9928,000 7T A
R -

19 #&

As at 31 December
MW12A31H
2021 2020
RMB’000 RMB’000
TAR® TFARE

Raw materials B
Finished goods BIRK o

22,093 18,808
13,142 13,530

35,235 32,338

Best Food Holding Company Limited
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
e B RRME ()

For the year ended 31 December 2021
HZE2021F12 A1 B ILFE

20 Investments in associates

20 BEQNTRE

At 1 January ®1A1H8

Additions NE

Share of profit/(loss) for the year FEAEF RE F,(518)

Disposal k=

Increase in share of net assets of associates — #S& & E(LBE L QN A& E F5
after dilutions (Note 10(b)) #2n (F 5 10(b))

Impairment HAE

Currency translation differences BERBREER

At 31 December MW12A31H

As at 31 December

MW12A31H
2021 2020
RMB’000 RMB’000
FTARY FAR®
220,026 273,054
18,615 4,481
1,565 (14,559)
(8,149) —
20,190 -
(2,871) (24,625)
(8,838) (18,325)
240,538 220,026
ERERERA

“ECZ-FFR
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
e M B RRME ()

For the year ended 31 December 2021
HZE2021F12A31HLFE

20 Investments in associates (Continued) 20 BME RN TIRE @)
Details of the Group’s associates as at 31 December 2021 are as AEFBE QRN 2021F12 4318 2
follows: EI-FUNNE
Place of
business/country Measurement
Name of entity of incorporation % of ownership interest method
EREB A B R AR L Bl R BREDL FFEAR
2020
Qidiantongzhou Restaurant Management (Beijing) Co., The PRC 19.92% 19.92% Equity
Ltd. (“Qidiantongzhou”) (Note 1)
AHRAZRERGER)BRARTHTHRAA]D)  HE =
(MFEE1)
Yujian Xiaomian (Note 1) The PRC 19.50% Equity
B R/ (T EET) I ¥ m A
Shenzhen Love’s Kitchen Internet The PRC 21.43% 21.43% Equity
and Technology Limited Company
FYAFEFABREBRAA I =
Jiezhi Restaurant Management Limited The PRC 20.00% 20.00% Equity
RNTREEREERRRQF I =
Yuepin Restaurant Management Limited (“Yuepin”) The PRC 20.00% Equity
FYTHMERERERAA (TR H B =
Tianshuilai The PRC 25.03% 26.26% Equity
RIKIE H =
Seesaw The PRC 21.43% 25.00% Equity
sy & =
Xinyi Technology (Beijing) Company Limited The PRC 42.86% Equity
SR GER)BR A A I =
Shenzhen SpicyFoook Food Chain Service The PRC 25.00% Equity
Co., Ltd. (“SpicyFoook”)
RYITBRE T EREHRBEBER A A I =
(TitERE =)
Shenzhen Jiabaomimian Company Limited The PRC — Equity
(“Jiabaomimian”) (Note1)
AU NE KRR AR AR ([INEKME]) B B =
(MFEE1)

Best Food Holding Company Limited
Annual Report 2021
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

e B R M R ()

For the year ended 31 December 2021

o Ay
Bz

20

2021 F12A31 B ILFE

Investments in associates (Continued)

Note 1: Although the Group’s shareholding in Qidiantongzhou, Yujian Xiaomian and
Jiabaomimian is less than 20%, the Group is able to exercise significant
influence over Qidiantongzhou, Yujian Xiaomian and Jiabaomimian, because
it has the power to appoint director to the board of directors of the investees
under the Articles of Association of the investees.

The Group determines whether interests in the investments
accounted for using the equity method are impaired by regularly
reviewing whether there are any indications of impairment in
accordance with relevant accounting standards.

When impairment indicators of the investments accounted for using
the equity method were identified, management determined the
recoverable amounts, which was the higher of its fair value less
costs of disposals and its value in use. When value in use
calculations were undertaken, management estimated the present
value of estimated future cash flows expected to arise from their
businesses.

Where the recoverable amount was determined with reference to
the value in use assessment result, the estimated cash flows used
in the assessments were based on assumptions, such as pre-tax
discount rates, long-term growth rates, forecasted revenue, gross
margin and working capital tumnover rates, with reference to the
business plans and prevailing market conditions.

Based on the assessment results, the Company recognised an
impairment loss of RMB2,871,000 for the investment in an
associate for the year ended 31 December 2021 (2020:
RMB24,625,000).

20 BiE QN TRE @)

it BEAKRBRFHAA BE/NAERMN
FEORMFF R D 1R 20% - AN B A] 4 & B
AA - BRPDERMERAITEERY
LN DTHRRBEZREASRERER
WA AEEERZEEEEG2ES -

AEBRBARB S ER - E @
KRGS EAZEZRERBFERE
Bx- - NETHESZEME-

HEBMBIRBEDREZZEZREZHR
EBENR BEEENEAABERLE
RABEREBEZREEET I RE
TR -NAEEREER EHER
AFEEBERELAZARRERER
8-

AREeEI2ECAEEFGER
MEE M EMAGTRESRER
T2 EEGERIRTHISERME
HZR®K PIMBEHRATFTAE . K8
BEER FAAKRA  EFNXEZEEER
TAEEX-

BIE R 4 R & 2202112 A 31
BIEFE AR —MBEQaER
& FE782,871,0007C A R B 5 (B & 18
(20204 : 24,625,0007C A R #E) -

BRERBRAF
—E_—FFH
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
e S R R ()

For the year ended 31 December 2021
BE2021F12A31 B IEFE

20 Investments in associates (Continued) 20 BtE N FIRE @)

(@) Tne following table illustrates the summarised financial (@) T3 TRFERMA - BRIOER
information of Qidiantongzhou, Yujian Xiaomian, and Yuepin MR(EEHAEEMEBEXN)
that are individually material to the Group: M BEEREE

Qidiantongzhou Yujian Xiaomian Yuepin
TEHERA BE/NE &

2021 2020 2021 2020
GUUEIOE RMB'000 |30 H000E RMB'000 |30 {0 RMB'000
TAR® RN TART RWNGE TART RN

Current assets MEBEE 61,212 51,770 | Ll el 58,254 61,416 40,022
Non-current assets kRBEE Lrird 195205 | EEGES 101,506 77,899 72,101
Current liabilities MEBE Cliehkd (35,197) | Easll (26,651) | kil (21,439)
Non-current liabilities *rRBEE ikl (45,606) |Gkl (27,083) |l (16,650)

el 166,262 | ERcee 106,076 82,803 74,034

Net assets EESR
Revenue A R 132,652 | clsikil 192,013 | kil 132,296
Profit/(loss) for the year 4 3% #,/ (&5 18) Seel o (21,809) (961) 966 10,631 1,337

Total comprehensive 2EKE(BE)
income/(loss) BE SlellE (21,809) (961)

@ Best Food Holding Company Limited
Annual Report 2021
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

e S R R ()

For the year ended 31 December 2021
BE2021F12A31 A IEFE

20 Investments in associates (Continued) 20

(a) (Continued)
Reconciliation of the above summarised financial information

to the carrying amount of the interest in associate recognised
in the consolidated financial statements:

Qidiantongzhou

TEEA

2021
RMB’000
TAR®

2020
RMB’000
TAR®E 55

Net assets of BERNA 2 EE
the associates FE
Proportion of the Group’s 7 5= [B 7 B &

gl 166,262 |

direct ownership NAZEE

interests in the B LA

associates 19.92% 19.92% 1
Net assets of interestin 7K ;’% ] FE (Bt 2

associate attributable to A &5 2

the Group BEFR 33,226 31,457
Goodwill RS 20,176 20,176
Effect on foreign currency SN E=%E 7 2

difference (2,889) (254)

R E N
NAERZ
REE

Carrying amount of the
Group’s interest in the

associate 51,379

Yujian Xiaomian

RMB’000

BENAIREm
(@ @

J:ﬁllﬁﬂ%ﬁﬂfrﬁiﬁ =
HRANBANRBERTERZE
HE ¥R

Yuepin

Hm
2021
RMB’000
TAR®

BRNE
2021 2020
RMB’000

TAR®

2020
RMB’000

ARH TAR®

celre 106,076

L 19.50% | A 20.00%
< ure 20,685 14,807

9,571 9,571 10,600
el (2,042) 2,383

28,214 27,790

BRERZERERAR

—E-_FER

®
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
e M B RRME ()

For the year ended 31 December 2021
HZE2021F12A31HLFE

20 Investments in associates (Continued) 20 BtE N FIRE @)
(b) Individually immaterial associates b) EBXFRERZHE LT
In addition to the interests in associates disclosed above, the B EXATIERBENR 2R
Group also has interests in a number of individually immaterial Gh s REB IR E FHREREA
associates that are accounted for using the equity method. REESEBIYITEAZEZEANFE
B o

As at 31 December
M12A31H
2021 2020
RMB’000 RMB’000
TARY TFARE

Aggregate carrying amount of individually 23837 8 A 2 B & A 72

immaterial associates REARE 122,926 112,643
Aggregate amounts of the Group’s FERAEE AT :
share of:
Share of loss of associates JE 1 B & A RS 18 (1,438) (10,912)
Total comprehensive loss ZHEEBE (1,438) (10,912)
@ Best Food Holding Company Limited
Annual Report 2021
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
a3 AR B ()

For the year ended 31 December 2021
HZE2021F12A31BILEFE

21 Goodwill and intangible assets

21 HEREFREE

Computer
Goodwill software Trademark Total
BE EREH [ A&t
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
FARME FARM FARM FARE
At 1 January 2020 R2020F1H1H
Cost B 7 580,931 11,441 499,346 1,091,718
Accumulated amortisation and BEHEHEIRE
impairment — (3,319 — (3,319
Net book amount BREEE 580,931 8,122 499,346 1,088,399
Year ended 31 December 2020 # Z£2020F12H31H
ILFEE
Opening net book amount FYERmFE 580,931 8,122 499,346 1,088,399
Additions INE — 35 — 35
Disposal HE - (375) - (375)
Amortisation charge BT — (1,365) - (1,365)
Closing net book amount EREEFE 580,931 6,417 499,346 1,086,694
At 31 December 2020 202012831 H
Cost &N 580,931 11,101 499,346 1,091,378
Accumulated amortisation and BRI EERRE
impairment — (4,684) — (4,684)
Net book amount REFE 580,931 6,417 499,346 1,086,694
Year ended 31 December 2021 #Z2021F12H831H
ILEE
Opening net book amount FYERMFE 580,931 6,417 499,346 1,086,694
Additions NE — 1,318 — 1,318
Disposal HE - (153) - (153)
Amortisation charge BT — (1,404) — (1,404)
Impairment WA (535,436) - (31,019 (566,455)
Closing net book amount FEREREEZRE 45,495 6,178 468,327 520,000
At 31 December 2021 R2021F12H31H
Cost [N 580,931 12,266 499,346 1,092,543
Accumulated amortisation and BEHEHEIRE
impairment (535,436) (6,088) (31,019) (572,543)
Net book amount BREEE 45,495 6,178 468,327 520,000
BRERBRAF

—E_—FFH
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
i E M R ()

For the year ended 31 December 2021
HZE2021F12A31BIEFE

21 Goodwill and intangible assets (continued)

(a)

(b)

Useful life of intangible assets

Computer software is amortised on a straight-line basis over
the expected useful life of 5 years.

The trademarks have a legal life of 10 years and is renewable
every 10 years at minimal cost. The directors of the Company
are of the opinion that the Group would renew the trademark
continuously and has the ability to do so. Various studies
including product life cycle studies, market, competitive and
environmental trends and brand extension opportunities have
been performed by management of the Group, which support
that the trademarks have no foreseeable limit to the period
over which the trademarked products are expected to
generate net cash flows for the Group.

As a result, the trademarks are considered by the
management of the Group as having an indefinite useful life.
The trademarks will not be amortised until the useful life is
determined to be finite. Instead they will be tested for
impairment annually and whenever there is an indication that
they may be impaired.

Impairment tests for goodwill and
trademarks

For the purposes of impairment testing, goodwill and
trademarks with indefinite useful life have been allocated to
the CGUs of the relevant group of restaurants, which
comprise: (1) Beijing HHG Restaurant Management Co., Ltd.
(“HHG”) and its subsidiaries (the “HHG Group”); and (2)
Beijing Xinladao Catering Management Ltd. (“Xinladao”) and
its subsidiaries (the “Xinladao Group”).

As at 31 December 2021, management has conducted
impairment review on the goodwill and trademarks with
indefinite useful life of the HHG Group and the Xinladao
Group in accordance with HKAS 36 “Impairment of assets”,
based on the updated forecasts and assumptions approved
by management.

Due to the continuous impact on macroeconomic conditions
brought by the outbreak of COVID-19, the operating results
of the HHG Group and the Xinladao Group for the year ended
31 December 2021 were below the management’s previous
forecasts. As a result, management’s forecasts and
assumptions adopted for the forecast period commencing
from 2022 have taken into consideration the uncertainty as
COVID-19 continues to evolve in the PRC where the HHG
Group and the Xinladao Group operate.

Best Food Holding Company Limited

Annual Report 2021

21 HFEREFEE @

(a)

(b)

BEVEEAEAFH
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
a3 AR B ()

For the year ended 31 December 2021
HZE2021F12A31HLFE

21 Goodwill and intangible assets (Continued)

(b) Impairment tests for goodwill and
trademarks (Continued)

(i)

Impairment assessment for the HHG Group
For the HHG Group, the recoverable amount of the
CGUs has been determined based on a value-in-use
calculation. The calculation uses cash flow projections
based on financial forecast approved by management
covering a five-year period.

Management engaged an independent external valuer
to assist in performing the impairment assessments.
Based on management’s calculation, the recoverable
amount of the HHG Group as at 31 December 2021
amounted to approximately RMB500 million, which was
18% higher than its carrying amount. Key assumptions
used to determine the CGUs’ value-in-use were as
follows:

Revenue
(% compound growth rate)
WAEEERERDL)

Gross margins

EME

Long-term growth rate
(perpetual growth rate)
REE R X

Gk BIE R %K)

Pre-tax discount rates
B A AT 47 IR =

Value assigned to key
assumption
PTEREFEREZEE
2020

21 BENEFEEE @
(b) BERBERERNR @

() MeBEEREFE
BRAMEAEEMNES  REE
EEA 2 A RESETR
BEAEENEMET - %
SHE IR B E B E IR R
ERFHEZ N BENR
RSB RAELT -

EEECEBB LM
BN B EITRER S - 1R
BEEECTHE MEaE
B R2021 512 A31H 2 7]
U [e] 4 %8 49 500 & & 7T A
R S HEEBMES18% -
ETHeELEBEMCFER
BEEMEAZETERED
T

Approach to determining key assumption
TEBRREESE

12.1%

48.5%

3%

16.3%

Forecasted revenue growth rates and gross
margins were determined based on past
performance and the management’s
expectations for the market development.

FARABREREMEDENBERR
RERBEBHMSERBEREL -

Estimated based on the relevant industry
growth forecasts and does not exceed the
average long-term growth rate for the
relevant industry.

ERMBEETEERBAMGGSELE  BXF
BERBETE s PHRBERE -

Reflect specific risks relating to the relevant
segment and the country in which the HHG
Group operates.

RBREBAHEESBLENEAEBEEME
EAS NN

BEERERA
SEFER
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
i E M R ()

For the year ended 31 December 2021
HZE2021F12A31BIEFE

21 Goodwill and intangible assets (continued)

(b) Impairment tests for goodwill and

trademarks (Continued)

(i)

Impairment assessment for the HHG Group
(Continued)

If the compound revenue growth rates used in the
value-in-use calculation for the HHG Group had been
5.3% lower than management’s estimates at 31
December 2021 (7.4% instead of 12.7%), the value-in-
use of the HHG Group would approximate its carrying
amount.

If the gross margins used in the value-in-use calculation
for the HHG Group had been 1.4% lower than
management’s estimates at 31 December 2021 (44.4%
instead of 45.8%), the value-in-use of the HHG Group
would approximate its carrying amount.

If the pre-tax discount rate applied to the cash flow
projections of the HHG Group had been 2.8% higher
than management’s estimates (18.7% instead of
15.9%), the value-in-use of the HHG Group would
approximate its carrying amount.

Management believes that any reasonably possible
change in any of these assumptions would not cause
the carrying amounts of the CGUs to exceed their
recoverable amounts.

Based on above assessment, management of the
Company are of the view that there is no impairment of
goodwill and intangible assets with indefinite useful life
for the HHG Group as at 31 December 2021.

Impairment assessment for the Xinladao
Group

For the Xinladao Group, management has determined
the recoverable amount of the CGUs by assessing the
fair value less cost of disposal (“FVLCOD”) of the
underlying assets, which is higher than the value-in-use
of the Xinladao Group as at 31 December 2021. The
valuation is considered to be level 3 in the fair value
hierarchy due to unobservable inputs used in the
valuation.

Best Food Holding Company Limited
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(b) BEREERENR @

MEAKEERETML
=)

EEMAEAEBE
BEEZEAEBRAEER
I [8 22021 F 12 A 31
HstE 2 5.3% (B17.4%
127%) e EE
FHETEH%EEEEEETE

—~
po
IO

N3 D R
ﬁﬁ@#Nm}imE

>t
jiii]

HMEBETEMEAEBRE
HEBZENERERE
R2021F12 A31H 2 1&
5 1.4% (B 44.4% T 3E
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

e B R M R ()

For the year ended 31 December 2021
HZE2021F12A31BILEFE

21 Goodwill and intangible assets (Continued) 21 HEREFREEE @
(b) Impairment tests for goodwill and (b) BERBERENA @

trademarks (Continued)

(i) Impairment assessment for the Xinladao
Group (Continued)
Management engaged an independent external valuer
to assist in performing the impairment assessments.
The approach and key assumptions used to determine
the CGUs’ FVLCOD as at 31 December 2021 were as

(i) FEEEBEBEFTM
(#8)
EEEBCEEBLIINBGE
BB BEITREFE - R
202112 HA31H B F R
CELEBENZARBER

follows: HEKRAMEATERE
Z|MBWOT -
Value assigned to key
Valuation Unobservable assumption as at 31 Approach to determining
Technique inputs December 2021* key assumption
FAEEN M2021512831H
B £ 1l A BE PTEETEBREZEE TEBRREEL E
Market approach Enterprise value/ 1.26 Represents the median of the
Mm% % sales multiple enterprise value/sales multiples of
(times) selected comparable public
TEEEHER companies (each of which is
FEE(E) engaged in the catering business
and listed on the Stock Exchange)
as at 31 December 2021.
B R2021F 12 A31H « & WiE ]
BB LITAR(ZEREER
EBUWARBZF LM 2% E
B/ HEREEPLE-
Discount for lack of 25% Quantified by the Black-Scholes
marketability option pricing model which is one
(“DLOM”) of the methods commonly used in
[ i i estimating DLOM.
iz ([ = M5 RRmHE - R R EER

BT E])

Control premium 10%
% ) 4 5 (B

Cost of disposal 1%
(% of fair value)

HEXRR(RAE
BEAEDL)

BETELR ZHERMEFRZ
MERBEFTBZERAELZ

Estimated based on the median of the
control premium adopted for
comparable transactions.

BEAELERRZSHERA 25 #
B2 RALBUEET o

Estimated based on the Company’s
experience with disposal of assets
and on industry benchmarks.

BEARAHEEE KB RIT
R

BRERBRAF
—E_—FFH
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
i E M R ()

For the year ended 31 December 2021
HZE2021F12A31HLFE

21 Goodwill and intangible assets (continued)

(b) Impairment tests for goodwill and
trademarks (Continued)

21 BEREFEE®@W
(b) BEREBERERNR @

()

Impairment assessment for the Xinladao

Gro

up (Continued)

As at 31 December 2020, the recoverable amount of the
Xinladao Group had been determined based on value-in-use
calculation, which was 16% higher than the carrying value.
Therefore, no assessment of FVLCOD was performed as at 31
December 2020.

As at 31 December 2021 and 2020, the value-in-use
calculations of the Xinladao Group used cash flow projections
based on financial forecast approved by management covering
a seven-year period (from year 2022 to 2028) and an eight-year
period (from year 2021 to 2028) respectively. The length of
forecast period is determined to be more than five years
because during the acquisition of the Xinladao Group in 2018,
management had prepared a ten-years financial budget from
2019 to 2028 after performing due diligence work and
considering various factors including industry characteristics of
the chained hotpot restaurants, development stage of the
Xinladao Group, predictability of business plan and operating
scale, net operating cashflow forecasted versus funding needs
for business expansions, etc. Therefore, during the impairment
tests after the acquisition, management determined it is
appropriate to keep the same forecast period covered by the
original financial budget and update the forecast until 2028,
after which a stable perpetual growth rate is adopted. The
value-in-use determined and the key assumptions used in the
calculations were as follows:

(i) ¥ HEEEREFE

(%)

*

The Xinladao Group HmiEs

Best Food Holding Company Limited
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R20204 12 4318 » #igma
SEEZ AW E S EREE
AEGAEmMEE  REK
E{E®16% ° B 1t + #2020
F12A B EETERMD
f BE R SR AT -

720214 2020912 A31H »
FRERBE2FEAEBENE
DIREBEEREIED RIRE
+ F 5 (2022 F = 2028
FIRNFEHB(H2021ZF
20284 ) Z BF 15 T R R A IR
& ETERET o TEAIHI M
CREEERBEBAAF It
Th /R 2018 6 g B8 3 &
EBEEHE TEEORT
KEBRBEREERSER
= 1% 4 220194 F20284F
ZTFUBRBEER  25RA
EREEHARERTEZ
BFE MRBEEECEER
B EBrraElREER/EZ
AITEAIE  EAIKEBR R
BFHEBREB CESS
K& B PR R ELT
WENHE  TREEET -
HHERVBEERMEE
MR 2 TR HA RS I 5 578
Al 22028 F Bl & - KK
AEEKBERER - ZEst

HfETE 2 EBEERMEK
AZEE2BRIBOT :
Value-in-use
EREE
2021 2020
RMB’000 RMB’000
FARY FARYE
245,606 1,279,414



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

For the year ended 31 December 2021
HZE2021F12A31HLFE

21 Goodwill and intangible assets (continued)

(b) Impairment tests for goodwill and
trademarks (Continued)

(i) Impairment assessment for the Xinladao
Group (Continued)

*

(Continued)

Value assigned to key
assumption

AEEXTEBRRZEE
2021 2020

Revenue growth rate

WA R &

Gross margins

EME

Long-term growth rate
(perpetual growth rate)
REERE

kB RR)

Pre-tax discount rates

B B AT 4T R K

e S R R ()

21 HFEREFEE @

(b) BERBHEZERENR @

(i) 3 3R 8 & B R E & S
(#8)

* (%)

Approach to determining key assumption
TEBRREENE

-10%-43% 3%-56%
(for the (for the
seven-year eight-year
period from period from
clppliaeapi s 2021 to 2028)
-10%£43% 3%%E56%
(H2022F2  ME:RAESS
2028575 IE 2 Pk Tl
tFHE) NEHAR)

61%-65% 61%-65%
61%ZE65% 61%%E65%

3% 3%

15.6%

Forecasted revenue growth rates and gross margins were
determined based on past performance and the
management’s expectations for the market
development.

FRAMARRERENEDERNBERAREEE
HMISHEEHEL -

Estimated based on the relevant industry growth forecasts
and does not exceed the average long-term growth
rate for the relevant industry.

EREBETERRBAMGSESE BN @EEET
RZFHRHBER -

Reflect specific risks relating to the relevant segment and
the country in which the Xinladao Group operates.

KREMEEBSBENAEEMRERCERZE
E BB o

EREERARAT
—E-—FEH

®
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
i E M R ()

For the year ended 31 December 2021
(Z2021F12A31 B ILFE

21 Goodwill and intangible assets (continued)

(b) Impairment tests for goodwill and
trademarks (Continued)

(i) Impairment assessment for the Xinladao
Group (Continued)
Based on the FVLCOD determined, which amounted to
RMB283 million and was higher than the respective
value-in-use of RMB246 million, management’s
impairment assessment as at 31 December 2021 is
analysed as follows:

21 BENEFEE @
(b) BERBERENR @

(i) FrRBEBEBEHET M
(1)
BIBEFMETZ AR EBER
H &k AR (BN283F & T A
R & IEEEF A EE246
BETARES) BEE
R2021 12 A31 8 Z @ &

AEES AT
31 December
2021
20214
12A31H
RMB’000
FAR®
Goodwill (attributable to the 87% parent’s interest) BE(ER R RI87T% L) 535,436
Unrecognised non-controlling interest in goodwill (Note 1) 7k i 32 27 7 22 JE 128 % #E 25
(PfFsE1) 80,008
Total goodwill EESEGE 615,444
Carrying amount of identifiable net assets AHEAFEERAE 314,019
Notionally adjusted carrying amount KERAREKREE 929,463
Less: recoverable amount (being the FVLCOD) B A e e E (B A R EER
HERAR) (283,000)
Impairment loss REEIE 646,463

@ Best Food Holding Company Limited
Annual Report 2021



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
a3 AR B ()

For the year ended 31 December 2021
(ZE2021F12 A31HIEFE

21 Goodwill and intangible assets (Continued) 21 HEREFREEE @
(b) Impairment tests for goodwill and (b) BERBERENR @
trademarks (Continued)
(i) Impairment assessment for the Xinladao (i) # ¥R E & B R E T
Group (Continued) (&)

31 December

2021
20214
12A31H
RMB’000
FAR®
Allocated to: DEE -
Amounts not recognised in the consolidated statement Jf 2K IR 47 & 2 B YL 75 2k 9 E 37
of comprehensive income: CEEE
— Unrecognised non-controlling interest in goodwill — KRBT R 80,008
Amounts recognised in the consolidated statement of MR & 2 BT UL 25 2k N FER 2
comprehensive income: T8
— Goodwill (attributable to the 87% parent’s interest)  — 5 & ({5 &} A A1 87% R %5) 535,436
— Trademarks with indefinite useful life (Note 2) —BEBEERAFERFHRZ
AR (M 5E2) 31,019
Total amount recognised in the consolidated statement R4R & 2N m KX NER 2
of comprehensive income B RE 566,455

Total impairment loss BEEIBARE 646,463

Notes: MH3T -

1. The goodwill attributable to the Group’s interest of 87% was 1. WU B 8 S E87%
approximately RMB535 million at the acquisition date. o, BB A RE35E & T
Therefore, the goodwill attributable to the non-controliing AR B - IR
interest’s 13% interest was approximately RMB80 million. 13%E & 2 P E ) /B0 R

STARK-

2. Management allocates the remaining impairment loss of 2. EEBHSG THASIEETA
approximately RMB31 million to trademarks with indefinite life REZREBEIEZAER
and no impairment loss is allocated to other non-monetary ERFHCEHEALESL
assets of the CGUs (mainly including property, plant and ETHREEEERSELS
equipment, and right-of-use assets), because management is of iz HEMmIFgBit EE (T
the view that the fair value less costs of disposal or value in use EEEME BE KRME U
is greater than the respective carrying value of these assets after L BEEE) @R
the impairment review performed for each restaurant as the EEEEHSBEE(FAR
lowest level of CGU. BEROERSEFEN)E

TRERNE BRALE
EREERASEHEEEN
RZEEESEBZERHE:
Following the impairment, the Group reassessed the useful life RBEE  NEBEHTE
of trademarks with indefinite useful life of the Xinladao Group R EEEAEEEBER(FA
and considered that their useful lives will not be affected FH 7 P IE 2 Al A4 B
following this decision. WR BRIEL &R E & /T
SERET 2 A E A FAEX
e

BRERZERERAR
= —
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

For the year ended 31 December 2021

HZE2021%F 12 A31 B IEFE

21 Goodwill and intangible assets (continued)

e B R AR MR ()

(b) Impairment tests for goodwill and
trademarks (Continued)

(i)

Impairment assessment for the Xinladao
Group (Continued)

Impact of possible changes in key assumptions

If the enterprise value/sales multiple used in the
FVLCOD calculation for the Xinladao Group had been 0.13
times lower than management’s estimates at 31
December 2021 (1.13 times instead of 1.26 times), the
Group would have had to recognise an additional
impairment against the carrying amount of trademarks
with indefinite life of approximately RMB29 million.

If the DLOM used in the FVLCOD calculation for the
Xinladao Group had been 2.5% higher than
management’s estimates at 31 December 2021 (27.5%
instead of 25%), the Group would have had to
recognise an additional impairment against the carrying
amount of trademarks with indefinite life of
approximately RMB10 million.

If the control premium used in the FVLCOD calculation
for the Xinladao Group had been 1% lower than
management’s estimates at 31 December 2021 (9%
instead of 10%), the Group would have had to
recognise an additional impairment against the carrying
amount of trademarks with indefinite life of
approximately RMB3 million.

If the cost of disposal used in the FVLCOD calculation
for the Xinladao Group had been 1% higher than
management’s estimates at 31 December 2021 (2%
instead of 1%), the Group would have had to recognise
an additional impairment against the carrying amount of
trademarks with indefinite life of approximately RMB3
million.
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(b) BERBERENR @

(i)
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

For the year ended 31 December 2021
HZE2021F12A31HLFE

e B R M R ()

22 Derivative financial instrument 22

TEEmMI A

Year ended 31 December
BZ12A31BLEE

2021 2020

RMB’000 RMB’000

FTARY FAR®E

As at 1 January ®1HA1H 72,226 —
Addition = - 46,631
Fair value change NREBEEZE (47,375) 29,262
Exchange difference (& =% (2,308) (3,667)
As at 31 December »12 A31H 22,543 72,226

On 13 January 2020, the Company and United Strength Victory
Limited (“Investor”, a related party of the Company) entered into an
agreement (the “2020 Investment Agreement”) in relation to the
issuance of convertible bonds in the aggregate principal amount up
to HK$780,000,000 for a total consideration equal to the principal
amount of the convertible bonds. The 2020 Investment Agreement
was approved by the Company’s shareholders on 28 May 2020.

Pursuant to the 2020 Investment Agreement, at any time during the
2 years commencing from 29 May 2020 the Company may deliver
subscription request(s) to the Investor requesting the Investor to
subscribe for convertible bonds in the principal amount as specified
in such subscription request(s). As a result, the directors of the
Company are of the view that the above put option constituted a
derivative financial instrument for the Company and should be
accounted for as a financial asset at fair value through profit or loss.

202061 A13H * & 2 &) HlUnited
Strength Victory Limited ([ & & % | » &
REIZBEBBM ) RBETASRETE
3#3780,000,000/8 7t 2 Al TR EHE] 3L
ik ([2020F &l  RELEE
HEERABRKRES < A2 5 20204F
W& C R2020F5 A28 H E A A
A) A% SRHE A -

B IE2020F " E W AR AAR
20205 H29 H F 18 W M FF M (T B B
MREEEBRLRBEHER BREKE
ERZERBBRAEPZASER
BaBmRgESs At ARAEER
B FPAREHEER AR ZITAE
TRTA BARARAABENE
BEEFHFABIZEHMEE -

BRERZERERAR
“ECZ-FFR
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

For the year ended 31 December 2021
HZE2021F12A31HLFE

e S R R ()

22 Derivative financial instrument (continued) 22

The initial fair value of the derivative financial instrument at the
recognition date which amounted to RMB46,631,000 was
recognised as a deemed contribution from shareholder and
recorded in shareholder’s equity on special reserve. Subsequent
change in fair value of the derivative financial instrument is
recognised in profit or loss. As at 31 December 2020 and 31
December 2021, the fair values of the derivative financial instrument
were determined using the binomial valuation model, and the key
inputs into the model at the respective dates were as follows:

TTE€mIAEm

RERBH ZTE2R T A ZYH
N R 1B 1E /B46,631,000C A R B
BRAERIERELE  WRFREE
PERERREETSRN - EEZ T4 S
MTECAREBEEEINERTRE
e FA20204F 12 A31 B &2021F 12 A
31TE RIUTASRMIEZAABED
LZmEAGERAEE MRS B H
ZEMEZHABIBOT

As at 31 December

Conversion price

Share price

Expected volatility

Remaining life

Risk-free rate

BB X

R R F 2

[ b A

M12B31H
2021 2020
RMB’000 RMB’000
FARY TFARE
HK$1.180 HK$1.180
1.1807& T 1.18078 7T
HK$1.050 HK$0.750
1.0507%& 7T 0.750% 7T
25.67% 20.50%
0.41 years 1.41 years
0.415 1,414
0.18% 0.08%

Best Food Holding Company Limited
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
e B RRME ()

For the year ended 31 December 2021
HZE2021F12 A31HILFE

23 Trade and other receivables

23 BWE S RHMAKE

As at 31 December

M12H31H
2021 2020
RMB’000 RMB’000
TARE TARE
Trade receivables (a) FEWE 5 F0TE (a) 15,929 14,460
Other receivables (b) H {th B WS 3B (b) 90,899 55,999
Total trade and other receivables JEUWE 5 & H fth X IE 48 58 106,828 70,459
Less: provision for expected credit loss B EWE S FIENTERER
allowance for trade receivables BRBE (406) (309)
Provision for expected credit loss allowance — E {th g U X 18 &9 78 B {5 B
for other receivables BREE (6,193) (1,617)
Trade and other receivables — net JEUWE 5 M EMFRIE — F5E 100,229 68,533
Less: Non-current portion A FEBNEAEL (24,255) (29,213
Trade and other receivables — current portion U B 5 & H {th 218 — B Ej
25 39,320
(a) Trade receivables (a) EWE S NRE
As at 31 December
MW12A31H
2021 2020
RMB’000 RMB’000
TARY FARE
Related parties (Note 37) R 77 (P 5£37) 470 68
Third parties EF=h 15,459 14,392
Subtotal INE 15,929 14,460
Less: provision for expected credit B TR E R E
loss allowance (406) (809)
Trade receivables — net JEWE B FIE — FE 15,523 14,151
BRERBRAF

—E-_FER



©

e

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

e S R R ()

For the year ended 31 December 2021
HZE2021F12 A31HILFE

23 Trade and other receivables (Continued) 23

(@) Trade receivables (Continued)

The aging analysis of trade receivables based on the invoice
date at the end of the reporting period is as follows:

ERE 5 Kk H M F1E @)

(@) BWE S RKE@m
ERESRERRERRRES

Within 6 months 618 A AR
Over 6 months BiE6{E A

Movement for expected credit loss allowance

BEZERATOT :
As at 31 December
M12H31H

2021 2020
RMB’000 RMB’000
FARM TFARE
12,237 12,658
3,692 1,802
15,929 14,460
BYERBAREED
As at 31 December
M12831A8

2021 2020
RMB’000 RMB’000
TAR® TAR®E

As at 1 January M1HA1H
Provision for expected credit loss allowance 8 ER{= FA 18 L & {5
Written off during the year as uncollectible F A 8 R S AT ]

309 226
101 83
) -

As at 31 December W12 A31H

406 309

Trade receivables are all denominated in RMB. FEWE SR IBEBHUAREKSE-

Best Food Holding Company Limited
Annual Report 2021
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

For the year ended 31 December 2021
HZE2021F12A31BILEFE

23 Trade and other receivables (Continued)

e B R M R ()

(@) Trade receivables (Continued)

Movement for expected credit loss allowance

(Continued)

For the restaurant operation and delivery business, the
Group’s trading terms with its customers are mainly on cash
and credit card settlement. For sales of food ingredients, a
credit period not exceeding 180 days is granted to the
majority of customers. The credit period provided to
customers can vary based on a number of factors including
nature of operations and Group’s relationship with the

customer.

Due to the short-term nature of the current receivables, their
carrying amount is considered to be the same as their fair

value.

The Group applies the HKFRS 9 simplified approach to
measure expected credit losses which uses a lifetime
expected loss allowance for all trade receivables. The loss
allowance increased by RMB97,000 to RMB406,000 for
trade receivables during the current reporting period (2020:
The loss allowance increased by RMB83,000 to RMB309,000
for trade receivables). Note 3.1(b) provides for details about
the calculation of the allowance.

Information about the expected credit loss allowance for
trade receivables and the Group’s exposure to credit risk,
foreign currency risk and interest rate risk can be found in

Note 3.1.

23 EWE Z RHEMARIE @
(a) ERE S FIE @

RHEHAERREZD
(&)
REBRKERIINEXRHMS - &
SEBEAETPZEETENR
R ERREE -NEERMM
FORAZHEEPETZHBREY
THEBEI1BOXK - B TEF2HBE
HEEERZ(BREEMHE R
AKEEERFZBE) MR e

RN RE KRB 2 TS
HEEEREREE AR EEM
G

KNEBERS B SRS ER
FOH B A E2EHERE
K ERERKESREMFER
GEHBERBREE RNARE
HAFE - FEURE 5 R IR 1B K B 1
$n97,0007t A R ¥ & 406,000 7T
AREE(2020F : [EWE 5 KA
8 2K BB 15 15 83,000t A R EE &
309,0007T A R#) o fff 5£3.1(b) &
NEBBEBTE 2B -

EEREKESRBEBHEAEL
BERASERRZEHARR -
HNEE BB K B R B B 2 A R R
BfaE3.1°

BRERBRAF
—E_—FFH
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

For the year ended 31 December 2021

HE2021F12A31BIEFE

23 Trade and other receivables (Continued)

(b) Other receivables

e S R R ()

23 EWE Z K HMFHEm

(b) H1th FEUWRFKIE

Consideration receivable in relation to
partial disposal of investment in
an associate (Note 10(a))

Lease deposits

Amount due from related parties (Note 37(0)) [& U 8 Bt
Loans receivable due from third parties (i)
Advance to employees

Others

2 FEWARAE (B FE10(0))
HEZRS®
EUE=ZHER()

BRTEE
Hit

BRSO EBRERRKRE

KB (M FE37(0))

Less: provision for expected credit loss

allowance

o EHERBEREE

Other receivables — net

H Al EUCRIR — F

Note:

(i) As at 31 December 2021, the balance mainly includes loans receivable
of RMB6,413,000 (2020: RMB5,960,000) due from certain shareholders
of an associate of the Group, which are initially repayable in 2021 and
subsequently extended to the first half of 2022 prior to the original
maturity date, and bear interest at 7% per annum. The loans are
secured by the equity interests in the associate of the Group held by

the borrowers.

(c) As at 31 December 2021 and 2020, non-current portion (c)
mainly comprised lease deposits and loans receivables due

from related parties.

(d) As at 31 December 2021 and 2020, the fair values of trade (d)
and other receivables approximated their carrying amounts.

Best Food Holding Company Limited
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As at 31 December

M12831H

2021 2020
RMB’000 RMB’000
FARY FARE
34,990

10,241

6,980

1,570

2,218

55,999
(6,193) (1,617)
84,706 54,382

R2021F12A31H £ T ER
FEAEEEWRE THERAREZ
B 76,413,000 7T A & ¥ (2020 4 :
5,960,000t A R# ) & ¥ AR
2021 (B8 - HETERZE2022F |
FENRINBARN  FRERBT% -
ERAERFTREAEEEE QA
2 BRAE(EIE AR o

A2021FE N 202012 831 H » 3k
BNESO T EREHRERE L E
IR BEEE R B -

R2021FEN2020F 12 A31H » &
WESREMKRIBZ AR EEH
HEEmEERS -
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
e B RRME ()

For the year ended 31 December 2021
HZE2021F12A31HLFE

24 Financial assets at fair value through 24 BAREBEIFEBEHEE
other comprehensive income ARt EERE 2SR
BE
As at 31 December
MW12A31H
2021 2020
RMB’000 RMB’000
TARY FARE
Unlisted investments — measured at fair value 3£ EHIHE — R AR EEEE 2,000 5,000
25 Convertible bonds 25 AR ESH
As at 31 December
M®12A31H
2021 2020
RMB’000 RMB’000
FTARY FARE
Current REE D
Convertible bonds — interest payable AR ES — EAHFE 45,837
Non-current FEREBIBD
Convertible bonds MR ES 439,588

As at 31 December 2021, current portion of the Convertible Bonds
amounted to HK$73,402,000 (equivalent to approximately
RMB59,801,000) (31 December 2020: HK$54,465,000, equivalent
to approximately RMB45,837,000), which represented interest
payable commencing from 23 November 2018 and was calculated
at the coupon rate of 3% per annum. The remaining amount of the
Convertible Bonds were classified as non-current liabilities.

R2021F12A831H AR & H 2
B EE D & B B73,402,0007% JT (48
B A #759,801,0007C A R #) (2020 4
12 A31 8 : 54,465,000 7T (48 & 7 49
45,837,000t A R #)) » 48 520184
11A23H RN FREEKI%BTHE 2 &
HAE - R ESFBREE D EAIE
HEAME-

EREERARAT
—E-—FEH

©
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
mEMBRRME(E

For the year ended 31 December 2021
HZE2021F12A31BIEFE

25 Convertible bonds (Continued)

The major terms and conditions of the convertible bonds issued by
the Company (the “Convertible Bonds”) are as follows:

(i)

(i)

(iii)

(iv)

(v)

Interest rate

The Company shall pay an interest on the Convertible Bonds
at 3% per annum.

Conversion price

The Convertible Bonds will be convertible into the Company’s
shares at the initial Conversion Price of HK$1.18 per share,
subject to adjustments. The Conversion Price will be subject
to adjustment for, amongst others, consolidation, subdivision
or reclassification of shares, capitalisation of profits or
reserves, capital distribution, dividends, rights issues of
shares or options over shares, rights issues of other
securities, modification of rights of conversion and other
offers to shareholders.

Availability period for the Company to
issue the Convertible Bonds

The availability period for the Company to issue the
Convertible Bonds is a fixed term of two years commencing
from 13 November 2016 and neither party will have the right
to extend.

Maturity

The fifth anniversary of the date of issue of the Convertible
Bonds, or subject to the agreement of the bondholder, the
seventh anniversary of the date of issue.

Redemption on maturity

Unless previously redeemed, converted or purchased and
cancelled, the Company will redeem the Convertible Bond at
an amount equal to the principal amount on the maturity
date, plus accrued interest and all other amounts accrued or
outstanding under the Convertible Bonds which remain
unpaid on the maturity date. The Company may not redeem
the Convertible Bonds at its option prior to the maturity date,
except on redemption on change of control and redemption
on delisting as described below.

Best Food Holding Company Limited
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25 TR EF @

AABABETABRRES ((AIRRE
7] EBIERRAFRFLT

(i)

(ii)

(iii)

(iv)

(v)

R &

AR ARF N E3% A A #
BfEZZH 8 e

BRE

AMBREFB IRV SERES
g1 IR ARAR K G
WA FRE - BRETEDSE
(EFBE)RHEH  FAE
FoB- - mFk@EEERNE &
AR~ BB - 182 R% (D ok BE IR
MEEBHMBL EohE R AE
Mm% T B A B T o
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
a3 AR B ()

For the year ended 31 December 2021
HZE2021F12A31BILEFE

25 Convertible bonds (Continued)

(vij Redemption at the option of the
bondholder

(1)

Redemption on change of control

Following the occurrence of a change of control, the
bondholder will have the right at its option, to require
the Company to redeem in whole but not in part such
holder’s Convertible Bonds.

The redemption price is the HK dollar equivalent
amount which is the outstanding principal amount, plus
the amount of interest representing 8% of the internal
rate of return of the principal amount of the Bond from
the date of issue to the payment date (the “Early
Redemption Amount”).

Redemption on Delisting

In In the event that the Company’s shares cease to be
listed or admitted to trading on the Hong Kong Stock
Exchange, the bondholder shall have the right, at its
option, to require the Company to redeem, in whole but
not in part only, such bondholder’s Convertible Bonds
at the Early Redemption Amount.

The fair value of the liability component was calculated using a
market interest rate for an equivalent non-convertible bond at the
issue date. The remainder of the proceeds is allocated to the
conversion option and recognised in shareholders’ equity on
special reserve.

25 TR 1E ZF )
Vi EFEEFEEBEARERER

(1)

EHESEREL
BARHREER  BE5F
BAERBTEEZRA
REABERZEFTAEAZ
2R (E X 3E#B ) AT 2 v
EEa

BOERAREELASR
ZAETEESEMLES
BETHHMENRBME
A BA LR X%
ZMEEB(EAMERS
Bl

BR b B [
WARB RO TBERE
B EMATEEER
AHMRAEE  AEFRA
ABERBITEREERAR
Bl iR AT RE B € FE A [ %
BEFFHAAZEE(EALIF
BB0) AR E SR o

BERD AR BERRETHERSE
EFRABMREZR TSN ERGTE - B
SRESBEOIEEEBRELF R
ERHERRER TR -

BRERBRAF
—E_—FFH
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
e M B RRME ()

For the year ended 31 December 2021
HZE2021F12A31HLFE

25 Convertible bonds (Continued) 25 ARG E F @)
The movement in the components of the Convertible Bonds during A £2020F 2021 F12 A31H It F
the years ended 31 December 2020 and 2021 are as follows: G AR ESHARI D 2 EEHNT
Liability Equity

component component Total

=R RIS &5t

RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000

FARE FARE FARE

As at 1 January 2020 7R 20201 A1 R 482,563 104,294 586,857

Interest expenses (i) FEF () 35,214 — 35,214

Exchange difference & 5 ZE & (32,352) — (32,352)

As at 31 December 2020 K2020F 12 431 H 485,425 104,294 589,719

As at 1 January 2021 R2021F1 81H 485,425 104,294 589,719

Interest expenses (i) BB X () 32,765 - 32,765

Exchange difference & W ZFE (16,122) - (16,122)

As at 31 December 2021 M2021 612 HA31H 502,068 104,294 606,362

Notes: 3T -
(i) The interest expense of RMB32,765,000 (2020: RMB35,214,000) was [0) A B B %32,765,0007T A R # (20204 :
calculated using the effective interest method. 35,214,0007C A R %) Ty B BB F| =L 5t
§ °

(ii) During the years ended 31 December 2021 and 2020, none of the Convertible (ii) A E20214F K020 128318 IFEE

Bonds was converted. ., s
fvas conv P - 3 4 T 4 IR R 9% o

@ Best Food Holding Company Limited
Annual Report 2021
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e

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

HE2021F12A31BIEFE

26 Cash and bank balances

27

e S R R ()

26

Cash and cash equivalents comprise cash held by the Group and
short term bank deposits with an original maturity of three months
or less. The deposits carry prevailing market interest rates.

Cash and cash equivalents are denominated in the following

RERBITHEER

RekReEBYERAEERELZ
BelRIBBER=ZEAXNARZRE
HIRTHER  ZFHFERREMM SN
REHB oo

RelReEEMUTIERE:

currencies:
As at 31 December
M12B31H
2021 2020
RMB’000 RMB’000
FAR% FARM
RMB AR 56,064 67,329
HKD BT 1,822 36,081
USsb e 4,685 20,331
62,571 123,741
As at 31 December 2021, restricted cash of RMB961,000 (2020: MRo21E12A31H: TR 4 1/ &

nil) was denominated in RMB.

Financial assets at fair value through

profit or loss

27

961,0007T A R (20204 : ) A AR

EEFERHEH
CEMEE

As at 31 December
MW12A31H
2021

RMB’000

TARM

2
15

&
H

2020
RMB’000
TAR®

Investment in wealth management products

RIEMEMZIIRE

57,817

27,931

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss are all

denominated in RMB.

BonBEAEAEEIFABRRL
CREEHAARKE-

EREERARAT
—E-—FEH
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

e MR R MR (&)

For the year ended 31 December 2021
HZE2021F12A31HLFE

27

28

Financial assets at fair value through
profit or loss (Continued)

The financial assets at fair value through profit or loss represent
investment in wealth management products issued by listed banks
in the PRC and redeemable within one year. The fair values of
investments in wealth management products are based on cash
flow discounted using the expected rate of return (ranged from
2.2%-3.1% per annum) based on management estimates and are
within level 3 of the fair value hierarchy (Note 3.3). Management is
not aware of any observable significant change in macro-economic
environment or fluctuation in short-term market interest rate as at
31 December 2021 that may significantly affect the expected rate
of return of the unlisted wealth management product invested by
the Group.

The maximum exposure to credit risk at the reporting date is the
carrying value of these financial assets at fair value through profit or
loss.

Other current assets and other non-
current assets

28

CREERERPE EWMBRTET L
BHEREE WAE—FANEL-
BHERBREZAREBEDENRER
[E {5t - IR A TE B Bl o) = (F X
NF22%E31%) MR 2B RER
B W EARBEEREIHA (T
3.3) c R2021F12A831H B E W
THEBERBREERSBEEMNABREE
ANEMKEHMSFELIFZE -
A EgmErErSEMEEIELT
B EMZ AR HRE -

RHEEAH ERRRZZSERS
ZEBMAARBEFELAEZHA AR
BZEMEEZREE-

HitRBEEREMIER
BEE

As at 31 December

M12B31H
2021 2020
RMB’000 RMB’000
FARK FARK
Prepayments (a) B FRIE (a) 29,893 24,342
Deductible VAT input Al 0 S E IR 29,447 34,244
59,340 58,586

As at 31 December

M12B31H
2021 2020
RMB’000 RMB’000
FARY FARE
Non-current JE B 951 1,284
Current T 58,389 57,302
59,340 58,586

Best Food Holding Company Limited
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
e B RRME ()

For the year ended 31 December 2021
HZE2021F12A31HLFE

28 Other current assets and other non-
current assets (Continued)

(@) Prepayments

28 HW R HEEREMIER
BHEE®

(a) AR

As at 31 December

M12H31H
2021 2020
RMB’000 RMB’000
FAR% FARM
Prepayments for raw materials R ¥ 2 TS RE 14,738 10,796
Amounts due from related parties JE U B B 5 3B (Y 5237(0))
(Note 37(0)) 6,312 1,500
Prepayments for property management fees ¥ ¥ SR E N AN HEXEF
and utility expenses Z BB 3,892 5,496
Prepayments for rental HEZBNFHIE 1,325 776
Prepayment for property, plant and ME BMENMKREBZEMRE
equipment 951 1,061
Prepayments for software and digital BN EREZBNIE
services 898 1,450
Others Hifb 1,777 3,263
29,893 24,342

(b) As at 31 December 2021 and 2020, non-current portion
mainly comprised prepayments for property, plant and
equipment.

29 Trade and other payables

Trade and other payables principally comprise amounts outstanding
for trade purchases and ongoing costs. The average credit period
obtained for trade purchases is 30 to 180 days.

(b) 720214 %2020%12 4318 « 3
REBOEZREDE BE X
B PALKNE O

20 ENESRHEMKIE
ENESMNEMNABELIEREEHE
ENFERIRAZANSE -ES
BEZVFHIREHA30E180K -

As at 31 December

Trade payables (a)
Other payables and accruals (b)

F& & 5 3H (a)

H A R R FRIR B A (o)

M12A31H
2021 2020
RMB’000 RMB’000
TAR® TAR®
59,166 70,865
119,676 79,358
178,842 150,223
ERERERAR

—E-—FEH
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

For the year ended 31 December 2021
HZE2021F12A31BILFE

e S R R ()

29 Trade and other payables (Continued)

(@) Trade payables

20 ENE S RHEMAKIE@

(a) ENEZ IR

As at 31 December

Related parties (Note 37(b))

Third parties

The aging analysis of trade payables based on the invoice
date at the end of the reporting period is as follows:

Within 6 months
Over 6 months

61E A AR
618 A A £

M12A31H
2021 2020
RMB’000 RMB’000
FARM FARM
6,608 10,914
52,558 59,951
59,166 70,865
BENESRERNRERREESR
BHZERRITIT :
As at 31 December
M12B31H
2021 2020
RMB’000 RMB’000
FARY FARM
57,473 61,578
1,693 9,287
59,166 70,865

Trade payables are all denominated in RMB.

Best Food Holding Company Limited
Annual Report 2021
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

For the year ended 31 December 2021
HZE2021F12A31HLFE

e S R R ()

29 Trade and other payables (continued)

(b) Other payables and accruals

20 ERHEZRHEMFAE@m

(b) EttENRERFEREN

As at 31 December

MW12A31H
2021 2020
RMB’000 RMB’000
TARY FARM
Wages, salaries and other employee ITE% #HaelhEMESRF
benefits PLICY ] 27,907
Payables for renovation costs JE S AE B 21,276 19,689
Deposit received in relation to partial Mo EBENRRERK
disposal of investment in an associate B 2 4% & (B 5E 10(@)(i))
(Note 10(a)(ii)) 20,000 —
Receipt in advance in relation to capital FER —HEBERRREZ
reduction of an associate (Note (i) TE Wk (BT 5 ) 19,000 -
Payables for franchisee JE A5 00 BR 7 3R OB 5,661 5,183
Tax payables (excluding current income FERFIE (N RER SR
tax liabilities) =859 5,147 5,516
Accrued auditor’s remuneration FERTZ SN & 3,095 2,573
Payables for rental expense ENHEERA 2,459 2,135
Payables for utility expenses ENARKEXER 2,332 2,222
Amount due to a related party (Note 37(b)) &~ B Bt 75 738 (M 55 37(b)) 2,000 —
Payables for transportation expenses ERREEA 1,479 1,530
Payables for consulting expenses et A E A 1,316 1,504
Payables for other property, plant and HEmwE - BEIRRBENS
equipment RIE 571 1,418
Interest payable FE - I B 75 75
Others HAb 9,892 9,516
119,676 79,358
Note: ks

(i) As at 31 December 2021, the amount represented a deposit of RMB19
million received by the Group from an associate which is in the process
of capital reduction. Upon completion of such capital reduction, the
Group’s investment in this associate will be reduced and an amount of
RMB19.9 million will be returned to the Group. Management expects
the above capital reduction will be completed during the year ended 31

December 2022.

(c) As at 31 December 2021 and 2020, the fair value of trade
and other payables approximated their carrying amounts.

0] MR2021F12A31H Z R BEIE AR
SEE-HEHEQRKBZIES19
BETARYE  ZEE QR EET
WE - FHBMETNE - AEER
ZMEARZREBEMRAL B
BAEBEGEREIVIEETAR
o BERERG LHMREBREE
2022F 12 A31H L FERNTHK ©

(c) M20214 F2020%12A31H » fig
NEHREMKIE L AR EENE
HEREERS -

EREERARAT
—E-—FEH
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
i E M R ()

For the year ended 31 December 2021
HZE2021F12A31HLFE

30 Deferred taxation 30 EEH IR
The analysis of deferred income tax assets/(liabilities) is as follows: BEFREMEE/(AE)DTWT

As at 31 December

M12A31H
2021 2020
RMB’000 RMB’000
TARY FARM
Deferred income tax assets RIEMSMEE 45,850 33,560
Deferred income tax liabilities BIEFTGEHABE (114,021) (121,790)
The movement in deferred income tax assets during the year is as FRNBELEMESHEEZEHMT -
follows:
Payroll and Customer
accrued Amortisation loyalty  Unused tax
expenses differences program losses Leases Others Total
IER EFRH XBAREK
EstE R BHEER BE BB HE Hitt at

RVB'000 ~ RMB'OO0  RMB'000 ~ RMB'O00  RMB000  RMB000  RMB'000
TAR®  TARE®  TARE  TARE TARRE TARE  TARR

At 1 January 2020 R2020F1A10 4,121 2,958 1,907 10,062 4,112 2,045 25,205

(Charged)/credited to profit (RBZE K ),/FF A

or loss B& (864) (82) (1,224) 8,706 1,109 710 8,355
At 31 December 2020 R2020%12831H 3,257 2,876 683 18,768 5,221 2,755 33,560
(Charged)/credited to profit (RE%3N%),/ 5 A

orloss 8% 2,614) (741) 672) 17,736 540 (1,959) 12,000
At 31 December 2021 H2021512831H 643 2,135 11 36,504 5,761 796 45,850

Best Food Holding Company Limited
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
a3 AR B ()

For the year ended 31 December 2021
HZE2021F12A31BILEFE

30 Deferred taxation (Continued) 30

The movement in deferred income tax liabilities during the year is as

IE % % 18 (@)

EREEFGHABEDNT :

follows:
Fair value Fair value
adjustment on change on
intangible investment Amortisation
assets property  differences Others Total
BREE REWH
PREERE 2AEBEED W= Hit &st
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
FARE FARE FARE FARE FARK
At 1 January 2020 7A2020F181H (121,967) (164) (1,448) — (128,579)
Credited to profit or loss & A8z 177 164 1,448 — 1,789
At 31 December 2020 7A2020%F12A31H (121,790) — — — (121,790)
Credited to profit or loss &+ A Bz 7,769 — — — 7,769
At 31 December 2021 M2021F12H31H (114,021) — — — (114,021)

Deferred income tax assets are recognised for tax losses carry
forward to the extent that realisation of the related tax benefit
through the future taxable profits is probable. As at 31 December
2021, the Group had tax losses of RMB167,886,000 (2020:
RMB126,946,000) to carry forward, which were not recognised as
deferred tax assets as management considered that the utilisation
of these tax losses in the foreseeable future is not probable, of
which an amount of RMB77,375,000 would expire through year
2022 to 2026 (2020: RMB39,222,000 would expire through year
2021 to 2025), the amount of RMB90,511,000 (2020:
RMB87,724,000 ) with no expiry date.

Under the EIT Law of the PRC, withholding tax is imposed on
dividends declared in respect of profits earned by the PRC
subsidiaries from 1 January 2008 onwards. Deferred taxation has
not been provided for in the consolidated financial statements in
respect of temporary difference attributable to accumulated profits
of the PRC subsidiaries amounting to RMB29,017,000 (2020:
RMB29,825,000) as the Group is able to control the timing of the
reversal of the temporary differences and it is probable that the
temporary differences will not be reversed in the foreseeable future.

BEMSEREENEERBRIER
w0 R R R ER T s A 2B m
BT 4 88 2 B 75 B 18 1 18 58 o 122021
F12A31H AEEAE 2 REE
18 /167,886,0007T A K ¥ (2020 :
126,946,0007C AR®) HRERER
ABEAERAREAZSHEEEZ
AREMEM MU ABHBERAELT
TRIE & E - £ #77,3750007C A R
18 72022 4 2026 4 & jm (20204 -
39,222,0007T A R ¥ i 12021 F &
20254 @M ) * M90,511,0007T A R
(20204F : 87,724,0007T A R %) & 5|
HIR o

B R B E TSR E - 820084 1
B1B#E - R B E A R AT IS F M
ERZEBHNEHMNBRME - AR
REEGEAEH RO EREER R
M RRATERRKGAETE M
TRHUERE WRAUBRRITE
SEEBRPEWBARRNEN 2 G
1 Z 5629,017,0007C A R # (20204 -
12;,825,0007%/\&%)Eﬂ%%ﬁﬁﬂél&ﬂﬁé

BRERBRAF
—E_—FFH
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
e M B RRME ()

For the year ended 31 December 2021
HZE2021F12A31BILFE

31 Borrowings 31 EX

As at 31 December

MW12A31H
2021 2020
RMB’000 RMB’000
TAR® FARE
Current BN &R
Secured A
Bank borrowings RITE R 5,000
Unsecured m A
Bank borrowings RITER 10,000
Loans from third parties FE=ZFER 1,200
16,200
(@) Maturity of borrowings (@) BERXZEHAH
At 31 December, the Group’s borrowings were repayable as M12A318  AEEBE 2 ERER
follows: THIEAEEE -
Bank borrowings Other loans
RITER Hih&®
2021 2020 2021 2020

RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
FTAR® TAR® FTARHY TARE

15,000 15,000

12 months or less 1218 A AT

Best Food Holding Company Limited
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

For the year ended 31 December 2021
HZE2021F12A31HLFE

31 Borrowings (Continued)

e S R R ()

31

(b) Weighted average annual interest rates

& X @)

(b) fnAEF 39 F R &R

As at 31 December

MW12A31H
2021 2020
RMB’000 RMB’000
FAR% FARM
Bank borrowings RITER 4.35% 4.35%
Loans from third parties E=ZFEX - 10.00%

32 Contract liabilities 32 EHNEE
As at 31 December

MW12A31H
2021 2020
RMB’000 RMB’000
FAR% FARM
Prepaid card B 60,820 54,171
Customer loyalty programme P R E 44 2,731
Advances from customers EFE#R 2,473 1,701
Advances from group-purchasing websites BB b 2R 267 153
Others H i 270 388
63,874 59,144

The transaction price allocated to performance obligations that are
unsatisfied or partially unsatisfied has not been disclosed, as
substantially all of our contracts have a duration of one year or less.

DREREEZRIMLO REEXETT
BEENRXZEREARKRE  THREK
PBAINENMBS—FLNUT -

EREERARAT
—E-—FEH
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
e M B RRME ()

For the year ended 31 December 2021
HZE2021F12A31BILFE

32 Contract liabilities (continued) 32 EHNEEw
()  Revenue recognised in relation to contract liabilities: ) HedaEBRAZKA:

Year ended 31 December
BZ12ABLEE
2021 2020
RMB’000 RMB’000
TAR® FAR

Revenue recognised that was included inthe i ABI]1 & 41 B (E 64582
contract liability balance at the beginning of B RN A

the period
Prepaid card R 51,207
Customer loyalty programme BFE AHEE 7,628
Advance from customers P B 2,422
Advances from group-purchasing websites B B 130
Others HAth 71
61,458
33 Deferred government grants 33 IEZE BT @B
Year ended 31 December
BZ12A1BLEE

2021 2020

RMB’000 RMB’000

FTARY FARE

Opening net amount of the year FHFRE 3,167 5,443
Additions NE 1,159 530
Amortisation B8 (2,946) (2,806)

1,380 3,167

Best Food Holding Company Limited
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

e B R M R ()

For the year ended 31 December 2021

o Ay
B2

33

34

2021 F12A31 B ILFE

Deferred government grants (Continued)

During the year ended 31 December 2021, the Group received
government grants amounting to RMB1,159,000 (2020:
RMB530,000), mainly for the establishment of restaurants and
purchase of manufacturing machineries. Such government grants
were recorded as deferred government grants and would be
credited to the statement of comprehensive income over the useful
life of the corresponding assets using straight-line method.

Share-based payments

The share option scheme of the Company (the “Scheme”) was
adopted pursuant to a resolution passed on 18 May 2011 for the
purpose of providing incentives to directors and eligible persons.
The Scheme remained in force for a period of 10 years from
adoption of such scheme had expired on 17 May 2021.

Under the Scheme, the board of directors of the Company could at
their discretion grant options to () any director, employee or
consultant of the Company or a company in which the Company
holds an equity interest or a subsidiary of such company (“Affiliate”);
or (i) any discretionary trust whose discretionary objects include
any director, employee or consultant of the Company or an Affiliate;
or (iiiy a company beneficially owned by any director, employee or
consultant of the Company or an Affiliate; or (iv) any customer,
supplier or adviser as may be determined by the directors of the
Company from time to time to subscribe for the shares of the
Company.

Options granted must be taken up within 21 days of the date of
grant. The maximum number of shares of the Company in respect
of which options might be granted under the Scheme shall not in
aggregate exceed 82,500,000 shares, representing 10% of the
Shares in issue at the time dealings in the Shares first commence
on the Stock Exchange and approximately 5.23% of the Shares in
issue at the date of this annual report. The maximum number of the
shares of the Company in respect of which options might be
granted to any individual in any 12-month period shall not exceed 1%
of the shares of the Company in issue on the last date of such
12-month period unless approval of the shareholders of the
Company was obtained in accordance with the Listing Rules on the
Stock Exchange.

33

34

i FIE B AT #8 BY (m)

HECOIFE12A3IBIEEE A&
W B B AT 48 BH 1,159,000 A R
(20204 : 530,000C AR¥) - EEH
RHAREERBEEERWM XS5
FHBE st ABIL T 8 - 5 (F
BEREIEREREEZJFERFHA
FFAZERER

R BHERMNR

ARBRE—IBR2011F5 180 &
Bz REER CEMERETE(H
D LEBEERAGERAL F
IRz ERA1I0FERBE R - I
B R2021E5 A17 B fEim e

RiEFE ARBEFS BB
ARBRARBFEBERA R Z A F
AR ZHBRAB(HEAR]Z
THEF BELEMB: kMXmA
BREARAXBBARZEMNES
B 8 M Z [ 2 %A= 7 ki) i
ARmRSBBARCENES BB
FEEEERBZAAF RVAAR
AEETRAETEZERMES HES
SEHEE TEREARRE AR AR

{/\ °

BRTZERENERERE BB
ARRNEN - BEREFEMRLZ
BREMSRZARNA TS RGEE
T4 Hi#8:B82,500,000 & B 17+ 14 A%
MEARBEXMEERTMAEREE %
TRMI0% M AFHRAHEHS BTG
#495.23% & IEAR #5 B 2 BT = T AR Al
EBARDNRRERE - T BN EM[A12
8 A HREE FEMAEB ALz 8RR E
TS RZARNAESRHDEE =15
BBERZI2EABEc &% —HE %
ARDBRD Z1% o

BRERBRAF
—E_—FFH
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

For the year ended 31 December 2021
HZE2021F12A31HLFE

e S R R ()

34 Share-based payments (Continued) 34

Options may be exercised during such period (including the
minimum period, if any, for which an option must be held before it
could be exercised) as may be determined by the directors of the
Company (which shall be less than ten years from the date of issue
of the relevant option). Options may be granted without initial
payment. The exercise price is determined at the discretion of the
Board but shall not be less than the highest of (i) nominal value of
the shares of the Company; (i) the closing price per share as stated
in the Stock Exchange’s daily quotations sheets on the date of the
grant of the options; and (iii) the average closing price per share as
stated in the Stock Exchange’s daily quotations sheets for the five
business days immediately preceding the date of the grant of the

options.

(@) Employee Share Option Scheme

Movements in the number of share options outstanding
during the years ended 31 December 2021 and 2020 under
this scheme and their weighted average exercise prices are

URHABERSTR@

BREATRARNRESETZEHAH
FM(ZHMEaETERBEREE A
EEF10F R X BREBRERN TITE
AIBARAEZ&EERR(ME)) AT
- BRENEDBELNHGRZ
BATERL TEEHEFENEE
EHEABERTIEBEZES

WA B Rty 2 EME (i) B R IE LB
EE MM RAREXRMINZE
P W T M8 ¢ e (i) AR £ 0 BB B R BB AR
BEMmMESXAEBIME AR
BRI ZFHFREHE-

(@) EEBRESE
#H 20214 N2020F12 A31H
IFE BREAGFEHERTEZ
EREHE RENEFHTERE

as follows: Z288mT
2021 2020

Average Average

exercise exercise
price per Number of price per Number of
share option elaileinss | share option options

BHERE Tt g i g
FETEE BRESE BESCERRCEi-EY S
HK$ (Thousands) HK$  (Thousands)
Vi (F 1) BT (F%)
As at 1 January R1HA1H 1.08 31,573 1.08 31,573
Forfeited during the year 4 A8 Uk 1.08 (7,893) — —
As at 31 December ®12A31H 1.08 23,680 1.08 31,573

Exercisable at
31 December

12 431 B A 17{E

No options expired during the periods covered by the above

tables.

Best Food Holding Company Limited
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For the year ended 31 December 2021
HZE2021F12A31HLFE

34 Share-based payments (Continued)

(a)

(b)

Employee Share Option Scheme (Continued)

Share options outstanding at 31 December 2021 have the
following expiry date and exercise prices:

34 URBABEBSR@

(a)

Exercise price

Exercise Period

(per share)

BEEBREE @

A2021F 12 A31 8 i K 171 B#
RiEZ BB RITEBNT

Number of Number of
options options

31 December 31 December
2021 2020
BRERE B RS B
20214 20204F
12881H 12 A31H
(Thousands) (Thousands)
(F4) (F%)

4,736 6,315

4,736 6,315

4,736 6,315

4,736 6,315

4,736 6,315

THEH TEEER)
HK$
BT
From 31 December 2019 to 30 December 2024 HK$1.08
B2019F12 A31 H £20245 12 A30H 1.08%8 7T
From 31 December 2020 to 30 December 2025 HK$1.08
B 202012 A31 H £2025%5 12 A30H 1.08%8 7T
From 31 December 2021 to 30 December 2026 HK$1.08
B20219F12 31 H£20265 12 A30H 1.08%8 7T
From 31 December 2022 to 30 December 2027 HK$1.08
B20229F12 A31 H£2027 512 A30H 1.08%8 7T
From 31 December 2023 to 30 December 2028 HK$1.08
2023912 A31 H £20284% 12 A30H 1.08%8 7T
Weighted average remaining contractual life of options
outstanding at 31 December 2021 is 5 years (2020:6 years).
Share Award Scheme (b)

The Company adopted the share award scheme (the “Share
Award Scheme”) on 11 November 2019 with a duration of 5
years commencing from the adoption date, subject to any
early termination as may be determined by the Board
pursuant to the terms of the Share Award Scheme. The
purposes of the Share Award Scheme are (i) to recognise the
contributions by certain employees and to provide them with
incentives in order to retain them for the continual operation
and development of the Group; and (i) to attract suitable
personnel for further development of the Group.

MR2021F12 A31 8 » HAITER
Rz fEFEHBTANTEHA
54 (20204 : 64F) °

f 47 2% b =T &1

AR A R2019F 11 A11H K4
R& D 2Bt &) ([ 17 52 Bh =T &1 ))
BRMBBRT BB AT H
FHESERERMEBTEN
{EFR AT BE R TEIR B4R E - B fp 18
BB RE R)REETEE
FIEE R &AM SR EE - #
MEBEEAAEENFELE
RERYN: RATEENE
—SEERS|IAGEAE -

EREERARAT
—E-—FEH
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
i E M R ()

For the year ended 31 December 2021
HZE2021F12A31BIEFE

34 LUBRHAERNSR@
(b) B 3B 52 m)

34 Share-based payments (Continued)

(b) Share Award Scheme (Continued)

Subject to the Share Award Scheme rules, the Board may
select the employee(s) to participate in the Share Award
Scheme and determine the number of shares to be
awarded(the Awarded Shares”) to the respective selected
grantees, the applicable vesting date and make an award out
of the pool of issued shares held by a professional trustee (the
“Trustee”) to be appointed to administer the Share Award
Scheme to any selected grantee. The Awarded Shares will
only comprise existing shares which are purchased from the
open market by the Trustee out of cash contributed by the
Company. The vesting and transfer of Awarded Shares to
selected grantees are subject to the compliance with the
Company’s articles of association and all applicable laws and
regulations (including without limitation, the Listing Rules and
the public float requirements thereunder and the Codes on
Takeovers and Mergers and Share Buy- backs).

The maximum number of Awarded Shares shall not exceed 4%
of the Company’s share capital in issue from time to time.

The Trustee shall not exercise the voting rights in respect of
any shares held by it under the Share Award Scheme. All
cash income and the sale proceeds of non-scrip distribution
declared in respect of a share held upon the trust under the
Share Award Scheme will be applied towards (a) the payment
of the fees, costs and expenses of the trust and (b) the
remainder, if any, remain as part of the trust fund.

On 11 November 2019, the Board resolved to grant an
aggregate of 43,413,260 Awarded Shares (representing
approximately 2.75% of the total issued share capital of the
Company as at 31 December 2019) to three selected
grantees (Awardees”). The amount of contribution by the
Awardees for the relevant Awarded Shares shall be HK$0.54
per Awarded Share, being 50% of the average closing price
per share of approximately HK$1.08 for 20 business days
immediately preceding the grant of the Awarded Shares.
Assuming all the vesting criteria and conditions have been
fulfilled, such Awarded Shares granted shall be vested in the
Awardees in five equal tranches on 31 December 2019,
2020, 2021, 2022 and 2023 respectively.

Best Food Holding Company Limited
Annual Report 2021
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

e S R R ()

For the year ended 31 December 2021
HZE2021F12 A31HILFE

34 Share-based payments (Continued)

(b)

(c)

Share Award Scheme (Continued)

Movement of the shares granted under the Share Award
Scheme during the years ended 31 December 2021 and
2020 is as follows:

2021

Average
exercise
price per
awarded
share
BRER
TEE
HK$
T

As at 1 January M1A1H 0.54
Forfeited during the year F R E 58 I 0.54
As at 31 December M12A31H 0.54

Expenses arising from share-based
payment transactions

Total expenses arising from share-based payment
transactions recognised during the years ended 31 December
2021 and 2020 as part of employees benefit expenses were
as follows:

() ARG ARERZAK

34 URBABEBSR@
(b) B0 HREF & (@)

#H 20214 M2020F12 A31H
IEFERER M RE T8 & LK
BT :

2020

Average

exercise
Number of price per Number of
awarded awarded awarded
shares share shares

i 22 8
R BB G Bt ¥ 15 H2 B AR 17
e TEE # A
(Thousands) HK$  (Thousands)
(F4) BT (F%)
43,413 0.54 43,413
(7,893) — —
35,520 0.54 43,413

Xt

ZEEZHX

H 2=2021F K2020F 12 31 H
IFFE®ERBEERMNAS —36
DZUARDAEERZARZHE
EzRAZ@BENT

Year ended 31 December
BZ12A31BLEE

Share option scheme BAREST A
Share award scheme B 17 2 Eh At &I

2021 2020
RMB’000 RMB’000
TAR® TAR®

1,033 4,429

2,341 7,818

3,374 12,247

HEREERARAE

—E-_FER



For the year ended 31 December 2021
HZE2021F12A31HLFE

35 Cash flow information

e

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

e S R R ()

35 BHeRhEER

(a) Cash generated from operation () REXEBBRSE

For the year ended
31 December
HE12A1BILEE
2021 2020
RMB’000 RMB’000
FAR% FAR®

Loss before taxation

(Note 17)

Impairment of goodwill and other intangible mELEMEREERE

assets (Note 21)

Amortisation of deferred government grants i %E I /1T 78 By 14 4%

Impairment losses on investments in associates i 4 A 73% & 5 8 &5 18

(Note 20)

Share of (profit)/loss of associates (Note 20)  FE/FE: & 2~ 7 G 7)),/

Non-cash employee benefits expense — share IER S EB BB X

based payments (Note 34)

equipment (Note 8)

Gain on disposal of right-of-use assets (Note 8) & {# F8 # & & U 25

B T A B 18 (665,685) (160,689)

Depreciation and amortisation (Note 12) e R (FHE12) 144,641 167,189
Impairment of property, plant and equipment %) % - & B & 5 /& FE

(Mt&E17) 13,908 8,688

(ftsE21) 566,455 —

(Note 33) (M 7£33) (2,946) (2,806)
Finance expenses-net (Note 9) e R FEE(E) 47,959 52,325
Gain on partial disposal and dilution of B s R E A R A

investments in associates (Note 10) ®E 2 W (H3E10) (82,041) -

(Fff 5£20) 2,871 24,625
&5 18 (F 3£ 20) (1,565) 14,559
— R BEBA R

(Kt 5£34) 3,374 12,247
Loss/(gain) on fair value change on derivative T4 €/ T AR L EE
financial instrument (Note 22) BEEE, (W)
(M 7E22) 47,375 (29,262)
Loss on disposal of property, plant and HEYE  BME KB

518 (M 5E8) 6,269 8,408

(Mf3E8) (4,892) (5,128)
Provision for/(reversal of) expected credit loss ¢ Et EE W TEHIZ BB %
allowance for financial assets, net B, (BEER) T35 6,518 (450)
Net exchange differences (Note 8) VE H =58 558 (fI7E8) 1,506 (1,958)
Investment income on financial assets at fair AR EBEEHE
value through profit or loss (Note 6) FEEFTABR KA
A (B 5E6) (1,684) (1,975)
Interest income on loans (Note 6) BERR B WA (H7E6) (969) (926)
(Increase)/decrease in trade and other EUWE 5 & H fth 3 E
receivables (3% hn), ik (168) 3,375
decrease in other operating assets HAth g8 & & E R (934) 9,259
(Increase)/decrease in inventories FE LM, B (2,897) 3,597
Increase/(decrease) in contract liabilities AHAaBEN Crd) 4,730 (2,602)
Increase in trade and other payables FERHE 5 N E b ZIE N (15,716) 17,880
Cash generated from operations KEEBRER® 66,109 116,356

Best Food Holding Company Limited
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e S R R ()

35 Cash flow information (continued) 35

(b) Net debt reconciliation

BHEREEN @
(b) B EEYER

As at 31 December

MW12A31H

2021 2020

RMB’000 RMB’000

FARY FARE

Cash and cash equivalents RekBELFEY 62,571 123,741
Liquid investments mENEEE 57,817 27,931
Borrowings — repayable within one year BR——FANEE (15,000) (16,200)
Convertible bonds AR ES (502,068) (485,425)
Lease liabilities HEAaE (284,118) (316,165)
Net debt EHEE (680,798) (666,118)
Cash and liquid investments ReERRBUZE 120,388 151,672
Gross debt — fixed interest rates BEBEE —ELE (15,000) (15,000)
Gross debt — variable interest rates BEREE —ER (284,118) (317,365)
Convertible bonds AT ES (502,068) (485,425)
Net debt BB FE (680,798) (666,118)

BRERBERAR

-
Bf EA S

©
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

e B R AR MR ()

For the year ended 31 December 2021

{22021 F 12 A31HILFE

35 Cash flow information (continued)

(b) Net debt reconciliation (continued)

35 BEREE R @)
(b) B FEHER@®

Borrowings  Borrowing
Liquid  due within due after Lease Convertible
Cash investments 1 year 1 year liabilities bonds Total
—FR —-F#
Re RBMRE IHEX EER HEAE TRKRES At
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000  RMB'000
TARE TARE TARE TARE TARE TARE TAR%
Net debt as at 20201518
1 January 2020 ZEKFE 131,285 62,792 (5,000) (1,200) (380,289) (482,563)  (674,975)
Cash flows BemE (8,417) (35,142) (10,000) - 134,458 — 80,899
Acquisition — leases Wi -HE - - - - (111,806) - (111,806)
Currency translation BB EER
differences 873 - - - - 32,352 33,225
Other non-cash movements £ i1 3£ 57 4 £ &) - 281 (1,200) 1,200 41,472 (35,214) 6,539
Net debt as at M20205 128318 2
31 December 2020 BEFE 123,741 27,931 (16,200) - (316,165) (485,425)  (666,118)
Cash flows RenE (58,580) 29,818 1,200 - 118,994 — 91,432
Acquisition — leases g -HE - - - - (101,208) — (101,208
Currency translation ERBREEE
differences (2,590) — — — — 16,122 13,532
Other non-cash movements £ ft 3£ 33 4 & - 68 - - 14,261 (32,765) (18,436)
Net debt as at R2021512A31A 2
31 December 2021 BEZE 62,571 57,817 (15,000) - (284,118) (502,088)  (680,798)

Best Food Holding Company Limited

Annual Report 2021
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a3 AR B ()

For the year ended 31 December 2021
(ZE2021F12 A31HIEFE

35 Cash flow information (Continued) 35 REREEHm
(c) Significant non-cash transactions (c) EXFBEERS
(i) The purchase of property, plant and equipment U 72021 %12 4381 8

BEVE BELERMH

amounting to RMB21 ,847,0(?0 have not been settled as 01,847.0005C A B # (2020
B RAEE ©
(i)  Refer to Note 18 and Note 35(b) for the addition to i HEZMERAEEERMA

EaE BHORNZHME

right-of-use assets and lease liabilities respectively. N
9 pectively 18 % I 3¥35(0) °

36 Share capital 36 g7
Number of
ordinary
shares Amount
ZBEREAE ok}
HK$’000
FET
Ordinary shares of HK$0.10 each: BIREE0N0E T EiBEAR
Authorized: ERE
At 1 January 2020, 31 December 2020 20201 A1 H » 20204
and 31 December 2021 12 B 31 H %2021
12H31H 5,000,000,000 500,000
Number of
ordinary
shares Amount Amount
ZEREE &8 ok}
HK$’000 RMB’000
FERT FARY
As at 31 December 2020 and 2021 220204 & 2021 &
12A31H 1,578,664,000 157,866 133,023

BRERBRAF
—E_—FFH @



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
e M B RRME ()

For the year ended 31 December 2021
HZE2021F12A31HLFE

37 BB NRBEAELHE
(@) EREBLE2EXRRS

37 Related and connected party disclosures

(a) Significant Transactions with related

parties
The following transactions occurred with related parties: B FETIUNTIR S
2021 2020
Name of party Relationship Nature of transactions RMB’000 RMB’000
BEEEB HE RHME TAR% FAR%
Sonic Tycoon Limited Parent company Interest accrued on 32,765 35,214
convertible bonds
EFERAA [SYNS] ARRESEHE
Shenzhen Love’s Kitchen Internet and Technology Associate Interest income 403
Limited Company
RIBFXEBERRERAF - UNS| FEWA
Quan Jin Cheng Enterprise Management (Beijing) Significantly influenced by key Management service fee 958
Co., Ltd. managements of the Company
BeHEEEEQLR)BERARA ARAIFEERABASRYE EERBEER
Xin Liang Ji Food Technology (Beijing) Co., Ltd. Controlled by non-controlling interests ~ Purchase of goods (i) 19,146
(“Xin Liang Ji") of a subsidiary
EREEMBHOER)ERAF(ERL] mi B ARz SRR R BEEM)
Zigong Yanweiyuan Food Co., Ltd. Controlled by non-controlling interests ~ Purchase of goods (i) 796
of a subsidiary
EEERERRERDA B DAl SRR R BEEM()
Quan Jin Cheng Enterprise Management (Beijing) Significantly influenced by key Purchase of services 220
Co., Ltd. managements of the Company
EeHAEERQR)ERAT ARAIFEERABASAYE BERB
Quan Jin Cheng Enterprise Management (Beijing) Significantly influenced by key Loans granted 2,140
Co., Ltd. managements of the Company
BeHtE$ERLR)ERAA ARRTEERABAEARYE BEHER
Quan Jin Cheng Enterprise Management (Beijing) Significantly influenced by key Interest income 268
Co., Ltd. managements of the Company
BeRtEER L R)ERAF ARAIFEERABAERYE MEKA
Quanjincheng Food Processing (Beijing) Co., Ltd. Significantly influenced by key Sales of goods 90
managements of the Company
BeHRAMIOER)ERAR ARAIFEERABASAYE EmEE

Best Food Holding Company Limited
Annual Report 2021




NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
e B RRME ()

For the year ended 31 December 2021
HZE2021F12A31HLFE

37 BB RBEELTHE @

37 Related and connected party disclosures
(Continued)

(a) Significant Transactions with related

(@) HEB A ZEARS @)

parties (Continued)

The following transactions occurred with related parties:

HEBDETATIRS - (8)

(Continued)
2021 2020
Name of party Relationship Nature of transactions RMB’000 RMB’000
BEE LR HE RHME TARY TARH
Quanjincheng Food Processing (Beijing) Co., Ltd. Significantly influenced by key Purchase of raw materials 661 284
managements of the Company
BeHRAMIOER)ERAR ARAIFEERABASAYE BERMHE
Quanjincheng Food Processing (Beijing) Co., Ltd. Significantly influenced by key Purchase of services -
managements of the Company
E2HRAMIER)BRAR ARRIFEERABASAYE BERS
Beijing Tianshuilai Catering Management Associate Provision of services —
Co., Ltd
ERRKRERERERRA NG RERE
Shenzhen Spicy Foook Food Catering Chain Service  Associate Provision of services —
Co., Ltd
RITRARTEREHREERLA il NG| RERT
Yujian Xiaomian Associate Provision of services -
BR/E BERE RERS
Quanwei (Beijing) International Investment Significantly influenced by key Provision of services -
Management Co., Ltd. managements of the Company
BERGERBERREERERLA ARAFEERABASAYE RERE
Seesaw Associate Provision of services -
il B DA RERS
Pizza Marzano (Shanghai) Co., Ltd. Significantly influenced by key Loans received -
managements of the Company
BEHEER(LBBERRA ARRTEERABAEAYE BEER
Note: B 5
[0) During the year ended 31 December 2021, the above transactions i) HZE2021F12A3BIEFE - it

constituted connected transactions under the Rules Governing the
Listing of Securities on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited.

RHBRERBERSMARRAF

EHFLMRABTZRERS -

BRERZERERAR

—E-—

FEH
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
i E M R ()

For the year ended 31 December 2021
HZE2021F12A31HLFE

37 Related and connected party disclosures 37 BE R BEEHIHE @)

(Continued)

(b) Outstanding balances arising from b) EEBI2RZIELEZ
transaction with related parties KREZEEER
The following balances are outstanding at the end of the TH B T 2 X 5 2 &%
reporting period in relation to transactions with related parties: RIEH RS KRGS :

As at 31 December

M12A31H
2021 2020
RMB’000 RMB’000
TARY TFARE
Assets BE
Trade receivables FEWE 5 F 1B 68
Other receivables — current (i) H b B W 318 — BIHEA () 9,966
Other receivables — non-current (ii) H 4 e U ZiE — FEBDEA (i) 275
Other current assets — prepayments HEMme)EE — BN IE 1,500
11,809
Notes: B 5
(i) As at 31 December 2021, the balance mainly includes management 0] 2021 FE12A318 &£ FTEBE
service fees receivable due from related parties amounting to EWEBE T EERKEELN B58H
approximately RMB5.8 million, of which an expected credit loss BTARKE . HAEAZEEHER
allowance of RMB4.4 million has been provided. HaABEBILARBOHRERE -
(i) As at 31 December 2021, the amount represented loans receivable due (ii) FA2021 412 A31 B » 2 IAE FE U
from an associate, which was unsecured, interest free and repayable in BMENTER AEEE 28K
2028. /B 2028 F (EiE -

Best Food Holding Company Limited
Annual Report 2021
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

e S R R ()

For the year ended 31 December 2021
HZE2021F12A31HLFE

37 Related and connected party disclosures

(Continued)
(b) Outstanding balances arising from FAZRBEEZ
transaction with related parties (continued)
2020
RMB’000 RMB’000
FAR% FARY

Liabilities =R

Trade payables FERE 5 I8 10,914

Other payables (i) b B~ FRIE () —

10,914

Note: Bt 5 -

() As at 31 December 2021, the amount represented loans provided by a [0} H2021F 12 A31 B » IR S R 5 R
related party, which were unsecured, bore interest at 5.31% per annum HER BEIKE . RE53N%EN R A
and had been fully repaid by the Group in March 2022. MER2022F3 A ANEEELEE -

(c) Compensation of key management (c) EEEE AE &M
personnel

The remuneration of directors and other members of key EENEMTBEEERENF

management during the year was as follows: AZEHMT :

As at 31 December
M12H31H
2021 2020
RMB’000 RMB’000
FAR% FAR®

Short term employee benefits HEEERT 6,035 8,362

Share-based compensation expenses AR BERHMMAX 3,374 12,246

Post employment benefits RIKERF 434 386

Other benefits H A8 300 -

10,143 20,994
BRERERAR

—E-—FEH



For the year ended 31 December 2021
HZE2021F12A31HLFE

38 Particulars of principal subsidiaries of the

Company

(@) Particulars of the Company’s principal

e

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
i E M R ()

subsidiaries at 31 December 2021 and

2020 are as follows:

Place of incorporation
and operation/date of

Name of company incorporation Registered capital
AMREE T

EIEE: B HMEX

Heroic Path Limited* The BVI Registered capital
23 May 2014 USD1

FRREBRA HBEARES &R
20144 5HA23H 1%

Hero City Global Limited* The BVI Registered capital
21 March 2014 USD1

HHIREERAT EEAB RS AMER
201443A21H 1%L

Wonderful Dawn Holdings Limited* Hong Kong Registered capital
18 December 2015 HK$1

FBERERDF EE AMmER
20155124188 18T

Delightful Year Holdings Limited” Hong Kong Registered capital
18 December 2015 HKS$1

EFERBERAA ) AR
20155124184 18T

Hongfu Catering Management The PRC Registered capital

(Shenzhen) Co., Ltd* 10 April 2017 RMB100,000,000

ERERER(RINERAAE FE &R
201754108 100,000,0007C A R #&

Baifuhui Network Technology The PRC Registered capital

(Beijing) Co., Ltd™ 04 June 2019 RMB5,000,000

AREMBHMRULR)BERAA  HEH ZME R
201966 A4H 5,000,000 A R &

HHG* The PRC Registered capital
02 December 2003 RMB12,000,000

MEA™ HE &R
200312 A2H 12,000,000 A R #

Best Food Holding Company Limited
Annual Report 2021

©

8ARTNETEMBA R

(a) 720214 2020512 A

BMIEEXAQFAETENE 2

AZEENT
Attributable equity
interest held by
the Group Principal activities
rEERER
BERAER TEXH
2021 2020
(00 100.00% - Investment Holding
REER
(0 100.00% - Investment Holding
REER
([ 100.00% - Investment Holding
REER
(LR 100.00% - Investment Holding
REER
(L2 100.00% - Catering Management
Service
EREERRE
CELrA 66.27%  Technical Consultation
and Services
RilrA R ERS
82.50%  Chinese fast food
restaurants chain
FREHREE
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
a3 AR B ()

For the year ended 31 December 2021
HZE2021F12A31HLFE

38 Particulars of principal subsidiaries of the
Company (Continued)

BEAAETEMBARAZ

n
EXAC )

(a) 720214 &2020F12H
SIAAXRRAFTEHEQ
AZHEHBOT @

(a) Particulars of the Company’s principal
subsidiaries at 31 December 2021 and
2020 are as follows: (Continued)

Place of incorporation Attributable equity
and operation/date of interest held by
Name of company incorporation Registered capital the Group Principal activities
AMREE Y T rEERAZ
EIEE A= EMER Bt R A ER TEXB
2020
Tianjin HHG Restaurant Management ~ The PRC Registered capital 82.50%  Chinese fast food
Co., Ltd. © 11 September 2013 RMB500,000 restaurants chain
RENAARERERAR" FE A E R REEHEREE
2013 9A11H 500,0007c A R #&
Tianjin Han Fang Wei Ye The PRC Registered capital 78.38%  Chinese fast food
Food Co. Ltd # 19 June 2014 RMB27,368,400 restaurants chain
RETEARERMBERAA" i E &R REEHEREE
20146 A198 27,368,400 7T A R 15
Beijing Hefeng Technology Co. Ltd. ©  The PRC Registered capital 82.50%  Chinese fast food
2 January 2019 RMB2,000,000 restaurants chain
bR MERMEERA R i AMER
201941 A2H 2,000,0007C A R #& REEHEREE
HHG (Beijing) Supply Chain The PRC Registered capital 82.50%  Chinese fast food
Management Co. Ltd. * 2 January 2019 RMB2,000,000 restaurants chain
MeA(tR)RERERER F AR FEEEREE
RN 201941 H2H 2,000,0007C A R ¥
Hehegu International Company Hong Kong Registered capital 82.50%  Chinese fast food
Limited 21 July 2017 HKS$1 restaurants chain
Hehegu International Company Limited % /& AMAR B SRR
2017F7H218 187
Xinladao ** The PRC Registered capital creolki 87.00% - Chinese hot pot chain
30 December 2005 RMB15,000,000 restaurant
nEEr  E AfMER REEHEANRER
2005412 A30H 15,000,000 A R %
Shanghai New Spicy Way The PRC Registered capital creolkz 87.00% - Chinese hot pot chain
Catering Management Ltd. » 05 July 2010 RMB1,000,000 restaurant
FERREERERERAR. FE &R PREHNRER
201047 A5H 1,000,000T AR
BRERBRAA

—E-—FEH



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
i E M R ()

For the year ended 31 December 2021
HZE2021F12A31HLFE

BEARAAFTENBEAAZ

EXAC )

38 Particulars of principal subsidiaries of the
Company (Continued)

(a) Particulars of the Company’s principal
subsidiaries at 31 December 2021 and
2020 are as follows: (Continued)

(a) 720214 &2020F12H
SIAAXRRAFTEHEQ
AZHEHBOT @

Place of incorporation Attributable equity
and operation/date of interest held by
Name of company incorporation Registered capital the Group Principal activities
HRREEGY/ERH AEEREZ
EIEE A= EMER Bt R A ER TEXB
2021 2020
Tianjin New Spicy Way Catering The PRC Registered capital SiAu 87.00% - Chinese hot pot chain
Management Ltd. © 20 October 2010 RMB1,000,000 restaurant
RENREERERERRA" FE &R FEEHEANRERE
2010 10A 208 1,000,000T AR
Xi’an La Zhi Dao Catering The PRC Registered capital Cpfi 87.00% - Chinese hot pot chain
Management Ltd. # 11 October 2011 RMB100,000 restaurant
ARRZEERERERAT" G &R FEEHARERE
2011108118 100,0007C A R
Shijiazhuang New Spicy Way The PRC Registered capital cyeolki 87.00% - Chinese hot pot chain
Catering Management Ltd. * 26 October 2011 RMB500,000 restaurant
BREHBREEREREGRAR FH AMER FELEEARER
20114107 26A 500,0007C A R #&
Langfang New Spicy Way The PRC Registered capital cypss 87.00% - Chinese hot pot chain
Catering Management Ltd. * 31 October 2011 RMB100,000 restaurant
BHMREEREEARAA B AR REEHANRER
2011104 31H 100,0007C A B
Zhengzhou New Spicy Way The PRC Registered capital creolkr 87.00% - Chinese hot pot chain
Catering Management Ltd. * 09 December 2011 RMB100,000 restaurant
N REERERBERAD F ERilig= ¥ PEEHARER
2011412 A 98 100,0007C A R
Tangshan New Spicy Way The PRC Registered capital creolkz 87.00% - Chinese hot pot chain
Catering Management Ltd. » 16 December 2011 RMB100,000 restaurant
B REERERFRAR" FE aMER PEEHANRERE
20114128168 100,0007C A R
Huhehaote New Spicy Way The PRC Registered capital creolki 87.00% - Chinese hot pot chain
Catering Management Ltd. » 12 March 2012 RMB100,000 restaurant
FHNEBEREBRERAR" FE &R REEHEANRERE
201243 A12H 100,0007C A R

Best Food Holding Company Limited
Annual Report 2021
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
a3 AR B ()

For the year ended 31 December 2021
HZE2021F12A31HLFE

38 Particulars of principal subsidiariesofthe 38 X AT FTEK B A 7 2
Company (continued) 15 @

(a) Particulars of the Company’s principal
subsidiaries at 31 December 2021 and
2020 are as follows: (Continued)

(a) 720214 &2020F12H
SIAAXRRAFTEHEQ
AZHEHBOT @

Place of incorporation Attributable equity
and operation/date of interest held by
Name of company incorporation Registered capital the Group Principal activities
AMREE Y T rEERAZ
EIEE A= EMER Bt R A ER TEXB
2021 2020
Beijing Hong Ri Hong Yuan Food The PRC Registered capital CREY 81.78% - Manufacturing
Co., Ltd * 28 March 2012 RMB1,064,000 condiments
TtREERRRAERAR" F A E R EERKE
201243 A 28H 1,064,000t AR
Shenyang New Spicy Way The PRC Registered capital cyeolkz 87.00% - Chinese hot pot chain
Catering Management Ltd. » 31 May 2012 RMB100,000 restaurant
RBLRREERERERAA. G &R FEEHARER
20124 5A31H 100,0007C A K #
Hefei New Spicy Way Catering The PRC Registered capital cyeolki 87.00% - Chinese hot pot chain
Management Ltd. “ 16 October 2012 RMB100,000 restaurant
AEFREERERFRAR" i AMER FELEEARER
20121073 16A 100,0007C A R
Beijing New Spicy Way Trading Co., The PRC Registered capital creolki 87.00% - Wholesale and retail
Ltd # 17 October 2017 RMB1,000,000
IR REBEERAAS F AR HERTE
2017E10A178 1,000,0007T A R ¥
Xinladao Catering Management Hong Kong Registered capital creolkz 87.00% - Chinese hot pot chain
Hong Kong Co. Limited. 04 July 2019 HK$10,000 restaurant
NREENER(FB)ERAA N RN ¥ PEEHANRER
201947 A4H 10,000 7T
Shenzhen Qianhai Youfu Network The PRC Registered capital (LR 100.00% - Catering Management
Technology Co., Ltd.* 06 November 2019 RMB10,000,000 Service
AR BRERBRBERAF FE ERilig- ¥ EREBRRY
201911 A6H 10,000,0007C A R %
Tianjin Tongfu Network Technology The PRC Registered capital (I 100.00% - Catering Management
Co., Ltd * 11 June 2020 RMB5,000,000 Service
RETRBEBERERERAF" FE &R EREBRY
20206 A11H 5,000,0007C A & #
BRERBRAA

—E-—FEH
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
i E M R ()

For the year ended 31 December 2021
HZE2021F12A31HLFE

38 Particulars of principal subsidiaries of the
Company (Continued)

(a) Particulars of the Company’s principal
subsidiaries at 31 December 2021 and

2020 are as follows: (Continued)

BBEARAAETEMBE AR Z

EXAC )

(a) 720214 K% 20205124
SIAAXRRAFTEHEQ

AZHEHBOT @

Place of incorporation Attributable equity
and operation/date of interest held by
Name of company incorporation Registered capital the Group Principal activities
MRS FH rEERAZ
EIEE A= EMER Bt R A ER TEXB
2020
Beijing Bailanerling Food Technology ~ The PRC Registered capital 86.43%  Restaurant Operation
Co., Ltd » 21 September 2020 RMB1,000,000
TRAH_ZRAMRERAF FE &R ERKE
202049 A21 A 1,000,0007C A R ¥
Beijing Baiquanerling Technology The PRC Registered capital cllerlZ 89.91%  Restaurant Operation
Co., Ltd * 10 October 2020 RMB1,000,000
EREE-ZRAMEERARF  HE &R EEge
2020410 A10H 1,000,0007C A R ¥
Beijing Baikeerling Technology Co., The PRC Registered capital 86.43%  Restaurant Operation
Ltd # 12 October 2020 RMB1,000,000
TREE-ZRAMEAERARA" HE FAMAER BRgE
202010 A 128 1,000,0007C A & %
Baifu JieZhi Catering (Shenzhen) The PRC Registered capital ceeren 72.37% - Restaurant Operation
Co., Ltd # 24 July 2020 RMB1,000,000
AREEER(RINDARD A B AR ERKE
202047 A24H 1,000,0007C A & %
Baifu Gongying (Beijing) Network The PRC Registered capital (LR 100.00% - Catering Management
Technology Co., Ltd © 17 June 2020 RMB70,000,000 Service
BRER (IR BEMBEERAA FE ERilig= ¥ EREBRY
2020F6 178 70,000,000 A R &
Lanzhou Jufu Catering Management The PRC Registered capital 51.00% —  Leasing and business
Co., Ltd # 30 April 2021 RMB1,000,000 services
HINBBERERERAR" FE aMER HERBERY
202154308 1,000,000 A B %
Notes: B 5
* Registered as a wholly-owned foreign investment enterprise under PRC * BEPELZ AMRIEEE
Law H
- Registered as a sino-foreign cooperative joint venture under PRC Law * RFEFEER FMAFIINEE
1=
& Registered as a limited liability company under the PRC Law -~ BEFEER ZMAERER

Best Food Holding Company Limited
Annual Report 2021
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

e S R R ()

For the year ended 31 December 2021
HZE2021F12A31HLFE

38 Particulars of principal subsidiaries of the 38
Company (Continued)

(b) Non-controlling interests (NCI)

Set out below is summarised financial information for the
HHG Group that has non-controlling interests that are
material to the Group. The amounts disclosed for the HHG
Group are before inter-company eliminations.

ARDEIENBEA D2 H

15 (@)

(b) FEZERELR

TXEIMEAKREZHMBER
ME ZESERBHAEEMS
BEAZFFEREDS MAaRE
ErzeRENAMEHEANE-

Summarised balance sheet EEAERBE
2021 2020
RMB’000 RMB’000
FARY FARE
Current assets REEE 151,046 160,350
Current liabilities mE A G (1583,556) (160,312)
Current net (liabilities)/assets RE(aE), BERE (2,510) 38
Non-current assets EREBEE 360,492 368,250
Non-current liabilities FmEBEE (149,691) (149,699)
Non-current net assets ERBEEFHE 210,801 218,551
Net assets EEFH 208,291 218,589
Accumulated NCI R FEIEiRE RS 29,686 31,470

EREERARAT
—E-—FEH
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
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For the year ended 31 December 2021
HZE2021F12A31BILFE

38 Particulars of principal subsidiaries ofthe 38 A AT T EMEB A T 2

Company (continued) 5@
(b) Non-controlling interests (NCI) (Continued) (b) FEIERR RS @)
Summarised statement of comprehensive THPBERFPE
income
2021 2020
RMB’000 RMB’000
TAR® FARYE
Revenue WA 457,887 392,680
Loss for the year FRER (10,298) (9,561)
Total comprehensive loss EHBBREE (10,298) (9,561)
Loss allocated to NCI mIEIE R IR BE 2 B 18 (1,784) (1,713)
Dividends paid to NCI T TFIEEREE RS - -
Summarised cash flows RERERE
2021 2020
RMB’000 RMB’000
TARY FARE
Cash flows generated from operating activities & & ZEFF1FIR L RE 54,594 80,251
Cash flows used in investing activities KBEIHMARSRE (15,672) (5,184)
Cash flows used in financing activities MEEESMAREAE (68,917) (64,299)

Net (decrease)/increase in cashandcash HRERIREZEY
equivalents CRLZ) /48 ini% 88 (29,995) 10,768

@ Best Food Holding Company Limited
Annual Report 2021
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
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For the year ended 31 December 2021
HZE2021F12A31HLFE

38 Particulars of principal subsidiaries of the 38
Company (Continued)

(b) Non-controlling interests (NCI) (continued)

Set out below is summarised financial information for the
Xinladao Group that has non-controlling interests that are
material to the Group. The amounts disclosed for the
Xinladao Group are before inter-company eliminations.

Summarised balance sheet

ARDEIENBEA D2 H

15 (@)

(b) IFEI= AR = @)

TXEINFHRERE M BER
ME ZEERBEHAEEMNS
BERZIFEREZ HRES
BroBE R MEHARKE-

EEEERAE

2021 2020
RMB’000 RMB’000
TAR® TAR®

39,214 54,906
(193,755) (194,930)

(154,541) (140,024)

533,900 617,092
(139,874) (179,816)

394,026 437,276

239,485 297,252

Current assets mENEE
Current liabilities mEaE
Current net liabilities REBEEFHE
Non-current assets IEREBEE
Non-current liabilities el UN=E
Non-current net assets ERBEEFHE
Net assets EEFH
Accumulated NCI R FEIEiRE RS

31,280 38,788

EREERARAT
—E-—FEH
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For the year ended 31 December 2021
HZE2021F12A31BILFE

38 Particulars of principal subsidiaries ofthe 38 A AT T EMEB A T 2

Company (continued) 5@
(b) Non-controlling interests (NCI) (Continued) (b) FEIERR RS @)
Summarised statement of comprehensive THPBERFPE
income
2021 2020
RMB’000 RMB’000
FAR% FAR®E
Revenue WA 273,530 255,793
Loss for the year FAEBE (57,756) (60,053)
Total comprehensive loss 2HEBRAE (57,756) (60,053)
Loss allocated to NCI mIEIE R IR BE 2 B 18 (7,508) (7,807)
Dividends paid to NCI T TFIEEREE RS - -
Summarised cash flows RERERE
2021 2020
RMB’000 RMB’000
TARY FARE
Cash flows generated from operating activites #& & )EENFTSIR &R E 70,429 41,346
Cash flows (used in)/generated from investing & & & &) (T ) Fris

activities Rene (5,603) 1,216
Cash flows used in financing activities REEBMABRESRE (64,680) (60,339)

Net increase/(decrease) incashandcash BERRELZEY

equivalents B CRd) FE (17,777)
@ Best Food Holding Company Limited
Annual Report 2021
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For the year ended 31 December 2021
HZE2021F12 A1 B ILFE

39 Balance sheet and reserve movement of

the Company

9 ARAEERBEREFEE
2E

Balance sheet of the Company APREEEER
As at 31 December
M12H831H
2021 2020
RMB’000 RMB’000
FARE FARE
NON-CURRENT ASSETS IRBEE
Interest in subsidiaries MEARKRE
— assets due from subsidiaries —ERNBAREE 801,317 1,414,917
Derivative financial instrument TEesmIT A 22,543 72,226
823,860 1,487,143
CURRENT ASSETS REEE
Cash and cash equivalents ReRBEEEEYD 19,607
Other receivables H th JE U 1B 5,958
Other current assets HibRBEE 42 42
33,229 25,607
TOTAL ASSETS EEHAE 857,089 1,512,750
CURRENT LIABILITY REEE
Other payables H fth JE S 3R0B 3,599
Amount due to subsidiaries JE ST B A B BUE 1,434
Convertible bonds — interest payable AIBMKRESE—FERFE 45,837
50,870

HEERERA T
feorira D
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
e M B RRME ()

For the year ended 31 December 2021
HZE2021F12A31HLFE

39 Balance sheet and reserve movement of 9 xR TEEEEBREGHEE

the Company (continued) B E @
Balance sheet of the Company (Continued) APBEERER®@®
As at 31 December
M12H831H
2021 2020
RMB’000 RMB’000
FAR% FARY
NON-CURRENT LIABILITY ERBEE
Convertible bonds A% (& & 442,267 439,588
442,267 439,588
TOTAL LIABILITY EEHEE 527,778 490,458
CAPITAL AND RESERVE BEXRFEE
Share capital B& 2 133,023 133,023
Reserves i 196,288 889,269
TOTAL EQUITY EEBE 329,311 1,022,292
TOTAL LIABILITY AND EQUITY EEREREE 857,089 1,512,750
The balance sheet of the Company was approved by the Board of RARIBEBEBRD N202243 A29
Directors on 29 March 2022 and was signed on its behalf: HE&ESE2d & WHh TWATRE
®E:
Zhao John Huan Wang Xiaolong
HLE FEE
CHAIRMAN DIRECTOR
*TE EF
@ Best Food Holding Company Limited
Annual Report 2021
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
a3 AR B ()

For the year ended 31 December 2021
(Z2021F 12 A31 B ILFE

39 Balance sheet and reserve movement of 9 XAOEEREERKFEE
the Company (Continued) 2B )
Reserve movement of the Company AAT#HEESS
Share Other Accumulated
premium reserves deficit Total
BHRE HihfkE RitEE &

RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
TARW TARY TAR® TARM

At 1 January 2020 R2020F1 A1 H 693,388 326,437 (95,280) 924,545
Loss for the year FANBAE — - (21,261) (21,261)
Value of services provided — BERx #E =t 2 & I% {7 48

under share option BYRFE11E T FTiE

schemes and share award  R7& 2 (BE1&E

scheme — 12,247 — 12,247
Currency translation ERHREER

differences — (26,262) — (26,262)
At 31 December 2020 M 2020F12H31H 693,388 312,422 (116,541) 889,269
Loss for the year FREE — — (659,160) (659,160)
Value of services provided — B& A& R =t 2 R A% 17 88

under share option Bhet &1 T Prig

schemes and share award AR 2 (B (&

scheme — 3,374 — 3,374
Currency translation HHMBREEE

differences — (87,195) — (37,195)
At 31 December 2021 R2021612H31H 693,388 278,601 (775,701) 196,288

40 Events after the balance sheet date 40 HEHEREE

Subsequent to 31 December 2021 and up to the date of the R2021F12 A1 BB REEZHKE T
consolidated financial statements, no important event affecting the WEABH WERAFEARAEFHNE
Group had occurred. ANEIH -

BRERBRAF
—E_—FFH



FINANCIAL SUMMARY _
MR

Year ended 31 December
BZ12A31ALLEE
2017 2018 2019 2020 2021
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
FARE FARM FARM FARE TFAR®
(Note (b)) (Note (b)) (Note (b)) (Note (a)) (Note (a))
(aE))  (MisE(p))  (BFFE())  (BFsE(a)) | ChzaE))

(Restated)
(FEt)

RESULTS E
Revenue EER 751,801 470,181 998,250 650,691 752,959
Profit/(loss) before taxation & %t A F, (E518) 34,704 (7,474) (79,257) (160,689) | (i a:))
Income tax (expense)/credit FrE % (X H), %  (14,018) (2,348) (7,013) 9,693 13,848
Profit/(loss) for the year FREF (BB 20,686 (9,822) (86,270)  (150,996) | (ihl ckid)
(@)  The financial figures were extracted from the consolidated financial statement. (@ BB TREEREVBERE -

(b)  The financial figures were extracted from the 2020 annual report. No separate  (b) BT 08 B 2020F F R 0 & E2017

disclosures of continuing operations and discontinued operations were made on the FI2AMBLFE VBB T ERBZELE
financial figures for the year ended 31 December 2017. EBRERIEEEXBORBKE -

At 31 December
M12A31H
2017 2018 2019 2020 2021
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
FARE FARME FARM FARM FARY

ASSETS AND LIABILITIES BEER & &

Total assets BERTE 1,325,752 2,438,434 2,280,365 2,157,711 | | o) ele
Total liabilities SRR (399,890) (1,455,138) (1,295,399) (1,157,040) | [l [ )

Net assets BEFHE 925,862 983,296 984,966 1,000,671 355,411

@ Best Food Holding Company Limited
Annual Report 2021
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ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE (“ESG”) REPORT

RiE

About the Report

Reporting Content

This Environmental, Social and Governance (“ESG”) Report (“the Report”)
is prepared by Best Food Holding Company Limited (“Best Food”, “the
Company” or “We”) to review and summarise the Company’s ESG work
in 2021.

Reporting Scope

The reporting scope includes Beijing HHG Restaurant Management Co.,
Ltd. and Tianjin HHG Restaurant Management Co., Ltd. (*HHG”) as well
as Beijing Xinladao Catering Management Ltd. (“Xinladao”), which are all
controlled by Best Food. Unless otherwise specified, the Report covers
the period from 1 January 2021 to 31 December 2021.

Basis of Report

The information disclosed by the Report is the “mandatory disclosure
requirements” and the “general disclosures” and the environmental KPIs
set out in the Environmental, Social and Governance Reporting Guide (the
“ESG Reporting Guide”), Appendix 27 to the Rules Governing the Listing
of Secuirities released by the Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited.

Reporting Principles

The Company has complied with the “comply or explain” provisions set
out in Part C of the ESG Reporting Guide during the year under review.

Materiality: The content and order of the Report is based on the
communication with investors and other stakeholders and the
identification of the importance of ESG issues. Please refer to “Stakeholder
Engagement” and “Material Issues” for the detail.

Balance: The report objectively discloses positive and negative
information to ensure an impartial presentation of the company’s ESG
performance during the reporting period.

Quantitative: The scope, assumptions and calculation method of KPIs
is explained in the Report.

Consistency: Unless otherwise specified, the methodologies used in the
Report is same with the 2020 ESG Report.
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Instruction

It is to be read in conjunction with the Corporate Governance Report
contained in the 2027 Annual Report of Best Food Holding Company
Limited, for a more comprehensive understanding of ESG performance
of the Company.

Board Statement

The Board of Directors of Best Food believes that the establishment and
perfection of ESG management system is conducive for Best Food’s
development and better fulfilment of its social responsibilities. In January
2021, we gave effect to the ESG Management Manual of Best Food,
under which the Board of Directors was responsible for the supervision of
ESG issues, while the Working Group (consisting of the functional
departments of the Company and the executives of each subsidiary in
charge of ESG management) is responsible for the implementation of
specific ESG work.

Before the publishing of the 2021 ESG Report, the Board of Directors of
Best Food evaluated the potential impacts and opportunities the ESG
may bring to the Company’s overall strategy, and reviewed the results of
materiality assessment on ESG issues. The Board of Directors has
identified the relevant ESG issues of Best Food and determined the
current ESG management measures and the unique ESG management
concept of Best Food. Details of Best Food’s major ESG issues such as
green operation, food safety and responsible operation are presented in
Section 1-6 of the Report.

During the reporting year, Best Food set up the environmental goals in
terms of business operation, namely the target emission and resource
consumption levels from operation of restaurants, office areas and self-
owned factories. The Board of Directors reviewed and discussed about
the setting and achievement of the goals.

With detailed disclosures of the Company’s ESG issues, the Report was
reviewed and approved by the Board of Directors on 29 March 2022
after being confirmed by management.

Best Food Holding Company Limited
Annual Report 2021

EE L
45 e BCE R IR A IR A 72021 6 6 4R

TIEREAMEEN —WHE  UEBE
EEMEEMNTHERMERR HERE
JRBIARE -

EEEEH

ARERESSMERE BUNTHE QAR
B e kEAR(ESG)EEERZ AR
AREREBRNERNETNBETLEEF-
2021F 1 H  HMBABT(ERERIIEER
HEREREREIEER) BEFERET
HIRE HeRkEAETEMNEERE AR
AIBERE SR P 2 & 1= AR A RIESGE £ A 4 B
ESGI{E&BFT - B EESGEBE TEMHE -

RAFEESGHRSEHMA ARERESS
FfE TESGEEH AR BRRBNEER
LHEKE B TESGEENER M EE
R-BEFGC THRAREMRESGHEZE
YHEREMNESGHBEEESHMARR
BEEMNESGERE R - FHARERER
BEL Rmir BEELENEZESGE
BEENFAADT BEEARENE =
FERNBEMETHRE -

RAERFEAN AREBRCRLEETR
BEMEBORRAR NERME B
EHESRTIRELEHNFREERH
AR EEERBRNRINERETT
TEM R e

AREFERETRAARE HERER
MEEEE KEEERRAR R_T—_—
FZA-tNBEbBEESEHMLE-



ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE (“ESG”) REPORT (CONTINUED)

ESG Governance Structure

ESG Philosophy

Best Food believes that a sound ESG management system is a requisite
for the Company’s sustainable development. We focus on ESG
performance of catering companies in which we own shares and are
committed to building a catering industry investment and management
platform empowered by the idea of sustainability.

F& Harmony

I
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RE - #HERERER
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DRIE T ERE2 R 2 ERDERFH
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The Company’s ESG vision is to realise harmonious coexistence with the environment and the society. We firmly and
actively fulfil corporate social responsibility and strive to build a harmonious relationship between the Company and the
environment, employees and the society through our constant efforts.
ERHERERMENNBERERARAERREE HekEARTRANERBES BHMBTHEZME
TREEMEEE FEBREBINTEHS N ECFERE BINLKM G BEEMBERE 2R -

BBt & 1E Team Cooperation

i

Team cooperation is a key attribute for the Company to achieve good ESG performance. As the business line of the
Company mainly covers catering industry, we face complicated challenges in ESG management. To overcome such
challenges, it is critical to collaborate as a team within the Company to realise its vision of harmony.
EXEERARARIERBITRERE HELERRHRENAESH ARAFEXEBHEEEFRERE  ER
B oMHEREATEITHEBEERNIE - RERBARRACHEREGIE THEREENELRE B
FES -

&2 Scientific management

|

Scientific management is an effective way for the Company to realise good ESG performance. The Company insists on
promoting scientific management methodologies and creating a more efficient ESG management model.
MEBERREAAFEREREE HEREARHRENEAEUNEAT AATBRBHEENMBESENEERESE  #il
BIEFEMEMNRE HeakEREREREN -
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ESG Governance Structure

With a vision of “building a ‘new’ multi-brand restaurant platform
enterprise based on digital operation capabilities”, we stick to compliant
operation and incorporate the concept of sustainability in our business.
We also formulate ESG strategies, engage with stakeholders and monitor
ESG performance to continuously improve ESG management.
Considering the practical conditions of the Company, the following ESG
governance structure is established upon the review and authorisation of
the Board of Directors and management of the Company.

The Board of Directors is the highest decision-making body for ESG
management of the Company, responsible for monitoring ESG issues
and taking the overall responsibility for the Company’s ESG strategy and
reporting. The ESG working group (the “Working Group”) consists of the
Company’s Internal Control and Audit Department (the “Internal Control
Department”) and the executives of each subsidiary in charge of ESG
management (commonly the head of the Finance Department). As the
centre for ESG management, the Working Group’s duties related to ESG
management include:

(1)  developing ESG principles and strategies;

(2) setting ESG objectives and following up the achievement of such
objectives;

(8) assessing the materiality of ESG issues and determining the key
ESG issues of the Company;

(4) evaluating ESG risks and developing controls and measures for
significant ESG risks based on materiality assessment results;
(5) reviewing and approving annual ESG working plans of various

departments;

(6) preparing disclosures such as ESG report;

(7)  reporting to the Board on above issues.

Best Food Holding Company Limited
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Related functional and business departments of each subsidiary suchas KJEER AR ANER TMHESLS =%
human resources, marketing & operation, quality control, sourcing and % « £ 8 - RIS HEBE N EK T A
internal control are responsible for: g

(1)  developing annual ESG working plan of the department and (—) BB AN ZLFIESGEE 2 WiIFMR &

carrying out ESG work based on the approved annual plan; B EFETE T AR T &
(2)  taking measures to achieve the approved ESG objectives based on Z) REBERKHEN R FIESGE 1Z - R EL
the final approved ESG objectives of the Company; TEFE B RIS 5

(3) collecting and regularly providing disclosure materials for ESG (=) WY F HHIZHESGRE M FEE R
reporting;

(4) identifying ESG risks and developing risk control measures  (PO) % BIESGE k& - # £ ESG/E b FE ¥ &
accordingly; i

(56) organising ESG trainings to enhance staff's ESG awareness and  (F1) 41 4 ESGIE |- IR+ A 7l 8 TESGE

capability; Bl
(6)  conducting ESG study, communication and publicity; and (7X) FIEESGHIZ ~ X mMERE T E:
(7)  reporting to the Working Group on above issues. (£) BLIA L ETHEAESG T fEAR#E/TIER -

The Board of Directors

BExg

ESG Working Group
ESG I {4

Internal Control and Internal Designated officers in charge of ESG management in HHG,
Audit Department of the Xinladao and other majority-owned companies
Company MEAESGEEA
P BB 422 I B2 2 51 &P HFIBESGEE A
HZERAREEA

ESG Working Departments
ESG T {E &5 P9

BRERZERERAR
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Assessment of Material ESG Issues

Stakeholder Engagement

The Company values our stakeholders as well as their key expectations.
We establish a variety of communication channels to enhance
stakeholder engagement and understand their expectations and valuable
recommendations on Best Food’s development in a timely fashion to

safeguard their interests.

Major Stakeholders
FTERNZEER

Key Expectations

EFEHFR
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Ways of Communication

BERE

Government and regulators

B R B s

Shareholders and investors
R EEES

Employees
81T

Suppliers
,T/ N\ / =~

Clients and consumers

EFEBEE

Community

it
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Compliance operation
BREEZ

Stringent internal control and risk
management

BRAR ) 79 B 22 il Ko [ B
Energy conservation

£ B R HE

Investment returns

% & Bl
Transparent governance
E. /El % Eﬂ

Remuneration and benefits
= B 12 F)

Career development
BEZERE

Labour rights

BT

Fair competition
NS

Integrity

iz

Common development
HAE R

Service value

AR 7% B B

Product responsibility
EmBE

Privacy protection

= AL IR &

Community development
R

Public warfare activities
Nms

Major conferences, policy consultations, institutional
inspections, official exchanges, information
disclosure

EPN-

5=
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Annual reports and announcements, meetings
ERRAE  BH

==

Employee satisfaction survey, labour union, employee
activities, hotline and email

EImEERAE I1g BLEH BER
B4

Bk

Visits conferences, telephone calls and emails

//|LEE|E /ET;%% EE:H%&EB 1£F

Face-to-face communication, telephone calls and
emails

M HE RN - BENEAA

Visits, donation and other charitable activities,
corporate presentations and internship opportunities
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Material Matrix BMEE

The Company sets out the materiality matrix through communication with RN A F@ B Z R EHE T EFZHBE 58
key stakeholders, taking into consideration management’'s B VTiEABTEEBES  RINLERD K -
recommendations and internal and external experts’ analysis. The matrix EBr&EZMHEEE ZEEMHEEE S S
contains key issues in the ESG Reporting Guide and helps us determine (3835 - @ R E A REIE3DP HEE S
the focus of ESG reporting and following-up action plans. BN EPRAEREERE e kES
WEMEBREAD  RT— 1T858 -
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2 £ 494 JR Resource saving 2 B f % 2 B {2 B Food safety and health
3 1R+ £ REF1 B #A & JR Conservation of ecological 3 HEEIRE Mt @R MBEIR Envionmental and social risk
environment and natural resources management related to the supply chain

4 FE %} R {& # {1 Climate change tackling 4 Bt 2 3& 35 Dining environment
5 AR 7 & £ Service quality
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7 & & A 8 Advertising compliance

8 50 3% = #E (R + Intellectual property protection

9 &% %2 % Data security

10 B I # 5 /REE Employees’ rights protection
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1. Insisting on Steady Pandemic Prevention

In 2021, Best Food paid close attention to COVID-19 development and
gave it the highest priority to protect the health and safety of employees
and consumers. In a proactive response to calls from the state
government, we took precise actions to meet the pandemic prevention
requirements of state and local government and took an array of
pandemic prevention and control measures to unreservedly meet the
catering consumption needs of consumers during the special period.

1.1 Implementing Pandemic Prevention and
Control

During the stage of regularised pandemic prevention and control, we
implemented pandemic prevention and control in every aspect of daily
operation to build safe and sound dining service environment for
consumers. HHG and Xinladao assembled special teams for pandemic
prevention and control, which were responsible for the management and
implementation of pandemic prevention measures at stores, including
serious implementation of measures such as QR code scanning and
temperature checking before entry, regular disinfection of restaurants,
application of one-meter interval waiting lines, and encouraging
customers to use QR code to place orders. In addition, HHG and
Xinladao enhanced employee management in favour of pandemic
prevention. Trainings on pandemic prevention and control were arranged
for employees, arrangements were made for employees to take nucleic
acid testing and get vaccinated on a timely manner, and the policy of
“avoiding unnecessary travels outside Beijing” was firmly implemented for
employees in Beijing. To help control the spread of pandemic, in certain
key areas for pandemic prevention and control, brands controlled by the
Company closed part of their restaurants or shrank the operating space
of their restaurants to dilute the possibility of pandemic spreading caused
by dining in restaurant.

Best Food Holding Company Limited
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The pandemic prevention measures taken by HHG include:

Prepare anti-pandemic materials for employees and customers in
the restaurant

0 Provide all employees with disposable masks and gloves;

o Provide no-wash hand sanitiser for offline customers and
office visitors.

Perform rigorous disinfection for public areas
o Clean desk surface with alcohol on a regular basis;

o] Disinfect restaurants twice a day, and tun on UV light to
disinfect public areas.

Track employees’ physical conditions at all times

o) Check temperature of service attendants and customers in
restaurants;

0 Report to the company promptly should any employee
develop a fever or respiratory symptom and the employee
should stop working immediately.

Ensure food safety in the supply chain

o) Ask suppliers for NAT reports as required by the laws and
regulations of the state.

The pandemic prevention measures taken by Xinladao include:

Intensify efforts in inspection on the supply chain

0 Check NAT report of each batch of frozen products and NAT
results of the deliverymen;

o) Conduct NAT on cold chain food in warehouses every three
days.
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° Perform routine pandemic prevention

o] Carry out pandemic prevention trainings for frontline workers
on the basis of actual operation needs and local government
requirements;

0 Ensure the practice of routine pandemic prevention measures
at restaurants, such as temperature checking and
disinfection.

° Protect employees’ health and safety

0 Encourage office employees to work from home and cancel
some large offline meetings;

0 Strictly follow policy of personnel reporting and quarantine.

1.2 Ensuring Stable Operation

In order to bring the Company back to normal operation, at the key stage
to have the pandemic controlled, Best Food took active measures to
ensure that the catering brands under its control were well prepared for
the next steps of pandemic prevention and control as well as resumption
of work and production.

HHG stocked up anti-pandemic supplies to make sure there were
sufficient anti-pandemic supplies to ensure the safety of employees and
consumers in their daily life. Xinladao formulated the Xinladao Guidelines
on Work Resumption and Prevention & Control during COVID-19, which
specified measures for restaurant personnel daily management, hygiene
and health, ventilation and disinfection, kitchen management, take-out
management and dining environment, so as to ensure each restaurant
can resume to work under safe operation conditions.

Xinladao formulated the Labour Management Policies for Scattered
COVID-19 Outbreaks to detail standards for labour management and
salary payment during outbreaks. According to the Policies, restaurant
employees should work on rotation during outbreaks, and employees on
duty could enjoy regular salaries and welfares, while employees not on
duty would receive salaries for suspending of work. At the meantime,
Xinladao would perform stringent review on the health information
provided by recruits upon entry, including additional review on local “Health
kit” status and 48-hour NAT results, so as to ensure the safety and health
of both new and senior employees.
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1.3 Assuming Social Responsibility

Best Food has always been committed to its social responsibilities. Under
the extensive impacts of COVID-19 on the whole catering industry, in
addition to ensuring smooth operation for companies in which we own
shares, we have also helped our peers in the industry go through such
rough time and supported China’s catering industry in combating the
pandemic. In 2021, Best Food continuously conducted a series of
restaurant searching activities themed as “Hundreds of Cities, Thousands
of Restaurants”, aiming to identify restaurants stuck in operation
difficulties and waiting for sub-lease or transfer and small and micro
catering enterprises seeking for business transformation, and by means
of integrating our own advantages and resources, help these peers in the
catering industry to survive the “cold winter”, thus contributing to the
recovery of the catering industry. In 2021, HHG was recognised by All-
China Federation of Industry and Commerce for its positive contribution
to pandemic prevention and control and economic and social
development.

2. Healthy and Optimal Food

Relevant UN warao | Q) e
RERER AND PRODUCTION

Sustainable Development it auEun

Goals (SDGs) _,\,\f. m
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(SDGs)

Upholding the values of “Focusing on customers, making breakthrough
with innovation, providing platform for strivers, creating, sharing and
profiting together” and the mission of “Providing people with delicious
and healthy daily meals”, Best Food spears no efforts to provide
customers with healthy, green, safe and fresh food.
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2.1 Safe Meals

Taking food safety as the priority, the Company highly value it and believe
that the product responsibility is our foothold. The Company is in strict
compliance with the Food Safety Law of the People’s Republic of China,
the Law of the People’s Republic of China on the Protection of Consumer
Rights and Interests, the Cybersecurity Law of the People’s Republic of
China, the Product Quality Law of the People’s Republic of China and
other relevant laws and regulations. From the source of ingredients, we
strictly control food safety in every link of purchase, logistics, factory and
kitchen. HHG and Xinladao are certified by 1SO22000 Food Safety
Management System and have set HACCP system as their standard on-
site review system to identify, assess and control food safety and other
risks related to product quality. In 2021, the Company had no significant
violation against the laws and regulations related to product health and
safety. No product recalls happened due to health and safety reasons.

2.1.1 High-Quality Food Ingredients

We actively implement responsible sourcing, and always pay attention to
the source quality and quality inspection of ingredients. For product
quality problems identified in the supply chain, we will ask for first-hand
information immediately, ask relevant departments to carry out
investigations, and solve the problem through rejection, recall, exchange
or other ways based on actual situation.

HHG strictly controls the quality of ingredients at the sourcing side from
multiple perspectives. Indicators related to taste of meat products such
as water loss rate, shape, yield need to be tested. For vegetable
products, we take pests and pesticide residues into special consideration
and replace commmon products with pest resistant vegetables to improve
the product quality from sources. Furthermore, HHG has established a
close communication mechanism with its suppliers. The quality
department of the headquarters collects products reports from
restaurants each month and timely sends feedback to the supplier that is
mainly involved in the unqualified batches. HHG adopts a spot check
mechanism for products received from suppliers, including acceptance
inspection on arrival products, spot check on products before delivery,
spot check on products at restaurant, etc. This year, a batch of eggs
purchased by HHG were found extensively damaged during spot check.
After confirming that the stock was sufficient, HHG returned this batch of
eggs in a timely manner.
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Xinladao seriously implements various quality management requirements
and performs stringent acceptance inspection on raw materials, and only
those that pass the verification and inspection could be put into
production. Prior to the procurement, Xinladao exchanges and identifies
potential risks in the aquatic product industry based on public data
provided by National Centre for Risk Management and Assessment. For
food storage, Xinladao has developed a food shelf life management
system to ensure that the food in stock meet relevant regulations on shelf
life. At the same time, it has fully deployed the transport vehicle
temperature monitoring system to ensure low temperature transportation
of food and prevent food spoilage.

2.1.2 Safe Diets

Committed to the management concept of “farm-to-table”, HHG has
established a quality and food security standard system, logistics and
warehouse network monitoring system and food quality issues tracking
system to ensure the safety and stable supply of the product supply
chain. HHG has constantly perfected the Comprehensive Emergency
Plan for Food Safety Incidents, the Measures for Safety Management of
Supplier Quality, the Specification for Food Safety Management, the
Measures for Management of Food Additives, the Measures for
Management of Food Recalls and other policies related to product quality
inspection. This year, the management system adopted by HHG
successively passed the certifications of ISO9001 Quality Management
System and 1S0O22000 Food Safety Management System. At the
meantime, HHG acted in active response to calls from the state
government. Observing the National Food Safety Standards — General
Hygienic Specifications for Catering Services (GB31654-2021) published
in 2021, HHG arranged online training and assessment for employees
engaged in food safety in departments of quality control, purchasing,
logistic, products, offices and operation, helping them understand the
relevance of the content of standards to their own business.

The measures taken by HHG include:
° Enhance restaurant management
o] Regularly review the control points of quality management,
labels for quality traceability, operation procedures for food

safety, disinfection records, etc. In 2021, we have conducted
209 inspections on 95 restaurants in operation;
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o] Provide on-site instructions, standardise food cooking
process, make improvement based on problems identified
and review work procedures;

o] Organise microorganism monitoring on tableware and
drinking water at restaurants and send feedback to
restaurants in the form of monthly report;

0 Provide consumers with takeaway products with plastic seals
to avoid cross contamination.

° Strengthen quality review at factories

0 Designated full-time quality inspectors for inspection and
acceptance of the safety and quality of products during
transportation and storage, including delivery inspection
report of each batch of food and animal inspection certificate
of meat products;

0 Assign quality management personnel from the headquarters
to perform regular inspection on production plants of HHG
and assist in monitoring the production quality.

Xinladao upholds the core concept of “food quality is the manifestation of
personal quality” and establishes the food safety system based on its
business characteristics. In respect of management structure, Xinladao
has established the Product Committee of Xinladao under the leadership
of the Chief Executive Officer (“CEQ”). The committee members include
the heads of relevant departments and core operating personnel at
restaurants. Xinladao continuously carries out stringent management on
pest & rat prevention, foreign matter, personnel health and hygiene,
materials and other matters at restaurants using a restaurant food safety
technology assessment form, and adds a rating column in the form to
demonstrate the food safety condition of the restaurant more vividly and
make it easier for the management of restaurants.

In order to improve employees’ food safety awareness, the Company
provides trainings concerning the Food Hygiene and Safety, the
Unqualified Product Reporting Process and Filing Method and the
Precautions for Restaurants during Disinfection for new employees. The
Company has established a technical auditor (TA) inspection and rating
system in accordance with relevant food safety laws and regulations and
internal regulations, and assesses employee performance based on the
rating system to comprehensively improve employees’ understanding of
product quality.
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In order to seriously control food safety, Xinladao takes the following
measure:

° Strengthen self-inspection of restaurants

o] Increase the coverage of third-party monitoring system at
restaurants, and provide access for food safety management
personnel from the headquarters to monitor at any time
whether the actual operation in food preparation area and
dining area is compliant;

o] Continuously adopt the comprehensive evaluation mechanism
of “field visit plus self-inspection at restaurants”, and make
the evaluation results be commensurate with the performance
of operating personnel at all levels;

o] Regularly arrange pest & rat prevention and control, and
eliminate pests and rats at restaurants with reference to the
requirements of local law-enforcing department;

o] Increase the frequency of restaurant inspection to ensure that
the restaurants around the country are inspected at least
once every quarter.

° Improve the ability of quality management

0 Convene monthly food safety communication meeting
involving restaurants in all areas, communicate with restaurant
management about the latest food safety risks, reveal and
discuss about consumer feedbacks;

o] Sets up courses on kitchen management to improve
restaurants’ ability of food safety management.

2.2 Pursuing Quality

We pay constant attention to customer’s need, and we are committed to
improving service quality and innovating product category, so as to
provide enjoyable experience for our customers.
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Seeking for Perfect Food Ingredients

HHG strictly follows the Company’s Standards for Raw Materials. The
standards were revised this year to ratify standards for 189 categories of
raw materials, including the standards for 136 categories of market
products and the archived standards for 53 categories of products off
the market. HHG performs sampling test on each batch of incoming
goods, including product appearance and size, taste and physical and
chemical indicators testing, to assess the quality of incoming goods from
the perspective of customers.

Xinladao continuously conducts big data analysis and traceability
management to provide customers with high-quality food. In
consideration of different regions’ dietary structure and the background
values of chemical elements in the water environment, Xinladao seeks
fish breeding areas with higher production and better habitat, to better
meet consumers’ diet needs. In 2021, Xinladao made improvement to its
branded channel catfish product by using fresh fish instead of frozen fish,
which significantly improved the taste and flavour of the product and
received positive comments from customers. This year, Xinladao
optimised the production model for seasoning products in factory by
canning products with fixed oil ratio to ensure stable food flavour.

Promoting Digital Intelligence

We are committed to creating a new digital-centred catering platform.
Best Food has commenced the building of a data platform, which will
integrate the data from multiple brands and coordinate operating links to
gradually achieve cross-brand and multi-scenario insights into customer
consumption preference and customer needs, so as to further improve
customer experience. HHG and Xinladao have fully promoted the use of
QR codes for placing orders and paying bills at restaurants, providing
customers with more efficient and safer contactless dining services.
Besides, HHG has updated its mini programme system to provide
options of online ordering, food delivery and takeaway to meet customer
needs. In 2021, Xinladao formulated the Front Hall Service Process of QR
Code-Based Ordering as a guidance for restaurants to quickly get familiar
with the update of service process and ensure customer experience.
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Providing High-quality Services

Adhering to the corporate vision of “becoming the most reliable catering
brand for Chinese”, HHG forges ahead while remaining true to its original
mission, and takes the following measures to constantly improve and
optimise its products and services based on customer needs:

° Cooperation with third parties:

o) Evaluate the rationality of products and prices with reference
to customer comments from third-party platforms, identify
key issues and develop solutions in a timely manner;

o] Take positive comment rates on third-party platforms as one
of the restaurant evaluation criteria, so as to drive the
restaurants to improve service quality.

° Internal assessment

o] The headquarters regularly conduct spot check and
assessment on the services of the restaurant and urges the
restaurant to implement the requirements of HHG Service
Handbook.

Built on the idea of “101% customer satisfaction with quality customer
experience” at its core, Xinladao encourages employees to actively
interact with customers, discover their actual needs, and thus deliver
better dining experience for customers. In 2021, Xinladao optimised its
membership system to provide more preferential rights and interests for
members. Xinladao continuously adopted the “Mystery Customer Visit”
evaluation mechanism and regularly performed internal ranking and
mechanism improvement based on the evaluation results. It made
adjustment to training courses on restaurant services based on common
problems, and guided restaurants to perform self-analysis and find
solutions through communication at regional meeting.
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Upgrading Dining Environment

HHG has completed a series of brand rejuvenation upgrades and
optimised restaurant model from circulation design and other aspects to
improve customer experience. Xinladao has conducted storefront
renovation and overall optimisation of planning products to make the
restaurant more identifiable and better present brand information, so as
to attract more customers.

Product R&D and Promotion

In order to fill up our people’s bowls with fine rice, HHG has never
stopped seeking for qualified rice. In 2019, HHG entered into a
cooperation agreement with Wuchang Kuailefeng Rice Cooperative in
Heilongjiang Province to build its own rice base under its brand, so that
the quality of each grain of rice could be under stringent control and the
taste, freshness, nutrition and safety of rice could be ensured. In
November 2021, HHG officially launched a retail rice product, which was
newly harvested from the Wuchang rice base. Customers could buy the
high-quality rice exclusively grown for HHG’s branded restaurants
through both online and offline channels. Xinladao put more efforts in
R&D on recipes and launched the new dish of vine pepper channel
catfish hot pot in November 2021 to add new flavour to its signature
product of channel catfish hot pot, which was highly recognised by
customers.
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3. Scientific Energy Conservation

Relevant UN 12 RESPONLE
AND PRODUCTION
Sustainable Development AEHR
Goals (SDGs) w
EEBSETRERRER

(SDGs)

CLIMATE ACTION
1 3 RIRITE

Our Goals and Commitments

Insisting on the idea of green operation, Best Food is committed to
minimising the impact on the environment within its scope of business.
Based on our operation, we set the following goals concerning resource
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management and use and emission reduction. LR HE B AR
Goals for energy consumption ° By 2025, the energy consumption intensity decreases by 2% from 2020;
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o By 2030, the energy consumption intensity decreases by 5% from 2020;
o ZED2030F ' gERB T EABE 2020 E EF T 5% °

Goals for greenhouse gas emission ° By 2025, the greenhouse gas emission intensity decreases by 2% from

2020;
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° By 2030, the greenhouse gas emission intensity decreases by 5% from

2020;
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Goals for water resource consumption e By 2025, the water consumption intensity decreases by 1% from 2020;
KERERAE R o F2025%F - M/KREHEE2020EEF TE1%
° By 2030, the water consumption intensity decreases by 2% from 2020;
e ZE2030%F - AKBEHEE2020EEF TFE2% °

Goals for waste management o By 2022, the Company will complete revision on the Restaurant Waste
BEYEEEE Management System and other internal systems and standards related to

waste treatment and sorting and distribute the related systems and
standards to all restaurants for implementation. For operating regions
beyond the reach of waste sorting policies, the wastes shall be subject to

sorting and management under the related system of the Company.
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The Company strictly abides by the Environmental Protection Law of the
People’s Republic of China, the Law of the People’s Republic of China
on the Prevention and Control of Atmospheric Pollution, the Water
Pollution Prevention and Control Law of the People’s Republic of China,
the Law of the People’s Republic of China on the Prevention and Control
of Environmental Pollution Caused by Solid Waste, the Energy
Conservation Law of the People’s Republic of China, the Law of the
People’s Republic of China on Environmental Impact Assessment and
other state laws and regulations in relation to environmental protection.
Pursuant to the requirements of governments at all levels, we pay
constant attention to the changes in relevant laws and regulations, and
continuously improve our internal environment management policies and
systems based on our operation. In order to reduce our impact on
environment, climate and ecosystem, we constantly introduce new
technologies, new equipment and new processes. In 2021, Best Food
had no incident or grievance in relation to environmental non-compliance
that would have a significant impact.

3.1 Optimising Resource Utilisation

Restaurant Operation

Two of our holding brands reduce consumption of energy and water
resource by upgrading and optimising energy-saving equipment and
systems as well as implementing measures of energy-saving daily
management. The main energy-consuming and water-consuming
equipment in HHG and Xinladao restaurants consists of heating ovens,
refrigerated cabinets and vegetable washing sinks in food preparation
areas. HHG effectively enhances its restaurants’ energy efficiency through
using high-efficiency appliance and selecting energy-saving product
portfolios and multi-functional equipment. HHG also encourages and
promotes the use of filtered wastewater from vegetable cleaning for
mopping the floor and considers restaurant resource utilisation cost for
employee performance evaluation, in order to further mobilise the
enthusiasm of employees to save resources.

Procurement and Production

The company pays high attention to energy utilisation in every link of
supply chain. Two of our holding brands both conduct refined fixed-point
management on resources of own plants for the link of plant production,
in order to reduce resource waste in a targeted manner. HHG factories
regularly conduct statistical analysis on power consumption in industrial
areas by continuously adopting digital energy monitor & management
system and take corresponding power-saving measures in cooperation
with energy-efficient equipment, in order to reduce waste of electricity.
Xinladao factories routinely check and maintain the electrical equipment,
water pipes and water tanks, avoiding leakage caused by equipment
damage or dripping tap.
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Annual Report 2021

AAREHBEBET(PEARAMBERERE
EY AR EARLEMBEARISRBEE)
(hEARERBIKGRBAE)  (PEA
REMBEERE Y5 RRBIAE) (R E
AREMBEOERE) (PEAREAMEH
REFEFERNDSRERERAFNBRRE
BERER - BESABFESR  BMEE
BOEEBEERERANTEL UREARB
FEERR BEXTE ﬂ%ﬁ R
MR BB TETS|ENEMN - HRME

T2 URBRECEHIRE . i%ﬁi%mw
B.2021FE ARELHERNRBAML

AREEARBLHANAEALENS
i o 2 3 <

3.1 BLERNHA

EEEE
AT ) RO PR B G b R E R BB (L AR
‘éﬁé&ﬁﬂ/w. LA&TSTEI HEREE IR

RO Z R EEREKERER c £EE
i iﬂm%&%ﬁﬁﬁﬁﬁzxﬁ  FEKER R
BEBERNMAE  SREME KL E -

MedBBBE&RER ’*‘“ﬂﬁﬁﬁﬁﬁﬁ an
e ZHERBEIX BRES T
B A ERE - ME AT B I HEPIIE
ERABBROFXEKRE  LHEHE
BRERRAMABTENE R #E— 1R
FPIEETEHNERNERIE -

REBEL A =

REEmEBIREESIREMNERERE
Mo ETHMAEERE BRI IZR®E
HHABIRERERETRHELTEE
2 FHEMEHBEOERRE - MEATHK
SERBE TR REEEERS  TH
HIHREBEETEMRSETMON - I
HKEBEENEGEREE BeEAmEs®R
B UBLAERE - FHRELIRTCHESE

ROKBRKEERBETKE T REEE
MELMBELRE BHEeARRBEEZNH

ATBEEHMNERRE -



ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE (“ESG”) REPORT (CONTINUED)

Storage and Transportation

As for product storage, Xinladao, together with Powealth Enterprise
Management (Beijing) Co., Ltd. under Best Food, started adopting
storage warehouse sharing mechanism in 2021, improving warehouse
utilisation and reducing energy consumption of factory warehouse per
unit area while ensuring basic supply requirements are met.

As for product transportation, HHG and Xinladao optimise national
logistics delivery considering market conditions in each area. They
shorten delivery distance in areas through direct delivery of goods from
places of production to restaurants, thus enhancing operational efficiency
and reducing energy consumption during transportation.
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Product Improvement of channel catfish

Xinladao made improvement on its main product channel catfish in 2021 by changing the ingredient from frozen fish to live fish, comprehensively
reducing energy consumption in each link while improving the taste of food. The measure simplifies the thawing operation for restaurants, effectively
reduces energy consumption at food preparation and improves resource utilisation efficiency. In addition, the measure eliminates the use of package
materials for frozen fish, such as paper packaging boxes and plastic bags, which effectively reduces package quantity during transportation. The
measure also reduces energy consumption of vehicles during transportation, because the live fish does not need to be frozen in the process. Currently
around 85% of Xinladao restaurants have promoted the optimisation method of changing frozen fish into live fish.
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Office Area

Best Food has always adhered to the concept of green office, actively
used energy-saving and environmentally friendly office equipment and
attached great importance to the promotion of environmental protection
concept. HHG and Xinladao have both arranged employees of the
Administration Department to uniformly collect waste tubes, toner
cartridges and ink cartridges, and hand them to qualified third parties for
disposal. Xinladao upgraded, rectified and reformed its office areas in
combination with comprehensive requirements of the headquarters’
office areas in 2021, and the unit energy consumption in its office areas
was down by 30% compared with that of 2020.

3.2 Reinforcing Emission Management

The major emissions and waste arising from the operation of HHG and
Xinladao include exhausted gas, wastewater, and greenhouse gas (“GHG”)
arising from energy consumption. The Company actively responds to
national policies, formulates relevant systems and takes appropriate
measures, in order to reduce influence on the environment through
treating waste and reducing emissions from the sources.
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Meanwhile, the Company attaches great importance to policies for local
environmental protection. Policies on environmental protection
continuously tightens since the issuance of Beijing’s new policies on
environmental protection in 2017. The regulations include but are not
limited to the discharge of old factory equipment (exhaust gas,
wastewater and sewage treatment), factory septic tanks and grease
traps. We contact with companies with qualifications in transportation,
storage and treatment to dispose of hazardous waste, waste conduction
oil, engine oil and chemical reagent, in order to effectively reduce
environmental risks caused by wastes.

32.1 Cleaning Emissions

Exhausted gas treatment

We strictly abide by the Emission Standard of Cooking Fume (GB18483-
2001) and related local regulations regarding exhausted gas emission,
such as the Emission Standard of Air Pollutant for Catering Industry
(DB11/1488-2018) issued by Beiing and the Emission Standard of
Cooking Fume for Catering Industry (DB12/644-2016) issued by Tianjin,
and install oil fume purification equipment and exhausted gas collection
system in accordance with standards for exhausted gas treatment in
local operation areas. In 2021, HHG and Xinladao both have completed
upgrading and updating of purification equipment which is compliant with
the national standards for low emission. In addition, the restaurants and
factories of two companies arrange qualified third parties to clean, check
and manage oil fume purifiers and kitchen ventilation ductwork on a
regular basis, ensuring that the treated exhausted gas complies with
emission standards. HHG Kangyipin factory' contacts with third-party
testing organisations to check methane hydrocarbon, benzene,
methylbenzene, dimethylbenzene and TVOC emitted through chimneys
to ensure that the emissions comply with standards; Hanfang factory?
reduces VOC emission and improves oil fume purification by upgrading
technology of oil fume purification and packaging equipment. Xinladao’s
factory installed three sets of emission and oil fume purification
equipment, each one equipped with low-noise centrifugal fans, oil fume
purifiers and UV photolysis purifiers.

! HHG Kangyipin factory is HHG’s own plant
HHG Hanfang factory is HHG’s own plant
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Wastewater treatment

We require that all restaurants to install oil separators in compliance with
local requirements on environmental protection, and water separated
from oil is discharged into municipal sewage network after complying
with local discharge standard. The waste grease is uniformly disposed of
as non-hazardous waste. Industrial and domestic sewage of production
factories is disposed of firstly by the wastewater treatment stations in
factories, and then discharged into local wastewater treatment plants. All
the used and waste oil in HHG restaurants and central factories is
recycled and disposed of by waste oil recycling companies with
professional qualification certified by the government or third parties
designated by the local property manager.

Waste Treatment

The Company pays high attention to restaurant waste sorting
management, keeps pace with related governmental requirements in
operation areas, such as the Domestic Waste Management Regulation in
Beijjing and the Domestic Waste Management Regulation in Tianjin, and
formulates the Restaurant Waste Management System that complies
with local requirements. In order to further complete and optimise
restaurant waste treatment, the Company plans to revise related systems
in 2022 and unify waste management measures taken by its restaurants
nationwide, thus not only ensuring that waste treatment strictly adheres
to local governmental requirements, but also offering waste sorting
management measures to operation areas without relevant policies. In
addition, the Company strictly supervises all the restaurants to ensure
comprehensive coverage and implementation of the system.

The Company also properly disposes of the waste arising from
procurement link. Certain kitchen waste arising from procurement of raw
materials is used as “fertiliser”. For Xinladao, the kitchen waste and
package materials (including cartons and lunch boxes) generated in
restaurants and factories are stored in special capped barrels, and
uniformly recycled and disposed of by qualified third-party recyclers.

322 Emission Reduction

Responding to calls for emission and consumption reduction from the
nation, HHG actively promotes the work of sales of processed
vegetables, waste reduction of urban agricultural products and package
greenisation. HHG Kangyipin factory was appraised and selected as the
“Demonstration Enterprise for Waste Reduction and Vegetable
Processing in Beijing” in 2021. Xinladao takes energy saving and
consumption reduction into consideration in the source of food
production. Xinladao communicates and cooperates with suppliers, and
makes technical improvement regarding oil manufacturing process,
where it substitutes unprocessed complete chillies with standardised
chopped chillies, significantly reducing the time required for frying and
cooking process and energy consumption of the link.
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In order to achieve established energy utilisation objective, Best Food
plans to change and upgrade the used ovens and steamers of
restaurants to enhance equipment energy efficiency and reduce energy
consumption; In order to reach established water resource utilisation
target, the Company plans to promote the use of processed vegetables
and half-processed vegetables to reduce the water used in the link of
vegetables washing. In addition, the Company plans to raise the
employees’ awareness of energy saving and environmental protection by
means of publicity and training courses, thus reducing the use of energy
and water resource during the ordinary course of business.

3.3 Advocating Less Waste and Less Generation

Less Food Waste

HHG and Xinladao encourage customers to save food and avoid wasting.
HHG restaurants start placing self-service rice desks and putting up
labels of “Avoid Wasting” in 2021 to encourage customers to take a
ration of rice according to their own needs. Each restaurant has averagely
saved around 300 bowls of rice on a monthly basis after the launch of the
activity. All restaurants of Xinladao intensify the “Clean Plate Campaign”
by introducing dishes of different sizes and vegetable combo,
communicating with customers through table cards and stickers or
attendants. Customers are encouraged to have healthy and balanced
diets as well as avoid food wasting.

Reducing the use of disposable materials

HHG and Xinladao highly focus on reducing plastic products in
operations in response to the Guideline on Further Strengthening the
Control of Plastic Pollution and the Notice on the Solid Promotion of
Plastic Pollution Control issued by the central government. HHG
cancelled the supply of disposable tableware for both restaurant dining
and takeaway service, and stopped offering plastic straws, tableware and
packing bags unless customers ask for them. The Company participated
in the “Green Hills Plan” launched by a third-party food delivery platform
in 2019, and took part in the revision of standards for environment-
friendly tableware for takeaway, starting to use paper recyclable meal
boxes. In 2021, HHG received the title of the “Model Merchant for the
Protection of Green Hills”. Meanwhile, HHG took part in the
“Environment-friendly Online Order Testing Project” this year, and the
number of such orders has increased by around 10 times compared with
that of previous years. All restaurants of Xinladao have replaced traditional
ceramic tableware with high-quality melamine kind to further reduce the
wastage during storage and using process, thus increasing tableware’s
useful life and avoiding resource wasting.

Best Food Holding Company Limited
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3.4 Climate Change Tackling 3.4 E¥IRIZREt

At Best Food, we actively respond to the target of “peaking carbon 7 1@ & 1& £ fE B = 18 1 &9 [ 2030 %% = &

dioxide emissions before 2030 and achieving carbon neutrality before  2060%% &1 1 |3 B 1Z - 7E 35 4B = &, B ¥k
2060 proposed by the nation, and identify the risks brought by climate EJER - £ S DXL - MR ELEE NPT
change within operation based on our characteristics while reducing E e RIRE (LA K AR o & 8 R I& &
greenhouse gases emission. We include climate change factor into {tEZM AR ERRITEMEIRE R &
enterprise risk evaluation and management system, and comprehensively 1 % & & 8 Iz 60 BT @ Ba 09 |18 & {0 2 b5 i
identify climate change risks in all operation links of the enterprise, aswell 177 255 WFAE -« FlEMEENE B
as adjust and formulate relevant management systems and measures to | & B2 fE ¥ 35 55 - LA PR (K 5% 28 B b ¥ 1> %

reduce the influence caused by the risks on the enterprise. 2=
The main risks identified and corresponding responses are as follows: T PIE% RI A = B AR A N FE S SRR B4R
Main influence Risk profile Management and response measures
ERFTEZE RBHER EEREHER
Policy risk National and local environmental protection policies e Actively follow up national and local
N2g e continuously intensify, regulations and requirements compliance requirements, formulate, update
are increasingly strict, which raise our management and implement all the management measures;
cost and reputation risk. e BERREHERMAHFERER HIE B
KEMANIRRBEEFENE  HEEFEZ A& E S IRE R
SEMAZERZE SRS EMEEEEKA - o Continuously reinforce internal management
AN B E R o and abide by significant national and local
regulations;
. SAE NN 98 N BFE IR DA KB R B SR AN 5 Y
BHREET RN
8 In 2020, Xi Jinping, the president of the People’s Republic of China, announced at the 8 20204 - RERBRLFEESEBHEBRKR
75th Session of the United Nations General Assembly that ‘China aims to have CO, & FtEWIF B ZE 15 PR 1 F 20304 A
emissions peak before 2030 and achieve carbon neutrality before 2060”. EF|IE(E - 43 77 5 HL2060 4F A T IR fik R AN

BRERBRAF
—E_—FFH
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Main influence Risk profile Management and response measures
ERETEZE REBHER EEREHER
Market risk The effect on the production and transportation of o Update supplier management measures as
%5 & R raw materials may cause supply shortage and per requirements, such as formulate supplier
influence the normal operation of restaurants. In substitution plans, and timely replace
addition, the risk may cause the cost of raw suppliers as per management measures
materials, equipment, freight, labour and operation according to requirements;
to rise. s RETHHEMBEIE  WEIEHER
RV +EESERIRNEETE Pl 4E BERAR HRELKREBEEEEETHM
SEWHEERETET REZARRIEHR fE™
ME - RE E@EBER ANBHASEIK LR o Build warehouses near the operation places
HEANIE & K AN o to store foods in preparation for product
supply shortage;
s MEEHMWIARYEEHRMENTHT
LA 65 72 an L FE R
° Continuously optimise supplier selection work
and take climate change risk into
consideration.
J SEECHENGETE  BRIEZ/LR
B AZEEE -
Physical risk Extreme weather and natural disasters resulting ° Formulate operating standards for working

)32 1 R B

from climate change may affect the normal
operation of restaurants and the surroundings.
RIEBLCEHNBHRR LB W“i%ﬁﬂ}ﬁ&
FEREEAENEEEL T REE
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under extreme weather and establish
emergency plans for extreme weather.
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3.5 Key Environmental Performance

Unless otherwise stated, the relevant documentation and performance
are information as at 31 December 2021, covering office areas of HHG’s
headquarters, HHG’s directly operated restaurants, production factories,

logistics centres, and Xinladao’s offices, operated restaurants and

production factories.

HHG Environmental Performance Indicators

2 TR X i AR oL
ZPEMAEETIR -

MERBRREREER

ARHRERAE

2021
Indicators BE 20214
Emissions Bmy
Total GHG emissions (Scope 1 and Scope 2) (tonnes)! A =R EEHINEE (B — LB =) (M)’ 10,622.96
Including: Direct emissions (Scope 1) (tonnes) Heh: EEPER(EE—) (8) 269.49
Natural gas (tonnes) KRR (WR) 24717
Including: Petrol (tonnes) 5 om (WE) 22.32
Indirect emissions (Scope 2) (tonnes) M B (EE =) (HE) 10,353.47
Electricity (tonnes) T (H) 10,353.47
Greenhouse gas emissions per RMB million in revenue BETHRAREREHR(E 5 &)

(tonnes/RMB million) 23.21
Greenhouse gas emissions per restaurant (tonnes) BIEAERESME (E) 82.72
Total non-hazardous waste (tonnes)? mEREZEYEE (IF)? 1,185.52
Total non-hazardous waste per RMB million in revenue BEETWAEBEEZYHBRE (W E&T)

(tonnes/RMB million) 2.59
COD generated (kg) CODE4XE(FR) 43.53
Use of resources EREHR
Total energy consumption (MWh)? BB HMEEE KER)® 15,807.57

Direct energy consumption (MWh) BERETE CKER) 1,264.13
Indirect energy consumption (MWh) A # g2 R B 7 UK L) 14,543.43
Energy consumption per RMB million in revenue BEETWABEZECKERE BET)

(MWh/RMB million) 34.54
Total water consumption (tonnes)* EFEK = (HE)* 127,242.95
Water consumption per restaurant (tonnes) BIEFEKE (ME) 900.43
Water consumption per RMB million in revenue BB TRAREKE (B EET)

(tonnes/RMB million) 278.01
Packaging (tonnes)°® B (8g)° 1,020.87
Packaging per RMB million in revenue BETHRAREY (M BET

(tonnes/RMB million) 2.23

BRERZERERAR
R -FFR
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Xinladao Environmental Performance Indicators FRERBEEVIEER

2021
Indicators B 2021 &
Emissions 23087
Total GHG emissions (Scope 1 and Scope 2) (fonnes)! A ZEREH WA S (HE — L&EE =) (BE)’ 5,533.83
Greenhouse gas emissions per RMB millioninrevenue S A& TW AR ZEREH R (M, & &)

(tonnes/RMB million) 20.23
Total non-hazardous waste (tonnes)? EmEREEYEE ()2 2,625.12
Total non-hazardous waste per RMB millioninrevenue S BB TR AEEEEYEE (B BET

(tonnes/RMB million) 9.60
Greenhouse gas emissions per restaurant (tonnes) BERESERE () 100.94
Use of resources EREHR
Total energy consumption (MWh)? BERHEEE KRS 8,114.30

Direct energy consumption (MWh) Heh: BEEERBEE KRR 470.10
Indirect energy consumption (MWh) ¥ ge R E FE K L) 7,644.20
Energy consumption per RMB million in revenue BEEBTRARRERECKER B&T)

(MWh/RMB million) 27.95
Total water consumption (tonnes)* EFEKE (HE)* 96,157.18
Water consumption per restaurant (tonnes) BIEREKE (1) 1,766.70
Water consumption per RMB million in revenue BETWAREKE (W, HET)

(tonnes/RMB million) 351.58
Packaging (tonnes)® B84 () ° 31.25
Packaging used per RMB million in revenue BEETRABEYFERE (B B8

(tonnes/RMB million) 0.11
1. Due to its operating nature, the major emissions of HHG and Xinladao represent GHG 1. ERBERFE NE/ARMRBENETZEREEN

emissions, arising mainly from electricity and fuels derived from fossil fuels. Greenhouse
gas lists include carbon dioxide, methane and nitrous oxide. Greenhouse gas is listed
as per CO, equivalent, and is included in the accounting according to the 2079 China AR RAERBZER_GQIELRESEZY
Regional Grid Baseline Emission Factors published by the Ministry of Ecology and

Environment of the People’s Republic of China.

7%/ EREHR REERBLARBELD
EoRERBBEERE ALK FRMAE
kE 82 AR %
TEE AR AR A R IR 5 A0 T 3 (2019 B[R
HEAESHREFIRTRE

[EH

2. Due to its business nature, the major solid waste of Xinladao includes non-hazardous 2. EREBENE BAREREVWIZEEFHNER R
waste such as kitchen waste and food-producing waste, as well as hazardous waste REENREEETEEY EEBREDEIERD
such as few waste cartridges and ink cartridges in office areas and factory engine oil. ERCREEEMHEE2E THEHS  BLHE
The total amount of hazardous waste is very small and it is not material to HHG and HmEENEEHR/ N NEEEHE WA TFHEE X
Xinladao’s business, hence no disclosure is made. This year, the calculation FE NREEEEREVTOEHRNREFTEAL

methodology of non-hazardous kitchen waste from Xinladao has been optimized and a

better calculation methodology has been adopted.

3. Energy consumption mainly includes purchased electricity, natural gas and petrol. The 3.
energy consumption data are calculated based on the energy consumption of petrol
and natural gas and the conversion factors in the National Standard of the People’s
Republic of China General Rules for Calculation of the Comprehensive Energy

Consumption (GB/T 2589-2020).

4. HHG and Xinladao’s main source of water is public utilities and there is no problem for 4.

HHG and Xinladao to obtain the suitable sources of water.

5. Packaging materials mainly includes cartons and plastic bags.

Best Food Holding Company Limited
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4. Seeking Growth Together with Employees

UN Sustainable Development Goals (SDGs)
MBS B A5 A 3§ B £ (SDGs)

3 600D HEALTH AND
WELL-BEING
RIFRREER

&k

5 GENDER EQUALITY

e

RBE -HERERRE (B

4. ETHERE

4 QUALITY EDUCATION

EUHE
\!ﬂ i

DECENT WORK AND

HHFE ECONOMIC GROWTH

The Company adheres to the talent-based development philosophy and
continuously implements the slogan “Welcome all talents from all over the
world to contribute to catering industry together”, attracts well-performed
talents while focusing on talent cultivation, seeking growth together with
employees. We protect the legitimate rights and interests of employees
and pay attention to their demands. Meanwhile, we sign formal
employment contracts or labour agreements with all employees
according to laws and regulations, fulfil relevant obligations in strict
accordance with the terms in the contract, and provide comfortable
working environment and sufficient training resources for employees.

4.1 Employment and Employee Rights

The Company strictly abides by the relevant national legal requirements,
and complies with the Labour Law of the People’s Republic of China, the
Labour Contract Law of the People’s Republic of China, the Special
Rules on the Labour Protection of Female Employees, the Regulation on
Paid Annual Leave for Employees, the Provisions on Minimum Wages,
etc., and has continuously improved human resources (“HR”)
management system. We value a diverse workforce constitution and put
efforts to realise equal rights regardless of ethnicity, gender and age and
prevent gender discrimination, child labour and forced labour among our
employees, and strive to build an equal and diversified employee team.

We strictly prohibit the employment of child labour and forced labour.
HHG clearly stipulates in its Employee Handbook that it is not allowed to
employ or use child labour. The Operational Manual for Personnel
Practice of Xinladao sets out detailed guidance about avoidance of child
labour employment, and the HR department monthly organises the
examination of the Employee Roster which covers all the personnel to
strictly limit the age of employees on active duty and new employees.
Any offence in the aforementioned will be strictly penalized in accordance
with relevant laws and regulations as well as our internal requirements.
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QOur holding catering brands have established attendance and leave
management systems respectively in accordance with national and local
laws and regulations, and approve special working hours in various
regions in accordance with local laws and regulations. The HR
department is responsible for managing working hours of employees,
communicating with person in charge in case of any abnormality and
requiring reasonable control, as well as arranging overtime leave or
payment.

In 2021, the Company was not aware of any use of child labour, forced
labour or other violations of employees’ human rights.

As for recruitment, our holding brands regularly review salary standards
by benchmarking with the market to develop a market competitive salary
and bonus system. An fair and attractive compensation system is built
based on performance, professional qualifications and experience of the
employees. As for employee turnover, the Company continuously
improves dismissal system and process. For employees who resign, HR
specialists or the relevant managers in restaurants actively communicate
with the employees to understand their feelings and ideas at work, and to
review vulnerabilities in our management and operation system and make
relevant adjustment in a timely manner.

Best Food Holding Company Limited
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HHG Employment Performance Indicators

e

RE HEREAEE (B

MEREIRRBAENEERER

Indicators' 2021
BE 2021 %
Headcount 1,471
BTHAE(AN)
Headcount by gender Headcount of male employees BEHEBEIEH 530
RMERIE DB THEE(A) Headcount of female employees % 1 8 T 48 % 941
Headcount by age Headcount of employees under 30 F# 305 (T 2) A THE 229
BFEREI DB THRE(AN) (exclusive) T A
Headcount of employees between #3035 £405% (T 2) 19 437
30 and 40 (exclusive) BT A
Headcount of employees between 4 405% E505% (&) &Y 487
40 and 50 (exclusive) BT AH
Headcount of employees over 50 #5075 (=) A FHE T 318
(inclusive) ANEL
Headcount by employment type Headcount of employees under LE)eREETAHK 1,471
REBELEIMHETLE(A) labour contract system
Headcount of employees under BisIRES B T A 0
labour dispatching system
Headcount of full-time employees 2 8 & T A 2k 714
Headcount of part-time employees F& 5 & T A £ 757
Headcount by area? Headcount of employees inside FRESEARMEE T A 1,471
R E D B THRE(A) China
Headcount of employees outside  FREIIE SN [@ B T A # 0
China
Headcount by employee level® Headcount of senior management S A EIEE S T AH 13
ZETRERESHETRH(A) Including: headcount of female Hb shEBELHEE 8
senior management T A
Headcount of middle management AR EI2E 8 T A &1 17
Headcount of junior employees HEB T AH 1,441

1. The employment data cover Beiing HHG Management Co., Ltd., Tianjin HHG Co., Ltd.

and directly operated restaurants.

2. Area is defined as the regions where the employees perform their duties.

3. The senior management include the head office’s employees at deputy director level or
above; the middle management include employees at the manager and deputy

manager level, as well as factory directors.

1.

2.

3.

ETHBEBREILRNEAERERERAR
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HHG Employee Turnover Performance Indicators MEREIRKRBERIEBER
Indicators 2021
BE 2021
Employee turnover rate by gender, age group and geographical region'
RER FRERGBEEINEERALER
Employee turnover rate by gender (%) Male employee turnover rate EHBIRALE 7.98
RIERIEI D 8 TR KR (%) Female employee turnover rate B TRk ®E 6.74
Employee turnover rate by age (%) Turnover rate of employees under  F #3055 () A TH & 14.37
RERARE M E TRALLE (%) 30 (exclusive) Thkt =
Turnover rate of employees FH B0 24057 (T 8) 1) 6.43
between 30 and 40 (exclusive) BT Rk =
Turnover rate of employees FERA0RES0% (T E) 1 5.42
between 40 and 50 (exclusive) BT RKLX
Turnover rate of employees over  E#50m (8) A FHE T 5.80
50 (inclusive) TSk b =R
Employee turnover rate by area (%) Employee turnover rate in Mainland /B A B 3 [& B T 75 2k 717
L &l D B TR K %= (%) China tb &
1. Employee turnover rate = average number of employees leaving each category each 1. BERAX-FARSERNBEBKE T FTH AL &

month/average number of employees in each category corresponding to the same
period each month

Best Food Holding Company Limited
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(%)

e

Indicators' 2021
EE' 2021
Headcount 1,137
BITHAEA)
Headcount by gender Headcount of male employees EHEETHEY 448
ZHRIESETRH(AN) Headcount of female employees %14 B T 42 8¢ 689
Headcount by age Headcount of employees under 30 F#5305% (T~ 5) A TH B 443
EHFRE DB TRE(A) (exclusive) T AE
Headcount of employees between F #3055 £ 405k (&) &Y 226
30 and 40 (exclusive) BT A
Headcount of employees between #4035 £505% (T 2) &9 190
40 and 50 (exclusive) BTAH
Headcount of employees over 50 #5085 () A FHIE T 278
(inclusive) A
Headcount by employment type Headcount of employees under EENES RGBT AE 1,137
REEELNESNE THRHE(A) labour contract system
Headcount of employees under MIERESE T ASK 0
labour dispatching system
Headcount of full-time employees 2 8% & T A 2X 771
Headcount of part-time employees 3 5% 8§ T A 2X 366
Headcount by area® Headcount of employees inside FEIRERHE B T AR 1,137
TR E| D B THRH(A) China
Headcount of employees outside  # B iEsh b @ B T A £ 0
China
Headcount by employee level® Headcount of senior management =4 EIEE &8 T A 6
HETIRELRBESHE THEC(AN) Including: headcount of female B oHERBERLES 1
senior management TAE
Headcount of middle management # 4 &2 8 8 T A & 16
Headcount of junior employees , E @& T A 1,115
1. The data cover Beijing Xinladao Catering Management Ltd. and directly operated 1. ETHBEEEREIL AT REENERERAA
restaurants. REEMIE -
2. Area is defined as the regions where the employees perform their duties. 2. BEACAEBEIEB I FMUMNEME -
3. The senior management include Xinladao's employees at deputy director level or 3. EREEERETRERIAENNERREBET
above; the middle management include employees at senior manager, manager and FREEBRESAKE LB BKEBERE
deputy manager level. To
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Xinladao Employee Turnover Performance Indicators FHEEIRKBENIEER
Indicators 2021
BE 2021
Employee turnover rate by gender, age group and geographical region'
EMR FRREEEINEERLER
Employee turnover rate by gender(%) Male employee turnover rate BHEES I RALE 14.36
RIERIEI D 8 TR KR (%) Female employee turnover rate B Tkt = 12.96
Employee turnover rate by age(%) Turnover rate of employees under  F#: 30 (T 2) A T E 17.68
LEWAERE D/ B T K& (%) 30 (exclusive) TRkt =
Turnover rate of employees FERI0mELOm (T E)H 8.84
between 30 and 40 (exclusive) BT RKL=R
Turnover rate of employees FHA0mR 2508 (R E) | 11.28
between 40 and 50 (exclusive) BT RKL=R
Turnover rate of employees over — F #5085k () A FHE T 10.13
50 (inclusive) Tkt R
Employee turnover rate by area(%) Employee turnover rate in Mainland 7 B A BE i [& B T 7 5% 13.48

=i E 5 B TR Kt & (%) China
1. Employee turnover rate = average number of employees leaving each category each

month/average number of employees in each category corresponding to the same
period each month

4.1.1Remuneration and Benefits

The Company formulates and adjusts compensation incentive
mechanism in accordance with posts and job levels while guaranteeing
basic salary, in order to attract talents of key posts or core technologies
as well as avoid talent outflow, ensuring the achievement of company
development strategy.

HHG has updated incentive plans of chain stores this year, directly linked
the rising of sales performance and profit to restaurants’ performance
and bonus, simplified restaurants’ assessment and actively helped
reduce restaurants employees’ burden, in order to encourage employees
to actively improve services provided. Based on the operations of
restaurants, HHG has increased 7 single incentives for chain stores and
the number of the restaurants which received the incentives in October
this year, enhancing the income of chain stores’ employees. HHG has
tried out “Amoeba Operating Management Mode” at the headquarters
this year, under which each function formulates its own plan, and its
performance and bonus are linked to its “Amoeba” result, thus involving
every employee in the operations of the enterprise. Xinladao has added
peak season monthly incentive policies into performance policies, which
shorten the period of incentive mechanism and increase the times when
incentive policies are enjoyed by employees.
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ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE (“ESG”) REPORT (CONTINUED)

The Company provides employees with reasonable welfare guarantee, in
order to strengthen employees’ sense of cultural identity and belonging
to the Company. We ensure that employees have paid annual leave and
maternity leave, and make contributions for pensions, work injury
insurance, maternity insurance, unemployment insurance, medical
insurance, and housing provident fund for all employees as required. In
addition, HHG and Xinladao also provide employees with post allowance,
performance bonus, transportation subsidies and labour protection
supply according to actual conditions. In order to motivate employees’
working enthusiasm, Xinladao offers a 30% discount of restaurants dining
for all the personnel.

4.1.2Communications

The Company attaches great importance to communication with
employees and encourages employees to actively communicate with the
management. In addition, the Company timely learns about the needs of
employees from all levels and makes corresponding adjustment while
paying attention to employees.

In order for new employees to adapt to their new job, HHG's HR
department has organised quarterly orientation meeting for them this
year. HHG has also carried out enterprise cultural training, employee
meeting and communication, increased employees’ understanding of the
enterprise and listened to their thoughts and suggestions to enhance
their sense of belonging.

Xinladao provides employees with open communication channels,
including restaurant employee meetings, internal mailbox, internal contact
books, etc. Xinladao employees can provide timely feedback to the
Company through online or offline methods. Xinladao has updated the
Employee Manual, which explicitly stipulated and explained in detail
about the mechanism for protecting whistle-blowers on discrimination
and bullying, conveying an open attitude to employees.

4.2. Employee Development and Promotion

The Company attaches great importance to the development and growth
of employees. The Company provides training for employees at all levels
through online and offline courses continuously, and formulates
appropriate training systems according to the business characteristics of
each sectors, so as to improve the professional skills and competence of
employees. In addition, the Company continues to improve the promotion
mechanism to provide employees with fairer, more scientific and more
unobstructed promotion channels and opportunities.
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With the philosophy of “discovering, cultivating and perfecting talents”,
HHG has revised the training, certification and promotion rules for chain
stores. The new rules clarify the business experience, learning content,
training completion rate and other indicators for promotion of employees
at all levels, and standardise the assessment, certification requirements
and procedures for promotion. The revised rules provide a sounder base
for talent selection, and the setting of training courses are more
standardised and targeted for cultivating talent in a scientific and orderly
manner, which improves the ability of employees, as well as reserving
talent for company development in advance. At restaurants, in order to
make the new recruits ready for and familiar with the work as soon as
possible , the Company has improved the orientation training process,
stipulating that new employees are required to go to a special training
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restaurant for post training and are not allowed to be on the job until they
have passed the training.

Cooperation with local institutions to introduce backbone talents

BT RESIETRAT

HHG has established internship and employment cooperation programmes with undergraduate colleges and technical secondary schools in Henan,
Shaanxi, Qinghai and other places this year, introducing interns and graduates from schools to expand the backbone talent pool. And we have
formulated a special key-member training and cultivation plan for the introduced key members to carry out focused training and cultivation. New
employees introduced through the programme are required to complete the general job training and skill certification for basic positions in the restaurant
within 3-5 months, and outstanding employees can be promoted to deputy manager within 3 months. In addition, the Company organises key members
to study, exchange and share corporate culture every two months, and carries out team building activities to enhance teamwork, make employees
relaxed, and increase their understanding of corporate culture and the surrounding environment of the workplace.

MEASFRNE RE FESHNARERNPERRELTEEREGHEERD  NERSIEEELE 24 RES
BHATMP - WEAHEHSIENTRATHETZFINERALIEIN BEHE ETEHNIFIIMNES - BB ZT 258
MM E IHESSMEATKIFIEEREMCNBEEINNZRERE BFEISEAEAEMEILE - WM AR G2EAA
BEBRBTETEEXLES IREHK 2BHZ VWHARSHETHTEREY HEBRKRE BREEILE 1B
METHAECEITIEEEREN T A -
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ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE (“ESG”) REPORT (CONTINUED)

Under the philosophy of “cultivating subordinates, guiding others,
respecting superiors, predecessors and teachers, as well as keeping
diligent and eager to learn”, Xinladao is committed to becoming a school
that educate people and create better conditions for the growth of
employees. In 2021, the Company updated the promotion mechanism
for employees at all levels and positions in the restaurants, making
promotion linked with restaurant performance that will be evaluated
through the restaurant management and performance evaluation system.
After the pandemic has been under control, the Company has
reincorporated performance audits and verifications into the evaluation
system, and encouraged employees at all levels to conduct self-
assessment and improve their management and organisational
capabilities and teamwork capabilities by setting performance goals and
reviewing the progress of target achievement. At the same time, the
Company has started targeted training according to the responsibilities
and characteristics of employees at all levels of the restaurant. For
example, the Company provided front office service training this year,
and carried out relevant awareness enhancement and skill training for
leading positions, service positions, food delivery positions, and cleaning
positions. The Company also conducted training courses for
management to help restaurant’s new management carry out role-
switching training and circulate basic management capabilities.
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Cultivating the skills of live fish slaughtering for employees to facilitate the launch of new products

BESTEARERE UWEEHm LT

In 2021, the restaurant has successively optimised the core product of channel catfish from the previous frozen fish pieces to live fish slaughtered on the
spot. In order to cooperate with this action, we have conducted several training sessions in batches for single restaurant and region, and continuously
accumulated experience, adjusted plans, and continued tracking during the process, then, we held the “Live Fish Slaughtering Competition”. Through
the above series of actions, employees could quickly master the skills required for work and ensure the smooth implementation of the optimisation of
core products.
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HHG Employees Training Performance Indicators MERBEITHEIYBENIEESK
Indicator’ 2021
EE' 2021
Total number of trainees (Person) Total number of trainees at AR B A 94
ElE A (A) headquarters
Total number of trainees at P9 JE 555 48 A 8 1,107
restaurants
Percentage of employees participating in ~ Percentage of male employees EHEEILMNEIESE 95
training by gender (%) participating in training
HUERIEDMXIE THD L (%) Percentage of female employees &M 8 T2 1531 B 5 L 97
participating in training
Percentage of employees participating in Percentage of senior management = 4k & 12 [ £ hn 13 99
training by employee level® (%) participating in training Bat
BEIRBREASHZINE T ADHA%) Percentage of middle management F 4% & 1% J8 £ 0 1% 3| 97
participating in training il ¢
Percentage of junior employees EBEIZNMEINE DL 95
participating in training
Training hours per capita (Hours) 48.3
A2 EEIIRR ()
Training hours per capita of employees by  Training hours per capita of male  £H & T A EIIE K 47.5
gender (Hours) employees
RERIESHE T AHLZXREEIREK  Training hours per capita of female Z2 4 & T A B EJIF K 48.5
(/NBF) employees
Training hours per capita of employees by  Training hours per capita of senior =M EEE A EIIE R 80
employee level? (Hours) management
RETEBRIHDHE T A2 EEE|FE Training hours per capita of middle F R ERE AL EIIEE 80
&2 (/M) management
Training hours per capita of junior EE& T AHEIJIFE 47.5
employees
1. The related data of employees covers Beijing HHG Management Co., Ltd. and Tianjin 1. EIEINEEHEEREILLTINEAEHRERES
HHG Co., Ltd. and directly operated restaurants. BARIRKEMEAERBRAT  UNESM

2. The senior management includes employees at the head office’s deputy director level 2.
and above; the middle management includes employees at the manager and deputy
manager level, as well as factory directors.
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Xinladao Employees Training Performance Indicators MPBCGEE TIEINERIBER
Indicator’ 2021
ER 2021
Total number of trainees (Person) Total number of trainees at BEF BN 30
ElE A (A) headquarters

Total number of trainees at P9 29Il 4a A BR 2,000

restaurants
Percentage of employees participating in -~ Percentage of male employees EHEEILMNEIESE 100
training by gender (%) participating in training

HERNSDHTINE T D (%) Percentage of female employees  Z 8 T2 MMEJ A DL 100

participating in training

Percentage of employees participating in -~ Percentage of senior management = 4k & 12 & £ hn 523 100
training by employee level? (%) participating in training BHt
EHETIELREASHMZINELIE D L2 Percentage of middle management = £ & 12 [8 £ 12 3| 100
(AN) participating in training Aotk
Percentage of junior employees EBEIZNMEINE DL 100

participating in training

Training hours per capita (Hours) 18
A2 R (/)

Training hours per capita of employees by  Training hours per capita of male  £1H & T A E I K 18
gender (Hours) employees
HHERESHE T ABHLREEIEERE  Traning hours per capita of female 01 8 T A5E I & 18
(/]NBE) employees
Training hours per capita of employees by  Training hours per capita of senior =M EEE A EIIE R 18
employee level? (Hours) management
HETERIANSME T AL EEEF|E Traning hours per capita of middle F 4L & IB B A 5530 & 18
E2(/\B) management
Training hours per capita of junior EE& T AHEIJIFE 18
employees
1. The related data of employees covers Beijing Xinladao Catering Management Ltd. and 1. ETHBEEEREIL I HREERERBER AR
directly operated restaurants. REXME -
2. The senior management includes Xinladao’s employees at the deputy director level 2. EREEEREFRERAER N ERBIBET
and above; the middle management includes employees at the senior manager, FHREEERES AL KB BKEBRFE

manager and deputy manager level. T.
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4.3. Occupational Health and Safety

The Company is committed to providing a safe production environment
for all employees and protecting employees from occupational hazards.
HHG and Xinladao strictly abide by the Work Safety Law of the People’s
Republic of China, the Regulations on Work-Related Injury Insurance and
other laws and regulations, and has formulated corresponding production
safety management regulations accordingly, which constitute an
important part together with safety trainings for actual operation in new
employee orientation.

4.3.1 Employee Health Protection

The Company is committed to providing a safe and healthy working
environment for all employees. HHG and Xinladao provide pre-
employment health check-up and routine health check-up for employees
in headquarters offices; staff of all restaurants, logistics division and
related departments are required to obtain health certificates and have
health examination annually for certificate renewal. HHG continues to
abide by the relevant internal documents such as the System of Labour
Safety and Health and Operation Protection to provide employees with
production safety guidelines. For restaurant employees, HHG has
formulated Regulations on Restaurant Safety Management to manage
health and safety risk of restaurants. All restaurants are equipped with
firefighting and safety documentation portfolio including instructions on
using firefighting equipment, restaurant’s emergency plans for safety and
health accidents, and so on, so that the employees can freely access and
read at any time. One safety administrator is respectively appointed in
restaurants who regularly conducts safety training as required and
oversights the implementations. Lifeguard and evacuation manager are
also designated on a proportional basis to undertake safety responsibility.
In terms of fire safety, HHG carries out safety inspection and equipment
maintenance regularly, organises fire drills and security awareness
trainings each year. In 2021, HHG organised the Operation Centre,
Supply Chain Management Centre and functional departments of the
headquarters to attend training on the use of fire extinguishers and fire
hydrants at the fire station, and all staff passed the assessment.

Xinladao promulgates the Safety Preservation, Personnel and
Government Policies, Disinfection and Food Safety and issued New Spicy
Restaurant Crisis Operation Guide and Emergency Event Flow Chart to
provide safety guidelines for employees on dealing with possible crises in
daily operation. For the protection of frontline employees in its
restaurants, Xinladao requires restaurant managers, as the person who is
in charge, to address safety risks in a timely manner by patrolling the
restaurants regularly. For second-line employees, Xinladao arranges
safety trainings for new employees and regular safety remind for office
employees. On that basis, it provides employees with optional
supplementary medical insurance and financial support for accidents.

Best Food Holding Company Limited
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The Company also pays attention to the psychological health of
employees. By maintaining communication with employees, we can
understand the psychological status of employees in a timely manner,
and provide encouragement and guidance to ensure the physical and
mental health of employees. HHG sends relevant persons in charge to
some restaurants and dormitories every month to visit and send regards,
learn about the working and living conditions of new and senior
employees in the restaurants, and prepare gifts for employees on
holidays.

4.3.2Production Safety Management

HHG and Xinladao attach great importance to the safety management of
the factory production process. For the factory employees, HHG factories
settled a special equipment team responsible for electricity safety
management of each department. Equipment teams timely rectify
electrical safety violations and eliminate identified safety risks arising from
faulty electricity facilities. Meanwhile, we have strictly implemented fire
safety regulations and assign special personnel for each production
equipment, checking whether the equipment is in normal condition prior
to start-up and confirming that there is no hidden danger of leakage
when the equipment is turned off. Equipment with electrostatic discharge
ground clip must be correctly clamped before use, where users should
periodically check whether the metal on both ends of the clip is still
properly attached to the equipment. In addition, HHG factory is equipped
with labour protection supplies for employees entering and leaving the
freezer, including cotton clothes, cotton shoes, gloves, etc. According to
our regulations, two employees work in shifts every 40 minutes to ensure
their safety. HHG appoints special officers responsible for fire safety at
factories, and they regularly inspect the fire protection matters in the
factory area, and identify and record the risk points. Factories of Xinladao
provide a safe working and production environment in line with the
Compilation of Work Safety Management System and fulfilled
responsibility system for safe production, setting up central controller
post and providing incumbent employee injury insurance, and safety
liability insurance to ensure the safety of employees in all aspects. In
2021, factories of Xinladao cooperated with the local fire detachment to
conduct fire drills and trainings, distribute paper copies of fire training,
and test employees’ knowledge of firefighting.

In order to ensure the safety of the factory area, the factory electric forklift
was equipped with a separate shed for charging outside the factory area,
thus preventing the safety risks brought by charging from affecting the
factory area.
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In the past three years, there has been no work-related death in HHG M@ E=ZFMAAEFHEH ABA R I T
and Xinladao. ) A o

Work-related injuries and work time lapse due to work- MEATIEAEREREIGIELRIE
related injuries in HHG' HE

2021
Indicator BE 2021 %
Work time lapse due to work-related injuries (Days) TEEA T ERRECR) 146
1. The number of work-related injuries refers to the number of work-related injuries 9. ETISEAGEBBEMANERITSRER

identified by the local Human Resources and Social Security Bureau. TERTHAY -

Work-related injuries and work time lapse due to work- HBEBIEASREEIEELRITE
related injuries in Xinladao HZ
This year, there were no work-related injuries recognized by the local AKNEE @ FHBRELE BB EWA N ER
Human Resources and Social Security Bureau in Xinladao. Mt eRERIERENTEEH-
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5. Corporate Responsible Operations

Relevant UN 12 e 16 Suchstings

] AND PRODUCTION FF - ER/ER
Sustainable Development Z "
Goals (SDGs) m !
B AE IS E a2
% % B &£ (SDGs)

Best Food keeps building a responsible business model for catering
brands in which it owns shares, continuously improves the Company’s
internal control mechanism, strengthens supply chain risk management,
promotes the integrity building, protects the rights and interests of
customers, and safeguards the Company’s sound operation.

5.1 Supply Chain Management

In accordance with the Law of the People’s Republic of China on
Tendering and Bidding, the Contract Law of the People’s Republic of
China and other relevant laws and regulations, we have formulated and
continuously improved the supply chain supervision mechanism. Both
HHG and Xinladao have organised professional work teams to optimise
the supply chain process and continuously focus on the efficiency and
effectiveness of supplier management. In order to evaluate supplier
performance in a timely manner, we have established a sound supplier
selection mechanism to ensure high-quality raw material supply which
applies to all suppliers.

5.1.1Supplier Selection

The Board of Directors of HHG is responsible for the review of the bulk
procurement of the Company, establishes the Procurement Committee
and formulates the Work Procedure of HHG Procurement Committee
and Procurement Bidding Management System to standardise the
procurement process. The Procurement Committee conducts the
quallification review and approval for suppliers. The qualification review
covers referring to public punishment records of candidate suppliers
provided by the personnel in charge of legal affairs and evaluating
whether they meet the HHG’s procurement standards in terms of labour,
food safety, and environmental protection. For suppliers of tableware and
packaging, HHG gives priority to suppliers who use environmentally
friendly materials such as biodegradable bags, photodegradable bags
and PLA straws.
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Xinladao formulates and continuously optimises the Supplier Access
Mechanism, conducts qualification inspection and on-site or remote
review on all suppliers, and optimises the review and approval through
the Office Automation (OA) system to improve the accuracy and
efficiency. Each department of Xinladao has a clear division of functions.
The Purchasing Department is responsible for supplier bidding and
admittance, which mainly includes querying the administrative
punishment records of the suppliers in the National Enterprise Credit
Information Publicity System, thus ensuring that suppliers do not have
negative punishment records in employment, food safety, environmental
pollution and other aspects. Xinladao encourages suppliers to prioritise
the use of large packages instead of small packages in packaging
selection to reduce the use of packaging materials. The Quality Control
Department is responsible for supplier operation on-site review. On-site
reviews comprise assessment on production management ability,
product processing quality, environmental and healthy control, personnel
management, etc.

5.1.2Supplier Performance Evaluation

HHG has established an internal system of Supplier Management System
to continuously track the performance of existing suppliers and conduct
regular and rigorous evaluation of their performance in terms of contract
fulfilment, product quality, environmental and hygiene control, etc. For the
non-compliance during routine inspections or on-site inspections of
suppliers, HHG communicates with suppliers in a timely manner and
discusses solutions together. In case of batch quality problems, the
Company will terminate cooperation with the supplier concerned.

The Purchasing Department and Operation Department of Xinladao are
required to jointly complete the Supplier Review based on their
performance in terms of supply ability, delivery term, supply quality,
packaging, and services of the suppliers. Xinladao adopts the PQNC
system to classify and report the quality of the food materials used by
each restaurant by product and category, and identify batch product
quality problems. If common problems occur in products at multiple
restaurants, the Company will promptly contact suppliers and ask them
to conduct self-inspection and rectification. For suppliers who fail to meet
the standards, Xinladao will terminate the cooperation with them. In
2021, Xinladao conducted on-site reviews of 5 suppliers and online
reviews of 23 suppliers.

Best Food Holding Company Limited
Annual Report 2021
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5.1.3Supply Chain Environmental and Social Risk

Management

Best Food incorporates supply chain environmental and social risks into
its risk management database as significant risks, regularly conducts risk
identification and risk assessment, actively formulates risk response
measures and reports to the Board of Directors in a timely manner. At the
same time, we cooperate with various departments to implement supply
chain risk management measures and regularly check with the
departments to mitigate related risks. The major supply chain
environmental and social risks we identified during the year and
countermeasures include:

Environmental risks — The national laws and regulations related to
environmental protection continue to be tightened, therefore, we
require our supply chain stakeholders to strictly comply with
national requirements. At the same time, we actively discuss
countermeasures with suppliers and monitor their implementation
of various relevant corporate management measures;

Social risks — We identify the risk of food suppliers failing to meet
the food raw material review standards, and propose
countermeasures, including requiring relevant departments to
conduct proactive monitoring and management, and regularly
organising food safety-related training and promotion for suppliers,
etc.

As at the end of the reporting period, the total number of suppliers of
HHG and Xinladao was 156 and the breakdown of suppliers by
geographical region is as follows:

HHG Supplier Data Sheet'
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Number of suppliers at
31 December 2021
HEBEE R

Regions where suppliers operate EE 2021%12H31H
Total suppliers in Mainland China R RREM [t EAEE 86
Suppliers in East China ERMREEHEE 12
Suppliers in South China EmREEEHEE 0
Suppliers in Central China EhmREEHEE 4
Suppliers in North China ZiREREHHEE 62

Suppliers in Northwest China
Suppliers in Southwest China
Suppliers in Northeast China

1.

In year 2021, all of HHG’s suppliers were from mainland China.
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Xinladao Supplier Data Sheet'

MAREBEHREBEER

Number of suppliers at
31 December 2021
HEBHE R

Regions where suppliers operate EE 2021 % 12H31H
Total suppliers in Mainland China A K BE b [ i FE P AR BN 2 70
Suppliers in East China ERmEHERHE 12
Suppliers in South China EmRErEHEE 2
Suppliers in Central China EhREEHHEE 0
Suppliers in North China FEimEEEEEE 47
Suppliers in Northwest China it EEEE S E 0
Suppliers in Southwest China A EEEEESE 5
Suppliers in Northeast China RitmEEEEEE 4
1. In year 2021, all of Xinladao’s suppliers were from mainland China. 1. 2021 EE > FimEfErm R E h R KR

5.2. Protection of Rights and Interests

5.2.1Customer Communication

We strictly abide by relevant laws and regulations including the Law of
the People’s Republic of China on the Protection of Consumer Rights
and Interests, and establish a customer complaint and communication
mechanism based on the business characteristics of the catering
industry. We continuously review our customer engagement system to
ensure that customer feedback is effectively handled and properly
responded to. We have multiple channels to communicate and collect
opinions, including on-site feedback, hotline, ordering evaluation system,
third-party evaluation platform, email, WeChat official account, Weibo
official account.

HHG requires employees to give prompt feedback upon receiving
customer complaints and inquiries. For product complaints whose liability
lies with HHG, restaurants would grant free orders or revoke orders and
report to quality department. For other complaints such as service
complaints, the manager of the restaurant would approach customers to
provide appropriate solutions. If complaints escalate, the regional
supervisor would act to determine responsible department and clarify
who is responsible considering the specific situation, in pursuit of
addressing the issue fairly. Meanwhile, marketing department of HHG
regularly collects and analyses complaints against restaurants. In 2021,
the number of customer complaints in HHG totalled 31, of which the
number of product-related complaints totalled 14 and the number of
service-related complaints totalled 17.
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Xinladao publishes official phone numbers starting with 400 on the official
website, menus and other channels, and widely collects customer
opinions through group-buying platforms, official WeChat and Weibo
accounts. For customer complaints and inquiries received at restaurants,
duty managers would immediately contact customers and provide
solutions. Where the respective restaurant fails to settle the case, the
regional manager and market manager at each level would follow up to
ensure that a satisfactory result can be given to the customer. Xinladao
summarises the common problems raised by customers once a week
and incorporates the problems into the general training plans for
restaurants, and directly links them with employee performance,
continuously improving dining and consumption experience for each
customer. In 2021, the number of customer complaints in Xinladao
totalled 30, of which the number of product-related complaints totalled
22 and the number of service-related complaints totalled 8.

5.2.2Data Security

We strictly abide by relevant laws and regulations including the Law of
the People’s Republic of China on the Protection of Consumer Rights
and Interests, the Cybersecurity Law of the People’s Republic of China
and the Personal Information Protection Law of the People’s Republic of
China. We value consumer data security and privacy protection while
accelerating the digitalisation process.

HHG’s IT department applies a way of “multi-layer encryption +
hierarchical access control” to protect consumers’ information. HHG sets
up employees’ access rights to member information according to their
posts to ensure the personal privacy of members, and stipulates data
confidentiality clauses and corresponding default clauses in the contracts
signed with third-party companies that develop member information
management systems.

Xinladao values the operation of T system, adopts industry-leading
customer relation management (CRM) system and safeguards its user
and member’s rights, interests and privacy from multiple angels, including
management of channels, rules and data. Xinladao selects third-party
companies with leading experience for data management of membership
system and Point of Sales (POS) system, and ensures storage and
access security of member data by signing confidentiality clauses with
third-party companies. Customers’ primary data is encrypted and stored
on a qualified third-party cloud platform. For data storage, we have
established the access management and remote disaster recovery
mechanism and backed up the data from third-party cloud platform to
the local server every day to control the risk of data loss.

In 2021, the holding brands of the Company had no significant incidents
related to exposure of customer privacy.

e

RE HEREAEE (B

MARENE M XEFHE D LA400F
EMENER UBBEBTE BEAM
ELRMEREZEREEFER MBERER
ERFERE BULESERRANE —
FRBEBELIREBERTE - PR
BLEEBR AERESKLE mHELER
AMIRE - ARBEAIAGE TEP W BN R IR
ER-FTREBTRAAERTREN LR
B mAZBEMENEIEE YRETR
HERES FERASLETNRER
BAMHERRX 2021FE > TRENETF
BB EHAIMF EPERBRFHEH22
o RGBT BE RS-

52HIEZ®
BHEFRET(PEARKMBEEE#a
REZ) (PEARAMERPRLZ2IE)
(PEARKMBEEAGBRE L) FERE
ER - EMRBFERNBE  HATE
BREEHBEZE2LEBMLRELE-

MAEBTHMAKRIZEMNT+2 RERE
ZEIHA REBEEEEL2 - BRE
SEEAARLIHEE NEaARBEEUB
EREBTHERBEEMSHER X &
HAZKGBESEERGNE=ZTRAR
FIEARF R ERBREEGRR LY E
B 3 49 B 3% {5 5K o

MRBERTERROES  HERE RAUR
BEEESZARLE EAXRNELN
EFBEEECRMES REMFEEE
MEDELEL BEAGELRLRNE =

RE HEERARMEHERHEERZR
POSEMHETHIEERE - BBEE=FQ
ARARTGRR BREEHENLERF
FEGAE EFRABEBEAEEEENS
ZSHEFRETNERE SRBENTT
e BMELERERNZu CHE D H
B BERE=ZSTABAEHRENE B BIE
B A4 AR 75 2% - I BUR R R E R o

2021%F AR AIER REABERERF
BEAMBEEANSEMS-

BREZERERAQR
—EC-FFRH



ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE (“ESG”) REPORT (CONTINUED)
RE - -HEREARE ()

e

5.3 Intellectual Property Protection

We strictly abide by relevant laws and regulations including the Patent
Law of the People’s Republic of China, the Copyright Law of the People’s
Republic of China and the Trademark Law of the People’s Republic of
China, resolutely safeguard our own rights and interests in accordance
with the law. We protect our intellectual property rights and maintain the
honourable image of our brand by promptly applying for patents and
spontaneously monitoring the risk of trademark infringement in the
market. At the same time, we respect the intellectual property rights of
others and obviate infringement on intellectual property rights through a
strict review process of promotional materials. As at the end of the
reporting period, 3 trademarks and 3 artwork copyrights were registered
in Mainland China by HHG.

5.4 Compliance Advertising

The Company strictly complies with the relevant laws and provisions in
the Advertising Law of the People’s Republic of China and truly and
objectively reflect the products and the dining environment. Before the
promotion content released by brands under the Company, it is strictly
reviewed by multiple departments to ensure the rigour and authenticity of
the information. HHG and its partners have signed the relevant advertising
endorsement agreement, which negotiate and confirm that within the
validity period of the agreement HHG can use the image, voice and name
of the spokesperson for omnichannel promotion of HHG’s products or
brands. At the same time, the Company ensures that the content of
advertisements is compliant and legal, and do not carry any political
complexion, religious tendency, and guarantee the health and safety of
the spokesperson. Xinladao optimises the internal management process
of advertising and publicity. In 2021, Xinladao formulated the Advertising
Law Content Specifications, which clearly requires brands to carry out
publicity from the actual product, and avoid unreasonable content
misleading consumers. In 20221, the Company had no significant
violation against the laws and regulations related to advertising.

5.5 Anti-corruption

Best Food strictly abides by laws and regulations, such as the Anti-Unfair
Competition Law of the People’s Republic of China and the Interim
Provisions on Banning Commercial Bribery, and continues to refine the
internal anti-corruption management to ensure the integrity management
and operation of the Company. In 2021, Best Food provided integrity and
anti-corruption training for all employees, meanwhile, the Company
produced a training course and distributed it to all board members for
learning. In 2021, no litigation regarding corruption was filed against the
Company.

Best Food Holding Company Limited
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Internal Control Department of Best Food was set up as the department
responsible for internal anti-corruption and monitoring preventing the risk
of corruption in all aspects of operation and management, and handling
corruption reports. We have issued the Administrative Measures for
Complaints and Reports (the “Measures”), which stipulates the scope of
reporting, reporting methods and channels, and handling procedures
after receiving reports, and requires each business entities to post the
Measures in the public office areas. At the same time, we have
conducted a code of conduct for suppliers, and formulated the Anti-
Commercial Bribery Clause, as an additional agreement to the holding
company’s commercial contract, requiring all suppliers to sign at the
access approval stage to promise they will have no violation against the
principle of good faith.

In addition, HHG and Xinladao implement various measures in supervision
and management, based on their actual circumstances.

Xinladao sets up various supervision channels such as working group,
e-mail and phone, so that employees can timely report issues. Xinladao
ensures that all reporting channels are fully accessible, and the issues
reported can be investigated in time. As for significant problems such as
illegal operation and potential fraud, the internal control department will
carry out timely follow-up. Once the facts are verified and confirmed, the
problems will be dealt with seriously.

HHG has explicitly stipulated in the inspection and punishment for
corruption and bribery in the Employee Handbook. It has no tolerance for
employees’ violations, such as bribery, embezzlement of public funds.
For employees who commit serious negligence of duty, illegal acts for
personal gains and fraud, HHG will pursue criminal responsibility and
economic compensation according to relevant laws. Employees of HHG
can, in an anonymous or real-name manner, report any violation of
corruption, bribery, abuse of power, extortion and fraud. Reporting
approaches and channels include public mailboxes, party building bulletin
boards, and corruption complaint boxes. According to the Detailed
Implementation Rules for the Corruption Complaint Box, the person in
charge of the corruption complaint box must comply with confidentiality
requirements and are strictly prohibited to disclose the information about
the complainants. HHG takes immediate action to stop and deal with
suppliers involved in violation of integrity.
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6. Community Empowerment 6. MEeBh Hhet &

1 NO POVERTY 4 QUALITY EDUCATION SUSTAINABLE CITIES
¥ BHHE 11 AND COMMUNITIES
AR
WA E

wii | N | B

Best Food attaches great importance to community participation, and its B @IER ER T B 28 - A5 fE Nk E
company’s holding and shareholding companies actively build 2 & (b 2 & 1% B2 48 4 i 26 1) AR i o = 22
harmonious and co-prosperous relationships with local communities — F1 e &2 #y 8 K o 3 93838 5118 4 FT/E 1
where they operate. We communicate with employees, customers, and #E T BT - M T BREFENEBR > T #HZ
local governments of places where we operate to understand the short- IS Bl R EIE K - @BELXEMMAE MR D
term and long-term needs of the region. In addition, we serve the society # & - B EF8) ZRBE RIS HFEE R
and repay the society by participating in education, donations and other A& EZEF X - RiGtt € BHRLE -
activities in the region and responding to the national calls and making

commitments during the special period.

Supporting Education
B3

HHG has always believed that education is the foundation of the healthy development and prosperity of the community. In
2021, HHG and the China Agricultural University Education Foundation jointly established the 'HHG Scholarship’,
promising an annual donation of RMB 50,000 to the Foundation to encourage the continued growth of the award-winning
students in their majors. During this year, HHG invested RMB 50,000 in the scholarship.

MERRBRRBYERLERBERMELNBAR -2021F  MECHAFEREARBHEESSH A R [

ERAEERALSETARE -

Flood Control and Relief

B R K

In July 2021, Henan and other places suffered continuous heavy rainfall, and severe flooding occurred in Zhengzhou and
other cities. All the employees of HHG were concerned about the disaster-stricken areas, and actively responded to the
important arrangements of the national flood control and relief and tried their best to support the stabilization of local
consumer market. HHG became one of the first batch of enterprises to participate in the 'Stand Together Through Thick
and Thin to Guarantee Price, Quality and Supply Initiative’ issued by the Food Safety Alliance of the State Administration
for Market Regulation and took actions to ensure that food prices, quality and supply in the disaster-hit areas.

2015 7H  MESHHEEERRN BMNERTELERENF NEALBEILVEZ X WE  BHRER
BRHEUMAMKNEELZHE BAZXEBEEMEEMSNBEES KAEML2EMSEEERNRREL S
FRBEHACKERRATZRITY - [REE REE REHEIEREVTHARNLE  MEAUNERITHR
BEEXXWERMERTR B2TME  HETE -
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Appendix | Environmental, Social and fieg —(GRIE -2 R
Governance Reporting Guide Content Index EBEHREESIDRBED

Corresponding

Issue Issue Description report chapter Page
1 &R HERSEEH ¥
Governance Structure A statement from the board containing the following elements: ~ Board Statement 210
EIARE HEFSRLMER ETFHE TIRE: Exg2H

()  adisclosure of the board’s oversight of ESG issues;
() BREEFSHRE HEREAFEMNEE:

(i) the board’s ESG management approach and strategy,
including the process used to evaluate, prioritise and
manage material ESG-related issues (including risks to
the issuer’s businesses); and

@ BFEHNRR HIFREREERTH KR BE
B EBREINLREREENRE HEehELHEBE
H(BREETARBEOAR) OB &

(i) how the board reviews progress made against ESG-
related goals and targets with an explanation of how they
relate to the issuer’s businesses.
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Corresponding

Issue Issue Description report chapter Page
BB = HEREEH H¥"
Reporting Principles A description of, or an explanation on, the application of the About the Report 209
P& =R & A1l following Reporting Principles in the preparation of the ESG AR AR E

report:

WM EERBRE LB RRERFMOMER T
PEE ¥R R A

Materiality: The ESG report should disclose: (i) the process to
identify and the criteria for the selection of material ESG factors;
(ii) if a stakeholder engagement is conducted, a description of
significant stakeholders identified, and the process and results
of the issuer’s stakeholder engagement.

EEMN RE HENERREEREE )RNERR
B dHelkErBENBREREEELEAZMNER (i)
BOTACDETHEMNEZ2E EBFNESHNENHLK
BITARMNEZ2ENBRERER -

Quantitative: Information on the standards, methodologies,
assumptions and/or calculation tools used, and source of
conversion factors used, for the reporting of emissions/energy
consumption (where applicable) should be disclosed.

Bt BERERENE RIRER(WER) AN EE.
FEBER/UFAETANEN  ARAEANEREA
EHRRETHE -

Consistency: The issuer should disclose in the ESG report any
changes to the methods or KPIs used, or any other relevant
factors affecting a meaningful comparison.

— B BTARERRE HELEARSPEREMRT A
FEREREREENEE (WA TR EMTEEERL
ROWHEERE -
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Corresponding
report chapter
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Page
B

Reporting Boundary
e 7 46

A Environmental
ARE

Aspect A1: Emissions

EBEA:ERY

General Disclosure
— R

KPIA1.1
B 2 5 WUIR 1R AT

A narrative explaining the reporting boundaries of the ESG

report and describing the process used to identify which entities

or operations are included in the ESG report. If there is a
change in the scope, the issuer should explain the difference

and reason for the change.

MEBRE HegkE0MENERSE - il P
ERXEBEMARE HERERARENAIRE GERD
CBITANERBETIRZEREESHRE -

B F e

Information on:

ERBERMAEREBHN HKERIENES AFERE
EERVNELSFMN

(@  the policies; and

M BHX: X

(b)  compliance with relevant laws and regulations that have a
significant impact on the issuer relating to air and
greenhouse gas emissions, discharges into water and
land, and generation of hazardous and non-hazardous

waste.

@ MIHIDLANABAVE

¥ o

MMEREERRENE
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Corresponding
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BB = HEREEH H¥"
KPIA1.2 Direct (Scope 1) and energy indirect (Scope 2) greenhouse gas  Scientific Energy 235-236
BRI IEIZA1.2 emissions (in tonnes) and, where appropriate, intensity (e.g. per  Conservation- Key
unit of production volume, per facility). Environmental

HiE(BE1) REREE (BE2) AEREHME R (A Performance
AERNERBRE(NMASEEEMN  SERETE) - R —

BRIRIEEN
KPI'A1.3 Total hazardous waste produced (in tonnes) and, where Scientific Energy 235-236
FAREBUEREALS appropriate, intensity (e.g. per unit of production volume, per Conservation- Key
facility). Environmental
FFEEBEEEYRE UEAE) R(WER) 2% Z (WA Performance
BESEM BERBTHE) - R EE0RE R BE —
BRIRIFEE N
KPIA1.4 Total non-hazardous waste produced (in tonnes) and, where Scientific Energy 235-236
BASRIE B IZA1.4 appropriate, intensity (e.g. per unit of production volume, per Conservation- Key
facility). Environmental
FEEABREEEYES (AEETE) R (W@EA) % E (LA Performance
BEEEM BERXBITE) - 2 6 B R BE —
BRIRIBEEN
KPIA1.5 Description of emissions target(s) set and steps taken to Scientific Energy 227-236
HAREBUEREALS achieve them. Conservation
BRIV ERERAEINE LB EMRIN ST REMERHE
KPI A1.6 Description of how hazardous and non-hazardous wastes are Scientific Energy 227-236
FAREBUEEALG handled, and a description of reduction target(s) set and steps ~ Conservation
taken to achieve them. T 22 50 B2 Rk BE

WA REEEREZTERYM I A R A P RT3 /R B B
BEREDELBRATREA P -
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1 BB HEREEEH HE

Aspect A2: Use of Resources
BEmA2: EREA

General Disclosure Policies on the efficient use of resources, including energy, Scientific Energy 228-229
— MR water and other raw materials. Conservation —
BRERER(BIEER KREMEMR) HERE - Optimising Resource
Utilisation
R 8 B R BE —

BEERF A

KPI A2.1 Direct and/or indirect energy consumption by type (e.g. Scientific Energy 235-236
8 5 48 R 1R A2.1 electricity, gas or oil) in total (kWh in ’000s) and intensity (e.g. Conservation — Key
per unit of production volume, per facility). Environmental

REMNESHNEER HEEERER(NE  fsh) BFEE  Performance
UNFEFERFAE)REZE(WMNSGESEN  FHEKE BB RiE —

FTHE) - BRIRIEE N
KPI A2.2 Water consumption in total and intensity (e.g. per unit of Scientific Energy 235-236
BRI B IZA2.2 production volume, per facility). Conservation — Key
BEXERZE(WMUASEESEN - BHEREHBITE) Environmental
Performance
R E0RE R HE —
BRIRIEEN
KPI A2.3 Description of energy use efficiency target(s) set and steps Scientific Energy 227-236
R EBUERA2.3 taken to achieve them. Conservation
PRI Y REA MR B ERREIE LB FEMERER REEae R
KPI A2.4 Description of whether there is any issue in sourcing water that ~ Scientific Energy 227-236
FAREBIEEA2.4 is fit for purpose, water efficiency target(s) set and steps taken ~ Conservation
to achieve them. ToF 22 50 B2 R BE

it SR BUE A KR £ R BT RE - LA R P ET S A A 7K AR
S AENGERELBEAERMNLSR-

KPI A2.5 Total packaging material used for finished products (in tonnes)  Scientific Energy 235-236
Ba SR A B2 A2.5 and, if applicable, with reference to per unit produced. Conservation — Key
X MATAEEM BB E (UBEETE) R (WEB)B4EE  Envionmental
BRhE o Performance
BLE AT aE R HE —
BRIRIBEN
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BB = HEREEH H¥"
Aspect A3: The Environment and Natural Resources 227-236
EBEHA3: BERXARER
General Disclosure Policies on minimising the issuer’s significant impacts on the Scientific Energy
— MR environment and natural resources. Conservation
MEBETABRERRAREREKNEATENEE - T 22 50 82 R BE
KPI A3.1 Description of the significant impacts of activities on the Scientific Energy 228-229
78 2 48 IR 12 A3 environment and natural resources and the actions taken to Conservation —
manage them. Optimising Resource
HMEBETHHRERRABERNEAZE RS KINEIE Utiisation
FEATENTHY - RHE 80 RE R HE —
B EIRF A
Aspect A4: Climate Change
BEAG: RIEE
General Disclosure Policies on identification and mitigation of significant climate- Scientific Energy 233-234
— R related issues which have impacted, and those which may Conservation —
impact, the issuer. Climate Change
BRI NEHERRAIGSHBETAELETENEANRIKE Tacking
BEEHBUER - R 8 B R BE —
JE ¥ AR 1t
KPI'A4.1 Description of the significant climate-related issues which have  Scientific Energy 233-234
B iR A IR 12 A4 impacted, and those which may impact, the issuer, and the Conservation —
actions taken to manage them. Climate Change
R B RAREHETAEEATENERARKIEASE Tacking
B REHTH- 22 6 BE R BE—
JE ¥ R x Z 1L

Best Food Holding Company Limited

Annual Report 2021



ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE (“ESG”) REPORT (CONTINUED) !
RiE - -HERERERS (B

Corresponding

Issue Issue Description report chapter Page
1 BB HEREEEH HE
B. Social

B.&4&

Employment and Labour Practices

EEREIER
Aspect B1: Employment
BEB1: EE
General Disclosure Information on: Seeking Growth 237-243
— AR H R EEFNEEE  BERSH  LERRE  BRE - FEH Together with
g 2t REBRAREAMEFSRER : Employees —
Employment and
(@  the policies; and Employee Rights
n HE: R BIHRAKE —
BT ERMEEER
(b)  compliance with relevant laws and regulations that have a
significant impact on the issuer relating to compensation
and dismissal, recruitment and promotion, working hours,
rest periods, equal opportunity, diversity, anti-
discrimination, and other benefits and welfare.
2 BIHETABERZENHBZEZEZRATHER -
KPI B1.1 Total workforce by gender, employment type (for example, Seeking Growth 237-243
R A BUEIEBT A full- or parttime), age group and geographical region. Together with
BUR EEER FRANRMEISNES R - Employees —
Employment and
Employee Rights
BITHRAKE —
BTRMEEER
KPI B1.2 Employee turnover rate by gender, age group and geographical  Seeking Growth 237-243
A MIEEBT .2 region. Together with
BER - FEAR REE DN EERKLE - Employees —

Employment and
Employee Rights
BITHRKE —
BT ERFEREESR
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BB = HEREEH H¥"
Aspect B2: Health and Safety
[EEB2: REREZ2
General Disclosure Information on: Seeking Growth 248-250
— R FARMZE2TIFREMREETIHABEMESH Together with
Employees —
(@  the policies; and Occupational Health
1) BE: R and Safety
BTHRIKE —
()  compliance with relevant laws and regulations that have a Bt ¥ fZEHE%Z 2
significant impact on the issuer relating to providing a safe
working environment and protecting employees from
occupational hazards.
2 BIFHETARERZENHBEZEZEZRATHER -
KPI B2.1 Number and rate of work-related fatalities occurred in each of Seeking Growth 249-250
R E BB IEB2.1 the past three years including the reporting year. Together with
BE=ZF(BEERFE)SFRAITHHOAZB R E - Employees —
Production Safety
Management
BTHRAKE —
EEREZER
KPI B2.2 Lost days due to work injury. Seeking Growth 249-250
A RIEEB2.2 EATHEBARATERE - Together with
Employees —
Production Safety
Management
BTHRIKEK —
EEZEZER
KPI B2.3 Description of occupational health and safety measures Seeking Growth 249-250
AR A B 1EB2.3 adopted, and how they are implemented and monitored. Together with
TR M B 2R E L 2 - AR TREER Employees —
FE e Production Safety
Management
BTHRIKE —
FEZTER

Best Food Holding Company Limited

Annual Report 2021



Issue

1=

Issue Description

=B

ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE (“ESG”) REPORT (CONTINUED)
RiE - -HERERERS (B

Corresponding
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HEREEH

e

Page
B

Aspect B3: Development and Training

[EHEB3 : & K3

General Disclosure
—

KPI B3.1
28 i 45 IR 1R B3 1

KPIB3.2
B AR K FE1RB3.2

Policies on improving employees’ knowledge and skills for
discharging duties at work. Description of training activities.

BREAEERIT TFBAE MM H M IREEMEEK -

FEE

The percentage of employees trained by gender and employee
category (e.g. senior management, middle management).

EHRIREERN(NERERE TREEEF) EHH

XilEEBDL °

The average training hours completed per employee by gender

and employee category.

BURIREEBEMNE D BREETKFIINFHRER -

R U

Seeking Growth
Together with
Employees —
Employee
Development and
Promotion

BT HAKE —
BET#HEEEH

Seeking Growth
Together with
Employees —
Employee
Development and
Promotion
BTHRIKE —
BIZERES

Seeking Growth
Together with
Employees —
Employee
Development and
Promotion
BITHRIKE —
BET#HRES

243-247
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11 BB HEREEEH HE

Aspect B4: Labour Standards
EEB4: & T AR

General Disclosure Information on: Seeking Growth 237-243
— MR BB IEE TR H4 Th) Together with
Employees-
(@  the policies; and Employment and
@@ HWE: R Employee Rights
BIHRAKE -

(o)  compliance with relevant laws and regulations that have a 8 T {& & S x5
significant impact on the issuer relating to preventing child
and forced labour.

b ETHETABEATENHBEIZLRONER -

KPI B4.1 Description of measures to review employment practices to Seeking Growth 237-243
52 48 B 1EB4.1 avoid child and forced labour. Together with
fitt i s BB PINEEAR R E T RRHIST - Employees-

Employment and
Employee Rights

BEIHAKE —
BTl EFEREESR
KPI B4.2 Description of steps taken to eliminate such practices when Seeking Growth 237-243
B 48 B 1R B4.2 discovered. Together with
IR EHIRERBERRERGMIBAARRO LR - Employees-

Employment and
Employee Rights
BTHRIKE —
BT RFEEER
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1 BB HEREEEH HE

Operating Practices

EEEN

Aspect B5: Supply Chain Management
[EEBS5 : itEHEEE

General Disclosure Policies on managing environmental and social risks of the Corporate 251-254
— R supply chain. Responsible
EEHEEMNRERLEGRRBRE Operations — Supply
Chain Management
PEEELE —
HrEEER
KPI B5.1 Number of suppliers by geographical region. Corporate 251-254
75 4B WU 1EB5.1 EwRBEASNHEEEER - Responsible

Operations — Supply
Chain Management

TEETLE —
HpE g g I8
KPI B5.2 Description of practices relating to engaging suppliers, number  Corporate 251-254
B iR A IR 1EB5.2 of suppliers where the practices are being implemented, and Responsible
how they are implemented and monitored. Operations — Supply
HAEFAEBESEMNED MERTEBEMNNMHER Chan Management
HE UALEEEMNNRITRERTE - TEREFLEE —
g E IR
KPI B5.3 Description of practices used to identify environmental and Corporate 251-254
A8 4E B 13 B5.3 social risks along the supply chain, and how they are Responsible
implemented and monitored. Operations — Supply
M BEENHEERTEREONIRE R GRMRED - Chain Management
KRBT RERTE- TEEELE —
e g g 12
KPI B5.4 Description of practices used to promote environmentally Corporate 251-254
B iR A IR 1EB5.4 preferable products and services when selecting suppliers, and  Responsible
how they are implemented and monitored. Operations — Supply
HMEREHEEFREZARKRE®RLRBENIEN - LA Chain Management
MABBARIT REE R % o TEREFLEE —
g E IR

BREZERERAQR
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BB = HEREEH H¥"
Aspect B6: Product Responsibility
[EEB6: EmEE
General Disclosure Information on: Healthy and Optimal ~ 220-223
— MR FHMEHEMNBEBNEERLZS  BE  BEERLRE Food — safe meals
EENARERTER EREBEZER —
o &
(@  the policies; and
@ HE R
(b)  compliance with relevant laws and regulations that have a
significant impact on the issuer relating to health and
safety, advertising, labelling and privacy matters relating
to products and services provided and methods of
redress.
) BEIFTEHBETATERZENHRBEZEZEZRRAOINER -
KPI B6.1 Percentage of total products sold or shipped subject to recalls  Healthy and Optimal ~ 220-223
A R I 18 12 B6. 1 for safety and health reasons. Food — safe meals
PERCEXERABPREL > HEREAMADNKNE BREEZER —
DL e B AE
KPI B6.2 Number of products and service related complaints received Corporate 254-255
78R A IR 1EB6.2 and how they are dealt with. Responsible
EEARERIBRENRFHEAREE X - Operations —
Protection of Rights
and Interests
TEREFLEE —
IR E
KPI B6.3 Description of practices relating to observing and protecting Corporate 256
R4 W5 1ZB6.3 intellectual property rights. Responsible
M BEERRENSEESBENED - Operations —
Intellectual Property
Protection
TEEFLEE —
R o0 E AR o
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RE =B HEREEH H¥"
KPI B6.4 Description of quality assurance process and recall procedures. Healthy and Optimal ~ 223-226

FASE 4 KI5 15B6.4

KPI B6.5
78 2 45 IR 1R B6.5

WL EREBENEMDKER -

Description of consumer data protection and privacy policies,
and how they are implemented and monitored.

R EBESBRERFLBEE  AREARITRERS
VE o

Aspect B7: Anticorruption

BEB7: R&ES

General Disclosure
— R E

KPI B7.1
8§ AR K F5 1R BT .1

Information on:

BRA LR BR - MEFRLREN

T

the policies; and
K &

=

(b)  compliance with relevant laws and regulations that have a
significant impact on the issuer relating to bribery,
extortion, fraud and money laundering.

b)) BFHBRTABEAZENMHBEIEZLRMONER -

Number of concluded legal cases regarding corrupt practices
brought against the issuer or its employees during the reporting
period and the outcomes of the cases.
REZBANEETASIEEEREIVEEENETHAR
HH BB RFRER -

Food — Pursuing

Quality

EEETEA -

Corporate
Responsible
Operations —

254-255

Protection of Rights

and Interests

EEELE -

iR

Corporate
Responsible

256-257

Operations — Anti-

corruption

CEREELE -

k&S

Corporate
Responsible

256-257

Operations — Anti-

corruption

CEREELE —

k&S
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BB = HEREEH H¥"
KPIB7.2 Description of preventive measures and whistle-blowing Corporate 256-257
Bk A IR 1ZBT.2 procedures, and how they are implemented and monitored. Responsible
WSS N EME T U RBERITRER T % - Operations — Anti-
corruption
TrEREFLEE —
RESF
KPI B7.3 Description of anti-corruption training provided to directors and  Corporate 256-257
R 4E MIE1ZEB7.3 staff. Responsible
HMAmESREIREORESEI - Operations — Anti-
corruption
EEELE —
RES
Community
#HE

Aspect B8: Community Investment
[EEB8: HtEBRE

General Disclosure Policies on community engagement to understand the needs of  Community 258
— R the communities where the issuer operates and to ensure its Empowerment
activities take into consideration the communities’ interests. B BE B) ST 4t @

FRANHE2BERTREEMELEFTEMBRLERE
BEE R EANSEAER -

KPI B8.1 Focus areas of contribution (e.g. education, environmental Community 258
E 5245 512 B8.1 concerns, labour needs, health, culture, sport). Empowerment
EITERER(INHE REZFE SIF K R X HEPHHHE
o %) -

KPI B8.2 Resources contributed (e.g. money or time) to the focus area. Community 258
R 4E M Ig1ZEBs.2 EEIHEMHAER (NS BAMH) - Empowerment
At By N it 2
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No. 8 Finance Street, Central, Hong Kong
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E5E Tel: +852 3961 9700

{HE Fax: +852 3961 9799
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